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Winter Park, FL 


32790·0200 


Tel 407·740·8575 
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July 14, 2000 
Via Overnight Delivery 

Ms. Blanca Bayo 
c:.'I 

Division of Records and Reporting 0-. '-­Florida Public Service Commission 	 c:­
f' 

Division of Communication 
-./2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 

Gerald L. Gunter Building, Room 270 
l-

Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 to 

RE: 	 Frontier Communications of America, Inc. 
Interexchange Carrier Application r--:J:)O?:l.o 3 --'I ---r: 

Dear Ms. Bayo, 

Enclosed for filing are the original and six (6) copies of the above referenced 
application of Frontier Communications of America, Inc. is seeking authority to 
provide interexchange carrier services in Florida. 

Enclosed is a check in the amount of $250.00 to cover the filing fee. 

Please acknowledge receipt of this filing by date-stamping the extra copy of this 
cover letter and returning it to my attention in the self-addressed, stamped 
envelope which has been provided for that purpose. 

Questions pertaining to this application or tariff should be directed to my 
attention at (407) 740-8575. 

Thank you for your assistance. 
r 	 Check received with nli~ and 

fOrvRrded to FOCal for depoeft. 
Fiscal to forward a copy of cMok 
to RAR with proof of depolit. s;~e~~IY' cJ (~ 
~ p&rIOn who fol"t"Mro.d oheck: 

Connie t i9htmar 
Consultant to Frontier Communications of America 

CWlim. 

Enclosure 

cc: Michael J. Nighan, Frontier CommunicationsrQfr4,ljq~if~ 1 \~P~ R - O~TE 
File: Frontier Communications of America - Florid~~~t; 
TMS: FLlOOOO 085 77 JUL 17 g 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DIVISION OF COMMUNICATIONS 


BUREAU OF SERVICE EVALUATION 


APPLICATION FORM 

for 


AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE 

INTEREXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 


WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA 


Instructions 

A. 	 This form is used for an original application for a certificate and for approval of sale, 
assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In case of a sale, assignment or transfer, 
the information provided shall be for the purchaser, assignee or transferee (See Appendix 
A). 

B. 	 Respond to each item requested in the application and appendices. If an item is not 
applicable, please explain why. 

C. 	 Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space. 

D. 	 If you have questions about completing the form, contact: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Communications 
Bureau of Service Evaluation 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Gunter Building 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(904) 413-6600 

E. 	 Once completed, submit the original and six (6) copies of this form along with a non­
refundable application fee of$250.00 to: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
4J ('J

Division of Administration 	 f.-
~<:( aa ,.....,2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 	 a 

t:t: 
I ­

I 

Gunter Building 	 4 
0:: _1 

::::>c ·, '-'-' Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 	 J \-:t:..::r: .. - ""­
(904) 413-6251 	 ::z: 

(.t) 

a"' ­
(J_f. ­ "' ­

~ 
lr) uL.. I""::r:: 1.1:"CO.::> 

u D L ' 
0 'w "') 

0 0.. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2), 

1 

http:of$250.00


1. Select what type of'5Usiness your company will be conductiIi'g'( check all that apply): 

( ) Facilities based carrier - company owns and operates or plans to own and 
operate telecommunications switches and transmission facilities in Florida. 

( ) Operator Service Provider - company provides or plans to provide alternative 
operator services for IXCs; or toll operator services to call aggregator locations; or 
clearinghouse services to bill such calls. 

(I) Reseller - company has or plans to have one or more switches but primarily leases 
the transmission facilities of other carriers. Bills its own customer base for 
services used. 

( ) Switchless rebiller - company has no switch or transmission facilities but may 
have a billing computer. Aggregates traffic to obtain bulk discounts from 
underlying carrier. Rebills end users at a rate above its discount but generally 
below the rate end users would pay for unaggregated traffic. 

( ) Multi-Location Discount Aggregator - company contracts with unaffiliated 
entities to obtain bulk/volume discounts under multi-location discount plans from 
certain underlying carriers. Then offers the resold service by enrolling unaffiliated 
customers. 

( ) Prepaid Debit Card Provider - any person or entity that purchases 800 access 
from an underlying carrier or unaffiliated entity for use with prepaid debit card 
service and/or encodes the cards with personal identification numbers. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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"---'2. 	 This is an applicatwn for"[ (check one): 

(..f) Original Authority (New company) 


( ) Approval of transfer (To another certificated company) 


( ) Approval of assignment of existing certificate (To a noncertificated company) 


() Approval for transfer of control (To another certificated company.) 


3. 	 Name of corporation, partnership, cooperative, joint venture or sole proprietorship: 

Frontier Communications of America, Inc. 

180 South Clinton Avenue 

Rochester, New York 14646 


Telephone: (716) 777-8456 

Facsimile: (716) 232-3646 


4. 	 Name under which the applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 

Frontier Communications ofAmerica, Inc. 

5. 	 National address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state and zip 
code). 

Street: 	 180 South Clinton Avenue 
P.O. Box: 

City, State: Rochester, New York 

Zip Code: 14646 


FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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6. 	 Florida address (in~ding street name & number, post office-tfux, city, state and zip 
code). 

Street: 
P.O. Box: 

City, State: 

Zip Code: 


7. 	 Structure of organization: 

( ) 	 Individual ( ) Corporation 
(f) Foreign Corporation ( ) Foreign Partnership 

( ) General Partnership ( ) Limited Partnership 

( ) Other, _________ 


8. 	 If applicant is an individual or partnership, please give name, title and address of sole 
proprietor or partners. 

(a) 	 Provide proof of compliance with the foreign partnership statute (Chapter 620.169 
FS), if applicable. 

(b) 	 Indicate if the individual or any of the partners have previously been: 

(1) 	 adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or 
of any crime, or whether such actions may result from pending 
proceedings. 

(2) 	 officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated 
telephone company. Ifyes, give name of company and relationship. Ifno 
longer associated with the company, give reason why not. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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9. If incorporated, ple¥e give: 	 ~ 

(a) 	 Proof from the Florida Secretary of State that the applicant has authority to 
operate in Florida. 

Corporate charter number: 

(b) 	 Name and address of the company's Florida registered agent. 

Prentice Hall Corporation System, Inc. 

1201 Hays Street, Suite 105 

Tallahassee, FL 32301 


(c) 	 Provide proof of compliance with the fictitious name statute (Chapter 865.09 FS), 
if applicable. 

Fictitious name registration number: 

(d) 	 Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders have 
previously been: 

(1) 	 adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or 
of any crime, or whether such actions may result from pending 
proceedings. 

No officer or director has filed for corporate bankruptcy and no officer or 
director has been adjudged incompetent or found guilty of any felony or of 
anycnme. 

(2) 	 officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated 
telephone company. Ifyes, give name of company and relationship. Ifno 
longer associated with the company, give reason why not. 

No officer, director, partner or stockholder of the Company is an officer, 
director or stockholder in any other Florida certificated telephone 
company. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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10. 	 Who will serve as li:'a'rson with the Commission in regard to ~ase give name, title, 
address and telephone number): 

(a) 	 The application: 

Connie Wightman 

Consultant to Frontier Communications of America, Inc. 

Technologies Management, Inc. 

P.O. Drawer 200 
Winter Park, FL 32790-0200 
Telephone: (407) 740-8575 
Facsimile: (407) 740-0613 

(b) 	 Official Point of Contact for the ongoing operations of the company: 

Michael J. Nighan, Director - Regulatory Affairs 
Frontier Communications of America, Inc. 
180 South Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 
Telephone: (716) 777-8456 
Facsimile: (716) 232-3646 

(c) 	 Tariff: 

Connie Wightman 

Consultant to Frontier Communications of America, Inc. 

Technologies Management, Inc. 

P.O. Drawer 200 
Winter Park, FL 32790-0200 
Telephone: (407) 740-8575 
Facsimile: (407) 740-0613 

(d) 	 Complaints/Inquiries from customers: 

Customer Care Department 
Frontier Communications of America, Inc. 
180 South Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 

Telephone: (716) 777-8456 
Facsimile: (716) 232-3646 

11. 	 List the states in which the applicant: 

(a) 	 Has operated as an interexchange carrier. 

Iowa, Minnesota, New York, Pennsylvania and Wisconsin. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25·24.471, 25·24.473, and 25.24.480(2). 
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(b) Has applica'iiO'ns pending to be certificated as an interafchange carrier. 

None 

(c) 	 Is certificated to operate as an interexchange carrier. 

Applicant operates as an interexchange carrier in Iowa, Minnesota, New 
York, Pennsylvania and Wisconsin 

(d) 	 Has been denied authority to operate as an interexchange carrier and the 
circumstances involved. 

Not applicable 

(e) 	 Has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations oftelecommunications statutes 
and the circumstances involved. 

Not applicable 

(f) 	 Has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange carrier, local 
exchange carrier or other telecommunications entity, and the circumstances involved. 

None 

12. 	 What services will the applicant offer to other certified telephone companies: 

() Facilities ( ) Operators 
( ) Billing and Collection ( ) Sales 
() Maintenance 
(X) 	 Other: None anticipated at this time 

13. 	 Do you have a marketing program? 

Applicant has an-house marketing department. 

14. 	 Will your marketing program: 

( ) Pay commissions? 

() Offer sales franchises? 

() Offer multi-level sales incentives? 

( ) Offer other sales incentives? 


FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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15. Explain any ofthe Olters checked in question 14 (to whom, wliaf amount, type offranchise, 
etc.). 

16. 	 Who will receive the bills for your service (check all that apply)? 

(..f) Residential customers (..f) Business customers 
( ) PATS providers ( ) PATS station end-users 
( ) Hotels & motels ( ) Hotel & motel guests 
( ) Universities ( ) Univ. dormitory residents 
( ) Other:(specify) ____~___________ 

17. 	 Please provide the following (if applicable): 

(a) 	 Will the name ofyour company appear on the bill for your services, and ifnot, who 
will the billed party contact to ask questions about the bill (provide name and phone 
number) and how is this information provided? 

Applicant's name will appear on all customer bills with the company's address 
and toll free telephone number for customer inquiries and/or complaints. 

(b) 	 The name and address ofthe firm who will bill for your service. 

Application will bill Customers directly. 

18. 	 Please provide all available documentation demonstrating that the applicant has the 
following capabilities to provide interexchange telecommunications service in Florida. 

A. 	 Financial Capability 

Applicant possesses the financial capability to provide the requested service. 
Applicant is a wholly owned subsidiary ofGlobal Crossing North America, Inc., 
which is a wholly owned subsidiary ofGlobal Crossing, Ltd. The Applicant will 
be able to rely on the financial resources ofthe parent, which are significant. A 
copy of the most recent SEC 10K filing of Global Crossing is provided in 
Attachment III. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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Regarding tiie'showing of financial capability, the foilo<ving applies: 

The application should contain the applicant's financial statements for the most recent 
3 years, including: 

1. the balance sheet 
2. income statement 
3. statement of retained earnings 

See Attachment III. 

Further, a written explanation, which can include supporting documentation, 
regarding the following should be provided to show financial capability. 

1. 	 Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial 
capability to provide the requested service in the geographic area proposed 
to be served 

2. 	 Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial 
capability to maintain the requested service. 

3. 	 Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial 
capability to meet its lease or ownership obligations. 

NOTE: This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, 
a projected profit and loss statement, credit references, credit bureau reports, and 
descriptions ofbusiness relationships with financial institutions. 

If available, the financial statements should be audited financial statements. If the 
applicant does not have audited financial statements, it shall be so stated. The 
unaudited financial statements should then be signed by the applicant's chief 
executive officer and chief financial officer. The signatures should affirm that the 
financial statements are true and correct. 

B. 	 Managerial capability. 

See Attachment IV. 

c. 	 Technical capability. 

Applicant is a wholly owned subsidiary ofGlobal Crossing North America, Inc. 
(formerly Frontier Corporation), which is a wholly owned subsidiary ofGlobal 
Crossing, Ltd. who provides quality telecommunications services to over two 
million customers throughout the country. The company has a proven track 
record for providing high quality services and responsive customer service. 
Applicant possesses all the necessary capabilities to operate as a provider of 
resold services. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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19. 	 Please submit the p;op'osed tariffunderwhich the companypl~to begin operation. Use the 
format required by Commission Rule 25-24.485 (example enclosed). 

See Attachment II. 

20. 	 The applicant will provide the following interexchange carrier services (Check all that 
apply): 
() MTS with distance sensitive per minute rates 

( ) Method of access is FGA 

( ) Method of access is FGB 

( ) Method of access is FGD 

( ) Method of access is 800 


() 	 MTS with route specific rates per minute 

( ) Method of access is FGA 

( ) Method of access is FGB 

( ) Method of access is FGD 

( ) Method of access is 800 


(f) 	 MTS with statewide flat rates per minute (i.e.not distance sensitive) 
( ) Method of access is FGA 
( ) Method of access is FGB 
(f) Method of access is FGD 

( ) Method of access is 800 


( ) 	 MTS for pay telephone service providers. 

( ) 	 Block of time calling plan (Reach Out Florida, Ring America, etc.) 

( ) 	 800 Service (Toll free) 

(f) 	 WATS type service (Bulk or volume discount) 
(f) 	 Method of access is via dedicated facilities 
(f) 	 Method of access is via switched facilities 

( ) Private line services (Channel Services) (For ex. 1.544 mbps, DS-3, etc.) 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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'"-,, "--"(/) 	 Travel service 
( ) 	 Method of access is 950 
(f) 	 Method of access is 800 

( ) 	 900 service 

(..f) 	 Operator Services 
(..f) Available to presubscribed customers 
( ) Available to non presubscribed customers (for example, patrons ofhotels, 

students in universities, patients in hospitals. 

( ) Available to inmates 


Services included are: 
(..f) Station assistance 

(..f) Person to person assistance 

(..f) Directory assistance 

(..f) Operator verify and interrupt 

( ) Conference calling 


21. 	 What does the end user dial for each ofthe interexchange carrier services that were checked 
in services included (above). 

For travel service calls: an 800 access number, plus identification number, plus the 
destination telephone number. 

22. 	 Other: 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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** APPLIt"'ANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT STAT~ENT ** 

1. REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: 

I understand that all telephone companies must pay a regulatory assessment fee in the 
amount of .15 ofone percent ofits gross operating revenue derived from intrastate business. 
Regardless ofthe gross operating revenue ofa company, a minimum annual assessment fee 
of $50 is required. 

2. 	 GROSS RECEIPTS TAX: 
I understand that all telephone companies must pay a gross receipts tax oftwo and one-half 
percent on all intra and interstate business. 

3. 	 SALES TAX: 
I understand that a seven percent sales tax must be paid on intra and interstate revenues. 

4. 	 APPLICATION FEE: 
A non-refundable application fee of$250.00 must be submitted with the application. 

5. 	 RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING OF RULES: 
I acknowledge receipt and understanding ofthe Florida Public Service Commission's Rules 
and Orders relating to my provision of interexchange telephone service in Florida. I also 
understand that it is my responsibility to comply with all current and future Commission 
requirements regarding interexchange service. 

7. 	 ACCURACY OF APPLICATION: 
By my signature below, I the undersigned owner or officer of the named utility in the 
application, attest to the accuracy of the information contained in this application and 
associated attachments. I have read the foregoing and declare that to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, the information is a true and correct statement. Further, I am aware 
that pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes, "Whoever knowingly makes a false 
statement in writing with the intent to mislead a public servant in the performance of 
his official duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as 
provided in s. 775.082 and s. 775.083". 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 
 /:/''..". JJ.4T)..,-.//~
1 . /

SignattlIt 

c;; ./ Q/lJ,c ,'2. ;> 

Michael J. Shortley, TIl 
Senior Associate General Counsel 
Frontier Communications ofAmerica 
180 South Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 

/J -Fl.,,) 	2 ~ if.' 

Date 

(716) 777-1028 
Telephone 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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"-" ~ 

APPENDICES: 

A - CERTIFICATE TRANSFER STATEMENT 
B - CUSTOMER DEPOSITS AND ADVANCE PAYMENTS 
C - INTRASTATENETWORK 
D - FLORIDA TELEPHONE EXCHANGES AND EAS ROUTES 

ATTACHMENTS: 

I - AUTHORITY TO OPERATE IN FLORIDA 
II - PROPOSED TARIFF 
III - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
IV - MANAGERIAL AND TECHNICAL CAP ABILITIES 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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"'-" '-../** APPENDIX A ** 

CERTIFICATE OF TRANSFER STATEMENT 


I, (Name ofClient Contact, Title), of (Name ofCompany), and current holder ofcertificate number 

________, have reviewed this application and join in the petitioner's request for a 

transfer of the above-mention certificate. 

Not Applicable 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

Signature Date 

Client Name and Title Telephone 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25~24.473, and 25~24.480(2). 
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'-' 	 "-"** APPENDIX B ** 

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS AND ADV ANCE PAYMENTS 

A statement ofhow the Commission can be assured ofthe security ofthe customer's deposits 
and advance payments may be responded to in one of the following ways (applicant please check 
one): 

(X) 	 The applicant will not collect deposits nor will it collect payments for service 
more than one month in advance. 

( ) 	 The applicant will me with the Commission and maintain a surety bond in an 
amount equal to the current balance ofdeposits and advance payments in excess 
of one month. (Bond must accompany application.) 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 
Signature 

Michael J. Shortley, III 
Senior Associate General Counsel 
Frontier Communications of America 
180 South Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 

Telephone: (716) 777-1028 
Facsimile: (716) 546-7823 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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'-" 	 "-"** APPENDIX C ** 

INTRASTATE NETWORK 

1. POP: Addresses where located, and indicate if owned or leased. 

1) 

2) 
3) 
4) 

2. 	 SWITCHES: Address where located, by type ofswitch and indicate ifowned or leased. 

1) 

2) 

3) 

4) 


3. 	 TRANSMISSI ON FACILITIES: POP-to-POP facilities by type offacilities (microwave, 
fiber copper, satellite, etc.) and indicate if owned or leased. 

POP-to-POP TYPE OWNERSHIP 

1) 
2) 

3) 


4. 	 ORIGINATING SERVICE: Please provide the list of exchanges where you are 
proposing to provide originating service within thirty (30) days after the effective date 
ofthe certificate. (Appendix D) 

Statewide 

5. 	 TRAFFIC RESTRICTIONS: Please explain how the applicant will comply with the 
EAEA requirements contained in Commission Rule 25-24.471 (4)(a) (copy enclosed). 

Not applicable 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471,25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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6. 	 CURRENT FLO:Rn:sA INTRASTATE SERVICES: AppliC'ant has ( ) or has not (X) 
previously provided intrastate telecommunications in Florida. If the answer is has, 
fully describe the following: 

(a) 	 What services have been provided and when did these service begin? 

Not applicable 

(b) 	 If the services are not currently offered, when were they discontinued? 

Not applicable. 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: hi.4 1/ /l}yl'i-1;~ I )
Signatu'fl 

13 J~/J 'Lo O \; 

Date 

Michael J. Shortley, III 
Senior Associate General Counsel 
Frontier Communications of America 
180 South Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 

Telephone: (716) 777-1028 
Facsimile: (716) 546-7823 

FORM PSc/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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',,-, '-'** APPENDIX D ** 

FLORIDA TELEPHONE EXCHANGES 

AND 


EASROUTES 


Describe the service area in which you hold yourself out to provide service by telephone 
company exchange. If all services listed in your tariff are not offered at all locations, so indicate. 

In an effort to assist you, attached is a list ofmajor exchanges in Florida showing the small 
exchanges with which each has extended area service (EAS). 

** FLORIDA EAS FOR MAJOR EXCHANGES ** 

Extended Service Area with These Exchanges 

PENSACOLA: 	 Cantonment, Gulf Breeze, Pace, Milton Holley­
Navarre. 

PANAMA CITY: 	 Lynn Haven, Panama City Beach, Youngstown­
Fountain and Tyndall AFB. 

TALLAHASSEE: 	 Crawfordville, Havana, Monticello, Panacea, 
Sopchoppy and St. Marks. 

GAINESVILLE: 	 Alachua, Archer, Brooker, Hawthorne, High Springs, 
Melrose, Micanopy, Newberry and Waldo. 

OCALA: 	 Belleview, Citra, Dunnellon, Forest Lady Lake (B21), 
McIntosh, Iklawaha, Orange Springs, Salt Springs and 
Silver Springs Shores. 

DAYTONA BEACH: 	 New Smyrna Beach. 

TAMPA: 	 Central None 
East Plant City 
North Zephyrhills 
South Palmetto 
West Clearwater 

CLEARWATER: 	 St. Petersburg, Tampa-West and Tarpon Springs. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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ST. PETER~URG: 

LAKELAND: 

ORLANDO: 

WINTER PARK: 

TITUSVILLE: 


COCOA: 


MELBOURNE: 


SARASOTA: 


FT. MYERS: 


NAPLES: 


WEST PALM BEACH: 


POMPANO BEACH: 


FT. LAUDERDALE: 


HOLLYWOOD: 


NORTH DADE: 


MIAMI: 


'--'"Clearwater. 


Bartow, Mulberry, Plant City, Polk City and Winter 

Haven. 


Apopka, East Orange, Lake Buena Vista, Oviedo, 

Windermere, Winter Garden, Winter Park, 

Montverde, Reedy Creet, and Oviedo-Winter Springs. 


Apopka, East Orange, Lake Buena Vista, Orlando, 

Oviedo, Sanford, Windermere, Winter Garden, 

Oviedo-Winter Springs, Reedy Creek, Geneva and 

Montverde. 


Cocoa and Cocoa Beach. 


Cocoa Beach, Eau Gallie, Melbourne and Titusville. 


Cocoa, Cocoa Beach, Eau Gallie and Sebastian. 


Bradenton, Myakka and Venice. 


Cape Coral, Ft. Myers Beach, North Cape Coral, 

North Ft. Myers, Pine Island, Lehigh Acres and 

Sanibel-Captiva Islands. 


Marco Island and North Naples. 


Boynton Beach and Jupiter. 


Boca Raton, Coral Springs, Deerfield Beach and Ft. 

Lauderdale. 


Coral Springs, Deerfield Beach, Hollywood and 

Pompano Beach. 


Ft. Lauderdale and North Dade. 


Hollywood, Miami and Perrine. 


Homestead, North Dade and Perrine. 


Applicant intends to offer service throughout the State of Florida. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471, 25-24.473, and 25-24.480(2). 
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PROFIT CORPORATION 
APPLICATION BY FOREIGN PROFIT CORPORATION TO FILE AMENDMENT TO 


APPLICATION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS If£JlL<8UDA 

(Pursuant to s. 607.1504, F.S.) c.:§::' 

=:::i",
:i> :: ", 

e 
::c ." 

SECTION I 
(1-3 MUST BE COMPLETED) 

(;1';-'
vi;;' 
m-­
!"'<. 
~-.
,k. 
0 ....-·:::oi> 
iG'-!
l>r:'1 

I 
CD 

-0 
3:: 

0£" 
CI1 

-r 
(T1
0 

I.FRONTIER LONG DISTANCE OF AMERICA, INC. 

Name of corporation as it appears on the records of the Department of State. 

2. Delaware 3.August 9, 1993 
Incorporated under laws of Date authorized to do busIl'1ess- in Florida 

SECTION II 
(4-7 COMPLETE ONLY THE APPLICABLE CHANGES) 

4. If the amendment changes the name of the corporation, when was the change effected under the laws of 

its jurisdiction of incorporation?__Jime~~6..:.,_am 

S.FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS OF Al1ERICA. INC. 

Name of corporation after the amendment, adding suffix "corporation" "company" or "incorporated," orappropnate abbreviation. if 
not contained in new name of the corporation. 

6. If the amendment changes the period of duration, indicate new period of duration, 

N/A 
'NeWlJuratJon 

7. If the amendment changes the jurisdiction of incorporation, indicate new jurisdiction. 

N/A 
New Jurisdiction 

~~ &h-jgo
Date 

Barbara J. LaVerdi Assistant Secretary 
Typed orpnnted name Tltie 
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CER11FICATB OF AMENDMENT OF CPlt'IlFICATB OPINCORPORAnON 


OF 


FRONTIEll LONG DISTANCE or AM!RICA, me . 


It is hereby certilied tbat~ 

1. The name of die cCHpOZadon. (berebud\er called the -corporation") is 

FRONTIiR LORG DIST.A:NC& OJ' A'BIUCA. ;me. ' 
'. 

, 2. 'I'he certificm of incolporation of the corparation is hereby ~ by strik-
Ing out Articla Ono thereof and by su'bltilurm& In lieD of laid Article[s] the toJlowinS new 
Artielera]: , ' ,. '~ . 

A11icJO 0118 of the Certificate orIllCorpotation is ammuIcd. to ~ad IS follows: 

-
1. The name of the axproaliou is: FRONllER. COMMtJNlCAnoNS OF AM.EJUCA.INC. 

, 3. Theunendmcnt{s] oftbC'ccrtttJcate ofineorpol1ltioa herein ccrdfied.:hu 
[haw] blllleD du1)'aldopted in II::cOnianca with the provisions ofSection 242 of the OcneraJ Corpo­
rcLlion Li.1w of the State of Delaware: 

Signed on &h./IJ 0 

~/43.':BarbImLJ. LaVed, ImtllSecrewy 

-

Sf'AD OF DBLA'fIAR1!! 
SE.CJfJaAIa or'S%'.uoz 

DZVISION OF COllPORA~IONS 
EIbZD 09:0D AN D'/06/2000 

00J286296 - 2307210
1)e Be D-:Cf!Ri1JC1CAn OF 

"""'NI,'\to.. """".... In.." .....VA,II.NTO.JQLI '111m 
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State ofDelaware 
'--" ............, PAGE 
 1 

Office of the Secretary of State 

I, BDWAltD J. FREEL, S:BCRB~O:r B!.e3 08 DE S'.D.!B OF . 

D:BLAW.U.B, DO BEIUmY CBmI!"!' DE J.~D IS A ~RU3 l\NI) COltlU!:C! 

COpy OF THE CEMU:ICAn 01' ~ OF .r.aoN~IEl\ LONG DIS~CB 

OF AMEluCA, INC. ", CllANGINQ I~S N'AMB :rR.OM -n.otr.rIER LONG 

DISDNCE OF »I!lUCA, INC.· ~ -!'RON!'ID COMMtJHlcr.!rIONS OF 

AMEllICA., IRC.", FILED IN nIS OFFICE ON ~ SIXTB DAY OJ' JCNB, 

A.D. 2000, ~ 9 O'CLOCK A.M. 

A rILBD COPT OF DIS CD!eIllCATB DB BEEN J'ORWAlmlm ~ 'mE 

NEW CASTLE COtmTY1\BCORDIm OF DB_OS. 

-

t4£d
Edward J. Freel, Secretary ofState 

04803282307210 Bl0D 
AUTIiENTICATION: 

001286296 06-06-00 
DATh 
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"'­State ofDelaw~re 

Office of the Secretary of State 

I, EDWARD J. FREEL, SECRETARY OF ST~TE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT 

COpy OF THE CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF "VISIONS LONG DISTANCE 
.. , ....Ij'f:.t'.i'I.!fN~'().I':·;'II ...... ·:·!t~tI.,.,;;..~:If,.., ... _ 

AMERICA INC.". CHANGING,""!TS NAME FR01f''''';VI~IONS LONG DISTANCE 
,l ~ .;, • :: .•f' ~:~(' 

AMERICA INC. n To:nFRO'NTj:ER (ONG D'!STA.'N,CE:~OF:,;~M~RICA. INC. n J 

,"IJ,."li,:! ~,~. ·tt.; 'j.~;. , .. ",,, '. ~ . ..., ....'".;' ..:'. ~"'''''-~ "~"'~'-"'" .''1..., 4.-~ ~....i-i~~ :ri'~"~~'~ 
FILED IN THI,~'OFiJCE.:ON THE TWENTIETH DA!,,,OF(.'OCTOB;~R.

~Jo 

1), 

A.D. 1994,
.:~';" ~~~'~~ ~. ,,..P' " 

AT 9 0' CLOCK 'A'.~Mt!:" "" ;~.. 
~, , 

:~'~~)5 \\ 

~" I!'~ 
\; ~~t~. "*:. 

,. '" i;i".' \""td!"~&' 
~. "~~. 

i,: \
'r~ 
~: 

• ~ ;! ~ '~1l. , 1·~~{il~·:.·.~~:' ~.. ~ :\~' ':,':....;. :~~¥l ": ;·.,~~~!~~~t:~;;l~: '. j i~ ll' 
~ !Jt~.",,,,,,~ ~ ~~,~, ;!.;:~Iq, ';),;:.;u:""",.,. ,'.I1..f::-J ~ti.,!,;J g ~ I 
"\ ·'.':d£~, \, r. ~t~:~t t~~~~:;~;:~~r.~1:'~~?;~;.<' ~:1 ~~f' r I ~!~:!fJ f 
y~ !. l ~ t;,d ,~il-i~\~\vJ1,;":-i :~%"<,,,C:Y:~;~:;P lAP ''\ \Jl~' I':~ I 
Ji" :,;~)~~.l~~ \ ,.'·'.;:~~~:,~~l~;!~~~~~~Y(~l~:~ ,{.~' ;>-:~ ';:"~~;::·:~f:~f~·t;, / ~/" 

'" ..i~ \ ! .......,' -c.". '" -._ , • , > '. ; ~. 
\ :. ~f'~'" ": V' J ...~<. \" ...r....,);!' """~ • 

\::~~:'.;". .. .' ··/£i~/, ," ~

"<:,,'" <" '~','--:."":-":' 9,;j'\:~"/ 
.,. ~, ."",," t t: ,,~~'''~ 

~"~"__""""""'''r.'''lI'''''''."''!' " 

t~ft~ 
Edward 1. Freel. Secretary ofState 

AUTHENTICATION: 72828742307210 8100• 
DATE:944205388 '0-21-94 



SECRETARY OF STATE 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS... FILF- ~9:00 AM 10/20/1994 

CE~'ICATE OF AMENDMENT 9 J684 - 2.307210 

• OF 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 

VISIONS LONG DISTANCE AMERICA INC. 

VISIONS LONG DISTANCE AMERICA INC .. a corporation organized and existing under and 
by virtue of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. DOES HEREBY CERTIFY: 

FIRST: That at a meeting of the Board of Directors resolutions were duly adopted setting 
forth a proposed amendment of the 'Cenificale of Incorporation of said corporation. declaring said 
amendment to be advisable and calling for a meeting of the stockholders of said consideration thereclf. The 
r~soJution setting fonh the proposed· is as follows: . 

RESOLVED. That the Cenificale ot" Incorporation of this corporation be amended by changing the 
Article(s) thereof numbered so that. as amended said Anicle(s) shaU be and read as follows: 

: FIRST: The Name of the corporation is: FRONTIER LONG DISTANCE OF 
AMERICA, INC. 

SECOND: That thereafter. pursuant to resoll:ltion of its Board of Dir~tors.a special meeting 
of the stock holders of said corporation was duly called and held. upon notice in accordance with Section 
222 of the General Corporation law of the Slale of Delaware at which meeting the necessary number of 
shares as requir~rJ by statute were voted in favor of amendment. 

• 	 THJRD: That said amendment was duly adopted ill accordance with the provisions of Section 
242 of the General Corporation law of the State of Delaware:-­

. FOGRTH: That the capital of said corporation shall not he reduced under or by reason of said 
amendment. 

~ WITNESS WHEREOF. said has caused its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed· and this 

-.~ 	 / /
By: ~.lli.\.lJ Q./lQ. ., /..a.'{../l«TI 

Barbara J. La r . Assi~ran( Secretary 

R1965..079443 

c~rtificate to be signed by Jeremiah T. Carr. its ,President &. CEO. and Barhiira).., LaVerdi its Assistanr 
Sc::crelary. this l3"f'J.. day of l·('Tl6t""(" .' 1994. 

By' '},;' ~4c:'",. > 

http:lli.\.lJ


-.-. ~.. ...
-:' .. . . 

""-" PAGE 1-- ,,-\att ot 1St/nlb
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~ffitt of ~ttrttaru' of ~tatt 

I. MICHAEL RATCHFORD. SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERT I FY THE ATTACHED I S A TRUE AND CORRECT 

COpy OF THE CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF "V1SIONS LONG 

DISTANCE AMERICA INC." FILED IN-THIS OFFICE ON THE NINETEENTH DAY 

OF AUGUST, A.D. 1992. AT 9 O'CLOCK A.M. 

• 
A CERTIFIED COPY OF THIS CERTIFICATE HAS BEEN FORWARDED TO 

KENT COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS ON THE NINETEENTH DAY OF AUGUST. 

A.D. 	 1992 FOR RECORDING . 


* * * * * * * * * *
' 

922325117 


I~~ 
SECRETARY OF STATE 

AUTHENTICATION: *3563493 
- .. 

DATE: 08/19/1992 
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• STATE OF DELAWARE 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 
OF 

VISIONS LONG DISTANCE AMERICA INC. 

I, (We) the undersigned, in order to form a corporation for 
the purposes hereinafter stated, und~r and pursuant to the 
provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State of 

Delaware, do hereby certify as follows: 

FIRST: The name of the corporation is: 

'VISIONS LONG DISTANCE AMERICA INC. . 

.' 
SECOND: The registered office of the corporation in the 

State of Delaware is to be located at 32 Loockerman Square, suite 
L-100, in the City of Dover, County of Kent~~OIThe name of its 

registered agent is The Prentice-::,aallCorporation System, Inc. 

THIRD: The nature of the business, and the objects and 

purposes proposed to be transacted, promoted and carried on, are 
to do any and all things therein mentioned, as fully and to the 
same extent as natural persons might or could do, and in any part 
of the,world, viz: 

To do any lawful act or thing fo~ which corporations may be 
organized under the General Corporation Law of the state of 

Delaware. 

Without limiting the scope and generality of the foregoing, the 
corporation may engage in the following activities: 

• 
Long distance telecommunication service • 

~; 



'... 

"-' '>...."./ 

• FOURTH: The total number of shares which the corporation is 
authorized to issue is 200 shares ~Ol par value itemized as 
follows: 

SERIES NUMBER PAR VALUE/SHARE OR ARE 

CLASS (IF ANY) OF SHARES THEY WITHOUT PAR VALUE 

Common 	 200 .01 Par Value 

FIFTH: The name and address of each incorporator(s) is/are 
as follows: 	 Julie Espinoza 


500 Central Avenue 

Albany, NY 12206 


• 

SIXTH: The directors shall have power to make and to alter 
or amend the By-Lawsi to fix the amount to be reserved as working­
capital,and to authorize and cause to be executed, mortgages and 
liens without limit as to the amount, upon the property and 

franchises of this Corporation • 
with the consent in 	writing,__and pursuant to a vote of the 

holders of a majority of the capital stock issued and 
outstanding, the Directors shall have authority to dispose, in 
any manner, of the whole property of this corporation. 

The By-Laws shall determine whether and to what extent the 
accounts and'books of this Corporation, or any of them, shall be 
open to the inspection of the stockholders; and no stockholder 
shall have any right of inspecting any-account, or book, or 
document of this:: Corporation:, except as conferred by Law or the 

By-Laws, or by resolution of the stockholders. 
The stockholders and directors shall have power to hold­

-
their meetings and keep the books, documents and papers of the 
corporation outside the state of Delaware, at such places as may 

be from time to time designated by the By-Laws or by resolution 
of the s~ockholders or directors, except as otherwise required by 

the laws of Delaware • 

• 




. 

•:i' ,'" .. 

~.. -

.' ,~ I. 

It is the intention that the objects, purposes and powers 
specified in the third paragraph hereof shall, except where 
otherwise specified iri said paragraph, be in nowise limited or 
restricted by reference to or inference from the terms of any 
other clause or paragraph in this certificate of !n~orporation, 
but that the objects, purposes and powers specified in the third 
paragraph and in each of the clauses or paragraphs of this 
charter shall be regarded "as independent objects, purposes and 
powers. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,,! (we) have 'hereunto set my (our) 
hand(s) and seal this 17th day of August, 1992~ 

• 


-, 
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(J)ffite of ~etretaru· of ~tate 


I, MICHAEL RATCHFORD, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY VISIONS LONG DISTANCE AMERICA INC. 'IS 

DULY INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE AND· IS 

IN GOOD STANDING ANDtiAS A LEG-AL CORPORATE EXISTENCE SO FAR AS 

THE RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF THE DATE SHOWN BELOW. 

* * * * * * * * * * 

.~ 

;Lvu~
.. . 
Michael Ratchford, Secretary of State 

AUTHENTICATION: *3592796 
-1.' e i DATE:612261100 09/17/1992 
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FRONTIER COMMUNlb-ATIONS OF AMERICA, INC. "-'" Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Sheet 1 

TITLE SHEET 

INTEREXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS TARIFF 

OF FLORIDA 

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS OF AMERICA, INC. 

All services contained in this tariff are competitive. 

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations, and rates applicable to the 
furnishing of service and facilities for interexchange telecommunications services 
provided by Frontier Communications of America, Inc., within the State of 
Florida. This tariff is on file with the Public Service Commission. Copies may be 
inspected during normal business hours at the Company's principal place of 
business, at 180 S. Clinton Avenue, Rochester, New York 14646. 

ISSUED: July 17,2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 

ISSUED BY: 	 Manager - Rates & Tariffs 
180 S. Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 
(716) 777-1000 	 FLOOOOO 



FRONTIER COMM~TIONS OF AMERICA, INC. '-'" Florida Tariff No.1 
Original Sheet 2 

CHECK SHEET 


All sheets of this tariff are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the respective sheet(s). 

Original and revised sheets as named below comprise all changes from the original tariff and are 

currently in effect as of the date of the bottom of this page. 

SHEET REVISION SHEET REVISION 

1 Original 23 Original 
2 Original 24 Original 
3 Original 25 Original 
4 Original 26 Original 
5 Original 27 Original 
6 Original 28 Original 
7 Original 29 Original 
8 Original 30 Original 
9 Original 31 Original 
10 Original 32 Original 
11 Original 33 Original 
12 Original 34 Original 
13 Original 35 Original 
14 Original 36 Original 
15 Original 37 Original 
16 Original 38 Original 
17 Original 39 Original 
18 Original 40 Original 
19 Original 
20 Original 
21 Original 
22 Original 

ISSUED: July 17,2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 

ISSUED BY: 	 Manager - Rates & Tariffs 
180 S. Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 
(716) 777-1000 	 FLOOOOO 



'-../FRONTIER COMMUNlt1\. TIONS OF AMERICA, INC. Florida Tariff No.1 

Original Sheet 3 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Title Page . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 1 


Check Sheet .... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 


Table of Contents .................................. 3 


Alphabetical Index ................................. 4 


Symbols ......................................... 6 


Tariff Format ..................................... 7 


SECTION 1 - Technical Terms and Abbreviations ............. 8 


SECTION 2 - Rules and Regulations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 11 


SECTION 3 - Description of Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 24 


SECTION 4 - Rates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 34 


ISSUED: July 17,2000 EFFECTIVE: 

ISSUED BY: Manager - Rates & Tariffs 
180 S. Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 
(716) 777-1000 FLOOOOO 



FRONTIER COMMUNb ,-",.:::1\TIONS OF AMERICA, INC. Florida Tariff No. 1 

Original Sheet 4 


ALPHABETICAL INDEX 

Advance Payments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 14 

Busy Line Verification & Interrupt ...................... 33 

Calculation of Distance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 25 

Call Timing ..................................... 26 

Cancellation and Restoration of Service ................... 18 

Cancellation by the Customer. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 18 

Cost of Collection and Repair . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 21 

Deposits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 14 

Description of Service .............................. 24 

Direct Dial Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 30 

Directory Assistance ................................ 29 

Disconnection of Service without Notice. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 19 

Exemptions & Special Rates ........................... 35 

Holiday Rates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 28 

Inspection, Testing, and Adjustment ..................... 20 

Installation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 17 

Interconnection . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 17 

Late Fee ....................................... 34 

Liabilities of the Company . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 12 

Limitations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 11 

Operator Services ................................. 32 

Pay Telephone Surcharge ............................ 34 

Payment for Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 17 

Rates .......................................... 34 

Rates - Busy Line Verification and Interrupt ................ 40 

Rates - Directory Assistance .......................... 36 

Rates - Exemptions and Special Rates .................... 35 

Rates - Direct Dial Service ........................... 38 

Rates - Operator Services ............................ 39 

Rates - Toll Free Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 38 

Rates - Travel Card Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 38 


ISSUED: July 17,2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 

ISSUED BY: 	 Manager - Rates & Tariffs 
180 S. Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 
(716) 777-1000 	 FLOOOOO 



FRONTIER COMMUNh::1\TIONS OF AMERICA, INC. '--" Florida Tariff No.1 
Original Sheet 5 

ALPHABETICAL INDEX. cont'd. 

Reconnection Charge ............................... 34 
Refusal. Suspension or Cancellation by the Company. . . . . . . . .. 18 
Reservation of Toll Free Numbers ....................... 21 
Restoration of Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 19 
Return Check Charges .............................. 34 
Rules and Regulations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 11 
Rules Applicable to Operator Services to Aggregator Locations . . .. 22 
Special Conditions Applicable to Operator Services ........... 23 
Symbols ......................................... 6 
Table of Contents .................................. 3 
Tariff Format ..................................... 7 
Taxes and Fees ................................... 14 
Technical Terms and Abbreviations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 
Terminal Equipment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 16 
Telecommunications Relay System ...................... 35 
Time of Day Rate Periods . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 27 
Toll-Free Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 30 
Travel Card Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 31 
Undertaking of the Company . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 11 
Use ........................................... 12 
Volume Commitment ............................... 37 

ISSUED: July 17,2000 	 EFFECTNE: 

ISSUED BY: 	 Manager - Rates & Tariffs 
180 S. Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 
(716) 777-1000 	 FLOOOOO 



FRONTIER COMMlJN1e1\TIONS OF AMERICA, INC. "-" Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Sheet 6 

SYMBOLS 

The following symbols are used for the purposes indicated below: 

Indicates new or revised tariff sheet included with this filing. * 

D Delete or discontinue. 


I Increase to a rate. 


M Moved from another tariff location. 


N New. 


R Reduction to a rate. 


T Change in text but no change in rate or regulation. 


ISSUED: July 17, 2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 

ISSUED BY: 	 Manager - Rates & Tariffs 
180 S. Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 
(716) 777-1000 	 FLOOOOO 



........",
FRONTIER CO~TIONS OF AMERICA, INC. Florida Tariff No.1 
Original Sheet 7 

TARIFF FORMAT 


A. Sheet Numbering - Sheet numbers appear in the upper right corner of the page. Sheets 
are numbered sequentially. However, new sheets are occasionally added to the tariff. When a 
new sheet is added between sheets already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new sheet 
added between sheets 14 and 15 would be 14.1. 

B. Sheet Revision Numbers - Revision numbers appear in the upper right corner of each 
page. These numbers are used to determine the most current sheet version on file with the Florida 
Public Service Commission. For example, the 4th revised Sheet 14 cancels the 3rd revised Sheet 
14. Because of various suspension periods, deferrals, etc. the Florida Public Service Commission 
follows in its tariff approval process, the most current sheet number on file with the Commission 
is not always the tariff in effect. Consult the Check Sheet for the sheet currently in effect. 

C. Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each level 
of coding is subservient to its next higher level: 

2. 
2.1 
2.1.1 
2.1.1.A. 
2.1.1.A.1. 
2. 1. LA. 1.(a) 
2.1. LA. 1.(a).I. 
2.1.l.A.1.(a).I.(i). 
2. 1. LA. l.(a),l.(i).(l) 

D. Check Sheets - When a tariff filing is made with the Florida Public Service Commission, 
an updated Check Sheet accompanies the tariff filing. The Check Sheet lists the sheets contained 
in the tariff, with a cross reference to the current revision number. When new pages are added, 
the Check Sheet is changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are 
designated by an asterisk (*). There will be no other symbols used on this page if these are the 
only changes made to it (i.e., the format, etc. remain the same, just revised revision levels on 
some pages.) The tariff user should refer to the latest Check Sheet to find out if a particular sheet 
is the most current on file with the Florida Public Service Commission. 

ISSUED: July 17,2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 

ISSUED BY: 	 Manager - Rates & Tariffs 
180 S. Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 
(716) 777-1000 	 FLOOOOO 



FRONTIER COMM~TIONS OF AMERICA, INC. "'-" Florida Tariff No.1 
Original Sheet 8 

SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

Access Line - A local channel for voice, data, or video communications which connects the 
Customer location to a location of the Company or its underlying carrier. 

Account - The Customer who has agreed, orally or in writing, to honor the terms of service 
established by the Company. An Account may have more than one service billed to the same 
Customer address. An Account may include multiple locations for the same Customer. 

Aggregator - Any person or other legal entity that may be a Customer and, in the ordinary course 
of its operations, makes telephones available to the public or to transient users of its premises, for 
telephone calls using a provider of operator services. 

Business Customer - For the purpose of this tariff, a Business Customer is a Customer of the 
Company whose primary use of the Company's service is for business purposes. A Business 
Customer is also a Customer who accesses the Company's service using an access line that has 
been assigned a business class of service by the local service provider. 

Collect Call - A billing arrangement by which the charges for a call may be billed to the called 
party, provided the called party agrees to accept the charges. 

Commission - The Florida Public Service Commission. 

Company - Frontier Communications of America, Inc., unless stated otherwise. 

Company's Point of Presence - Location of the serving central office associated with access to 
the Company's or its underlying carrier's network. 

Consumer - A person who is not a Customer who initiates any telephone calls using operator 
services. 

ISSUED: July 17,2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 

ISSUED BY: 	 Manager - Rates & Tariffs 
180 S. Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 
(716) 777-1000 	 FLOOOOO 



FRONTIER CO~TIONS OF AMERICA, INC. '-' Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Sheet 9 

SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, cont'd. 

Customer - Any person, firm, partnership, corporation or other entity which subscribes to or uses 
service under the terms and conditions of this tariff. The Customer is responsible for the payment 
of charges for service offered by the Company which are subscribed to or used by the Customer. 
The Customer is also responsible for payment of charges for a third person's use of service to 
which the Customer subscribes. 

Customer Dialed Calling Card - A service whereby the Customer dials all of the digits necessary 
to route and bill the call to a valid non-Frontier Communications of America, Inc. calling card or 
credit card. 

Equal Access - The ability of the Company to serve Customers on a presubscribed basis rather 
than through the use of dial access codes. 

Initial And Additional Period - The Initial Period denotes the interval of time allowed at the rate 
specified for a connection between given service points. The Additional Period denotes the 
interval of time used for measuring and charging for time in excess of the Initial Period. 

ISSUED: July 17,2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 

ISSUED BY: 	 Manager - Rates & Tariffs 
180 S. Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 
(716) 777-1000 	 FLOOOOO 



.........,
FRONTIER CO~TIONS OF AMERICA, INC. Florida Tariff No. 1 
Original Sheet 10 

SECTION 1- TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, cont'd. 

LATA - Local access and transport area. A geographic area established by the US District Court 
for the District of Columbia in Civil Action No. 82-0192. 

LEC - Local Exchange Company 

Operator Station Call- A service whereby the Customer places a non-Person to Person call with 
the assistance of an operator (live or automated.) 

Person to Person Call - A service whereby the person originating the call specifies a particular 
person to be reached, or a particular station, room number, department, or office to be reached 
through a PBX attendant. 

Premises - The physical space designated by the Customer for the termination of the Company's 
service. 

Residential Customer - For the purpose of this tariff, a Residential Customer is a Customer of 
the Company whose primary use of the Company's service is for personal use in a house, 
apartment or other residential dwelling unit. A Residential Customer is also a Customer who 
accesses the Company's service using an access line that has not been assigned a business class 
of service by the local service provider. 

Switched Access - A method for reaching the Company through the local service provider's 
switched network whereby the Customer uses standard business or residential local lines. 

Terminal Equipment - Telecommunications devices, apparatus and associated wiring on the 
Premises of the Customer. 

Third Party Billing - A billing arrangement by which the charges for a call may be billed to a 
telephone number that is different from the calling number and the called number. 

Travel Card - A proprietary calling card offered by Frontier Communications of America, Inc. 
which is accessed by dialing a Company-provided access number. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS 

2.1 	 Undertaking of the Company 

2.1.1 	 The Company offers intrastate telecommunications service in conjunction with 
interstate service. 

2.1.2 	 The Company installs, operates, and maintains the communications services 
provided hereunder in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth under this 
tariff. The Company may act as the Customer's agent for ordering access 
connection facilities provided by other carriers or entities, when authorized by the 
Customer. The Company's services are provided on a monthly basis, unless 
ordered on a longer term basis, and are available twenty-four hours per day. 

2.1.3 	 No charges apply to incomplete calls. 

2.2 	 Limitations 

2.2.1 	 Service is offered subject to the availability of the necessary facilities and 
equipment, or both facilities and equipment, and subject to the provisions of this 
tariff. 

2.2.2 	 The Company reserves the right to discontinue or limit service when necessitated 
by conditions beyond its control, or when the Customer is using service in violation 
of provisions of this tariff, or in violation of the law. 

2.2.3 	 The Company does not undertake to transmit messages, but offers the use of its 
facilities when available, and will not be liable for errors in transmission or for 
failure to establish connections. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, cont'd. 

2.2 	 Limitations, cont'd. 

2.2.4 	 All facilities provided under this tariff are directly controlled by the Company and 
the Customer may not transfer or assign the use of service or facilities without the 
express written consent of the Company. Such transfer or assignment shall only 
apply where there is no interruption of the use or location of the service or 
facilities. 

2.2.5 	 Prior written permission from the Company is required before any assignment or 
transfer. All regulations and conditions contained in this tariff shall apply to all 
such permitted assignees or transferees, as well as all conditions of service. 

2.3 	 Use 

Services provided under this tariff may be used for any lawful purpose for which the 
service is technically suited. 

2.4 	 Liabilities of the Company 

2.4.1 	 The Company liability for damages arlsmg out of mistakes, interruptions, 
omissions, delays, errors, or defects in transmission which occur in the course of 
furnishing service or facilities, in no event shall exceed an amount equivalent to the 
proportionate charge to the Customer for the period during which the faults in 
transmission occur. 

2.4.2 	 The Company shall not be liable for claim or loss, expense or damage (including 
indirect, special or consequential damage) , for any interruption, delay, error, 
omission, or defect in any service, facility or transmission provided under this 
tariff, if caused by any person or entity other than the Company, by any 
malfunction of any service or facility provided by any other carrier, by an act of 
God, fire, war, civil disturbance, or act of government, or by any other cause 
beyond the Company's direct control. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, cont'd. 

2.4 Liabilities of Company, cont'd. 

2.4.3 	 The Company shall not be liable for, and shall be fully indemnified and held 
harmless by Customer against any claim or loss, expense, or damage (including 
indirect, special or consequential damage) for defamation, libel, slander, invasion, 
infringement of copy-right or patent, unauthorized use of any trademark, 
tradename, or service mark, unfair competition, interference with or 
misappropriation or violation of any contract, proprietary or creative right, or any 
other injury to any person, property or entity arising out of the material, data, 
information, or other content revealed to, transmitted, or used by the Company 
under this tariff; or for any act or omission of the Customer; or for any personal 
injury or death of any person caused directly or indirectly by the installation, 
maintenance, location, condition, operation, failure, presence, use or removal of 
equipment or wiring provided by the Company, if not directly caused by negligence 
of the Company. 

2.4.4 	 The Company shall not be liable for any defacement of or damages to the premises 
of a Customer resulting from the furnishing of service which is not the direct result 
of the Company's negligence. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, cont'd. 

2.5 	 Deposits 

The Company does not require a deposit from the Customer. 

2.6 	 Advance Payments 

For Customers whom the Company determines an advance payment is necessary, the 
Company reserves the right to collect an amount not to exceed one (1) month's estimated 
charges as an advance payment for service. This will be applied against the next month's 
charges and a new advance payment may be collected for the next month. 

2.7 	 Taxes and Fees 

2.7.1 	 State and local taxes (i. e., gross receipts tax, sales tax, municipal utilities tax) are 
listed as separate line items on the Customer's bill and are not included in the 
quoted rates and charges set forth in this tariff. 

2.7.2 	 To the extent that a municipality, other political subdivision or local agency of 
government, or Commission imposes upon and collects from the Company a gross 
receipts tax, occupation tax, license tax, permit fee, franchise fee, or regulatory 
fee, such taxes and fees shall, insofar as practicable and allowed by law, be billed 
pro rata to Customers receiving service from the Company within the territorial 
limits of such municipality, other political subdivision or local agency of 
government. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, cont'd. 

2.7 Taxes and Fees, cont'd. 

2.7.3 Pay Telephone Surcharge 

In order to recover the Company's expenses to comply with the FCC's pay 
telephone compensation plan effective on October 7. 1997 (FCC 97-371), an 
undiscountable per call charge is applicable to all intrastate that originate from any 
domestic pay telephone used to access the Company's services for which the pay 
telephone operator is not other compensated, including calls that originate by 
dialing 1 +800 or 888 + NXX + XXXX; 1 + 950 + XXXX; or NPA-NXXX. The Pay 
Telephone Surcharge, which is in addition to standard tariffed usage any applicable 
service charges and surcharges associated with the Company's service, applies for 
the use of the instrument used to access the Company service and is unrelated to 
the Company's service accessed from the pay telephone. 

Pay telephones include coin-operated and coinless phones owned by local telephone 
companies, independent companies and other interexchange carriers. The Pay 
Telephone Surcharge applies to the initial completed call and any reoriginated call 
(Le., using the "#" symbol). 

Whenever possible, the Pay Telephone Surcharge will appear on the same invoice 
containing the usage charges for the surcharged call. In cases where proper pay 
telephone coding digits are not transmitted to the Company prior to completion of 
a call, the Pay Telephone Surcharge may be billed on a subsequent invoice after the 
Company has obtained information from a carrier that the originating station is an 
eligible pay telephone. 

The Pay Telephone Surcharge does not apply to calls placed from pay telephones 
at which the Customer pays for service by inserting coins during the progress of 
the call, or to operator assisted calls. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, cont'd. 

2.8 Terminal Equipment 

The Company's facilities and service may be used with or terminated in 
Customer-provided terminal equipment or Customer-provided communications systems, 
such as a PBX or key system. Such terminal equipment shall be furnished and maintained 
at the expense of the Customer. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, cont'd. 

2.9 Installation 

Service is installed upon mutual agreement between the Customer and the Company. 

2.10 Payment for Service 

The Customer is responsible for payment of all charges for services and equipment 
furnished to the Customer or to an Authorized User of the Customer by the Company. All 
charges due by the Customer are payable to the Company or to the Company's authorized 
billing agent. Terms of payment shall be according to the rules and regulations of the 
billing agent and subject to the rules of regulatory agencies, such as the Florida Public 
Service Commission. Any objections to billed charges must be reported to the Company 
or its billing agent. Adjustments to Customer's bills shall be made to the extent that 
circumstances exist which reasonably indicate that such changes are appropriate. 

2.11 Interconnection 

Service furnished by the Company may be connected with the services or facilities ofother 
carriers. Such service or facilities, if used, are provided under the terms, rates, and 
conditions of the other carrier. The Customer is responsible for all charges billed by other 
carriers for use in connection with the Company. Any special interface equipment or 
facilities necessary to achieve compatibility between carriers is the responsibility of the 
Customer. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, cont'd. 

2.12 Cancellation and Restoration of Service 

Service continues to be provided until canceled by the Customer or until canceled by the 
Company as set forth below. The Company may render bills subsequent to the termination 
of service for charges incurred before termination. The Customer shall pay such bills in 
full in accordance with the payment terms of this tariff. 

2.12.1 Cancellation by the Customer 

The Customer may have service discontinued upon written or verbal notice to the 
Company. The Customer shall pay the Company for service furnished until the 
cancellation date specified by the Customer or until the date that the written 
cancellation notice is received, whichever is later. 

2.12.2 Refusal, Suspension or Cancellation by the Company 

A. 	 The Company may disconnect service to any Customer after five (5) days 
written notice for any reason stated below: 

1. 	 For failure of the Customer to pay a bill for service when due; 
2. 	 For failure of the Customer to meet the Company's deposit and 

credit requirements; 
3. 	 For failure of the Customer to make proper application for service; 
4. 	 For the Customer's violation of any of the utility's rules on file with 

the Commission; 
5. 	 For failure of the Customer to provide the utility reasonable access 

to its equipment and property; 
6. 	 For failure of the Customer to furnish such service, equipment 

and/or rights-of-way necessary to service said Customer as shall 
have been specified by the Company as a condition of obtaining 
service; or 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, cont'd. 

2.12 	 Cancellation and Restoration of Service, cont'd. 

2.12.2 Refusal, Suspension or Cancellation by the Company, cont'd. 

A. 	 cont'd. 

7. 	 When necessary for the utility to comply with any order or request 
or any governmental authority having jurisdiction. 

B. 	 Disconnection of Service without Notice 

Without notice, the Company may disconnect service to any Customer for 
any reason stated below: 

1. 	 In the event of tampering with the Company's equipment 

2. 	 In the event of a condition determined to be hazardous to the 
Customer, to other Customers of the Company, to the Company's 
equipment, the public, or to employees of the Company; or; 

3. 	 In the event of a Customer's use of equipment in such a manner as 
to adversely affect the Company's equipment or the Company's 
service to others. 

2.12.3 Restoration of Service 

If service has been discontinued for a valid cause by the Company as otherwise 
provided herein and the Customer wishes it continued, service shall, at the 
Company's discretion, be restored when all past due amounts are paid or the event 
giving rise to the discontinuance (if other than nonpayment) is corrected. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, cont'd. 

2.13 Inspection, Testing, and Adjnstment 

Upon reasonable notice, the facilities provided by the Company shall be made available 
to the Company for tests and adjustments as may be deemed necessary by the Company 
for maintenance. No interruption allowance will be granted for the time during which such 
tests and adjustments are made. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, cont'd. 

2.14 Cost of Collection and Repair 

The Customer is responsible for any and all costs incurred in the collection of monies due 
the Company including legal and accounting expenses. Customer is responsible for 
recovery costs of Company-provided equipment and any expenses required for repair or 
replacement of damaged equipment. 

2.1S Reservation of Toll Free "800/888" Numbers 

The Company will make every effort to reserve Toll Free "800/888" vanity numbers for 
Customers, but makes no guarantee or warranty that the requested number(s) will be 
available. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, cont'd. 

2.19 Rules Applicable to Operator Services Provided to Aggregator Locations 

2.19.1 Subscribers who provide service to the transient public (aggregators) must place a 
notice on or near each instrument that provides transient access to the Company's 
operator services. The notice will be provided by the Company unless contractual 
agreement transfers the requirement to the call aggregator (as is frequently the case 
for LEC-provided public or semi-public service.) In all cases the notice will 
include the following information, customized for the individual installation: 

(A) 	 InterLAT A operator service is provided by the Company. 

(B) 	 Per Call Service Charges: [as per product description and rate described 
elsewhere in this tariff] 

(C) 	 Calls may be billed to most telephone company calling cards or to major 
credit cards such as MasterCard or American Express. 

(D) 	 Please consult the local telephone company directory or local telephone 
company operator for intraLATA dialing instructions and rates. 

(E) 	 To place an interLATA call dial [access code where applicable] + 0 + area 
code + interLAT A telephone number. 

(F) 	 The establishment surcharge for Local Calls is: $X.XX/X% (to be billed 
by establishment). 

(G) 	 The establishment surcharge for Long Distance Calls is: $X.XX/X% (to be 
billed by establishment). 

(H) 	 The Company's interLATA rates may be obtained by dialing [the toll free 
number provided by the Company. 

When the premises equipment functions differently than stated above, the 
tent card or sticker will be modified to reflect the actual dialing pattern. 
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SECTION 2 w RULES AND REGULATIONS, cont'd. 

2.20 Special Conditions Applicable to Operator Services 

2.20.2 Any applicable surcharges billed at check out time by a hotel/motel Subscriber for 
local or long distance calls must also be stated on the tent card. Subscriber 
surcharges will not be billed on telephone bills by the Company. 

2.20.3 So long as Florida Rules require, IntraLATA "0+" calls and all "0-" (zero minus) 
calls will be routed to the local exchange carrier. Where the capability exists. the 
local exchange carrier will route 0- interLATA calls to the presubscribed carrier 
of the access line. In all other cases the local carrier will route 0- interLATA calls 
as determined by applicable state and federal laws. 

2.20.4 Calls handled and billed by the Company will be audibly and distinctly branded 
"Frontier Communications of America" at the beginning and end of the operator 
treatment portion of the call and prior to the commencement ofbilling. Callers may 
disconnect from the call after the brand and prior to connection without incurring 
any call charges. 
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE 

3.1 General 

The Company provides intrastate, interexchange switched and dedicated 
telecommunications services between locations in Florida. 

Customers can expect a call completion rate of not less than 90% during peak use periods 
for Feature Group D I + dialing. The call completion rate is calculated as the number of 
calls completed (including calls completed to a busy line or to a line which remains 
unanswered by the called party) divided by the number of calls attempted. 
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE, cant/d. 

3.2 Calculation of Distance 

Usage charges for all mileage sensitive products are based on the airline distance between 
the Rate Centers associated with the originating and terminating points of the calL 

The distance between the originating and terminating points is calculated by using the "V" 
and "Hit coordinates of the Rate Centers as defined by BellCore (Bell Communications 
Research), in the following manner: 

Step 1 ­ Obtain the "V" and "H" coordinates for the Rate Center of the originating 
and the destination points. 

Step 2­ Obtain the difference between the "V" coordinates of each of the Rate 
Centers. Obtain the difference between the "Hit coordinates. 

Step 3­ Square the differences obtained in Step 2. 

Step 4­ Add the squares of the "vn difference and "HI! difference obtained in Step 
3. 

Step 5­ Divide the sum of the square obtained in Step 4 by ten (10). Round to the 
next higher whole number if any fraction results from the division. 

Step 6­ Obtain the square root of the whole number obtained in Step 5. Round to 
the next higher whole number if any fraction is obtained. This is the 
distance between the originating and terminating points of the calL 

Formula: 
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE, cont'd. 

3.3 	 Call Timing 

3.3.1 	 Long distance usage charges are based on the actual usage of the Company's 
network. Chargeable time begins when the calling and the called station are 
connected. Call timing is determined using industry standard methods of answer 
supervision, including hardware and software answer detection. 

3.3.2 	 Chargeable time ends when the calling service point terminates, thereby releasing 
the network connection. 

3.3.3 	 Unless otherwise specified in this tariff, usage is measured in one (1) minute 
increments for billing purposes. Partial usage will be rounded up to the next highest 
whole minute. All calls are rounded to the next highest billing increment. Any 
partial cents per call will be rounded up to the next highest cent. 

3.3.4 	 Unless flat rated, usage charges are determined by the time of day rate periods and 
minutes of use within each rate period. The rate period is determined by the time 
and day of call originating at the Customer's Location. 

3.3.5 	 No charges apply to unanswered calls. 
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE, cont'd. 

3.4 Time-Or-Day Rate Periods 

Unless otherwise specified in the product description in this tariff, the following 
time-of-day and day-of-week rate periods are applicable to all calls. Evening rates shall 
apply to all calls placed on the Company's recognized Holidays except when a lower rate 
would normally apply. 

DAY RATE PERIOD 8:00 AM 
Friday 

to 5:00* PM Monday through 

EVENING RATE PERIOD 5:00 PM 
Friday 

to 11:00* PM Sunday through 

NIGHT/WEEKEND RATE PERIO

* to, but not including 

D 11:00 PM 
Friday, all 
5:00* PM 

to 
da

8:00* AM Sunday through 
y Saturday and Sunday until 

Calls are billed based on the rate in effect for the actual time-of-day rate period(s) during 
which the call occurs. Calls that cross rate period boundaries are billed the rate in effect 
in that boundary for each portion of the call. 
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE, cont'd. 

3.4 	 Time-Or-Day Rate Periods, cont'd. 

Holiday Rates 

Calls on the following Company-recognized Holidays are rated at the Evening Rate Period 
or Off-Peak Rate Period rate unless a lower rate would normally apply. 


New Year's Day** Labor Day Christmas Day** 

Independence Day** Thanksgiving Day Memorial Day* 


* 	 Applies to Federally observed day only. 
** 	 When this holiday falls on Sunday, the Holiday rate applies on the 

following Monday. When this holiday falls on a Saturday, the Holiday rate 
applies to calls placed on the preceding Friday. 
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE, cont'd. 

3.5 Directory Assistance 

A Directory Assistance charge applies per intrastate directory assistance calls made from 
points within the State of Florida. The Customer may make two (2) requests for a 
telephone number per call. The Directory Assistance Charge applies regardless ofwhether 
the operator is able to supply the requested number. Discounts are not applicable to 
Directory Assistance Charges. Directory Assistance Charges are not included in usage 
commitments or computed in any discount calculations. 
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE, cont'd. 

3.6 Direct Dial Service 

Direct Dial Service is offered to business and residential customers for both inbound and 
outbound, intraLATA and interLATA, calling over standard switched lines. Calls are 
billed in six (6) second increments after an initial minimum call duration of six (6) seconds. 
The applicable rates are not time of day sensitive and apply 24 hours per day, 7 days a 
week. 

Volume and term discounts are offered and rates vary based on whether the Customer is 
served by on-net or off-net facilities. 

3.8 Toll Free (i.e. 	800/888) Service 

Toll-Free Service is an offering that allows the calling party to charge each call to the 
called party without operator assistance. By the use of specially assigned prefixes, such as 
800 or 888, the charge for each call is automatically billed to the Customer. 

Calls are billed in six (6) second increments after an initial minimum call duration of six 
(6) seconds. The applicable rates are not time ofday sensitive and apply 24 hours per day, 
7 days a week. 

Volume and term discounts are offered and rates vary based on whether the Customer is 
served by on-net or off-net facilities. 

ISSUED: July 17, 2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 

ISSUED BY: 	 Manager - Rates & Tariffs 
180 S. Clinton Avenue 
Rochester, New York 14646 
(716) 777-1000 	 FLOOOOO 



FRONTIER COMMUNI'b\TIONS OF AMERICA, INC. '-'" Florida Tariff No.1 
Original Sheet 31 

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE, cont'd. 

3.8 Travel Card Service 

Travel Card service is a travel service allowing Customers to originate calls via a 
Company-provided toll free number from non-presubscribed access lines. Customers may 
terminate calls in all cities within the state of Florida. Calls are billed in one (1) minute 
increments after an initial minimum call duration of one minute. 
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE, cont'd. 

3.9 Operator Services 

The use of the Company's Operator Services allows Customer to select from the special 
call handling or billing arrangements specified below. Call, rates, charges, and applicable 
service charges will be assessed to the call originator, the called party's telephone number 
or a third party's telephone number based upon the call type (i.e., operator dialed, collect, 
third party billed, or Customer dialed credit card billed, without the use of an operator's 
assistance) initiated by the call originator and the appropriate acknowledgment of other 
parties, where applicable. The following type of billing is available: 

3.9.1 Customer Dialed Calling/Credit Card 

This is a service whereby the end user dials all of the digits necessary to route and 
bill the call without any operator assistance. Such calls may be billed either to a 
telephone company issued calling card or a commercial credit card. 

3.9.2 Operator Station 

This is a service whereby the caller places a non-person-to-person call with the 
assistance of an operator (live or automated). When placing an operator station 
call, the caller is connected to a non-specified individual at the terminating end. 
Such calls may be billed to a calling card, credit card, the called number (collect) 
or a valid third party telephone number. 

3.9.3 Person-to-Person 

This is a service whereby the person originating the call specifies to the Company's 
operator a particular person to be reached, or a particular person, station, room 
number, department, or office to be reached through a PBX attendant. 
Person-to-person calls may be billed to a calling card, credit card, the called 
number (collect) or a valid third party telephone number. 

ISSUED: July 17,2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 

ISSUED BY: 	 Manager - Rates & Tariffs 
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE, cant'd. 

3.10 Busy Line Verification and Interrupt 

Busy Line Verification and Interrupt services are offered in areas where the service may 
be obtained from the local exchange carrier. 

With Busy Line Verification (BL V), the Company operator will contact the LEC operator 
to determine if the called number or line is in use. Only one BL V will be made per 
telephone call and an associated charge will apply whether or not conversation was 
detected on the line. The operator will not complete the call for the Customer initiating the 
verification request. 

Busy Line Interrupt (BLI) allows the Company operator to contact a LEC operator to 
interrupt a telephone conversation in progress, upon the caller's request and after a Busy 
Line Verification occurs. Upon the caller's request, the Company operator will contact 
the LEC operator, who will interrupt the busy line and inform the called party that there 
is a call waiting from the caller. The LEC operator will not complete the call, but will 
only inform the called party of the request. If the call is released the Company operator 
will offer to complete the call for the Customer initiating the interrupt request. An 
applicable service charge and applicable per minute charges will apply to the completed 
call. Only one BLI attempt will be made per telephone call and a charge will apply whether. 
or not the called party releases the line. 
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SECTION 4 - RATES 

4.1 	 General 

Each Customer is charged individually for each call placed through the Company. 
Customers are billed based on their use of the Company's long distance service. 

4.1.1 	 Late Fee 

A late fee of 1.5 % monthly will be charged on any past due balances beginning 30 
days from the mailing date of the bill. 

4.1.2 	 Return Check Charges 

A fee of$15.00, or five percent of the amount of the check, whichever is greater, 
will be charged for each check returned for insufficient funds. 

4.1.3 	 Reconnection Charge 

A reconnection fee of $25.00 per occurrence is charged when service is re­
established for Customers who have been disconnected for nonpayment. 

4.1.4 	 Pay Telephone Surcharge 


Per Call $0.24 


ISSUED: July 17,2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 

ISSUED BY: 	 Manager - Rates & Tariffs 
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SECTION 4 - RATES, cont'd. 

4.2 	 Exemptions and Special Rates 

4.2.1 	 Discounts for Hearing Impaired Customers 

A telephone toll message which is communicated using a telecommunications 
devise for the deaf (TDD) by properly certified hearing or speech impaired persons 
or properly certified business establishments or individuals equipped with TDDs 
for communicating with hearing or speech impaired persons will receive, upon 
request, credit on charges for certain intrastate toll calls placed between TDDs. 
Discounts do not apply to surcharges or per call add-on charges for operator 
services when the call is placed by a method that would normally incur the 
surcharge. 

A. 	 The credit to be given on a subsequent bill for such calls placed between 
TD Ds will be equal to applying the evening rate during business day hours 
and the night/weekend rate during the evening rate period. 

B. 	 The credit to be given on a subsequent bill for such calls placed by TDDs 
with the assistance of the relay center will be equal to 50 % of the rate for 
the applicable rate period. If either party is both hearing and visually 
impaired, the call shall be discounted at 60% of the applicable rate. 

4.2.2 	 Telecommunications Relay System 

TDD users may communicate with non-TDD users through the statewide 
Telecommunications Relay System (TRS). Customers who access the TRS system 
are eligible for discounts as specified in Section 4.2.1B above. 

ISSUED: July 17,2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 
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SECTION 4 - RATES, cont'd. 

4.3 Directory Assistance 

A Directory Assistance charge applies per intrastate directory assistance calls made from 
points within the State of Florida. The Customer may make two (2) requests for a 
telephone number per call. The Directory Assistance Charge applies regardless ofwhether 
the operator is able to supply the requested number. The first 50 Directory Assistance 
calls per cycle are provided at no charge from residential lines serving individuals with 
disabilities whose disabilities prevent or hinder the use of a telephone directory. The 
Customer must notify the Company and submit proof of the disability to qualify for this 
exemption. 

Per call to directory assistance: $1.40 

Per call completion: 	 $0.35 

ISSUED: July 17,2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 
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SECTION 4 - RATES, cont'd. 

4.4 Termination Liability 

When the Customer terminates service under this plan prior to the expiration of the 
Customer's seleCted term commitment, a termination charge will be assessed. The 
termination charge is calculated by multiplying 35 percent (35%) of the Customer's 
Minimum Usage Guarantee multiplied times the number of months remaining in the term. 
The early termination penalty will apply when the Customer disconnects their entire 
Account or when the Customer renegotiates a shorter term. The early termination charge 
will not apply when the Customer's" physical location changes, but the term plan is 
continued at the new location. The early termination charge will not apply when the 
Customer selects the term plan for higher commitment level andlor longer term. 

4.5 Volume Commitment 

All intrastate, interstate and international usage charges and applicable surcharges billed 
to the Customer contribute towards meeting the monthly volume commitment. In addition, 
feature charges, directory assistance charges, operator usage and surcharges, and monthly 
recurring charges are contributory to the volume commitment. Taxes, presubscribed line 
charges, carrier universal service charges, pay telephone use charges and other similar fees 
are not contributory. When the Customer's billing falls below the volume commitment in 
any billing period, a shortfall charge will be applied which is equal to the difference 
between the volume commitment and the actual contributory billing for that billing period .. 

ISSUED: July 17, 2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 
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SECTION 4 - RATES, cont'd. 

4.6 Direct Dial Service 

4.6.1 IntraLATA 

Per Minute Usage Rate: $0.20 

4.6.2 InterLATA 

Per Minute Usage Rate: $0.20 

4.7 Toll Free (i.e. 800/888) Service 

4.7.1 Per Minute Rate: 	 $0.20 

4.8 Travel Card Service 

4.8.1 Per Minute Rate 	 $0.25 

ISSUED: July 17, 2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 
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SECTION 4 - RATES, cont'd. 

4.9 Operator Services 

4.9.1 	 InterLATA 


Per Minute Rate: $0.30 


4.9.2 	 IntraLATA 


Per Minute Rate: $0.30 


4.9.3 Service Charge 

A per-call service charge applies in addition to the per minute usage rates when 
applicable. The service charge applies in all rate periods. 

Per Call 

Customer Dialed Calling Card $1.75 
Operator Dialed Calling Card $1.75 
Operator Station 

Collect $1.75 
Third Party Billed $1.75 

Person to Person $3.25 

ISSUED: 	 July 17,2000 EFFECTIVE: 
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SECTION 4 - RATES, cont'd. 

4.10 Busy Line Verification and Interrupt 

Busy Line Verification, per request $0.35 

Busy Line Interrupt, per request $0.45 

ISSUED: July 17,2000 	 EFFECTIVE: 
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ATTACHMENT III 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. 	 Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to provide 
the requested service in the geographic area proposed to be served. 

2. 	 Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to 
maintain the requested service. 

3. 	 Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to meet 
its lease or ownership obligations. 

NOTE: This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, a projected 
profit and loss statement, credit references, credit bureau reports, and descriptions of business 
relationships with financial institutions. 



FRONT)](R COMMUNICATIONS OF AMER'l:tA, INC. 

Supplemental Financial Information 


1. 	 Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to provide 
the requested service in the geographic area proposed to be served. 

Applicant possesses the financial capability to provide the requested service. The parent 
Company's most recent SEC 10K is attached. A review of the financial statements 
demonstrates that the Company possesses the necessary financial capability. Highlights 
include: 

1999 Revenues: $1.7 billion 
Current Assets: $2.9 billion 
Current Ratio: 1.6 
Total Assets: $19.7 billion 

In conclusion, Applicant has the financial capability and financial management skills to 
provide Alternative Local Exchange Service in Florida. 

2. 	 Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to 
maintain the requested service. 

Please see response to question #1. 

3. 	 Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to meet 
its lease or ownership obligations. 

Please see response to question #1. 

NOTE: This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, a projected 
profit and loss statement, credit references, credit bureau reports, and descriptions of business 
relationships with financial institutions. 
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PART I 

In this Annual Report:; on Form 10-1<:, "GCL" refers to Global Crossing Ltd. and 
the "Company," "Global Crossing," "we," "our" and "us" refer to GCL'and its 
consolidated subsidiaries (unless the context otherwise requires) . 

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-1<:, references to "dollars" and "$" 
are to United States dollars. 

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 

Introduction 

We are building and offering services over the world's first int'egrated 
global fiber optic network, consisting of 101,000 announced route miles and 
serving five continents, 27 countries and more than 200 major cities. upon 
completion of our currently announced systems, our network and its 
telecommunications and Internet product offerings will be available in markets 
constituting over SOt of the world's international communications traffic. 

We are included in both the SMP 500 index and the Nasdaq 100 index. Our 
operations are headquartered in Hamilton, Bermuda, with executive offices in 
Los Angeles, California; ~orristown, New Jersey; and Rochester, New York. 

We are incorporated in Bermuda, and the address of our principal executive 
offices is Wessex House, 45 Reid Street,' Hamilton HM12, Bermuda. Our telephone 
number is 441-296-8600. You may visit us at our website located at 
www.glabalcrossing.com. 

Business Strategy 

Global Crossing's strategy is to be the premier provider of global Internet 
Protocol (nIP") and data services for both wholesale and retail customers. We 
are building a state-of-the-art fiber optic network that we believe to be of 
unprecedented global scope and scale to serve as the backbone for this 
strategy. We believe that our network will enable us to be the low cost 
service provider in most of our addressable markets. 

Global Crossing offers a variety of voice, data and Internet services 
throughout most of North America and Europe. During 2000, we intend to 
aggressively rollout similar services in Asia, Mexico, Central America and 
South America. 

In Asia, these services will be offered through our Asia Global Crossing 
joint venture with Softbank Corp. and Microsoft corporation. Asia Global 
Crossing aims to become the first truly pan-Asian carrier to offer worldwide 
bandwidth and data communications. As such, we believe that Asia Global 
Crossing will be uniquely pOSitioned to take advantage of the anticipated 
explosive growth and i~creasingly favorable regulatory ~nvironment in the 
Asian telecommunications markets. 

In each of our businesses, we intend to expand significantly our qurrent 
product offerings, with an increasing focus on value-added services. In 
particular, our GlobalCenter subsidiary will expand its product set to become 
a single-source e-commerce service solution that will provide web-centric 
businesses with the high availability, flexibility and scalability necessary 
to compete in the rapidly expanding digital economy. 

Business Combinations 

The Asia Global Crossing joint venture was established on November 24, 1999. 
We contributed to the joint venture our developmenc rights-in East Asia 
Crossing, an approximately 11,000 mile undersea network that will link several 
countries in eastern Asia, and our sst interest in Pacific Crossing, an 
undersea system connecting ­
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the United States and Japan. Softbank Corp. and Microsoft Corporation each 
contributed $175 million in cash to Asia Global Crossing. In addition, 
Softbank and Microsoft committed to make a total of at least $200 million in 
capacity purchases ,on our network over a three-year period, expected to be 
utilized primarily on PC-1 and EAC. Softbank and Microsoft have also agreed to 
use Asia Global Crossing's network in the region, subject to specified 
conditions. 

Also on November 24, 1999, we completed our acquisition of Racal Telecom, a 
group of wholly owned Subsidiaries of Racal Electronics plc, for approximately 
$1.6 billion in cash. Racal Telecom owns one of the most extensive fiber 
telecommunications networks in the United Kingdom, consisting of approximately 
4,650 route miles of fiber and reaching more than 2,000 cities and towns. 

On September 28, 1999, we completed the acquiSition of Frontier Corporation 
in a merger transaction valued at over $10 billion, with Frontier shareholders 
receiving 2.05 shares of our common stock for each share of Frontier common 
stock held. Frontier is one of the largest long distance telecommunications 
companies in the United States and one of the leading providers of facilities­
based integrated communications and Internet services. 

On July 2, 1999, we completed our acquisition of the Global Marine Systems 
division of cable & Wireless Plc for approximately $908 million in cash and 
assumed liabilities. Global Marine Systems owns the largest fleet of cable 
laying and maintenance vessels in the world and currently services more than a 
third of the worldl~ undersea cable miles. 

Recent Developments 

On March 2, 2000, we announced that Leo Bindery had succeeded Robert 
Annunziata as Global Crossing's Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Bindery will also 
continue to serve as Chief Executive Officer of GlobalCenter Inc., our, 
subsidiary that provides complex web hosting and Internet infrastructure 
services. Mr. Annunziata will continue as a director of Global Crossing. In 
addition, on March 2, 2000, we also announced our intentions to create a 
tracking stock for GlobalCenter, which will continue to complement our 
worldwide operations. ' 

On February 29, 2000, we announced that we had concluded an agreement to 
provide substantial additional capacity to Deutsche Telekom AG. Total capacity 
sold to Deutsche Telekom is now 35 gigabits per second ("Gbpsll) on AC-1, the 
fiber-optic system that provides a link between North America and Germany. 

On February 22, 2000, we announced a definitive agreement to acquire IXnet, 
Inc., a leading provider of specialized IP-based network services to the 
global financial services community, and its parent company, IPC 
Communications, Inc., in exchange for shares of common stock of Global 
Crossing valued at approximately $3.8 billion. Under the terms of the 
definitive merger agreement, 1.194 Global Crossing shares will be exchanged 
for each IXnet share not owned by tPC and 5.417 Global Crossing shares will be 
exchanged for each share of IPC. The acquisition is expected to be completed 
in the second quarter of 2000 and is subject to regulatory approval_and 
customary closing conditions. 

On January 26, 2000, our Asia Global Cros$ing joint venture announced an 
agreement to create GlobalCenter Japan, a jOint venture with Japan's Internet 
Research Institute, Inc. (IIIRIR). Globalcenter Japan will design, develop and 
construct a media distribution center in Japan providing connectivity 
worldwide through the Global Crossing Network. The joint venture will also 

'. 	 develop and provide complex web hosting services, e-commerce support and 
applications hosting solutions. Asia Global Crossing will own 89 percent of 
GlobalCenter Japan, with tRI owning t.he remaining 11 perl!ent. 

gn January 12, 2000, we established a joint venture, called Hutchison Global 
Crossing, with Hutchison Whampoa Limited to pursue fixed-11ne 
telecommunications and Internet opportunities in Hong Kong. For its SOt share, 
Hutchison Whampoa contributed to the joint venture its building-tQ-building 
fixed-line telecommunications network in Hong Kong and a number of Internet­
related assets. In addition, Hutchison Whampoa has agreed that any fixed-line 
telecommunications activities it pursues in China will be carried out by 
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the joint venture. For our sot share, we provided to Hutchison Whampoa $400 
million in Global Crossing convertible preferred stock (convertible into 
shares of Global Crossing common stock at a rate of $45 per share) and 
committed to contribute to the joint venture international telecommunications 
capacity rights on our network and certain media distribution center 
capabilities which together are valued at $350 million, as well as $50 million 
in cash. We intend to integrate our interest in Hutchison Global Crossing into 
Asia Global Crossing. 

Services 

General 

We provide services in three principal segments. OUr telecommunications 
services segment offers a variety of integrated telecommunications products 
and services to customers through our global fiber optic network. our 
installation and maintenance services segment, consisting of our Global Marine 
Systems subsidiary, installs and maintains undersea fiber optic cable systems 
to carrier customers worldwide. Finally, our incumbent local exchange carrier 
("ILEC") services segment provides local communications services through local 
exchange service providers in l3 states, serving over one million access 
lines. 

Telecommunications Services 

Global Crossing provide~ a variety of integrated telecommunications and 
Internet-based products designed to meet the customer's total communications 
needs. Global Crossing provides domestic and international voice services, 
data products, Internet~based services, structured bandwidth services and 
other communications products to primarily small to mid-size business 
customers, web-centric businesses and other telecommunication carriers. 
Beginning in 2000, we will begin marketing products more intensely to large 
multinational customers who have bandwidth-intensive applications and 
international requirements. Such customers demand global end-to-end solutions. 
We are well positioned to address this market due to the international scope 
and broadband capacity of our network along with-the flexibility of product 
pricing to maintain competitiveness. 

Global Crossing offers the following products and services to its customers: 

Voice: SWitched and dedicated outbound voice services for local, 

domestic, and international traffic. 

Data Transport: Point-to-point data services in a number of products 

(including private line, ATM, frame relay, X.25 and Internet access) and 

varying bandwidth sizes (from fractional T-l to OC-192). 

Virtual Private Network (nVPN"): CUstomizable network solutions where 

our customers create a private network by using the Global Crossing 

Network without purchasing dedicated facilities. In addition, customers 

have flexibility to change capacity requirements between points over 

time and reconfigure their VPNs to meet changing requirements. 

International Private Line ("IPL"): Expanded services providin~ retail 

customers greater flexibility at reduced cost. We currently provide 

access to New York, London, Amsterdam, Frankfurt, Paris and Tokyo, with 

access expected to be available to la additional cities within the next 

six months. 

Web Hosting Services: A combination of digital distribution services, 

server co-location, equipment sales, consulting services and 

professional expertise aimed at supporting customers' mission critical 

Internet operations. This product is easily scalable to meet customer 

needs and ia marketed primarily by our GlobalCenter subsidiary. 

Advanced Voice and Data Services: These services ~~!ne traditional 


.voice or data products with additional features .. Products include 

calling card, aoo/aaa toll free services, voice mail, audio 

conferencing, video conferencing and broadcast fax. ­

Advanced Internet Services: Products include basic dial-up and.dedicated 

Internet access along with web-based applications such as e-mail 

hosting, unified messaging, off-site data storage and backup. 
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Structured Bandwidth Services: Historically, we have sold capacity on 
our systems on an Indefeasible Right of Use ("tRU") basis, whereby the 
customer purchased a unit of point to point capacity for the expected 
economic life of the system, typically in increments of 155 megabits per 
second (IIMbpenl, a unit known as an STM-l. However, with the 
consummation of our acquisition of Frontier in September 1999, we have 
begun to derive a significant source of revenue from service offerings 
involving leases of capacity on our systems in smaller increments and 
for periods significantly shorter than the expected useful life of the 
system. From time to time, we also engage in sales of "dark" fiber 
(i.e., fiber that has not been equipped with the electronic components 
necessa~ for telecommunications transmission). 

Payment for long-term leases of capacity or dark fiber is typically made 
in advance of activation, although in some cases a customer I s payments 
are made in installments over two to four years. For short-term 
bandwidth services, customers are'typically billed on a monthly basis. 

Due to the breadth of the Global Crossing Network, we are uniquely 
positioned to offer worldwide capacity to our customers. Many customers 
acknowledge that their need for large bandwidth is increasing, but they 
are often uncertain with regard to the precise routes where their 
particular growth will· take place. In order to stimulate customer 
loyalty and leverage this uncertainty, we have developed the Global 
Crossing Network Offer, which allows customers who can make a multi-year 
commitment the flexibility to activate capacity where needed, in a 
"just-in-time" manner, in return for volume discounted pricing. As our 
network continues to expand, we are exploring other marketing programs 
that will provide further benefits to our customers and position Global 
Crossing as the broadband infrastructure provider of choice. 

Moreover,' because our centralized Global Crossing Network Center 
("GCNC"), located in The Docklande, London, England, enables us to 
monitor and direct transmission on our cable systems worldwide. we 
believe that we have a strategic advantage in being able to more quickly 
activate capacity for a customer on any of our systems. 

Switched Services: We provide originating and switched terminating 
services to long distance carriers over our switched services network. 
Such services are generally offered on a month-to-month basis, and the 
service is billed on a minutes-of-use basis. 

Internet Protocol Services: We offer IP Services to carriers, Internet 
Service Providers' ("Ispsn) and other business customers over our global 
IP network. Such services are offered on a month-to-month basis and 
generally billed on a megabit per second (Mbps) basis. 

Installation and Maintenance Services 

We offer both installation and maintenance services for undersea cable 
systems through our Global Marine Systems subsidia~. Global Marine-Systems 
has the largest fleet of cable ships in the world, comprised of both 
maintenance vessels and installation vessels. These vessels operate throughout 
the world. Since the acquisition, Global Marine Systems added three ships, 
with five additional ships to enter service early in 2000. Global Marine 
Systems also announced an agreement with Maersk to charter ships as needed. 

Global Marine, Systems' business consists' of two components: installation and 
maintenance. 

Maintenance~ Global Marine Systems is the world'·s market leader for 
submarine cable maintenance wi~h 31% of the world market by value in 
1999. 
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Global Marine Systems' maintenance business is centered around cable 
system security. Despite optimum route planning and installation. cables 
are sometimes damaged on the seabed. The maintenance cable sbip must be 
able to retrieve a partially buried cable down to two thousand meters as 
well as retrieve and repair a cable from the furthest ocean depths. With 
cable in water depths of up to nine thousand meters, the cable ship is a 
specialized vessel designed to operate continuously in the extreme 
weather conditions found in the major cable routes around the world. 

Installation: Global Marine Systems' installation business hasoa market 
share in excess of 25%, making it a leading competitor in the undersea 
telecommunications installation industry. 
Revenue from installation is linked to the number of submarine 
telecommunication cable systems annually installed worldwide. Such 
systems traverse many types of seabed. including active continental 
shelves, flat deep-water abyssal plains and mountainous oceanic ridges. 
The objectiye when installing cable is to deploy it in such a way as to 
minimize the risk of damage to the cable either from external threats or 
from natural wear effects caused by ocean currents and tides. The cable 
can either be buried into the seabed if protection is required from 
threats such as fishing and anchoring or it can simply be laid across 
the surface of the seabed. 

ILEC Services 
Global Crossing's ILEC services segment comprises one of the largest local 

exchange service providers in the United States. This segment consists of 34 
regulated telephone operating subsidiaries in 13 states, serving in excess of 
one million access lines. Such services are marketed under the name Frontier 
Telephone, a Frontier Communications Company. The local exchange carriers 
provide local, toll, access and resale services, sell, install and maintain 
customer premises equipment and provide directory services. Our ILEC services 
segment excludes local services provided by our subsidiaries authorized as 
competitive local exchange carriers (IICLECs·). which services are included in 
our telecommunications services segment. Generally speaking, ILECs tend to be 
the original provider of local exchange service in a given area and, 
accordingly. receiveo a greater degree of regulation than do CLECs and other 
carriers without market power. 

We have installed advanced digital switching platforms throughout all of our 
switching network, making it one of the first in the industry to be served by 
an entirely digital network for our local exchange companies. We have achieved 
substantial cost reductions through the elimination of duplicative services 
and procedures and the consolidation of administrative functions. We believe 
that additional cost reductions may be obtainable from advanced switching 
platforms and outside plant delivery systems. We intend to pursue additional 
gains in productivity by investing in these technologies where feasible and by 
reengineering customer service processes. 

Of the approximately 1,072,000 access lines in service on December 31, 1999, 
737.000 were residential lines and 335,000 were business lines. Long distance 
network service to and from points outside of the teiephone companies' 
operating territories is provided by interconnection with the facilities of 
interexchange carriers. 

We are pursuing several alternatives to provide expanded broadband 
capabilities to our customers. To date, we have installed over 31,000 fiber 
miles of fiber based network facilities, totaling more than 930 route miles, 
in the Rochester, New York area to provide our customers with enhanced 
capacity and to enable us to offer new products. We provide expanded broadband 
services to select customers, including video-distance learning arrangements 
for educational ..institutions and access to'SONET based fiber rings for major 
businees customers. In addition to these offerings, we plan to aggressively 
begin marketing Digital Subscriber Line ("DSL") services-in 2000. 

In connection with our integration strategy. we have developed a program 
known as nFrontier Long Distance," whereby our local exc~ge companies resell 
our integrated services. We believe that many customers prefer the convenience 
of obtaining their long distance service through their local tele~~Qne company 
and receiving a single bill. Frontier Long Distance is currently offered in 
the product lines of most of Global Crossing's local telephone exchange 
companies. 
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The Global Crossing Network 

The fiber optic cable systems that we have completed or that are under 

development will form a state-of-the-art interconnected worldwide high 

capacity fiber optic network. The following systems are currently in service: 


Atlantic Crossing-l, referred to as nAC-l", an undersea system 
connecting the United States and Europe; 

North American Crossing. referred to as "HAC", formerly part of. 
Frontier, a terrestrial system connecting major cities in the United 
States; 

Pan European Crossing, referred to as ·PEC", a primarily terrestrial 
system connecting major European cities to AC-l; 

Racal Telecom Network, a terrestrial network in the United Kingdom to be 
operated in conjunetion.with PEC; 

Pacific Crossing, referred to as "PC-lit, an undersea system connecting 
the United States and Japan; 

Global Access Ltd., referred to as "GAL", a terrestrial system 
connecting a number of major cities in Japan to PC-l; 

Hutchison Global Crossing, referred to as MHGC", a terrestrial network 
in 	Hong Kong, connecting to EACj and 

Mid-Atlantic Crossing, referred to as BMAC·, an undersea system 
connecting the eastern United States and the Caribbean. 

The following systems are in varying stages of development: 

Atlantic Crossing-2 (IIAC-2M, and together with AC-l, referred to as 
"AC"), an undersea system that will connect the United States and 
Europe; 

East Asia Crossing, referred to as "EAC·, an undersea system that will 
connect several countries in Asia to PC-l; 

Pan American Crossing, referred to as "PAC·, a primarily undersea system 
that will connect the western United States. Mexico, Panama, Venezuela 
and the Caribbean; and 

South American Crossing, referred to as ·SAC", an undersea and 
terrestrial system that will connect the major cities of South America 
to MAC, PAC and the rest of our network. 

Although many of these fiber optic cable systems are wholly-owned, some are 

being developed through joint ventures with one or more partners. EAC and our 

58' economic interest in PC-l are being developed through our Asia Global 

Crossing joint venture, for which we are responsible for management and 

operation. In addition, we expect to construct parts of the terrestrial 

portion of SAC through joint venture arrangements I and terrestrial 

connectivity to PAC in Mexico will similarly be developed through a joint 

venture. We will be responsible for management and operation of these 

entities. Finally. we own a SOt interest in Hutchison Global Crossing and a 

49' interest in Global Access Ltd•• which is constructing GAL. Management and 

operation of these two entities will be performed by or with our joint venture 

partners. . 


All of our undersea systems are equipped with state-of-the-art dense wave 

division multiplexing (IIDWDMN) technology, a method of increasing the amount 


". 	 of a cable's tr~nsmission capacity "through' installation of electronic 
equi~t at cable landing stations and without requiring che undersea cable 
to be physically handled. 

The twin operations and management centers for the "Global Crossing Network 

are the Customer Care Center, located in Bermuda, and the~C, located in The 

Docklands, London, England. These two facilities provide complete customer 

support--from provisioning and assistance to billing. From the GCNC, Global 
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Crossing technicians and network managers monitor and control all undersea 
cable systems, shore station equipment and terrestrial facilities worldwide. 
The GCNC began operations in the fourth quarter of 1999. 

Network Systems 

Atlantic Crossing 

AC-1, our first undersea fiber optic cable in the Atlantic region, is an 
approximately 9,000 mile, four fiber pair self-healing ring that connects the 
United States and Europe with landing stations in the United States, the 
United Kingdom, the Netherlands and Germany. The full ring currently offers 80 
Gbps of service capacity and is being upgraded to offer 140 Gbps. AC-l started 
service on its United States to United Kingdom segment during May 1998, and 
the full system was completed during February 1999. 

On February 17, 2000, we announced that we had entered into an agreement 
with Level 3 Communications, Inc. to cO-build an additional high-capacity, 
fiber optic transatlantic cable. Our two fiber pairs in the cable, to be 
called AC~2, will provide us with an additional 560 Gbps of capacity along 
this route. AC-2 will be integrated with the two cables of AC-l, providing AC­
2 with self-healing capabilities. The new cable is expected to be in service 
in September 2000. In addition, Level 3 Communications, Inc. agreed to acquire 
capacity on AC-l to provide Level 3 Communications, Inc. with self-healing 
ring circuitry. 

North American crossing 

We acquired RAC, formerly the Frontier Optronics Network, as a result of our 
September 1999 merger with Frontier Corporation. The core fiber network, 
offering more than 13,000 route miles of optical fiber capacity. was completed 
in August 199~. The full netwo~k, consisting of approximately 20,000 route 
miles, is expected to be completed by the end of March 2000. 

Pan European Crossing 

upon completion, PEe will consist of eight self-healing rings offering 
connectivity between AC and 41 major European metropolitan centers. Phase I of 
this system, connecting 13 cities, was completed in December 1999. The 
complete system, expected to consist of approximately 13,400 miles with 24 to 
72 fiber pairs as well as spare conduits, is anticipated to be completed by 
early 2001. 

We intend to operate the Racal Telecom Network in conjunction with PEC. 
Acquired in November 1999, the Racal Telecom Network is one of the most 
extensive fiber telecommunications networks in the United Kingdom, consisting 
of approximately 4,500 route miles of fiber and reaching more than 2,000 
cities and towns. 

Pacific Crossing 

PC-l, our first undersea fiber optic cable in the Pacific region, is being 
developed as an approximately 13,100 mile, four fiber pair self-healing ring 
connecting California and Washington in the western United States with two 
landing sites in Japan. The PC-l self-healing ring is designed to operate 
initially at 80 Gbps of service capacity, upgradable to a minimum of 160 Gbps. 
The first segment of PC-l commenced service in December 1999 and the full 
system is anticipated to be completed in July 2000. 

Global Access Ltd. 

GAL is an approximately 1,000 mile fiber optic terrestrial system in Japan 
that, among other things, will connect the PC-l cable stations with TOkyo, 
Osaka and NagoY!1, Japan. The first 'phase of GAL's development was completed in 
Decemb~r 1999, with the full system anticipated to be completed by the third 
quarter of 2000. 

Hutchison Global Crossing 

Hutchison Global Crossing owns and operates a building-to-building fixed­
line telecommunications network in Hong Kong and a number of Internet-related 
assets. The fiber optic network as of December 1999 extended over~4eO miles 
and is expected to be eXpanded during 2000. In addition, any fixed-line 
telecommunications activities that Hutchison Whampoa pursues in China will be 
carried out by the joint venture. 
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Mid-Atlantic Crossing 

MAC is an approximately 4.700 mile two fiber pair self-healing ring 
connecting New York. the Caribbean and Florida. MAC connects to AC via its 
cable station in Brookhaven. New York. to NAC via its cable stations in 
Brookhaven and in Hollywood. Florida and to SAC and PAC via its cable station 
in St. Croix. United States Virgin Islands. This system is being designed to 
operate initially at 20 Gbps of service capacity. upgradable to a minimum of 
40 Gbps. MAC commenced service in January 2000. with the full system 
anticipated to be completed during 2000. 

East Asia Crossing 

EAC will be an approximately 11.000 mile terrestrial and undersea cable 
system. Phase I of which will link Japan. Taiwan. South Korea and Hong Kong. 
and Phase II of which is expected to further link Singapore. Malaysia and the 
Philippines. EAC is being designated to operate initially at 80 Gbps of 
service capacity. upgradable to a minimum of 1.200 Gbps. The first segment of 
EAC's development. linking Japan and Hong Kong. is expected to be completed by 
December 2000. with the full Phase I system anticipated to be completed by 
June 2001. 

Pan American Crossing 

PAC will be an approximately 6.000 mile two fiber pair cable system 

connecting California. Mexico. Panama. Venezuela and the Caribbean. PAC will 

interconnect with PC- 1 and NAC through our ~anding station in Grover Beach. 

California. with MAC through our landing station in St. Croix. United States 

Virgin Islands and with SAC through our landing station in Fort Amador. 

Panama. PAC is being designed to operate initially at 20 Gbps of service 

capacity. upgradable to a minimum of 40 Gbps. PAC is anticipated to commence 

service during 2000. 


In connection with PAC. we own a 49' interest in Global Crossing Landing 
Mexicana. S. de R.L. de C.V .• a joint venture company jointly owned with an 
affiliate of Bestel. S.A. de C.V .• that will provide approximately 2.200 miles 
of terrestrial connectivity in Mexico and connect to the PAC system. 

South American Crossing 

SAC will be an approximately 9.900 mile undersea and 1.500 mile terrestrial 
fiber optic network directly linking the major cities of South America through 
MAC and PAC to the United States. Mexico. Central America. the Caribbean. Asia 
and Europe. We plan to build SAC in three phases. The first two phases. 
providing Argentina and Brazil with connectivity to the Global Crossing 
Network. are scheduled to commence service in the fourth quarter of 2000. The 
final phase. completing the loop around the continent. is scheduled for 

,completion in the first quarter of 2001. Initially. SAC is expected to have a 
capacity of 40 Gbps and to be upgradable to a minimum of 80 Gbps. 

The undersea portion of SAC will constitute a state-of-the-art four-fiber 
pair. self-healing ring. expected to connect to landing sites at St. Croix; 
Fortaleza. Rio de Janeiro and Santos. Brazil; Las Toninas. Argentina; 
Valparaiso. Chile; Lurin. Peru; Buenaventura. Colombia; and Fort Amador. 
Panama. Terrestrial segments are expected to connect to most major South 
American cities. including Rio de Janeiro. Sao Paulo. Buenos Aires. Santiago. 
Lima. Cali and Bogota. The SAC ring is expected to be completed on its 
southern-most end by a terrestrial link across the Andes between Las Toninas 
and Valparaiso. The PAC system from Panama to St. Croix is expected to 
complete the ring. 

Additional Busi,ness Opportunities 

In addition to the core components of the Globa~ Crossing Network. we also 

intend from tim~ to time to make strategic investmen~s and other contractual 

arrangements to better enable us to expand our offerings of products and 

services. Some of these opportunities include: 
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NextWave. We have agreed to make an equity investment in NextWave Telecom 
Inc. as part of NextWave's plan,of bankruptcy reorganization, subject to 
certain conditions relating to NextWave's retaining communications licenses 
from the Federal Communications Commission. In addition, we have entered into 
a strategic services agreement with NextWave making us the preferred provider 
of backhaul, long distance backbone, web-hosting and other communications 
services to NextWave. NextWave plans to deploy a wireless telecommunications 
network specifically designed to provide next generation wireless services, 
including Internet access. 

Telergy. We have entered into an agreement with Telergy, Inc., under which 
we have acquired 96 strands of fiber throughout the New York area on Telergy's 
lOO-mile New York City network. In addition, the agreement provides us with an 
ownership position in Telergy and representation on its board of directors. 
Global Crossing and Telergy have also agreed to explore co-build opportunities 
in the northeastern united States and to seek to utilize the Telergy network 
as needed for redundancy and termination of Global crossing traffic in certain 
areas. 

Africa ONE. We have been selected to provide marine operations and to act as 
project manager of Africa ONE, an estimated $1.6 billion cable system 
consisting of a self-healing ring around the continent of Africa. We do not 
intend to make an equity investment in this system. 

Principal CUstomers 

Although we have greatly expanded the number of products and services that 
we offer to our customers·, our principal customers to date ha'Ve been licensed 
teleeommunications providers, including post: telephone and telegraph 
companies, Internet service providers and established and emerging 
telecommunications companies, that have purchased significant amounts of 
capacity on our systems worldwide. Significant customers in our 
telecommunications services segment include Deutsche Telekom, Mel Worldcom, 
Level 3· Communications, KPN Qwest, Teleglobe, Telia, British Telecom, Viatel 
and AT&T. In addition, the largest of our web hosting customers include 
Yahool, The Motley Fool, Ziff-Davis, MP3.com and eToys. 

Principal Suppliers 

-our principal suppliers are the companies that are constructing the various 
cable systems that comprise the Global Crossing Network. Tyco Submarine 
Systems Ltd. ("TSSL") completed construction of AC-l~ is responsible for the 
design and installation of PAC; together with Alcatel, is responsible for 
design and installation of MAC; and, together with Kokusai Denshin Denwa­
Submarine Cable Systems (NKOD-SCS·) las a subcontractor), is responsible for 
design and installation of PC-l. Alcatel is responsible for the design and 
construction of SAC, while KOD-SCS is responsible for the design and 
construction of the first phase of. EAC. We utilize multiple suppliers for 
terrestrial systems. 

Competition 

Telecommunications Services 

The telecommunications industry is highly competitive. Many of our existing 
and potential competitors, particularly in our telecommunications services 
markets, compete with significantly greater financial, personnel, marketing 
and other resources, and have other competitive advantages. 

The telecommunications industry is in a period of rapid technological 
evolution, marked by increasing fiber and satellite transmission capacity, new 
technologies and the introduction of new products and services. For instance, 
recent technological advances enable substantial increases in transmission 

.. 	 capacity of bot~ new and existing fiber, which could affect capacity supply 
and deQland. Also, the introduction of new products or emergence of new 
technologies may reduce the cost or increase the supply ~f.certain services 
similar to thos~ we provide. 
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High initial network cost and low marginal costs of carrying long distance 
traffic have led to a trend among non-facilities-based carriers to consolidate 
in order to achieve economies of scale. Such consolidation could result in 
larger, better-capitalized competitors. However, we believe that owning our 
own network will offer an advantage over carriers that lease network capacity. 

Increased consolidation and strategic alliances in the industry resulting
from the Tele~ommunications Act of 1996 (the "Telecom ActIO) have allowed 
significant new competitors to enter the industry, including local exchange 
carriers, previously prohibited from the inter-state market. 

In recent years, competition has increased dramatically in all areas of our 
communications services market. our primary competitors include Qwest, AT&T, 
Sprint and MCI WorldCom and foreign PTTs, all of whom have extensive 
experience in the long distance market. The impact of cOntinuing consolidation 
in the industry is uncertain. In addition, pursuant to the Telecom Act, local 
exchange carriers, including Bell Atlantic, have begun to enter the long 
distance market in their home service areas. 

As we expand our business into Internet protocol services, we are also 
competing with a wide range of cOmpanies that provide web hosting, Internet 
access and other Internet protocol products and services. Significant 
competitors include IBM, GTE, UUNet (a subsidiary of MCI WorldCom), Digex and 
Exodus. In li!-ddition, many smaller companies have entered the market for web­
based services. 

The routes addressed by our systems are currently served by several cable 
systems as well as satellites. Primary future sources of transatlantic 
competition for us may result from, among others, (1) TAT-14, a transatlantic 
cable system which is being developed by its consortium members, including 
British Telecom, AT&T, France Telecom and Deutsche Telekom, (2) Flag Atlantic­
1, a transatlantic system which is being developed by Flag Telecom and Global 
Telesystems Group Inc., (3) a transatlantic cable system being developed by 
Level 3 (the other half of the cable we are co-building as AC-2)i and (4) 
Hibernia, a transatlantic cable system being developed by Worldwide Fiber Inc. 

Similarly, we expect to face competition in the transpacific market from, 
among others, (1) the China-U.S. Cable Network, a transpacific system being 
developed as a "private cable system" by fourteen large carriers, including 
SBC Communications Inc., MCI WorldCom Inc., AT&T and Sprint, most of which 
have traditionally sponsored consortium cables and (2) the Japan-U.S; Cable 
Network, a transpacific system being developed by a consortium of major 
telecommunications carriers, including MCI WorldCom Inc., AT&T, Kokusai 
Denshin Denwa Co. Ltd., Nippon Telegraph and Telephone Corp., Cable & Wireless 
and GTE. 

In addition, we will face competition on PEC, our trans-European network. 
There are several carriers, including Viatel, KPN-Qwest, MCI WorldCom, Inc., a 
joint venture between Deutsche Telekom and France Telecom, British Telecom. 
Global Telesystems Group and a joint venture between Level 3 and COLT Telecom 
Group pIc, which are currently planning or building trans-European network 
assets. 

We also face competition for our SAC network in South America. At least six 
other systems are planned to be completed in the region by the third quarter 
of 2001, including two consortium cables (Americas-2 and Atlantis-2}i 
Atlantica-1, a ring network being constructed by GlobeNet connecting 
Venezuela, Brazil, and (through terrestrial cables) Argentina to North 
America; and SAm-1, a ring system being constructed by Telefonica S.A. and 
TSSL connecting Brazil, Argentina, Chile, Peru and Colombia to the United 
States. In addition, we may face competition from existing and planned 
regional systems and satellites on our ~C and PAC routes, where. entrants are 
~ing for purchases from a small but rapidly growing customer base. 

In a4dition to the systems mentioned above, several other regional and 
global systems are being developed, most notably by TSSLj which.has recently 
announced its pl~s to build a worldwide cable netwo~k, and Project OXygen, a 
global system being evaluated by the CTR Group, Ltd. 
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In the United States, there are several facilities-based long distance fiber 
optic networks competing with our NAC cable system, including those of AT&T, 
Sprint, MCl WorldCom, Qwest, GTE, Broadwing Communications, Level 3 
Communications and Williams Communications. 

Installation and Maintenance Services 

Although Global Marine Systems is the world's largest undersea cable 
installation and maintenance company, with approximately 25% of the industry's 
total vessels, it faces potential competition not only from existing markec 
participants but also from potential new entrants. There are currently three 
other major supply companies in the undersea cable industry: TSSL, Alcatel and 
KDD-SCS. Pirelli also has a presence in the industry, and there are a number 
of smaller suppliers which have focused primarily on regional routes or non­
repeatered systems. It is unclear whether TSSL will continue to provide 
significant installation and maintenance services to others following its 
announcement that it is constructing its own worldwide cable network. 

ILEC Services 

We face many competitors in the provision of equipment and facilities used 
in connection with our local exchange networks, as this market has become 
increasingly competitive in recent years'. The market for the provision of 
local services itself is now competitive in Rochester, New York, as a .result 
of the Open Market Plan, and the Telecom Act is likely to result in 
significantly greater competition in other markets. The Company's telephone 
properties outside the Rochester, New York, area are experiencing competition 
in limited areas. 

Long distance companies largely access their end user customers through 
interconnection with local exchange companies. These long distance companies 
pay access fees to the local exchange companies for these services. The 
provision of access services in Rochescer and elsewhere by our ILEC services 
segment is considered to be competitive. 

Regulation 

OUr submarine and terrestrial fiber optic cable systems and 
telecommunications services are subject to regulation at the federal, stace, 
and local levels in the united States, as well as regulation by regulatory 
agencies in the various foreign countries in which we have facilities or 
operations. 

REGULATION IN THE UNITED STATES 

Federal Regulation 

The Federal Communications Commission (OFCC") regulates the interstate and 
international telecommunications facilities and services of telecommunications 
common carriers. Specifically, common carriers must comply with the 
requirements of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended by the .Telecom Act. 
Implementation of the Telecom Act is subject to various federal and state 
rulemaking and judicial procedures; therefore, the effects of the Telecom Act 
on us cannot be accurately predicted. 

We have obtained authority from the FCC to provide international _ 
telecommunications services asa non-dominant carrier on a facilities-based 
and resale basis. We also have obtained cable landing licenses that permit us 
to land and operate submarine cable systems in U.S. territory. Domestically, 
our subsidiaries provide local serVices as authorized CLECs in 34 states 
(including Washington D.C.). Other subsidiaries are certificated as ILECs in 
13 states. 

'The scope of our activities in the United States makes us subject to 
varying, and sometimes conflicting, regulation. We are treated as non-dominant 
for our interstate and international operations. :F.or local exchange services, 
some of our subsidiaries are treated as ILECs and others as CLECs. Generally 
speaking, the FCC imposes a greater degree of regulation on ILECs and other 
dominant providers and less regulation on CLECs 

II 
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and other carriers without market power. The issues discussed below may have 
positive effects on certain of our subsidiaries and negative effects on other 
subsidiaries, and, thus, the net effect on us cannot be accurately predicted. 

The intent of the Telecom Act is to increase competition in the u.s. 
telecommunications market. To achieve this goal, the Telecom Act seeks to open 
local access markets to competition by requiririg ILECs to permit 
interconnection to their networks and imposing various other obligations on 
them. 

Interconnection. In August 1996, the FCC released its First Report and Order 
on interconnection, which established rules for the implementation of the 
Telecom Act's obligations. In July 1997, the U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals for 
the Eighth Circuit vacated portions of the FCC's decision. On January 25, 
1999, the United States Supreme Court reversed, and affirmed the FCC's 
authority to promulgate rules governing pricing, found that the FCC had 
authority to promulgate a "pick and choose" rule for interconnection, and 
upheld most of the FCC's rules governing access to unbundled network elements. 
The Court remanded to the FCC the issue of which network elements must be 
unbundled by ILECs. on remand, the FCC retained most of its original list of 
network elements to be unbundled, but eliminated the requirements that ILECs 
provide unbundled access to (i) local switching for customers with four or 
more lines in the most densely populated parts of the top 50 Metropolitan 
Statistical Areas, (ii) operator services, and (iii) directory assistance. The 
rules governing the pricing, terms, and conditions of interconnection 
agreements remain unsettled, and the scope of our interconnection rights and 
obligations, both as an ILEC and a CLEC, may change in ways that are not 
foreseeable. 

Unbundling and Collocation. In March 1999, the FCC required ILECs to offer 
unbundled loops and collocation on more favorable terms than were available 
previously. The FCC order permits collocation of equipment that can be used to 
provide advanced data services, such as Digital Subscriber Line services, and 
requires ILECs to permit ncageless" collocation by CLECs. The FCC deferred 
action on its proposal to permit ILECs to offer advanced data services through 
separate affiliates and to free those affiliates from some of the obligations 
of the Telecom Act. 

universal Service. The Telecom Act required the FCC to restructure the 
manner in which universal service fund payments are established and 
distributed, and the FCC has significantly expanded the federal universal 
service subsidy regime to include low-income consumers. We are required to 
contribute to these programs based on our interstate and international revenue 
from. end-user telecommunications services. Contribution rates change 
quarterly. CUrrently, the contribution rate is 5.877% of interstate and 
international end-user telecommunications revenue. We are unable to specify 
the amount of any universal service contributions that we will be required to 
make in future years. 

Reciprocal Compensation. Under the Telecom Act, a local exchange carrier 
that terminates calls to customers on its network is entitled to be 
compensated by the local exchange carrier of the originating customer. Some 
ILECs have taken the position that compensation is not owed for inbound calls 
to Internet Service Providers (IIIspsn) on the grounds that this type of 
traffic is not local and, thus, not covered by the terms of existing 
interconnection agreements. As a result, some ILECs have threatened-to 
withhold, and in some cases have withheld, compensation to CLECs for such 
calls. The FCC has requested comments on the rules that it should adopt to 
govern compensation for ISP-bound traffic. Comments have been filed by 
interested parties and a decision is expected in the first quarter of 2000. We 
cannot accurately predict how the FCC will rule or what impact that rule may. 
have on future interconnection negotiations. 

~ an ILEC in. New York, we currently are- required to pay significant 
reciprocal compensation payments for inbound calls to ISPs. The state public 
utility conunissions ("PUCs") of Pennsylvania, Illinoisy an"- MilllJesota, states 
in which we also operate ILECs, also have concluded that reciprocal 
compensation is owed for ISP-bound calls. Any reciprocal compensation payments 
in-those states are not material to our operations. We cannot predict whether 
the amounts of our reciprocal compensation payments in these or other states 
will change in the future. 
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Access Charges. Our coses to provide long distance services and our revenue 
from providing local services are affected by ongoing substantial changes in 
the "access chargeR rates imposed by ILECs on long distance carriers for 
origination and termination of long distance calls over local facilities. 

Tone increased pricing flexibility of "price cap ILECs" (i.e. ILECs subject 
to the FCC's access charge price cap rules), such as our Frontier ILEC 
subsidiaries, may have an adverse impact on our interstate access costs if not 
properly implemented by ILECs and enforced by the FCC, but could also make it 
easier for price cap ILECs to offer reduced access charge rates in markets 
subject to competition. The FCC is continuing to examine further access charge 
changes, including granting further pricing flexibility to price cap ILECs. 

Tariffing and Filing Requirements. Non-dominant carriers must file tariffs 
with the FCC stating the rates, terms, and conditions of their interstate and 
international services. Tone FCC also imposes reporting and filing requirements 
on such carriers. We must file periOdic reports regarding our interstate and 
international circuits and the deployment of network facilities. Traffic and 
revenue reports and universal service contribution worksheets also must be 
filed. Carriers also must obtain prior approval from or give notice to the FCC 
of certain transfers of control and assignments of operating authorizations, 
as well as certain affiliations with foreign carriers. In addition, certain 
operating and services agreements with dominant foreign carriers must be filed 
with the FCC. 

Submarine cables. In connection with the construction and operation of our 
submarine cable systems, we have obtained cable landing licenses for the AC-1, 
PC-1, MAC, PAC and SAC systems. Tonese licenses give us authority to construct 
and land our submarine cables in the United States. In each case, the license 
permits the operation of the cable on a non-common carrier basis. Each of our 
cable landing licenses is valid for a period of 25 years from its grant. We 
are subject to various FCC reporting and filing requirements as the result of 
our holding of these cable landing licenses. 

State Regulation 

In addition to regulation by the FCC, the intrastate services of each of our 
local telephone service companies are regulated by the PUCs of the respective 
states in which each subsidiary operates with respect to such issues as 
prices, service quality, the issuance of securities, and the construction of 
facilities. To provide intrastate services, we generally must obtain a 
certificate of public convenience and necessity from the appropriate PUC and 
comply with state requirements for telecommunications utilities. The level of 
regulation imposed by state PUCs varies. Generally, 'however, ILECs are 
regulated more heavily than competitive providers. Our subsidiaries are 
certificated as ILECs in 13 states: New York, Alabama, Florida, Georgia, 
Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Ohio, Pennsylvania, 
and Wisconsin. Other subsidiaries provide competitive local services in 34 
states (including Washington D.C.). 

A number of states in which we have local or long distance operations are 
conducting proceedings related to the rules under which carriers may operate 
in an increasingly competitive environment. The issues that the PUCs are 
examining include unbundling of local network elements, local interconnection 
obligations, dialing parity for intra-LATA (or short-haul) toll traffic, local 
number portability, resale of local exchange service and universal service. We 
cannot predict hGW these proceedings will ultimately he resolved, nor when 
decisions will be issued. 

Open Market Plan. OUr Frontier sUbsidiary in Rochester, New York began its 
sixth year of operations under the Open Market Plan in January 2000. The Open 
Market Plan promotes telecommunications competition in the Rochester, New York 
marketplace by providing for (i) interconnection of competing local networks 
including reciprocal compensation for terminating traffic, (ii) equal access 
to network databases, (iii) access to local telephone numbers, (iv) service 
provider telephone number portability, and (v) certai~.who~esal~ discounts to 
resellers of local services. 
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During the operation of the Open Market Plan, we are regulated under pure 
price cap regulation rather than rate-of-return regulation. Planned rate 
reductions of S2l.0 million. (the "Rate Stabilization Plan") are being 
implemented for Rochester area consumers, including $l8.0 million of 
reductions that occurred through 1999, and an additional Sl.5 million which 
commenced in January 2000. Rates charged for basic residential and business 
telephone service may not be increased during the seven-year period of the 
Plan. We are allO\lled to raise prices on certain enhanced products such as 
Caller ID and call forwarding. 

On August 25, 1999, the New ¥ork State Public Service Commission ("N¥SPSC") 
solicited comments regarding our Rochester local exchange subsidiary's
financial condition, earnings and service quality, competition in the 
Rochester market, and the terms and conditions of the Open Market Plan. 
Settlement discussions in this NYSPSC proceeding have resulted in a Joint 
Proposal for Open Market Plan Continuation and Modification (the "Joint 
Proposal"), which is subject to NYSPSC review and approval. If approved, our 
Frontier ILEC subsidiary in New York will (1) remain under "price cap" 
regulation through 2002 (and possibly for an additional two years); (ii) be 
required to improve specified elements of service quality and to offer certain 
additional services; (iii) be subject to increased potential penalties related 
to service targets; and (iv) be required to lower certain residential and 
commercial service rates. The impact of the Joint Proposal, if adopted, will· 
not have a material adverse effect on Global Crossing as a whole. The NYSPSC 
also has issued orders on other regulatory issues that affect our· New ¥ork 
Frontier subsidiaries, related to service quality, staff allocations, 
provisions, and relations with other carriers. 

Dividend Policy. The Open Market Plan prohibits the payment of dividends by 
Frontier Telephone of Rochester, Inc. ("FTR"), to Frontier Corporation ("FRO") 
if (i) FTR's senior debt is downgraded to "BBB" by Standard" Poor's ("S&P"), 
or the equivalent rating by other rating agencies, or is placed on credit 
watch for such a downgrade, or (iiI a service quality penalty is imposed under 
the Open Market Plan. Dividend payments to FRO also require FTR's directors to 
certify that such dividends will not impairFTR'a service quality or its 
ability to finance its short and long-term capital needs on reasonable terms 
while maintaining an S&P debt rating target of "A". 

In 1999, FTR achieved the required service levels, but a previously imposed 
temporary restriction on dividend payments from FTR to FRO will remain in 
place until the NYSPSC is satisfied that FTR's service levels demonstrate that 
FTR has rectified the service deficiency. In addition, on June 2, 1999, 
Moody's and S&P downgraded FTR's senior debt ratings from A1/AA- to Baa2/BBB, 
respectively. These ratings actions were a result of the announced merger 
between FRO and Global Crossing Ltd., and did not reflect any change in the 
financial condition or creditworthiness of FTR. These actions triggered an 
additional dividend restriction for FTR, which will be in effect until either 
the NYSPSC approves the payment of dividends or FTR's senior debt rating rises 
above BBB (for S&P) or the equivalent for other rating agencies. On December 
22, 1999, S"&P' downgraded FTR' s senior debt rating to BB+ and, on January 18, 
2000, Duff " ~helps downgraded FTR's senior debt rating to A. Both rating 
agencies stated that their actions reflected their views that a large 
separation in ratings could not be maintained between an operating, subsidiary 
and its paren~. Accordingly, it remains uncertain when the restriction on 
payment of dividends from FTR to FRO will be lifted. 

Local Regulation 

Our activities also are subject to local regulation, including compliance 
with franchise obligations, building codes, and local licensing requirements. 
Such regulations vary widely by jurisdiction. To construct and install 
transmission facilities, we may need to obtain rights-of-way over public and 
p~ivately o~ed land. 

I~TIO:tiAL iiEGuLATION 

Our construction and operation of telecommunications networks and our 
provision of teiecommunications services in foreign countries require us to 
obtain a variety of permits, licenses, and authorizations-in the ordinary 
course of business. In addition to telecommunications licenses and 
authorizations, we may be required to obtain environmental, construction, 
zoning and other permits, licenses, and authorizations. The construction and 
operation of our facilities and our provision of telecommunications services 
may subject us to regulation in other countries at the national, state, 
provincial, and local levels. 
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Europe 

In connection with the construction and operation of the PEC network, we 
have obtained telecommunications licenses and authorizations in Belgium, 
France, Germany, Ireland, Italy, the Netherlands, Spain, SWeden, SWitzerland 
and the United Kingdom. No telecommunications authorization is required for us 
to construct and operate facilities or provide services in Denmark. We expect 
to obtain additional telecommunications licenses and authorizations in Europe 
in the ordinary course of business. 

Our activities in Europe are subject to regulation by the EUropean Union and 
national regulatory authorities. The level of regulation and the regulatory 
obligations and rights that attach to us as a licensee in each country vary. 
In all countries, we, as a competitive entrant, are currently considered to 
lack significant market power ("SMpU), which generally subjects us to less 
regulation than providers that are deemed to possess SMP. As we complete 
construction of the PEC network and begin providing services in EUrope, we 
anticipate that the regulatory obligations imposed on us will increase. In 
addition, we may be required to address many of the "local competition" issues 
that we face as a competitive provider in the united States, such as 
interconnection, collocation, unbundling, reciprocal compensation, and resale. 
The laws and regulations of the Member States of the EO on these issues vary. 
Various of the Member States have opened ~r concluded public consultations 
relating to these and other Rlocal competition" issues. We cannot predict what 
decisions will be made by the Ell and the Member States in these ongoing 
proceedings or the effects of any those decisions on our operations. 

Asia 

We are increasing the scope of our activities in Asia. In connection with 
the construction and operation of the GAL network in Japan, GAL has received a 
Japanese Type I telecommunications license. In addition, on February 18, 2000, 
our subsidiary, Global Crossing Japan, rec.eived a Special Type II license in 
Japan, which authorizes us to provide a variety of international 
telecommunications services in Japan. As a Japanese telecommunications 
licensee, we are subject to a range of regulatory requirements. In late 1999, 
the Japanese Ministry of Post and Communications (the ttMPT-) opened a public 
consultation on simplifying the telecommunications regulatory process. We have 
submitted comments in that proceeding. We cannot accurately predict whether or 
when a decision will be issued, whether the MPT will simplify the regulatory 
regime, or the potential effects of such an action. 

On February 1, 2000, Asia Global Crossing Hong KOng Ltd. (MAGC-HKW) was 
advised by a Letter of Intent from the Hong Kong telecommunications regulator 
that, upon the satisfaction of certain conditions, AGC-RK will be issued an 
External Fixed Telecommunications Network Services CltEFTNS") license to land 
.the EAC cable and to provide international telecommunications facilities and 
services in Hong Kong. Our Hutchison Global Crossing ("HGC-) joint venture is 
authorized to construct and operate local and international fixed-line 
telecommunications networks and to provide domestic and international 
telecommunications services in Hong KOng. As a result of the HGC venture and 
our EFTNS license, we are subject to regulatory oversight and supervision in 
Hong Kong. 

The status of liberalization of the telecommunications regulatory regimes of 
the Asian countries in which we intend to operate varies. Some countries allow 
full competition in the telecommunications sector, while others limit 
competition for most services. Most of the countries in the region have 
committed to liberalizing their telecommunications regimes and opening their 
telecommunications markets to foreign investment as part of the World Trade 
Organization ("WID") Agreement on Telecommunications. China also has committed 

" 	 to liberalizing..its telecommunications markets and reducing foreign ownership 
limita~ions if it is admitted to the WID. We cannot be certain whether this 
liberalizing trend will continue or accurately predict-tae.pace.and scope of 
liberalization. It is possible that one or more of the countries in which we 
operate will slow or halt the liberalization of its telecommunications 
markets. The effect of such an action on.us cannot be accurately predicted. 
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Latin America 

In Latin America, we currently are constructing the MAC, PAC and SAC 
systems. In connection with the construction of these cable systems, we have 
obtained cable landing licenses and/or telecommunications licenses in 
Argentina, Panama, and the United States. Applications have been filed in 
Mexico, Venezuela and Brazil and we expect to file applications in additional 
Latin American countries in the ordinary course of business. 

As in Asia, the status of liberalization of the telecommunications. markets 
of Latin America varies. All of the countries in which we currently plan to 
have operations are members of the WTO and have committed to liberalizing 
their telecommunications markets and lifting foreign ownership restrictions. 
Some countries now permit competition for all telecommunications facilities 
and services, while others allow competition for some facilities and services, 
but restrict competition for other services. Some countries in which we 
operate or intend to operate currently impose limits on foreign ownership of 
telecommunications carriers. We anticipate that we will be granted authority 
to land and operate our submarine cable systems in each of the countries in 
which they currently are expected to land. It is possible, however, that one 
or more of these countries will not grant authority to land a submarine cable 
or will impose "conditions that make landing and operating the cable 
commercially unfeasible. 

The telecommunications regulatory regimes of many Latin American countries 
are in the process of development. Many issues, such as regulation of 
incumbent providers, interconnection, unbundling of local loops, resale of 
telecommunications services, and pricing have not been addressed fully or at 
all. We cannot accurately predict whether or"how these issues will be resolved 
and their impact on our operations in Latin America. 

Employees 

As of December 31, 1999, we had approximately 12,400 employees. We consider 
our relations with our employees to'be good. 

Forward Looking Statements and Risk Factors 

We have included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K forward-looking 
statements that state our own or our management's intentions, beliefs, 
expectations or predictions for the future. Forward-looking statements are 
subject to a number of risks, assumptions and uncertainties which could cause 
our actual results to differ materially from those projected in the forward­
looking statements. The discussions set forth below constitute cautionary 
statements identifying important factors with respect to such forward-looking 
statements, including risks and uncertainties, that could cause actual results 
to differ materially from results referred to in the forward-looking 
statements. There can be no assurance that our expectations regarding any of 
these matters will be fulfilled. 

We cannot assure you of the successful integration of newly acquired 
businesses. We cannot assure you that the expected benefits will be 
achieved. 

Part of our growth strategy is to make selective strategic acquisitions of 
businesses operated by others. Achieving the benefits of these acquisitions 
will depend in part on the integration of those businesses with our business 
in an efficient manner. We cannot assure you that this will happen or that it 
will happen in a timely manner. Th~ consolidation of operations following 
these acquisitions will often require substantial attention from management. 
The diversion of management attention and any difficulties encountered in the 
transition and integration process could have a material adverse effect on the 
revenue, levels of expenses and operating results of the combined company. We 
cannot assure you that the combined company will realize any of the 
anticipated benefits of any acquisition. 
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It may be difficult to evaluate our business because we have a limited 
operating history. 

We were organized in March 1997 and, with the exception of our Frontier, 
Global Marine Systems and Racal Telecom subsidiaries, have a limited operating 
history. Because of this limited history and our rapid growth though 
successive acquisi~ions, it may be difficult for potential investors to 
evaluate the performance of our operations. In particular, comparisons of our 
results of operations from one period to another may not be fully indicative 
of our current ability to conduct our business. 

We may encounter difficulties in completing our cable systems currently 
under development. 

Our ability to achieve our strategic objectives will depend in large part 
upon the successful, timely and cost-effective completion of our cable systems 
currently under development, as well as on achieving substantial capacity 
sales on these systems once they become operational and on our other 
operational systems. The construction of these systems will be affected by a 
variety of factors, uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond 
our control, including: 

our ability to manage their construction effectively; 

our ability to obtain all construction and operating permits and 
licenses; 

third-party contractors performing their obligations on schedule; and 

our ability to enter into favorable construction contracts with a 
limited number of suppliers. 

These factors may significantly delay or prevent completion of one or more 
of our systems currently under development, which could have a material 
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

'We cannot assure you that each of these systems will be completed at the 
cost and in the time frame currently estimated by us, or even at all. Although 
we award contracts for construction of our systems to suppliers who in most 
cases are expected to be bound by a fixed-price construction cost schedule and 
to provide guarantees in respect of completiOn dates and system design 
specifications, we cannot assure you that the actual construction costs or the 
time required to complete these systems will not exceed our current estimates. 
These circumstances could have a material adverse effect on our business, 
financial condition and results of operations. 

Our revenue growth plan depends on product and service expansion. 

We intend to grow revenue and profits by: 

introducing new services and products; 

developing or acquiring additional cable systems; and 

upgrading capacity on our planned systems. 

Our inability to effect these expansions of our products and services could 
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and 
results of operations. 

We face competition which may reduce demand for our products and services. 

The international telecommunications industry is highly competitive. We 
compete primari~y on the basis of price, availability, service qUality and 
reliab~lity, customer service and the location of our systems and services. 
The ability of our competitors to provide comparable ~roducts and services at 
similar prices could have a material adverse effect on demand for our products 
and services. In addition, much of our planned growth is predicated upon the 
growth in demand for international telecommunications capacity and services. 
We cannot assure you that this anticipated demand growth will occur. 
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We are growing rapidly in a changing industry.
Our strategy is to be the premier provider of global broadband 

telecommunication services for both wholesale and retail customers. As a 
result of this aggressive strategy, we are experiencing rapid expansion and 
expect it to continue for the foreseeable future. This growth has increased 
our operating complexity. At the same time, the international 
telecommunications industry is changing rapidly due to, among other things: 

the easing of regulatory constraints; 

the privatization oJ established carriers; 

the expansion of telecommunications infrastructure; 

the growth in demand for bandwidth caused by expansion of Internet and 
data transmissions: . 

the globalization of the world's economies; and 

the changing technology for wired, wireless and satellite communication. 

We cannot assure you that we will succeed in adapting to the rapid changes 
in the international telecommunications industry. 

We may have difficulty in obtaining the additional financing requi~ co 
develop our business. 

In order to further implement our aggressive growth strategy, we anticipate 
that we will require substantial additional equity and debt financing. Under 
our business plan, we and our affiliates expect to require significant 
financing by the end of 2000 to build out the Global Crossing Network and 
provide additional services to our customers. Obtaining additional financing 
will be subject to a number of factors, including, without limitation, the 
following: 

the state of operations of our company; 

our actual or anticipated results of operations, financial condition and 
cash flows; 

investor sentiment towards companies with substantial international" operations; and 

generally prevailing market conditions. 
If additional funds are raised through the issuance of equity securities, 

the percentage ownership of our then current shareholders will be reduced, and 
the new equity securities may have rights, preferences or privileges senior to 
those of the holders of our common stock. If additional funds are raised 
through the issuance of debt securities, these securities would have some 
rights, preferences and privileges senior to those of the holders of our 
common stock, and the terms of this debt could impose restrictions on our 
operations and'result in significant interest expense to us. In the event that 
we are unable to raise sufficient finanCing on satisfactory terms and 
conditions in the future, our company would be adversely affected. 

We face price declines that could adversely affect our business. 

Advances in fiber optic technology have resulted in significant per circuit 
price declines in the fiber optic cable transmission industry. 'Recent changes
in technology caused prices for telecommunications capacity and services to go 
down even further. If there is less demand than we project or a b~9ger drop in 
prices than we project, there could be a material adverse effect on our 
business, financial condition and results of operations. We cannot assure you, 
even if our projections with respect to those factors are realized, that we 
will be able to implement our strategy or that our strategy will be successful 
in the rapidly evolving telecommunications market. 

" 

We cbnfront several system risks that could aff~ct q~ operations. 
Each of our systems is and will be subject to the risks inherent in a large­

scale, complex fiber optic telecommunications system~ The operation, 
a~inistration, maintenance and repair of our systems requires the 
coordination and integration of sophisticated and highly specialized hardware 
and software technologies and equipment located throughout the world. We 
cannot assure you that our systems will continue to function as e~~cted in a 
cost-effective manner. The failure of the hardware or software to function as 
required could render a cable system unable to perform at design 
specifications. 
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Each of our undersea systems either has or is expected to have a design life 
of generally 25 years, while each of our terrestrial systems either has or is 
expected to have a design life of at least 20 years. The economic lives of 
these systems, however, are expected to be shorter than their design lives, 
and we cannot assure you of the actual useful life of any of these systems. A 
number of factors will ultimately affect the useful life of each of our 
systems, including, among other things: 

quality of construction; 

unexpected damage or deterioration; and 

technological or economic obsolescence. 

Failure of any of our systems to operate for its full design life could have 
a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of 
operations. 

OUr success depends on our ability to maintain, hire and successfully 
integrate key personnel. 

OUr future success depends on the skills, experience and efforts of our 
officers and key technical and sales employees. In particular, our senior 
management has significant experience in the telecommunications and Internet 
industries, and the loss of any of them could negatively affect our ability to 
execute our business strategy. In addition, we cannot assure you that we will 
be able to integrate new management into our-existing operations. Competition 
for these individuals is intense, and we may not be able to attract, motivate 
and retain highly skilled qualified personnel. We do not have "key person­
life insurance policies covering any of our employees. 

We face risks associated with international operations. 

Because we will derive substantial revenue from international operations and 
intend to have substantial physical assets in several jurisdictions along our 
routes, our business is subject to risks inherent in international operations, 
including: 

political and economic conditions; 

unexpected changes in regulatory environments; 

exposure to different legal standards; and 

difficulties in staffing and managing operations. 

We have not experienced any material adverse effects with respect to our 
foreign operations arising from these factors. However, problems associated 
with these risks could arise in the future. Finally, managing operations in 
multiple jurisdictions may place further strain on our ability to manage our 
overall growth. 

Because many of our customers deal predominantly in foreign currencies, we 
may be exposed to exchange rate risks and our net income may suffer due to 
currency translations. 

We primarily invoice for our services in U.S. dollars; however, most of our 
customers and many of our prospective customers derive their revenue in 
currencies other than U.S. dollars. The obligations of customers with 
substantial revenue in foreign currencies may be subject to unpredictable and 
indeterminate increases in the event that such currencies devalue relative to 
the U.S. dollar., Furthermore, such customers may become subject to exchange 
contro~ regulations restricting the conversion of their revenue currencies 
into U.S. dollars. In such event, the affected custome~s-may not be ible to 
pay us in U.S. d~llars. In addition, where we invoic~ for our services in 
currencies other than U.S. dollars, our net income may suffer due to currency 
translations in the event that such currencies devalue re14tive to the U.S. 
dollar and we do not elect to enter into currency hedging arrangements in 
respect of those payment obligations. 
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Our operations are subject to regulation in the United States and abroad 

and require us to obtain and maintain a number of governmental licenses and 
permits. If we fail to comply with those regulatory requirements or obtain 
and maintain those licenses and permits, we may not be able to conduct our 
business. 

In the united States, our intrastate, interstate, and international 
telecommunications networks and services are subject to regulation at the 
federal, state, and local levels. We also have facilities and provide services 
in numerous countries in Europe, Latin America, and Asia. Our operations in 
those countries are subject to regulation at the national level and, in some 
cases, at the state, provincial, and local levels. 

OUr interstate and international operations in the United States are 
governed by the Communications Act of 1934, as amended by the Telecom 
Act. There are several ongoing proceedings at the FCC and in the federal 
courts regarding the implementation of various aspects of the Telecom 
Act. The outcomes of these proceedings may affect the manner in which we 
are permitted to provide our services in the United States and may have 
a material adverse effect on our operations. 

The intrastate activities of our local telephone service companies are 
regulated by the states in which they do business. A number of states in 
which we operate are conducting proceedings related to the provision of 
services in a competitive telecommunications environment. These 
proceedings may affect the manner in which we are permitted to provide 
our services in one or more states and may have a material adverse 
effect on our operations. ' 

Our operations outside the united States are governed by the laws of the 
countries in which we operate. The regulation of telecommunications 
networks and services outside the united States varies widely. In some 
countries, the range of services that we are legally permitted to 
provide may be limited. In other countries, existing telecommunications 
legislation is in the process of development, is unclear or 
inconsistent, or is applied in an unequal or discriminatory fashion. our 
inability or failure to comply with the telecommunications laws and 
regulations of one or more of the countries in which we operate could 
result in the temporary or permanent suspension of operations in one or 
more countries. We also may be prohibited from entering certain 
countries at all or from providing all of our services in one or more 
countries. In addition, many of the countries in which we operate are 
conducting proceedings that will affect the implementation of their 
telecommunications legislation. We cannot be certain of the outcome of 
these proceedings. These proceedings may affect the manner in which we 
are permitted to provide our services in these countries and may have a 
material adverse effect on our operations. 

In the ordinary course of 'const'ructing our networks and providing our 
services we are required to obtain and maintain a variety of 
telecommunications and other licenses and authorizations in the 
countries in which we operate. We also must comply with a variety of 
regulatory obligations. our failure to obtain or maintain necessary 
licenses and authorizations, or to comply with the obligations imposed 
upon license-holders in one or more countries, may result in sanctions, 
including the revocation of authority to provide services in one or more 
countries. 

We depend on third parties for many functions. If the services of those 
third parties are not available to us, we may not be able to conduct our 
business. 

We depend and will continue to depend upon third parties to: 

cgnstruct some of our systems and provide equipment and maintenance; 

provide access to a number of origination an~ termiDaeion points of our 

systems in various jurisdictions; 

construct and operate landing stations in a number of those 

jurisdictions;

acquire rights of way; 

provide terrestrial capacity to our customers through contractual 

arrangements; and 

act as joint venture participants with regard to some of our current and 

potential future systems. 
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We cannot assure you that third parties will perform their contractual 
obligations or that they will not be subject to political or economic events 
which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition 
and results of operations. If they fail to perform their obligations, we may 
not be able to condUct our business. If any of our joint venture participants 
experiences a change in strategic direction such that their strategy regarding 
'our mutual joint venture diverges from our own, we may not be able to realize 
the benefits anticipated to be derived from'the joint venture. 

We have substantial leverage which may limit our ability to comply with the 
terms of our indebtedness and may restrict our ability to operate. 

Our significant indebtedness could adversely affect us by leaving us with 
insufficient cash to fund operations and impairing our ability to obtain 
addit:ional financing. The amount of our debt could have important consequences 
for our future, including, among other things: 

cash from operations may be insufficient to meet the principal and 
interest on our indebtedness as it becomes due; 

payments of principal and interest on borrowings may leave us with 
insufficient cash resources for our operations; and 

restrictive debt covenants may impair our ability to obtain additional 
financing. 

We have incurred a high level of debt. As of December 31,' 1999, we and our 
consolidated subsidiaries had a total of $8,051 million of total liabilities, 
including approximately $5,056 million in senior indebtedness, of which $1,295 
million was secured. As of such date, Global Crossing Ltd. additionally had 
outstanding cumulative convertible preferred stock with a face value of $1,650 
million. Our subsidiary, Global Crossing Holdings, also has mandatorily 
redeemable preferred stock outstanding with a face value of $500 million. In 
addition, our Pacific Crossing joint venture entered into an $850 million non­
recourse credit facility, under which it had incurred $750 million of 
indebtedness as of December 31, 1999. 

Our ability to repay our debt depends upon a number of factors, many of 
which are beyond our control. In addition, we rely on dividends, loan 
repayments and other intercompany cash flows from our subsidiaries to repay 
our obligations, Our operating subsidiaries have entered into a senior secured 
corporate credit facility. Accordingly, the payment of dividends from these 
operating subsidiaries and the making and repayments of loans and advances are 
subject to statutory, contractual and other restrictions. 

In addition, if we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow to meet our 

debt service requirements, we may have to renegotiate the terms of our long­

term debt. We cannot assure you that we would be able to renegotiate 

successfully those terms or refinance our indebtedness when required or that 

satisfactory terms of any refinancing would be available. If we were not able 

to refinance our indebtedness or obtain new financing under these 

circumstances, we would have to consider other options, such as: 


sales of some assets; 

sales of equity; 

negotiations with our lenders ,to restructure applicable indebtedness; or 

other options available to us under applicable law. 

Our principal shareholders may be able to influence materially the outcome 
'of shareholde~ votes. " 

As of March 3, 2000, Pacific Capital Group had an 1l~9a'_beneficial 
ownership interest in us. We have entered into various transactions with 
Pacific Capital Group and its affiliates and assumed 'the on-going development. 
of-some of our systems from an affiliate of Pacific Capital Group. Mr. Gary 
Winnick, chairman of our board of directors, controls Pacific Capital Group
and its subsidiaries. In addition, several of our other officers and directors 
are affiliated with Pacific Capital Group. Furthermore, as of Mareh'S, 2000, 
Canadian Imperial 
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Bank of Commerce had a 9.69' beneficial ownership interest in us. Canadian 

Imperial Bank of Commerce and its affiliates have acted as underwriter, lender 

or initial purchaser in several of our financial transactions in connection 

with the development and construction of our systems. Several members of our 

board of directors are employees of an affiliate of Canadian Imperial Bank of 

Commerce. 


As. of March 3, 2000, Pacific Capital Group and Canadian Imperial Bank of 

Commerce collectively beneficially owned 21.67' of the outstanding shares of 

our common stock. Accordingly, Pacific Capital Group and Canadian Imperial 

Bank of Commerce may be able to influence materially the outcome of matters 

submitted to a vote of our shareholders, including the election of directors. 


Officers and directors own a substantial portion of us and may have 
conflicts of interest. 

Our executive officers and directors have substantial equity interests in 

us. As of March 3, 2000, all our directors and executive officers as a group 

collectively beneficially owned 24.72% of our outstanding common stock, 

including shares beneficially owned by Pacific Capital Group and certain 

shares beneficially owned by Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce. Some of these 

individuals have also received amounts from us due to advisory services fees 

paid to Pacific Capital Group and its affiliates. 


Some of our directors and executive officers also serve as officers and 

directors of other companies. Additionally, some of our officers and directors 

are active investors in the telecommunications industry. Service as one of our 

directors or officers and as a director or officer of another company could 

create conflicts of interest when the director or officer is faced with 

decisions that could have different implications for us and the other company. 

A conflict of interest could also exist with respect to allocation of time and 

attention of persons who are our directors or officers and directors and 

officers of another company. The pursuit of these other business interests 

could distract these officers from pursuing opportunities on our behalf. These 

conflicts of interest could have a material adverse effect on our business, 

financial condition and results of operations. 


We cannot predict our future tax liabilities. 

We believe that a significant portion of the income derived from our 

undersea systems will not be subject to tax by any of (1) Bermuda, which 

currently does not have a corporate income tax, or (2) some other countries in 

which we conduct activities or in which our customers are located. However, we 

base this belief upon: 


the anticipated nature- and conduct of our business, which may change; 
and 

our understanding of our position under the tax laws of the various 
countries in which we have assets or conduct activities, which position 
is subject to review and possible challenge by taxing authorities and to 
possible changes in law, which may have retroactive effect. 

We cannot predict the amount of tax to which we may become subject and 

cannot be certain that any of these factors would not ~ve a material adverse 

effect on pur business, financial condition and results of operations. 


Our shareholders may be subject to Foreign Personal Holding Company, Passive 
Foreign Investment Company, Controlled Foreign Corporation and Personal 
Holding Company rules. . 

We believe that neither we nor any of our non-United States subsidiaries are 

a foreign personal holding company and do not expect that either we or any of 


" 	 our affiliates W~ll become a foreign personal holding company. However, we 
cannot assure you in this regard. If one of our shareholders is a united 
States'person and we or one of our non-united States subsi9iaries are 
classified as a foreign personal holding company, then that shareholder would 
be required to pay tax on its pro rata share of our or our relevant non-United 
States subsidiary's undistributed foreign personal holdin9-income. We intend 
to manage our affairs so as to attempt to avoid or minimize having income 
imputed to United States pe~sons under these rules, to the extent this 
management of our affairs would be consistent with our business gea~s, 
although we cannot assure you in this regard. 
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We believe that we are not a passive foreign investment company and do not 
expect to become a passive foreign investment company in the future. However, 
we cannot assure you in this regard. In addition, our expectations are based, 
in part, on interpretations of existing law that we believe are reasonable, 
but which have not been approved by any taxing authority. If we were a passive 
foreign investment company, then any of our shareholders that is a United 
States person could be liable to pay tax at the then prevailing rates on 
ordinary income plus an interest charge upon some distributions by us or when 
that shareholder sold our capital stock at a gain. 

Furthermore, additional tax considerations would apply if we or any of our 
affiliates were a controlled foreign corporation or a personal holding 
company. 

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

Our principal offices are located in leased premises in Hamilton, Bermuda, 
with corporate offices under lease in Beverly Hills, California; Morristown, 
New Jersey; and Rochester, New York. We also own or lease sales, 
administrative and support offices worldwide. In addition, our 
telecommunication services segment owns undersea cables crossing the Atlantic 
Ocean (AC-1 and AC-2); Pacific Ocean (SS% economic interest in PC-1); Eastern 
United States and Caribbean (MAC); South America (SAC); eastern Asia (EAC); 
and Western United States, Mexico, Central & South America and Caribbean 
(PAC); and primarily terrestrial cable systems connecting various cities 
within the united States (NIlC), Europe {PEC), Japan (GAL) and Hong Kong (HGC). 
Our telecommunications services segment also owns or leases numerous cable 
landing stations throughout the world related to these undersea and 
terrestrial cable systems. GlobalCenter media distribution centers incorporate 
web hosting infrastructure and are connected to the Company's international 
fiber optic network. Media distribution centers are "currently operational ,in 
leased premises in Sunnyvale and Anaheim, California; London, England; South 
Melbourne, Australia; Herndon, Virginia; and New York, New York. 

Our installation and maintenance services segment owns, leases and operates 
a fleet of vessels and submersible/remotely operated vehicles used in the 
planning, installation and maintenance of undersea fiber optic cable systems. 

Our ILEC services segment owns telephone properties which include: 
connecting lines between customers' premises and the central offices; central 
office switching equipment; buildings and land; and customer premise 
equipment. The connecting lines, including aerial and underground cable, 
conduit, poles, wires and microwave equipment, are located on public streets 
and highways or on privately owned land. We have permission to use these lands 
pursuant to local governmental consent or lease, permit, franchise, easement 
or other agreement. 

We believe that substantia~ly all of our existing properties are in good 
condition and are suitable for the condu,ct of our business. A security 
interest in some of these properties, in particular some of our undersea 
cables, has been granted to lenders providing financing for those systems 
under non-recourse facilities or to Global Crossing" generally under our 
corporate credit facility. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

On June 25, 1999, Frontier Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Global 
Crossing Ltd., was served with a summons and complaint in a lawsuit commenced 
in the New York State SUpreme Court, Monroe County by a Frontier shareholder 
alleging that Frontier and its Board of Directors had breached their fiduciary 
duties to shareholders by endorsing a definitive merger agreement with the 
Company without having adequately considered an alternative merger proposal 
made by Qwest Communications International ~ Inc. The lawsuit was framed as a 
purported class action brought on behalf of all shareholders of Frontier and 
sought unstated compensatory damages and injunctive reiief.compelling 
Frontier's boar~ to evaluate Frontier's suitability ~s a merger partner, to 
enhance Frontier's value as a merger candidate, to engage in discussions with 
Qwest about possible business combinations, to act indepenaently to protect 
the interests of Frontier shareholders, and to ensure that no conflicts of 
interest exist which would prevent maximizing value to shareholders. In July 
1999, 
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three additional lawsuits were commenced against Frontier in the New York 
State Supreme court on behalf of a number of individual shareholders seeking 
essentially identical relief. All four lawsuits were consolidated into a 
single proceeding pending in Rochester, New York. In February 2000, all four 
lawsuits were voluntarily withdrawn. 

On July 12, 1999 Frontier was served with a summons and complaint in a 
lawsuit commenced in New York State Supreme Court, New York County by a 
Frontier shareholder alleging that Frontier and its board breached their 
fiduciary duties by failing to obtain the highest possible acquisitiQn price 
for Frontier in the definitive merger agreement with Global crossing. The 
action has been framed as a purported class action and seeks compensatory 
damages and injunctive relief. The claims against Frontier were originally 
asserted in the same action as similar but separate claims against US WEST, 
Inc. However, t~e claims against Frontier have been severed from the US WEST 
claims. Global Crossing believes the asserted claims are without merit and is 
defending itself vigorously. 

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

Not applicable. 

24 

Copyright 2000 EDGAR Online. Illc. (ver 1.0112.003) Page 26 



......",;'-' 
GLOBAL CROSSING LTD -1O-K -A/Illua/ Report 	 Date Filed: 31/711000 

PART II 

ITEM 5. 	MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER 
MATTERS 

Price Range of Common Stock 

Our common stock began to trade on both the Nasdaq National Market ("NNW') 
and the _Bermuda Stock Exchange under the symbol "GBLX" following our Initial 
Public Offering (ltIPO") of common stock on August 14, 1998 at a per share 
price of $9.50. The table below sets forth, on a per share basis for the 
periods indicated, the high and low closing sales prices for the common stock 
as reported by the NNM. 

Price Range 

1999, 1998 

High Low High Low 

First Quarter, •....••.••••••.•....•.•.•••••••.• $56.75 $19.25 $ $ 
Second Quarter ••••••••••.•.•.•_•••••....•..••.•• $64.25 $39.05 $ $ 
Third Quarter (from August 14, 1998) •.••..••••• $41.88 $20.25 $12.75 $8.00 
Fourth Quarter •.••••••••_.: .•••••.••..•.••••••.• $55.75 $24.81 $23.50 $8.63 

The closing sale price of the common stock as reported by the NNM on March 
3, 2000 was $56 7/16. As of March 3, 2000, there were 29,665 holders of record 
of our common stock. 

Dividend Policy; Restriction on Payment of Dividends 

The Company does not anticipate paying cash dividends on our common stock in 
the foreseeable future. The terms of certain of our debt instruments also 
place limitations on our ability to pay dividends. Future dividends, if any, 
will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend upon, 
among other things, our operations, capital requirements and surplus; general
financial condition, contractual restrictions and such other factors as the 
Board of Directors may deem relevant. 

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities 

In 1999, the Company issued the following equity securities that were not 
registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended: 

(a) 2,600,000 shares of 7\ CUmulative Convertible Preferred Stock at a 

liquidation preference of $250.00 per share were issued on December 15, 

1999 by GCL for net proceeds of approximately $630 million and sold to 

Salomon Smith Barney, Merrill Lynch & Co., Goldman, Sachs & Co., Chase 

Securities :Inc., Morgan Stanley Dean Witter, CIBC World Markets, Donald, 

Lufkin & Jenrette and Credit Suisse First Boston as initial purchasers. 

Each share of preferred stock is convertible into 4.6948 shares of GCL 

common stock, based on a conversion price of $53.25 per share; and 


(b) 10,000,000 shares of 6 3/8' CUmulative Convertible Preferred Stock at a 
liquidation preference of $100.00 per share were issued on November 5, 1999 
by GCL for net proceeds of approximately $969 million and sold to Merrill 
Lynch & Co., Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Salomon Smith Barney as initial 
purchasers. Each share of preferred stock is convertible into 2.2222 shares 
'of GeL common, !$tock, based on a conversion price of $45.00 per share. 

Each'series of GCL preferred stock issued during. 1999 was resold only to 
institutional investors that are "qualified institutional buyers" within the 
meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended lthe 
"Securities Act"), and was issued in reliance upon an exemption from the 
registration provisions of the Securities Act set forth in Section 4(2} 
thereof relative to transactions by an issuer not involving any public 
offering ,or the rules ad regulations thereunder. 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

Global Crossing selected historical financial information 

The table below shows selected historical financial information for Global 
Crossing. This information has been prepared using the consolidated financial 
statements of Global Crossing as of the dates indicated and for each of the 
years ended December 31. 1999 and 1998 and for the period from March 19. 1997 
(Date of Inception) to December 31, 1997. 

In reading the following selected historical financial information, please 
note the following: 

The statement of operations data for the year ended December 31, 1999 
includes the results of Global Marine Systems for the period from JUly 
2, 1999, date of acquisition, through December 31, 1999; the results of 
Frontier for the period from September 30, 1999, date of acquisition, 
through December 31, 1999; and the results of Racal Telecom for the 
period from November 24, 1999, date of acquisition. through December 3.1, 
1999. The Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 1999 includes 
amounts related to Global Marine Systems. Frontier and Racal Telecom; 

During the year ended December 31, 1999, Global Crossing recorded a $15 
million expense, net of tax benefit, due to the adoption of Statement of 
Position 98-5, ."Reporting on the Cost of Start-Up Activities". See the 
"Cumulative effect of change in accounting principles" item in the 
Statement of Operatio~s Data. 

During the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, Global Crossing 
recognized $51 million and $39 million, respectively, of stock-related 
expense relating to stock options and rights to purchase stock issued 
during that period which entitle the holders to purchase common stock. 
See the "Stock-related expense" item in the Statement of Operations 
Data. 

On December 15, 1999, GCL issued 2,600,000 shares of 7' cumulative 
convertible preferred stock at a liquidation preference of $250.00 for 
net proceeds of $630 million. Each share of preferred stock is 
convertible into 4.6948 shares of common stock based on a conversion 
price of $53.25. Dividends on the preferred stock are cumulative from 
the date of issue and will be payable on February 1, May 1, August 1 and 
November 1 of each year, beginning on February 1, 2000, at the .annual 
rate of 7'. 

On November 24, 1999, we completed our acquisition of Racal Telecom, a 
group of wholly owned subsidiaries of Racal Electronics plc, for 
approximately $1.6 billion in cash. Racal Telecom owns one of the most 
extensive fiber telecommunications networks in the United Kingdom, 
consisting of approximately 4,650 route miles of fiber and reaching more 
than 2,000 cities and towns. 

On November 12, 1999, Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. ("GCH"), a wholly­
owned subSidiary of GCL, issued two series of senior unsecured notes 
("New Senior Notes"), The 9 1/9% senior notes are due November 15, 2006 
with a face value of $900 million and the 9 1/2' senior notes are due 
November 15, 2009 with a face value of $1,100 million, The New~enior 
Notes are guaranteed by GCL. Interest will be paid on the notes on May 
15 and November 15 of each year, beginning on May 15, 2000. 

On November 5, 1999, GCL issued 10,000,000 shares of 6 3/8t cumulative 
convertible preferred stock at a liquidation preference of $100.00 for 
net proceeds of approximately $969 million, Each share of preferred 
stock is convertible into 2.2222 shares of common stock, based on a 
conversion. price of $45.00. Dividends' on the preferred stock are 
cvmulative from the date of issue and will be payable on February 1, May 
1, August 1 and November 1 of each year, beginning ~n.February 1, 2000, 
at the annu~l rate of 6 3/8', 
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On September 28, 1999, we completed the acquisition of Front±er' 
Corporation in a merger transaction valued at over $10 billion, with 
Frontier shareholders receiving 2.05 shares of our common stock for each 
share of Frontier common stock held. Frontier is one of the largest long 
distance telecommunications companies in the United States and one of 
the leading providers of facilities-based integrated communications and 
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Internet services. 

On July 2, 1999, we completed our acquisition of the Global Marine 
Systems division of Cable & Wireless Pic for approximately $908 million 
in cash and assumed liabilities. GLobal Marine Systems owns the largest 
fleet of cable laying and maintenance vessels in the world and currently 
services more than a third of the world's undersea cable miles. 

On May 16, 1999, Global Crossing entered into a definitive agreement to 
merge with U S WEST, Inc. On July 18, 1999, Global Crossing and·U S WEST 
agreed to terminate their merger agreement, and U S WEST agreed to merge 
with Qwest Communications International Inc. As a result, U S WEST paid
Global Crossing a termination fee of $140 million in cash and returned 
2,231,076 shares of Global Crossing common stock purchased in a related 
tender offer, and Qwest committed to purchase capacity on the Global 
Crossing network at established markee unit prices for delivery over the 
next four years and committed to make purchase price payments to Global 
Crossing for this capacity of $140 million over the nest two years. 
During the year ended December 31, 1999, Global Crossing recognized $210 
million, net of merger related expenses, of other income in connection 
with the termination of the U S WEST merger agreement. 

The "Termination of advisory services agreement- item in the Statements 
of Operations Data includes a charge for the termination of the advisory 
services agreement as of JUne 30, 1998. Global Crossing acquired the 
rights from those entitled· to fees payable under the advisory services 
agreement in consideration from the issuance of common stock having an 
aggregate value of $135 million and the cancellation of approximately $3 
million owed to Global Crossing under a-related advance agreement. As a 
result of this transaction, Global Crossing recorded a non~recurring 
charge in the approximate amount of $138 million during the year ended 
December 31, 1998. In addition, Global Crossing recognized as an expense 
.approximately $2 million of advisory fees incurred prior to termination 
of the contract. 

Global Crossing granted warrants to Pacific Capital Group, Inc., a 
shareholder, and some of its affiliates for the Pacific Crossing, Mid­
Atlantic Crossing and Pan American Crossing systems and related rights. 
The $275 million value of the common stock was originally allocated to 
-Construction in progress" in the amount of $112 million and as 
Ulnvestment in and advances to/from affiliates" in the amount of $163 
million. See the ·property and equipment n item in the Balance Sheet 
Data. The -Investment in and advance to/from affiliates" item in the 
Balance Sheet Date includes $163 million as of December 31, 1999 and 
1998, respectively, representing the value of the warrants described in 
the bullet point immediately above applicable to the Pacific Crossing 
system. 

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operating inco~ (loss), plus goodwill 
amortization, depreciation and amortization, non-cash cost of capacity 
sold, stock related expenses, incremental cash deferred revenue and 
amounts relating to the termination of the advisory services agreement. 
This definition is consistent with financial covenants contained in the 
Company's major financial agreements. This information should not be 
considered as an alternative to any measure of performance as 
promulgated under GAAP. The Company's calculation of adjusted EBITDA may 
be different from the calculation used by other companies and, 
therefore, comparability may be limited. 
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The selected consolidated financial data as of December 31, 1999, 1998 and 

1997, for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 and for the period from 
March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 1997, respectively, are 
derived from our audited consolidated financial statements and should be read 
in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes 
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Period from 
March 19, 1997 

Year Ended Year Ended (Date of Inception) 
December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998 to December 31, 1997 

(In thousands, except share and per share information) 

Statement of Operations 
Data: 

Revenue ...••..••..•..•..• 

Expenses: 
Cost of sales ..•.•.•.•• 
Operations, 
administration and 
maintenance .•••.....•• 

Sales and marketing ..•• 
Network development •.•. 
General and 
administrative ••••••.• 

Stock related expense • 
Depreciation and 
amortization.••••....• 

Goodwill and 
intan~ib17s 
amort1zat10n .••••...•• 

Termination of advisory 
services agreement ••. 

Operating loss ••.•..•••• 
Equity in income (loss) 
of affiliates .•••...... 

Minority interest ...••.• 
Other income (expense): 
Interest income ••.•••.. 
Interest expense ••.•••. 
Other income, net .••••. 

Provision for income 
taxes ..••.•.••••....••. 

Loss before 
extraordinary item and 
cumulative effect of 
change in accounting
principle ..•••••••••••• 

Extraordinary loss on 
retirement of debt ..•.. 

Loss before cumulative 
effect of change in 
accounting principle •.. 

CUmulative effect of 
change in acco~ting 
princ~ple, net of 
income tax benefit of 
$'1,400 ....•••••..•••.... 

Net: loss •.•••.•.••••.••• 
Preferred stock 
dividends •.•.•...•.••.• 

Redemption of preferred 
stock .•••.•••••.•••..•. 

Net loss applicable to 
common shareholders .... 

$' 1,664,824 

850,483 

133,202 
149,119 

26,153 

210,107 
51,306 

124,294 

127,621 

1,672,285 

(7,461) 

15,708 
(1,338) 

67,407 
(139,077) 
180,765 

(126,539) 

(10,535) 

(45,681) 

(56,216) 

(14,710) 

(70,926) 

(66,642) 

$ (137,568) 
==•••::;a===_~ 

$ 419,866 

178,492 

18,056 
26,194 
10,962 

26,303 
39,374 

541 

139,669 

439,591 

(19,725) 

(2,50S) 

29,986 
(42,8.80) 

(33,067) 

(68,194 ) 

(19,709) 

(87,903) 

(87,90J.t 

(12,681) 

(34,140) 

$ (134,724) 
-========== 

$' 

1,366 
78 

1,618 

39 

3,101 

(3,lOl) 

2,941 

(160) 

(160) 

(160) 

(12,690) 

$ (12,850) 
============ 
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Net Loss Per Common 

Share: 
Loss applicable to 

common shareholders 
before extraordinary 
item and cumulative 
effect of change in 
accounting principle 

Basic and diluted....... 


Extraordinary item 
Basic and diluted .•••••• 

Cumulative effect of 
change in accounting 
principle 

Basic and diluted..•.•.• 

Net loss applicable to 
common shareholders 

Basic and diluted..•.•.. 

Shares used in computing 
basic and diluted lOBS 
per share ••••••....••.• 

Operating Data: 
Cash from operating 
activities •.•.•.•..••.• 

Cash used for investing 
activities .•..••••••••• 

Cash from financing 
activ,ities •••..•....•.• 

Adjusted EBITDA .•.•..•. 

$ (0.15) 

----=.=-=--­
$ (0.09) 

-----=-----­

$ (0.03) _______=-:l==: 

$ (0.27)---_.._:.... 

502,400,851 ___. __._.::a. 

$ 506,084 

(4,009,977) 

4,330,799 
$ 708,l8l 

28 

$ (0.32) 
___':a ____._= 

$ (0.06) 

--------._. 

$ 
J:& ______•••=­

$ (0.38) 

358,735,340 
=--= ••=_._.­
$' 208,727 

(430,697) 

1,027,110 
$ 354,948 

$ (0.04)_=._:.•.._:1 

$ 
__=aa •••••• 

$ 
.--=-._._--­

$ (0.04) 

325,773,934 

$ 5,121 

(428,743) 

425,075 
$ 343,233 
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December 31, 
1999 1998 1997 

(In thousands) 

Balance sheet data: 

CUrrent assets including cash and cash 

equivalents and restricted cash and cash 
equivalents .•......•.....•................. $ 2,946,533 $ 976,615 $ 27,744 

Long term restricted cash and cash 
equivalents .•..•..••••...•.••.•.••.•..•.... 138,118 367,600 

Long term accounts receivable .............. . 52,052 43,315 
Capacity available for sale ..•.•.....•..•... 574,849 
Property and equipment, net ..•............. 6,026,053 433,707 518,519 
Other assets .....'.........•....•.......•...• 661,442 65,757 25,934 
Investment in and advances to/from
affiliates, net •..•.•.•.• ·••..•••..........• 323,960 177,334 


Goodwill and intangibles, net ••••..•......•. 9,557.422 


'Total assets •.•••.....•..........•..••••••. $19,705,580 $2,639,177 $572,197 " 

••:a•••a._. _._::a._.2•••••••:t=a:s=t 

current liabilities .•..•..••.•••...•.••••... $ 1,852,593 $ 256,265 $ 90,817 
Long term debt ••••.••.•••.•••••••••••••• '.... 5,018,544 1,066,093 312,325 
Deferred revenue ••.•.••.••••.••••.••••••.•.. 383,287 25.325 
Deferred credits and other .•.•••••••••••••.• , 796,606 34,174 3,009 

Total Liabilities •••••••••••.••••••.••••.... 8,051,030 1,381,857 406,151 
Minority interest •••••••..•••••••••••••••.•. 351,338 
Mandatorily redeemable and cumulative 
convertible preferred steck ••••••••••...•. - 2,084,697 483,000 91,925 

Shareholders' equity 
Common stock•••••••••••.••••••••••••••••••• 7,992 4,328 3,258 
Treasury stock••••••••••.•••.•••••••••.•••• (209,415) (209,415) 
Other shareholders' equity•••••••...•••••.• 9,578,927 1,067,470 71,023 
Accumulated deficit •••••••••••••••••••••••• (158,989) (88,063) (160) 

Total shareholders' equity•••••••••••••••.•• 9,218,515 774,320 74,121 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity .. $19,705,580 $2,639,177 $572,197 
~::I~==_=~==_ _===_:1=... • •••••=. 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 


Accounting Matters 


During the third and fourth quarters of 1999, changes in the business 

activities of the Company, together with a newly effective accounting 

standard, caused the Company to modify certain of its practices regarding 

recognition of revenue and costs related to sales of capacity. None of the 

accounting practices described below affect the cash flows of the Company. 


As a result of Financfal Accounting Standards Board' (FASB) Inte'rpretation 
No. 43, "Real Estate Sales, an interpretation bf FASB Statement No. 66" (FIN 
43), which became effective July 1, 1999, revenue from terrestrial circuits 
sold after that date has been accounted for as operating leases and amortized 
over the terms of the related contracts. Previously, these sales had been 
recognized as current revenue upon activation of the circuits. This_deferral 
in revenue recognition has no impact on cash flow. 

With the consummation of the Frontier acquisition on September 28, 1999, 
service offerings became a significant source of revenue. Consequently, the 
Company initiated service contract accounting for its subsea systems during 
the fourth quarter, because the Company, since that date, no longer holds 
subsea capacity exclusively for sale. As'a result, since the beginning of the 

" 	 fourth quarter, ,_investments in both subsea and terrestrial systems have been 
deprec;ated over their remaining economic lives, and revenue related to 
service contracts have been recognized over the terms ef-tbe contracts. 
Revenue and costs related to the sale of subsea circuits have been recognized 
upon activation if the criteria of sales-type lease accounting have been 
satisfied with respect to those circuits. 

During the fourth quarter, the Company's global network service capabilities 
were signif1cancly expanded by the activation of several previousry'announced 
systems, and by the integration of other networks obtained through acquisition 
and joint venture agreements. With this network expansion, the Company began 
offering its 
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customers flexible bandwidth products to multiple destinations, which makes 
the historical practice of fixed, point-to-point routing of traffic and 
restoration capacity both impractical and inefficient. To ensure the required
network flexibility, the Company is modifying its standard capacity purchase 
agreement forms and its network management in a manner that will preclude the 
use of sales-type lease accounting. 

Because of these contract changes, and the network management required to 
meet customer demands for flexible bandwidth, multiple destinations, and 
system performance, the Company anticipates that most of the contracts for 
subsea circuits entered into after January 1, 2000 will be part of a service 
offering, and therefore will not meet the criteria of sales-type lease 
,accounting and will be accounted for as operating leases. Consequently, 
revenue related to those circuits will be deferred and amortized over the 
appropriate term of the contract. In certain circumstances, should a contract 
meet all of the requirements of sales-type lease accounting, revenue will be 
recognized without deferral upon payment and activation. 

The Company notes that accounting practice and authoritative guidance 
regarding the applicability of sales-type lease accounting to the sale of 
capacity is still evolving. Based on the accounting practices described above, 
the Company believes tha~ additional changes, if any, in accounting practice 
or authoritative guidance affecting sales of capacity would have little or no 
impact on its results of operations. 

Results of Operations for the Years Ended D,ecember 31, 1999 and De'cember 31, 
1998 

HISTORICAL 

In 1999, the Company completed its merger with Frontier and its acquisitions 
of Global Marine Systems and Racal Telecom. Results for 1999 include 
operations of Global Marine Systems from July 2, 1999, Frontier from October 
1, 1999 and Racal Telecom from November 24, 1999. Due to these transactions, 
the comparability of the Company's results of operations for the years ended 
December 31, 1999 and 1998 is limited. 

Revenue. Revenue for 1999 increased 296% to $1,665 million as compared to 
$420 million for 1998. The increase in revenue is attributable to the Frontier 
merger and the acquisitions of Global Marine Systems and Racal Telecom, as 
well as growth from our existing business. 

Cost of sales. Cost of sales during 1999 was $850 million (51% of revenue) 
compared to $178 million (43% of revenue) in 1998. This increase is primarily 
attributable to the Frontier merger and the Global Marine systems and Racal 
Telecom acquisitions. Lower margins are partially ~ to lower prices of 
capacity sold to customers and wholesale cost of capacity purchased from 
unconsolidated joint ventures (GAL and PC-1) , the Company's profit on which is 
included in equity in income of affiliates. 

Non-cash cost of undersea capacity sold was $292 million and $141 million 
during the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. For 1998 and 
the first nine months of the year ended December 31, 1999, the Company 
calculated costs of undersea capacity sold for AC-1 based on the ratio of the 
period's actual revenue to total expected future revenues given a minimum 
projected sales capacity of 1024 circuits (512 circuits in 1998) times the 
construction cost of the system. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 1999, the 
Company began to depreciate its undersea capacity and calculate cost of sales 
based on the estimated net book value of the circuit at the time of' sale. 

Operations, administration and maintenance ("OA&M"). OA&M for the year ended 
December 31~ 19~9 was $133 million'(St of 'revenue), compared to $18 million 
(4% o~.revenue) for the year ended December 31, 1998. The increase is 
primarily the result of costs incurred in connection w~ta ~he development of 
the Global Network Operations Center, expansion of the Global Crossing Network 
and the expenses' of acquired companies. . 

Sales and marketing. Sales an~ marketing costs fo~ 'the year ended December 
31, 1999 were $149 million ,(9% of revenue), compared to $26 million (6% of 
revenue) for the year ended December 31, 1995. The increase is prrmarily 
attributable to additions in headcount, occupancy costs, plus marketing costs, 
commissions paid and other promotional expenses to support the Company's rapid 
g~owth and the expenses of acqui~ed companies. 
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Network development. Network development costs for the year ended December 
31, 1999 were $26 million {2' of revenue}, compared to $11 million (3' of 
revenue) for the year ended December 31, 199B. The increase is primarily 
attrihutable to the additional salaries, employee henefits, travel and 
professional fees associated with the construction of the Glohal Crossing 
Network. 

General and administrative. General and administrative expenses for the year 
ended December 31, 1999 were $210 million {13' of revenue}, compared to $26 
million (6' of revenue) for the year ended December 31, 1998. Such charges are 
comprised principally of salaries, employee henefits and recruiting fees 
reflecting the Company's staffing for multiple systems, travel, professional
fees. insurance costs and occupancy costs. The increase in general and 
administrative expenses is primarily attributahle to the Frontier merger and 
the acquisitions of Global Marine Systems and Racal Telecom. 

Stock related expense. Stock related expenses for the year ended Decemher 
31, 1999 were $51 million (3' of revenue), which increased by $12 million from 
$39 million (9' of revenue) for the year ended December 31, 199B. The increase 
is due to the addition of employees granted in-the-money options. 

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization for the year 
ended December 31, 1999 was $124 million (8t as a percentage of revenue), 
compared to $.54 million for the year ended December 31, 199B. This increase 
was driven hY charges from the newly acquired companies and depreciation of 
subsea systems as of October 1, 1999. 

Goodwill amortization. Goodwill amortization for the year ended December 31, 
1999 of $128 million {8' of revenue} resulted from the Company's merger with 
Frontier and acquisitions of Global Marine Systems and Racal Telecom during 
the year ended December 31, 1999. There was no goodwill amortization for the 
year ended December 31, 199B. 

Operating loss. The Company incurred an operating loss for the year ended 
December 31, 1999 of $7 million, compared to a loss of $20 million {5' of 
'revenue} for the year ended December 31, 199B. 

Interest income and Interest expense. Interest income for the year ended 
December 31, 1999 was $67 million, compared to $30 million for the year ended 
December 31, 199B. The increase is due to earnings on investments of funds 
from financings and operations for the year ended December 31 1999. Interest 
expense for the year ended December 31, 1999 was $139 million, compared to $43 
million for the year ended December 31, 1998, due to the merger with Frontier 
and the acquisitions of Global Marine Systems and Racal Telecom and increases 
in debt outstanding to support capital spending. 

Other income, net. Other income, net for the year ended December 31, 1999 
resulted primarily from a $210 million payment hy US West, Inc. in connection 
with the termination of its merger agreement with the Company, less related 
expenses. 

Provision for income taxes. The income tax provision of $127 million and $33 
million for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 199B, respectively, provide 
for taxes on profits earned from telecommunications services, insta~lation and 
maintenance services, ILEC services and other income where subsidiaries of the 
Company have a presence in taxable jurisdictions. 

Extraordinary loss from retirement of deht. Extraordinary loss from 
retirement of deht of $46 million for the year ended December 31, 1999 
compared to $20 million for the year ended December 31, 199B. During 1999, we 
recognized an extraordinary loss of $15 million in connection with the 

" 	 prepayment of existing debt in connection with the issuance of our $3 hillion 
Senior~Secured Credit Facility and an additional $31 million for the early 
extinguishment of $2 hillion, in principal value', under t:hc Senior Secured 
Credit Facility_, During 1998, we recognized an extraQrdinary loss of $20 
million in connection with the repurchase of GTR's outstanding senior notes 
("&TH Senior Notes"), comprising a premium of $10 million -a.nd a write-off of 
$10 million of unamortized deferred financing costs. 

31 

Copyright 2000 EDGAR Onlille, Tllc. (ver 1.0112,003) 	 Page 34 



'-" "-'" 
GLOBAL CROSSING LTD -JO-K -Annual Report Date Filed: 311712000 

CUmulative effect of change in accounting principle. The Company adopted 
Statement of Position .96-5 (SOP .98-5), "Reporting on the Cost of Start-Up 
Activities," issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, 
during the' year ended December 31, 199.9. SOP .98-5 requires that certain start­
up expenditures previously capitalized during system development must now be 
expensed. The Company incurred a one-time charge during the first quarter of 
$15 million, net of tax benefit, that represents start-up costs incurred and 
capitalized during previous periods. 

Net loss. During the year ended December 31, 1.9.99, the Company reported a 
net loss of $71 million compared to a net loss of $88 million for the prior 
year. 

Net loss applicable to common shareholders. During the years ended December 
31, 1999 and 1996, the Company reported a net loss applicable to common 
shareholders of $138 million and $135 million, respectively. 

Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA of $708 million in 1999 increased 94t from 
$365 million for the year ended December 31, 1998. The increase is primarily 
due to the inclusion of Frontier, Global Marine Systems and Racal as well as 
growth from our existing businesses for the year ended December 31, 1.99.9. 

32 

Copyright 2000 EDGAR Online. fllc. (ver 1.0112.003) Page 35 



----------
----------

----------
---------- ----------

---------- ----------

----------

---------- ----------

~ '--'" 

GLOBAL CROSSING LTD -JO-K -Allnual Report Date Filed: 31/711000 
PRO FORMA 

This section of Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations focuses on pro forma information for the periods 
covered giving effect to the acquisitions from the beginning of each period. 
The Company's management believes that the pro forma results provide the most 
meaningful comparability among periods presented, since historical results 
reflect full-company operations only after the close of the Frontier merger 
and the acquisitions of Racal Telecom and Global Marine Systems. However, the 
pro forma data are not necessarily indicative of the results that would have 
been achieved had such transactions actually occurred at the beginning of each 
period, nor are they necessarily indicative of the Company's future" results. 

The following reflects the pro forma results of operations for the years 
ended December 31, 1999 and 1998. 

For the year ended 
December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands) 

REVENUE: 
Telecommunications services ...•..•..••.............• 
Installation and maintenance services ••..•••••••.•••• 
Incumbent local exchange carrier services •••.••..•... 
Corporate and other ..••.••••.•.•..••.....•••..•.•.•.. 

EXPENSES: 
Operating, selling, general and administrative ••...•• 
Stock related expense ••••.•••••.•......•.....•....... 
Depreciation and amortization ...•••••.••..••••.....•• 
Goodwill amortization••••••.. : ...••••••...••..•...••• 
Termination of Advisory Services Agreement .•.•....•.. 

OPERATING LOSS ..•...••....••.....•...•.••••.•...••..••. 
EQUITY IN LOSS OF AFFILIATES ...••••••••.••••...•.••.••• 
MINORITY INTE:.REST. • • • • • • • • . . • . • • • . • • • • . • • • . . . • • • . . . . . • • 
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE): 

Int eres t income...................................... 
Interest expense •....••.•.•......••.•.•••.•••..•.••.. 
Other incorne, net ...••.••••••....•..••••...•..••..... 

LOSS BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES, EXTRAORDINARY 
ITEM AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUN'l'ING 
PRINCIPLE••••.•••••.••••...•••••..••.•..••.•••.••••.•• 
Provision for income taxes ••••••.•••.•••••••.....•... 

LOSS BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF 
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE ..••••••.•••..•..•.•...• 
Preferred stock dividends •••.•.•••••••••.••••••••••. 

LOSS APPLICABLE. TO COMMON SBAR.l'!!BOLDERS BEFORE 
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN 
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE .................................. 

. , AdjustedEBITDA..••••....•••••••.. ".; •••.••.•.•..•••••... 

$3,071,553 
334,153 
729,231 

4,960 
------_ ... -­
4,139,897 

--_ ... -----­

3,433,024 
51,306 

363,427 
506,928 

_.. --_ _--­.... 

4,354,685 

(214,788) 
(747) 

(1,338) 

76,528 
(345,956) 
178,931 

(307,370) 
(155,174) 

--_ -----­.... 

(462,544) 
(92,171) 

$ (554,715)._.=___a_. 
$1,150,644
••__a=aa~_ 

$2,591,066 
322,01'7 
701,935 
28,503 

3,643,521 

2,807,671 
39,374 

262,847 
506,928 
139,669 

3,755,489 

(112,968) 
(21,180) 

42,877 
(283,984) 

23,641 

(351,614) 
(123,268) 

(474,882) 
(38,181) 

$ (513,053) 
a_~_a_.... 
$1,071,969 
_ ______••• 

33 

Copyright 2000 EDGAR Onlille, fllc. (ver 1.0112.003) Page 36 



----------- -----------

~ -........; 


GLOBAL CROSSING LTD -JO-K -AlIllllal Report Date Filed: 311712000 
Pro forma revenue--Telecommunications services. Pro forma revenue for the 

telecommunications services segment for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 
1998 resulted from sales of the following products: 

For the year ended 
December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands, except 
minutes) 

PRODUCT REVENUE: 
Switched Voice ..•....•.••...•.....•......•........... $ 1,3B6,124 $ 1,416,088 
CLEC (:Local and LD I ••••.••••••••• -•••••••••••••••••••• 223,021 153,109 

Total Business Voice Products .....••..••••••••..... ' 1,609,145 1,569,197 

Data ........••••••..•.•....••••••••.•.•••••••••.•..•• 1,274,689 782,087 

Consumer long distance .•...••••••••••••..•..••••••..• 187,719 239,782 


----------- --_ ... _------' 
TOTAL PRODUCT REVENUE •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• $ 3,071;553 $ 2,591,066" 

~aaaaaaa.__ •••••••••a. 
MINUTES ••••••.••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 20,472,178 14,481,697 ________••_ __•••••.a_. 

In North America, data products continued to grow at triple digit rates-­
data product revenue (primarily private line) ,from telecommunication carrier 
customers grew s88t _for the full year. Frame relay revenue, sales from 
dedicated internet and web hosting revenue increased 304', 159' and 187', 
respectively, over the prior year. Competitive Local Exchange Carrier (CLEC) 
revenue increased 46% year-on-year. ' 

Revenue from telecommunication commercial customers increased to $1.27 
billion for the year ended December 31, 1999 from $1.26 billion for the year 
ended December 31, 1998. Revenue from telecommunication consumer customers 
fell to $188 million for the year ended December 31, 1999 from $240 mUlion 
for the year, ended December 31, 1998. Revenue from telecommunication carrier 
customers experienced a 48% increase in revenue year-on-year, from $1.09 
billion t,o $1.61 billion, driven by strong growth in international city to 
city circuit activations and an 87% increase in wholesale minutes sold on a 
year-on-year basis. 

Pro forma revenue--Installation and maintenance services. Pro forma revenue 
increased by 4' year-on-year, despite delays in the installation of TAT-14 and 
U.S.-Japan cables, which had been scheduled for installation during the fourth 
quarter of 1999. Global Marine Systems added three ships to their fleet during 
the year to service the Company's growth in subsea cable installations. 
Revenue from maintenance increased from $117 million to $139 million, while 
revenue from installation decreased from $205 million to $195 million. 

Pro forma revenue--ILEC services. The following table provides supplemental 
pro forma detail for the lLEC segment: 

December 
31, 

1999 1998 

. (In
thousands) 

ACCESS LINES: 
Commercial •.•.•••...•••.•••••••• ~ .••.•••.••..••..•••.•••••••••.... 335 327 
Consumer •••••••.•.••••.•.•••••••..•.•••••••..••••••••.•••••••••••• 737 7lB 

TO'tAL ACCESS LINES.................................................. 1,072 1,045 


The ILEC segment continued to exceed service metrics required by the New 
York State Public Service Commission. Revenue increased by. 4' year-on-year.
Market deployment of the consumer ADSL product, Lightning Link, was initiated 
in selected markets in the fourth quarter. . , 

Operating, selling, general and administrative. Operating, selling, general 
and administrative expenses of $3,433 million for the year ended December 31, 
1999 increased by 22' from $2,808 million for the year ended December 31, 
1998. This change resulted from costs of new systems being activated, cost of 
sales re~ating to increased revenues, occupancy costs, marketing costs, 
commissions paid and overall Company growth and staffing for multiple systems. 
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Non~cash cost of undersea capacity. sold, included in operating, selling, 

general and administrative expenses, was $292 million and $141 million during 

the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. For 1998 and the 

first nine months of 1999, the Company calculated costs of undersea capacity 

sold based on the ra~io of the period's actual revenue to total expected

future revenues given a minimum projected sales capacity multiplied by the 

construction cost of the system. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 1999, the 

Company began to depreciate the undersea capacity and calculate cost·of sales 

based on the estimated net book value of the circuit at the time of sale. 


Stock related expense. Stock related expense of $51 million for the year 

ended December 31, 1999, increased 30% from $39 million for the year ended 

December 31, 1998 as a result of additional stock options issued below fair 

market value. 


Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization of $363 million 

for the year ended December 31, 1999 increased 38% from $263 million for the 

year ended December 31, 1998. This increase was primarily due to the 

depreciation of subsea and terrestrial systems during 1959. 


Operating loss. The Company incurred an operating loss for the year ended 

December 31, 1999 of $215 million compared to a loss of $113 million for the 

year ended December 31, 1998. 


Equity in loss of affiliates. Equity in loss of affiliates of $0.7 million 

for the year ended December 31, 1999 compared to a loss of $21 million for the 

year ended December 31, 1998. The decrease in· the net loss is primarily due to 

sales of capacity on certain segments of PC-1 which became available for sale 

in 1599. 


Interest income ~d Interest expense. Interest income of $77 million for the 

year ended December 31, 1999 compared to $43 million for the year ended 

December 31, 1998, due to earnings on investments of additional funds from 

financings and operations during the year ended December 31, 1999. Interest 

expense of $346 million for the year ended December. 31, 1999 compared to 

interest expense of $284 million for the year ended December 31, 1998, due to 

the merger with Frontier and the acquisition of Global Marine Systems and 

Racal Telecom and increases in debt outstanding to support capital spending. 


Other income, net. Other income of $179 million for the year ended December 

31, 1999 compared to $24 million for the year ended December 31, 1998. The 

increase is primarily a result of the receipt of a $210 million payment by US 

West, Inc. in connection with the. termination of its merger agreement with the 

~ompany, less related expenses. 


Provision for income taxes. The inc,ome tax provision of $155 million and 

$123 million for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively, 

provides for taxes on profits earned from telecommunications services, 

installation and maintenance, lLEC Services and other income where 

subsidiaries of the Company have·a presence in taxable jurisdictions. 


Preferred stock dividends. Preferred stock dividends of $92 million for the 

year ended December 31, 1999 compared to $38 million in 1998. The increase was 

attributable to payment of dividends on $1.5 billion of preferred shares 

issued during the year ended December 31, 1999. 


Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA,of $1,151 million for the years ended 

December 31, 1999 increased 7' from $1,072 in 1998. The increase was primarily 

due to increased capacity sales and other data products, partially off-set by 

the Company's increased spending to augment its sales force, add network and 

web hosting capacity, add to its fleet of installation and maintenance 


.. 	 vessels, activat.e new fiber optic systems,' and consummate and integrate its 
acquisitions. 
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Historical Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 1998 and the 
Period from March 19. 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 1997 

Revenue. During the year ended December 31, 1998, the Company executed firm 
commitments to sell capacity on our systems plus the sale of dark fiber on PEC 
totaling $911 million. Of this amount, the Company recognized revenue of $418 
million on sales of capacity relating to AC-1 for the year ended December 31. 
1998, in addition to revenue from operations and maintenance services of $6 
million. 

Cost of sales. For the year ended December 31, 1998, the Company recognized 
$178 million in cost of capacity sold, resulting in a gross margin on capacity 
sales of 57%. Cost of capacity sold for the year ended December 31, 199B also 
includes $38 million relating to terrestrial capacity sold which the Company
had purchased from third parties. The Company calculated undersea cost of 
capacity sold for AC-l based on the ratio of the period's actual revenue to 
total expected revenue, assuming minimum projected sales capacity of 512 
circuits, multiplied by the construction cost of the system. This calculation 
of cost of sales matches costs with the relative value of each sale. There 
were no sales or related costs recognized during the period from March 19, 
1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 1997, as the Company was in our 
development stage. 

Operations, administration and maintenance (IIOA&M If ). The Company incurred 
OA&M costs of $18 million during the year ended December 31, 1998. The Company 
entered into an agreement with TSSL relating to operations, administration and 
maintenance of AC-l, which limits our total OA&M expense for the system. The 
Company anticipates that our OA&M costs will be largely recovered through
charges to our customers under the terms of -CPAs. There were no OA&M costs 
during the period from March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 
1997, as the Company was in its development stage. 

Sales and marketing. During the year ended December 31, 1998, the Company 
incurred sales and marketing expenses of $26 million, including selling 
commissions of $20 million incurred on capacity sales recognized during this 
period. During the period from March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 
31, 1997, the Company incurred sales and marketing costs of approximately $1 
million. The increase from 1997 was due to additions in personnel and 
occupancy costs, plus marketing, commissions paid and other promotional 
expenses to support our rapid growth. 

Network development. The Company incurred network development costs during 
the year ended December 31, 1998 of $11 million relating to the development of 
systems. During the period from March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 
31, 1997, these costs were $0.1 million. The increase from 1997 was due to 
additional personnel, and costs to explore new projects. 

General and administrative. General and administrative expenses totaled $26 
million during the year ended December 31, 1998 and were comprised principally 
of salaries, employee benefits and recruiting fees for staffing of multiple 
systems, travel, insurance costs and rent expenses, plus depreciation and 
amortization. During the period from March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to 
December 31, 1997, we incurred general and administrative costs of $2 million. 

Termination of Advisory Services Agreement with POG Telecom Services LLC. In 
connection with the development and construction of AC-l. the Compaay entered 
into an Advisory Services Agreement with POG Telecom Services LLC, an 
affiliate, providing for the payment by us of an adviSOry fee of 2' of the 
gross revenue o£ ACL over a 25 yea~ term. OUr Board of Directors also approved 
similar advisory fees and authorized us to enter into similar agreements with 
respect to other cable systems under development by us. The Company has 
acquired the rights of the persons entitled to the fees payable under these 
agreements in consideration for the issuance to such persons of shares of our 
common stock, which had at the time of issuance an aggregate value of $135 
millioo, and the cancellation of approximately $3 million owed to us under a 
related advance agreement. In addition. the Company reeognized approximately 
$2 million of adyisory fees incurred prior to termin~tion of the contract. 
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Stock related expense. Through December 31, 199B, the Company recorded as a 


charge to paid-in capital $94 million of unearned compensation relating to 

awards under our stock incentive plan plus the grant of certain economic 

rights and options to purchase common stock granted to a senior executive. The 

unearned compensation is being recognized as an expense over the vesting 

period of these options and economic rights. 


For the year ended December 31, 1998, the Company recognized as an expense 

$31 million of stock related compensation relating to our stock incentive plan 

and $6 million for the vested economic rights to purchase common stock and $2 

million in respect of shares of common stock issued during the year. The 

remaining $57 million of unearned compensation will be recognized as follows: 

$28 million in 1999, $21 million in 2000 and $8 million in 2001. Our stock 

incentive plan commenced in January 1998, and therefore no issuances were made 

during the period from March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 

1997. 


Equity in loss of ~ffiliates. During 1998, the Company entered into joint 

venture agreements to construct and operate PC-l and GAL. PC-l is owned and 

operated by PCL. The Company has an economic interest in PCL represented by a 

sot direct voting interest and, through one of the joint venture partners, a 

further Bt economic non-voting interest. The Company has a 49t interest in 

Global Access Ltd., which operates GAL. OUr equity in the loss of PC-l for the 

year ended December 3l, 1998 was $3 million. 


Interest income. The Company reported interest income of $30 million during 

the year ended December 3l, 1998 and $3 million during the period from March 

19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 3l, 1997. Such interest income 

represents earnings on cash raised from financing, the IPO, the issuance of 

the GCH Preferred Stock, operations and CPA deposits. 


Interest expense. During the year ended December 31, 1998, the Company 

incurred $93 million in interest costs, including the amortization of finance 

costs and debt discount. Of this amount, the Company capitalized to 

construction in progress interest of $50 million and expensed $43 million. 

During the period from March l~, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 

1997, the Company incurred interest expense of $10 million, which was 

capitalized to construction in progress. 


Provision for income taxes. The income tax provision of $33 million for the 

year ended December 3l, 1998 provides for taxes on profits earned from 

capacity sales and OA&M revenue where our subsidiaries have a presence in 

taxable jurisdictions. During the period from March 19, 19~7 (Date of 

Inception) to December 31, 1997, the Company incurred operating losses, which 

rela~e to non-taxable jurisdictions and therefore cannot be applied against 

future taxable earnings. Accordingly, no tax provision or deferred tax benefit 

was recorded as of December 31, 1997. 


Extraordinary item. During May 1998, the Company recognized an extraoidinary 

loss of $20 million in connection with the repurchase of GTH's outstanding

senior notes (HGTH Senior Notes Q ), comprising a premium of $10 million and a 

write-off of $10 million of unamortized deferred financing costs. 


Net loss. The Company incurred a net loss of $88 million for the year ended 

December 3l, 1998, compared to a net loss of $0.2 million in the period from 

March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception] to December 31, 1997. The net loss for the 

year ended December 31, 1998 reflects an extraordinary loss on retirement of 

the GTH Senior Notes Of $20 million and a non-recurring charge of $14Q million 

relating to the termination of the ,Advisory Services Agreement. Our net income 

before these items was $72 million. 


Preferred stock dividends. During the ·year ended December 3l, 1998, the 

Company recorded preferred stock dividends of approximately $l3 million. 


.. 	 Preferred stock. ~ividends for the period from March 19, 1997 (Date of 
Incept~on) to December 31, 1997 were $13 million. Of the $13 million recorded 
in 1998, $4 million relates to the GCH Preferred Stock-issued during December 
1998. 

Redemption o'f preferred stock. The redemption of GTH's OI.ltstanding prefe=ed 

stock ("GTH Preferred Stock") occurred in June 1998 and resulted in a $34 

million charge against equity. This amount was comprised 
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of a $16 million redemption premium and a write-off of S18 million of 
unamortized discount and issuance costs. The redemption premium and write-off 
of unamortized discount and issuance costs are treated as a deduction to 
arrive at net loss applicable to common shareholders in the consolidated 
statements of operations. 

Net loss applicable to common shareholders. During the year ended December 
31, 1995, the Company reported a net loss applicable to common shareholders of 
$135 million. This loss reflects preferred stock dividends of $13 million and 
the redemption cost of GTH Preferred Stock of $34 million. During the period 
from March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 1997, the Company 
incurred a net loss applicable to common shareholders of $13 million after GTH 
Preferred Stock dividends of $13 mi.llion. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

On December 15, 1999, Global Crossing issued $650 million aggregate 
liquidation preference of 7% cumulative convertible preferred stock. The 
preferred stock is convertible into common stock of Global Crossing based upon 
a conversion price of $53.25 per share. 

On November 24, 1999, the Company entered into a GBP 675 million 
(approximately $1,091 million as of December 31, 1999) credit facility to 
finance the acquisition of Racal Telecom. As of December 31, 1999, the Company 
had an outstanding balance of $646 million under the Racal Term Loan A. 

On November 12, 1999, Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. issued $1.1 billion in 
aggregate principal amount of its 9 1/2' Senior Notes Due 2009, and $0.9 
billion in aggregate principal amount of its-9 l/S' Senior Notes Due 2006. The 
proceeds were partially used to pay down the term loans under the Company's 
Corporate Credit Facility. 

On November 5, 1999, Global Crossing issued $1.0 billion aggregate 
liquidation preference of 6 3/S% cumulative convertible preferred stock. The 
preferred stock is convertible into common stock of Global Crossing based upon 
a conversion price of $45.00 per share. 

On July 2, 1999, Global Crossing entered into a $3 billion senior secured 
corporate credit facility with a group of several lenders and The Chase 
Manhattan Bank as administrative agent. The initial proceeds under the 
facility were used to refinance outstanding balances under the AC-l and MAC 
project finance facilities, to refinance balances under a vendor financing 
arrangement with Lucent, to refinance debt used for the purchase of the Global 
Marine business from Cable and Wireless and for general corporate purposes. As 
of December 31, 1999, the Company had a remaining available balance of $308 
million under the senior secured corporate credit facility. In connection with 
the issuance of the Senior Notes Due 2006 and the Senior Notes Due 2009, a 
portion of tbe proceeds were used to pay down the term loans under the 
Corporate Credit Facility. 

Global Crossing initially financed the approximately $908 million Global 
Marine Systems acquisition, which was completed in July 1999, with 
approximately $600 million in committed bank financing and the remainder with 
cash on hand. This initial indebtedness was refinanced through borrowings 
under Global Crossing's senior secured corporate credit facility. . 

A£ter giving effect ~o the financings listed above, as of December 31, 1999, 
the Company had $1,865 million of both restricted and unrestricted cash and 
cash equivalents. As of December 31, 1999, the Company had $S,051 million of 
total liabilities, including $5,056 million in senior indebtedness, of which 
$1,295 million was secured. As of such date, Global Crossing Ltd. additionally 
had outstanding cumulative convertible preferred stock with a face value of 
$1,650 million. Our subsidiary, Global Crossing Holdings, also has mandatorily 

.. 	 redeemable preferred stock outstanding with a face value of $500 million •. In 
additiQn, our unconsolidated Pacific crossing joint venture entered into an 
$850 million non-recourse credit facility, under which-it ~ad incurred $750 
million of indeb~edness as of December 31, 1999. 

Slobal Crossing estimates the remaining total cost of d~eloping and 
deploying the announced systems on the Global Crossing Network. to be 
approximately $5 billion, excluding costs of potential future upgrades and 
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the amounts capitalized with respect to warrants issued in exchange for the 

rights to construct MAC and PAC. FinanCing to complete the Global Crossing 

Network is expected to be obtained from common stock, preferred stock, bank 

financing or through other corporate financing. Some of this financing is 

expected to be incurred by wholly-owned subsidiaries or joint venture 

companies, as well as by GCL. 


The Company has extended limited amounts of financing to customers in 

connection with certain capacity sales. The financing terms provide for 

installment payments of up to four years. The Company believes that its 

extension of financing to its customers will not have a material effect on the 

Company's liquidity. 


Cash provided by operating activities was $506 million and $209 million for 

the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, re.spectively. The balances 

principally represent cash received from capacity sales, and interest income 

received, less sales and marketing, network development, general and 

administrative and interest expenses paid. 


. Cash used in investing activities was $4,010 million and $431 million for 

the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, respect,ively, ·and represents cash 

paid for construction in progress, acquisitions (net of cash acquired), 

purchases of property, plant and equipment and cash investments in affiliates. 


Cash provided by financing activities was ~4,331 million for the year ended 

December 31, 1999 and primarily represents borrowings under the senior secured 

corporate facility, issuance of senior notes and proceeds from the issuance of 

preferred stock, partially offset by repayments of borrowings under long term 

debt. cash provided by financing activities was $1,027 million for the year 

ended December 31, 199B and primarily relates to proceeds from borrowings 

under the AC-1 and MAC· Credit Facilities, proceeds from the issuance of GCH 

Senior Notes, the GCH Preferred Stock and our IPO, less amounts paid for 

finance and organization costs, the issuance of common preferred stock, the 

repayment of long term debt, the redemption of the GTB Preferred Stock, the 

retirement of the GTH Senior Notes and the increase in amounts held in 

restricted cash and cash equivalents. 


Global Crossing has a substantial amount of indebtedness. Based upon the 

current level of operation$, management believes that the Company's cash flows 

from operations, together with available borrowings under its credit facility, 

and its continued ability to raise capital, will be adequate to meet the 

Company's anticipated requirements for working capital, capital expenditures, 

acquisitions and other discretionary investments, interest payments and 

scheduled principal payments for the foreseeable future. There can be no 

assurance, however, that the Company's business will continue to generate cash 

flow at or above current levels or that currently anticipated improvements 

will be achieved. If the Company is unable to generate sufficient cash flow 

and raise capital to service the Companyis debt, the Company may be required 

to reduce capital expenditures, refinance all or a portion of its existing 

debt or obtain additional financing. 


Inflation 

Management does not believe that its business is impacted by inflation to a 

significantly different extent than the general economy. 


Year 2000 Compliance 

Prior to December 3l, 1999, the Company took all actions that it believed to 

be necessary to insure that its business operations would be Year 2000 ("Y2K") 

compliant. In particular, the Company established a Y2K compliance task forc~, 

reviewed the status of the Company's systems, submitted informa~ion requests 

to third party service providers, received assurances regarding Y2K compliance


" 	 from its major ~uppliers and developed contingency plans to address any 
potential Y2K compliance failure. The Company expended approximately $40 
million on a pro forma basis through December 31, 1999-OR ~ts Y~K readiness 
efforts, principally relating to remediation efforts made in the businesses 
operated by Frontier Corporation. . 
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The Company did not experience any significant malfunctions or errors in its 

operating or business systems when the date changed from 1999 to 2000. Based 
on operations since January 1, 2000, the Company does not expect any 
significant impact to its ongoing business as a result of the Y2K issue. In 
addition, the Company is not aware of any significant Y2K issues or problems 
that may have arisen for its significant customers and suppliers. 

Euro Conversion 

On January 1, 1999, a single currency called the Euro was introduced in 
Europe. Eleven of the fifteen member countries of the European Union agreed to 
adopt the EUro as their common legal currency on that date. Fixed conversion 
rates between these countries' existing currencies (legacy cUrrencies) and the 
Suro were established as of that date. The legacy currencies are scheduled to 
remain legal tender in these participating countries between January 1, 1999 
and January 1. 2002 (not later than JUly 1, 2002). During this transition 
period, parties may settle transactions using either the Suro or a 
participating country's legacy currency. 

Transition to the Euro creates a number of issues for the Company. Business 
issues that must be addressed include product pricing policies and ensuring 
the continuity of business and financial contracts. Finance and accounting 
issues include the conversion of bank accounts and other treasury and cash 
management activities. The Company has not yet set conversion dates for 
certain of its accounting systems, statutory reporting and tax books, but will 
do so during 2000. The financial institutions with which the Company has 
relationships have transitioned to the Euro successfully and are issuing 
stat.ements in dual currencies. 

The Company continues to address these transition issues and does not expect 
the transition to the Suro to have a material effect on the results of 
operations or financial condition of the Company. The Company does not expect 
the cost of system modifications to be material and the Company will continue 
to evaluate the impact of the BUro conversion. 
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AHD QUALITAtIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 
Interest Rate Risk 

The table below provides information about our market sensitive financial 
instruments and constitutes a "forward-looking statement." OUr major market 
risk exposure is changing interest rates. Our policy is to manage interest 
rates through use of a combination of fixed and floating rate debt. Interes.t 
rate swaps may be used to adjust interest rate exposures when appropriate, 
based upon market conditions, and the Company does not engage in such 
transactions for speculative purposes. 

rair value 

B~ted maturity dates :1000 3001 200:1 3003 2004 Thereafter Total 13/31/1999 12/31/1998 

(111 thousands) 
lllI8'1" 

9 1/2t Senior Notes due 
3009••••••••••••••••••• $1.100,000 $1,100,000 $1,086,937 PIllA 

Average taeerest 
nte.--fixed•••••••••• 9.5' 

9 1/8t Senior Hotes due 
3006 .................. . 900,000 900,000 889,313 'RIA 


Average interest 
ntes·-fixed.•••••••••• 9.lt 

9 5/8' Senior Notes due 
1008 .................. . 800,000 800,000 7l1S.000 $834,000 

Average interest 
raee.·:fixed•••••••.•• ,.n 

Senior Secured Revolving 
credit racility••••• ~ •• $648,597 648,597 648,597 III/A 

Average taeerest 
tate.--variahle ••• '" • III 

Racal 'l:'e.l:a LoiU\ A ••••••• 97.000 549,130 646,130 541.130 If/A 
Average intera.t 
rate.- -variahle ••••••• (ll 

IlecUWII-nu:m Not... , 
7.S1'-9.3t, due 2000 to 
2004 .................. . $71,500 $40,000 107.500 219,000 2l.9. a92 IIJ/A 


Averase interest 
rat.s- -fixed•••...••.• a.,. 7.5' !I.n 9.0t 
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7 1/.' Senior Koeee due 
.20040 ••••••••••••••••••• 300,000 300.000 2B~.a20 'Ill/A 

Average interest 
rac.s-·~ixed •••••••••• 7.n 

6' Dealer aemarkecable 
S.curiti•• (DlIS) due 

a013 •••.•.••••••••••••••• aoo,ooo lOO,OOO 187,182 KIA 
Average interest 
rates- ·~ixed•••••••••• (3) 

Other••••••••••••.•••••• $5,496 $.9.911 $ 3,618 $38.336 14,15B $ 130,509 l4l.0lB aH.9l6 If/A 

Average interest 
rates- -fixed•••••••••• (.) 

DD.IVlI:rIVB I1f1lTllUMlilNTS 
Interest rate _lIP 
Uca.ting ~cr f1.xe4 
Contract noUcaal 
_t............... .. $200,000 $ 200,000 $ 206.602 K/A 
F1.xe4 rate paid :by 

CCUDt.rparty•••••••••• 7.n 
Floating rate paid :by 

GCL................. .. (5) 

(1) 	 The interest rate is us dollar LIBOR T 2.25t which was 8.4t as of December 
31, 1999. 

(2) 	 The interest rate is British pound LIBOR + 2.5\ which was 8.4% as of 
December 31, 1999. 

(3) 	 The interest rate is fixed at 6.0\ until October 2003. At that time, the 
remarketing dealer (J.P. Morgan) has the -option to remarket the notes at 
prevailing interest rates or tender the notes for redemption. 

(4) 	 Includes $58,557 of fixed rate debt with interest rates ranging from 2.0% 
to 9.0%. $48,460 of floating rate debt with an interest rate of British 
pound LIBOR + 2.5t, which was 8.4\ as of December 31, 1999. 

(5) 	 The interest rate is US dollar LIBOR T 1.26\, which is set in arrears. 

Foreign CUrrency Risk 
For those subsidiaries using the u.s. dollar as their functional currency, 

translation adjustments are recorded in the accompanying condensed 
consolidated statements of operations. None of the Company's translation 
adjUstments were material as of and for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 
1998. 

For those subsidiaries not using the U.S. Dollar as their functional 
currency, assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at 
the balance sheet date and income and expense accounts at average exchange 
rates during the period. Resulting translation adjustments are recorded 
directly to a separate component of shareholders' equity. As of and for the 
year ended December 31, 1999, the Company incurred a foreign currency 
translation adjustment of $21 million. For the year ended December 31, 1998, 
the translation adjustments were immaterial. 

Foreign currency forward transactions are used by the Company to hedge 
exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. The Buro was the 
principal currency hedged by the Company. Changes. in the value of forward 
foreign exchange contracts, which are designated as hedges of foreign currency 
denominated assets and liabilities, are classified in the same manner as 
changes in the underlying assets and liabilities. 
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ITE.\t a. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

See the index included on page F-l, Index to Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Schedule. 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND 
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 


None. 
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PART III 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT 

The following table sets forth the names, ages and positions of the 
directors and executive officers of GCL. The Bye-laws of GCL provide for a 
Board of Directors consisting of up to 20 members divided into three classes 
with terms of three years each. At the 1999 Annual General Meeting of 
Shareholders, Messrs. Brown, Casey, Conway, McDonald and Porter were ,elected 
Class A Directors with a term expiring in 2000; Messrs. Annunziata, Cook, 
Bippeau, Kent, Lee, Raben and Scanlon were elected Class B Directors with a 
term expiring in 2001; and Messrs. Bloom, Clayton, Kehler, McCorkindale, Steed 
and Winnick were elected Class C Directors with a term expiring in 2002. Mr. 
Hindery was appointed a Class A Director by the Board effective February 9, 
2000. Mr. Fok was appointed a Class A Director by the Board effective February 
28, 2000. 

Name 

Gary Winnick.....•........•.... 
Lodwrick M. Cook .•••••.••••.••• 
Leo J. Bindery, Jr•....•.•.•.. 

Thomas J. Casey.........•...... 

David L. Lee .....••...........• 


Joseph P. Clayton ............•• 


Jack M. Scanlon............... . 


Abbot t L. Brown......•.......•. 
Barry Porter ..•.....••••.•••..• 
Dan J. Cohrs .••...•..•...•....• 

John L. Comparin.••...•......•• 
James C. Gorton••.•..••.•••..•• 

John A. Scarpati ..•..•....•..•. 
Robert B. Sheh....•..•.••..•... 

Edward Mulligan............... . 


William B. Carter .•...........• 


S. Wallace Dawson, Jr ••..•.... 
Robert Annunziata ••.......•.... 
Jay R. Bloom..................• 
William B. Conway, Jr•.....•.• 
Bric Bippeau....•..•.•.......•• 
Dean C. Kehler .•.•••.••.•..•••. 
Geoffrey J.W. Kent •.....•...•.• 
Canning FOk Kin-ning ....•..•..• 
Douglas H. McCorkindale •••.•.•• 
James F. McDonald .••...••....•• 
Bruce Raben.•.••..••••...•...•. 
Michael R. Steed....••..••...•• 

Age Position 

52 Chairman of the Board and Director 
71 Co-Chairman' of the Board and Director 
52 Chief Executive Officer and Director; 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, 
G10balCenter Inc. 

48 Vice Chairman of the Board and Director 
50 President, Chief Operating Officer and 

Director 
50 Director; President, Global crossing 

North America 
58 Director; Vice Chairman of the Board, 

Asia Global Crossing 
56 Senior Vice President and Director 
42 Senior Vice President and Director 
47 Senior Vice President and Chief 

Financial Officer 
47 Senior Vice President, Human Resources 
38 Senior Vice President and General 

Counsel 
48 Chief Administrative Officer 
60 Executive Vice President, Construction 

and Operations 
44 Senior Vice President, Network 

Operations
55 President, Global crossing Development 

Co.; Chief Executive Officer, Global 
Marine Systems 


S4 President, Atlantic Crossing 

52 Director 

44 Director 

50 Director

48 Director 

43 Director 

57 Director 

48 Director 

60 Director 

60 Director 

46 Director 

SO Director 
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Gary Winnick--Mr. Winnick, foUnder of'GCL, has been Chairman of the Board 
of GCL since March 1997. Mr. Winnick is the founder and has been the Chairman 
and Chief Executive Officer of Pacific Capital Group, Inc. ("PCG"), a leading 
merchant bank specializing in telecommunications, media and technology, which 
has a substantial equity investment in GCL, since 1985. 

Lodwrick M. Cook--Mr. Cook has been CO-Chairman of the Board of GCL since 
September 1997 and Vice Chairman and Managing Director of PCG since 1997. He 
became Chairman of Global Marine Systems, a wholly-owned subsidiary of GCL, in 
1999. PriOr to joining PCG, Mr. Cook spent 39 years at Atlantic Richfield Co., 
last serving as Chairman of the Board of Directors from 1986 to 1995, when he 
became Chairman Emeritus. Mr.Cook is also a member of the Board of Directors 
of Castle & Cooke, Inc., Litex, Inc. and 911Notify.com. 

Leo J. Bindery, Jr.-_-In FebX'Uary 2000, Mr. Bindery was named CEO of GCL. 
Mr. Bindery has been a GCL Director since February 2000 and Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer of GCL's GlobalCenter Inc. subsidiary since December 1999. 
Prior thereto, he had been President and Chief Executive Officer of AT&T's 
Broadband and Internet Services division since March 1999. From March 1997 
until March 1999, Mr. Bindery was President of Tele-Communications, Inc., a 
cable television and programming company. Prior thereto, he was Managing 
General Partner of InterMedia Partners, a cable television operation that he 
founded in 1988. 

Thomas J. Casey--Mr. Casey has been Vice Chairman and a Director since 
December 1998, after having been appointed Managing Director of GCL in 
September 1998. Prior ·to joining GCL, Mr. Casey was co-head of Merrill Lynch & 
Co.'s Global Communications Investment Banking Group for-three years. gram 
1990 to 1995, Mr. Casey was a partner and co:head of the telecommunications 
and media group of the law firm of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher and Flom. Mr. 
Casey also serves as president of PCG. 

David L. Lee--Mr. Lee has been President and Chief Operating Officer and a 
Director of GCL since March 1997. He has also been a managing director of PCG 
since 1989. 

Joseph P. Clayton--Mr. Clayton has been a Director of GCL since September 
1999. He has also served as President, Global Crossing North America since 
that time. Mr. Clayton was Vice-Chairman of GCL from September 1999 to March 
2000. Prior to the Merger with Global Crossing, Mr. Clayton was Chief 
Executive Officer of Frontier since August 1997 having served as Frontier's 
President and Chief Operating Officer from June 1997 to August 1997. Prior 
thereto, he was Executive Vice President, Marketing and Sales--Americas and 
Asia, Thomson Consumer Electronics, a worldwide leader in the consumer 
electronics- industry. 

Jack M. Scanlon--Mr. Scanlon has been a Director since April 1998 and Vice­
Chairman of Asia Global Crossing since 1999. Mr. Scanlon was Chief Executive 
Officer of GCL from April 1998 to March 1999 and Vice Chairman of GCL from 
March 1999 to March 2000. Prior to joining GCL, Mr. Scanlon was President and 
General Manager of the Cellular Networks and Space Sector of Motorola Inc. and 
had been affiliated with Motorola Inc. since 1990. 

Abbott L. Brown--Mr. Brown has been a Senior Vice President and a Director 
of GCL since 1997. He had been a managing director and Chief Financial Officer 
of PCG from 1994 to 1998. From 1990 through 1994, Mr. Brown was Executive Vice 
President, Chief Financial Officer and a member of the board of directors of 
Sony Pictures Entertainment, Inc., a subsidiary of Sony corporation. 

Barry Porter--Mr. Porter has been a Senior Vice President and a director of 
GCL since 1997. He has also been a managing director of PCG since 1993. Prior 
thereto, Mr. Porter had been a Senior Managing Director in the investment 
b~ing department of Bear, Stearns & Co., Inc. 

Dan_J. Cohrs--Mr. Cohrs has been Senior Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer of GCL since May 1998. From 1993 to 1998, Mr. eohrs was.affiliated 
with GTE Corpora~ion, rising to the position of Vice ~resident and Chief 
Planning and Development Officer in 1997. 

John L. Comparin--Mr. Comparin has been Senior Vice President, Human 
Resources of GCL since August 1999. Prior thereto, Mr. Comparin had been 
Senior Vice President--HUman Resources of ALLTEL Corporation, an ~ormation 
technology company that provides wireline and wireless communications and 
information services. 
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James C. Gorton--Mr. Gorton has been Senior Vice President and General 

Counsel of GeL since July 1998, and also served as Secretary of GCL from 

August 1998 through September 1999. From 1994 to 1998, Mr. Gorton was a 

partner in the New York law firm of Simpson Thacher & Bartlett. 


John A. Scarpati--Mr. Scarpati was appointed Chief Administrative Officer 

of GCL in December 1999. He previously served as Vice President and Chief 

Financial Officer at AT&T Business Services Group from 1998 to 1999. Prior 

thereto, Mr. Scarpati served since 1984 in various executive officer. positions 

for the Teleport Communications Group, including Senior vice President and 

Chief Financial Officer. 


Robert B. Sheh--Mr. Sheh has been Executive Vice President, Construction 

and Operations since February 1999. From 1992 to 1998, Mr. Sheh served as 

President and Chief Executive Officer of International Technology Corporation, 

an environmental manage~ent services firm, and as Chairman and Chief Executive 

of Air & Water Technologies, an environmental management services firm. From 

1989 to 1992 Mr. Sheh served as President of The Ralph M. Parsons Company, a 

worldwide engineering and construction company. Mr. Sheh held positions of 

increasing responsibility at Parsons over a period of 20 years. 


Edward Mulligan--Mr. Mulligan joined Global Crossing Ltd. in November 1999 

as Senior Vice President for Engineering and Operations. In July 1973, Mr. 

Mulligan began his career with AT&T. In 1990 he joined Teleport Communications 

Group ("TCG") and rose within the organization to head the Product Lines-of­

Business. In 1998 he rejoined AT&T when TCG was acquired by AT&T. 


William B. Carter--Mr. Carter has served as President of Global Crossing 
Development Co., a subsidiary of GCL since September 1997. Since July 1999, he 
has served as CEO of the Global Marine Systems subsidiary of GeL. Prior to 
joining GCL, he was president and chief executive officer of AT&T Submarine 
Systems, Inc., overseeing the research and development, planning, '1 

negotiations, engineering, implementation, and integration of their 
international cable and satellite facilities. Mr. Carter previously served as 
dire'ctor of international network operations for AT&T. 

S. Wallace Dawson, Jr.--Mr. Dawson joined GCL in September 1997 and was 

appointed Chief Executive Officer, Atlantic Crossing Ltd. in August 1998. He 

joined Bell Laboratories in 1968 and subsequently became associated with AT&T 

Long Lines, where he was responsible for AT&T Packet Switched Services and 

Data Networking Services. At AT&T Submarine Systems, Inc., he had overall 

delivery responsibility for implementation of all submarine cable projects. 


Robert Annunziata--Mr. Annunziata, a Director of GCL since March 1999, was 

Chief Executive Officer of GCL from February 1999 through March 2000. FrOm 

September 1998 to February 1999, Mr. Annunziata was President of AT&T's 

business services group, responsible for the AT&T global network. Prior 

thereto, Mr. Annunziata was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the 

Teleport Communications Group, a competitive local exchange carrier, from 1983 

to 1998. 


Jay R. Bloom--Mr. Bloom, a Director of GeL since March 1997, is a managing 

director of CIBC World Markets Corp. and co-head of its Leveraged Finance 

Group. In addition, Mr. Bloom is a member of CIBC's U.S. Management Committee; 

co-head of CIBC World Markets High Yield Merchant Banking Funds; and a 

managing director of Caravelle Advisors, L.L.C., the investment advisor to 

Caravelle Investment Fund, L.L.C., an entity that owns shares of Global 

Crossing common stock. Mr. Bloom is also a managing director and member of 

Trimaran Fund II, L.L.C., Trimaran 'Fund Management, L.L.C., and Trimaran 

Investments II, L.L.C. Prior to joining CIBC World Markets in 1995, Mr. Bloom 

was a founder and managing director of The Argosy Group L.P. Mr. Bloom also 

serves as a director of CIBC World Markets Corp., Heating Oil Partners, L.P., 


.. 	 Cdnsolidated Ady.isers Limited,L.L.C.; Argosy Heating Partners., Inc., Dominos, 
Inc., tASIS Healthcare Corporation and Morris Material Handling, Inc., 

William E. Conway, Jr.--Mr. Conway, a Director of GCL since August 1998, 

has been a managing director of The Carlyle Group, a 'private global investment 

firm, since 1987. Prior thereto, Mr. Conway had been Seni~ Vice President and 

Chief Financial Officer of MCI Communications Corporation. Mr. Conway also 

,serves as director of Nextel Communications, Inc. 
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Ziff-Davis Inc., a publicly-listed 
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company whose majority shareholder is Softbank, Corp. Ziff-Davis Inc. is a 
leading integrated media and marketing company focused on computing and 
internet-related technology. Mr. Hippeau has held this position since December 
1993, prior to which he held other senior executive positions within ziff ­
Davis. He is also a director of Ziff-Davis Inc., Yahoo!, Inc., and Starwood 
Hotels and Resorts Worldwide, Inc. 

Dean C. Kehler--Mr. Kehler, a Director of GCL since March 1997, is a 
managing director of CIEC World Markets Corp. and co-head of its Leveraged 
Finance Group. In addition, Mr. Kehler is a member of CIBC's U.S. Management 
Committee; co-head of CIBC World Markets High Yield Merchant Eanking Funds; 
and a managing director of caravelle Advisors, L.L.C., the investment advisor 
to Caravelle Investment Fund, L.L.C., an entity that owns shares of Global 
Crossing common stock. Mr. Kehler is also a managing director and member of 
Trimaran .Fund II, L.L.C., Trimaran Fund Management, L.L:C., and Trimaran 
Investments II, L.L.C. Prior to joining CIEC World Markets in 1995, Mr. Kehler 
was a founder and managing director of The Argosy Group L.P. Mr. Kehler also 
serves as a director of CIEC world Markets Corp., Booth Creek Group, Inc. and 
Heating Oil Partners, L.P. 

Geoffrey J.W. Kent--Mr. Kent, a Director of GCL since August 1998, is 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Abercrombie & Kent group of 
companies in the travel-related services industry, and has been associated 
with these companies since 1967. 

Canning Fok Kin-ning--Mr. Fok has been a Director of GCL since February 
2000. He has served as Group Managing Director of Hutchison Whampoa Limited 
("HutchiSOn") since August 1993. Hutchison, part of the Li Ka-shing group of 
companies, is a large multi-national conglomerate based in Hong Kong. In 
January 2000, Hutchison formed a joint venture with GCL to pursue fixed-line 
telecommunications and internet opportunities in the Hong Kong Special 
Administrative Region, China. Mr. Fok is the Chairman of ~utchison 
Telecommunications (Australia} Limited and Partner Communications Company Ltd. 
and Deputy Chairman of Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited and 
Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited. He is also a director of Cheung Kong 
(Holdings) Limited and VoiceStream Wireless Corporation. 

Douglas H. McCorkindale--Mr. McCorkindale, a Director of GCL since 
September 1999, is Vice Chairman and President of Gannett Co., Inc., a 
nationwide diversified communications company, and has held that position 
since September 1997. Prior thereto, he was Gannett's Vice Chairman and Chief 
Financial and Administrative Officer." Mr. McCorkindale is also a director of 
Gannett and Continental Airlines and a director or trustee of a number of 
investment companies in the family of Prudential Mutual Funds. 

James F. McDonald--Mr. McDonald, a Director of GCL since September 1999, 
has been President and Chief Executive Officer of Scientific-Atlanta, Inc., a 
leading supplier of broadband communications systems, satellite-based video, 
voice and data communications networks and world-wide customer service and 
support, since 1993. He is also a director of Scientific-Atlanta and 
Burlington Resources, Inc. 

Eruce Raben--Mr. Raben, a Director of GCL since March 1997, is a managing 
director of CIEC Oppenheimer. Prior to joining CIEC Oppenheimer in January 
1996, Mr. Raben was a founder, managing director and co-head of the corporate 
Finance Department of Jefferies & Co., Inc. since 1990. Mr. Raben also serves 
as a director of Optical Security, Inc., Evercom, Inc., Terex Corporation and 
Equity Marketing, Inc. 

Michael R. Steed--Mr. Steed, a Director of GCL since March 1997, has been a 
managing director of PCG since December 1999. Prior thereto, Mr. Steed had 
been Senior Vice President of Investments for the Union Labor Life Insurance 
Company, ULLICO Inc. (DULLICO") and its family of companies and President of 
Trust Fund Advisors, ULLICO's investment management subsidiary, since 1992. 
Mr. Steed also serves as a director of Value America and VR-l. 

SECTION 16(a} B~FICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPL~CE 

ttnder the federal securities laws, our directors, execut4ve officers and 10% 
shareholders are required within a prescribed period of time to report to the 
Securities and Exchange Commission transactions and holdings in 
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Global Crossing's common stock. Based solely on a review of the copies of such 
forms received by us and on written representations from certain reporting 
persons that no annual corrective filings were required for those persons, we 
believe that during fiscal year 1999 all these filing requirements were timely
satisfied, with the exception of one Form 4 relating to a single transaction 
in Global Crossing common stock which was filed late by Lodwrick Cook. 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

Compensation Committee Report 

Compensation Philosophy 

Global Crossing's compensation philosophy is to relate the compensation of 
Global Crossing's executive officers to measures of company performance that 
contribute to increased value for Global Crossing's shareholders. 

To assure that compensation policies are appropriately aligned with the 
value Global Crossing creates for shareholders, Global Crossing's compensation 
philosophy for executive officers takes into account the following goals: 

enhancing shareholder value; 

representing a competitive and performance-oriented environment that 
motivates executive officers to achieve a high level of individual, 
business unit and corporate results in the business environment in which 
they operate; 

relating incentive-based compensation to the performance of each 
executive officer, as measured by financial and strategic performance 
goals; and 

enabling Global Crossing to attract and retain top quality management. 

The Compensation Committee of the board of directors, which we will refer to 
as the "Committee," periodically reviews the components of compensation for 
Global Crossing's executive officers on the basis of this philosophy and 
periodically evaluates the competitiveness of its executive officer 
compensation program relative to comparable companies. When the Committee 
determines that executive officer compensation adjustments or bonus awards are 
necessary or appropriate, it makes such modifications as it deems appropriate. 
However, ·the board of directors has sole authority to modify the compensation 
of the Chairman, the Co-Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO")., 
although the Committee makes recommendations to the board in this regard. 

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 limits the deductibility 
of certain annual compensation payments in excess of $1 million to a company's 
executive officers. It is the objective of the Compensation Committee to 
administer compensation plans in compliance with the provisions of Section 
162(m) where feasible and where consistent with Global crossing's compensation 
philosophy as stated above. In that connection, at the 2000 Annual General 
Meeting of Shareholders, the Company intends to recommend the adoption of an 
annual bonus plan meeting the requirements of Section 162(m). The Company 
already has in place a stock incentive plan pursuant to which stock-based 
incentives may be awarded in compliance with Section 162(m} • 

Executive Compensation Components 

The major components of compensation for executive officers, including the 
CEO, are base salary, annual bonuses and stock option grants. Each component 
of the total executive officer compensation package emphasizes a different 
aspect of Global Crossing's compensation philosophy. 

Base Sillary.• Base salaries for executive officers are initially set upon 
hiring by the Committee (or, in the case of the Cbai~, the Co­
Chairman and the CEO, by the board of direct~rs u~on the Committee's 
recommendat.ionl based on recruiting requirement"! (Le., market demand),
competitive pay practices, individual experience and breadth of 
knowledge, internal equity considerations and other objective and 
subjective factors. Increases to base salary are also determined by the 
Committee or the board of directors, as applicable. Increases are 
determined primarily on an evaluation of competitive 
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data, the individual's performance and contribution to Global Crossing, 
and Global Crossing's overall performance. Base salaries are 
periodically reviewed by the Compensation Committee. 

Target Annual Bonuses. Global crossing relies to a large degree on 
annual bonus compensation to attract, retain and reward executives of 
outstanding abilities and to motivate them to perform to the full ~tent 
of their abilities. Target bonuses for executive officers, including the 
CEO, are determined on the basis of competitive bonus levels, level of 
responsibility, ability to influence results on a corporate or business 
unit level and, on occasion, subjective factors. Target annual bonuses 
for the Chairman, the Co-Chairman and the CEO are determined by the 
board of directors upon recommendation by the Compensation Committee. 
Target annual bonuses for other executive officers are determined by the 
committee. 

Stock Option Grants. The only current long-term incentive opportunity 
for executive officers, including the CEO, is the award of stock option 
grants under the 1998 Global Crossing Ltd. Stock Incentive Plan. In 
contrast to bonuses that are paid for prior year accomplishments, stock 
option grants represent incentives tied to future stock appreciation. 
They are intended to provide executive officers with a direct incentive 
to enhance shareholder value. Options generally vest over a three-year 
period with a maximum term of ten years. Option grants are awarded at 
the discretion of the CQmmittee primarily based on an evaluation of 
competitive data and the anticipated contribution that the executive 
officer will make to Global Crossing. 

The Com~ttee conducts annually a full review of the performance of Global 
Crossing and its executive officers in assessing compensation levels. The 
Committee considers various qualitative and quantitative indicators of both 
Global Crossing and the individual performance of its executive officers. This 
review evaluates Global Crossing's performance both on a short- and long~term 
basis. The Committee may consider such quantitative measures as Total 

. Shareholder Return (-TSR"), Return on Shareholder's Equity ("ROSEW), Return on 
Capital Employed ("ROCE"), revenue growth, and growth in Adjusted EBITDA and 
other measures of profitability. The Committee may also consider qualitative 
measures such as leadership, experience, strategic direction and overall 
contribution to Global Crossing. 

In addition, the Committee evaluates compensation in light of the 
compensation practices of other companies in the telecommunications industry 
and peer group companies as may be determined by the Committee. These . 
companies are used as a reference standard for establishing levels of base 
salary, bonus and stock options. For 1999, executive officer compensation was 
targeted at the 75th percentile relative to peer group companies in the 
telecom industry. 

2000 Executive Compensation Review 

Based on the factors set forth above, the Committee approved (or, in the 

case of the Chairman, Co-Chairman and CEO, recommended that the board of 

directors approve) salary increases and 1999 bonus awards for all executive 

officers. In addition, the Committee approved approximately ll,OOO,OOO 

additional stock options grants to executive officers during 1999. 


Robert Annunziata was appointed CEO in February 1999. Jack Scanlon held the 
position of CEO from the beginning of 1999 through February 1999. In 
determining salary increases and 1999 bonus awards for Messrs. Annunziata and 
Scanlon, the Committee reviewed the performance of Global Crossing against its 
goals. During 1999, annual revenue increased from $420 million to $l.7 billion 
as a result of internal growth and acquisitions completed during the year. 
Global Crossing's market capitalization grew from $lO billion to $43 billion 
or 330%. In addi~ion, Mr. Annunziata was a-key member of the team that 
comple;ed the successful merger with Frontier corporation, and the 
acquisitions of Racal Telecom and Global Marine Systems ••. 

'!'HE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE 
James F. MCDonald,_Chairman 
Geoffrey J.W. Kent 
Douglas McCorkindale 
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Summary Compensation Table 

The table below sets forth information concerning compensation paid to 
certain executive officers during the lase fiscal year. 

Annual Ccmpenaacion 	 Lon .. -ra"", Camp_d.on 

Other Restricted Saeurities 
_1 stock 1J'ndedying t.'1'IP AU Other 

Year Salary Bonus!l) Campensacion!J) Aw8%Q!s) Options/SARa payouts Campensatian(3) 

Cary Winnick•••••••••••• 199' $169,615 785.000 $ 94,097 
Cbairlnlm 

Robert ADDUDSiata· •••••• 1999 464,67' 11,000,000 7.500,000 
1'--.:- Chie! 

BxecUtive Officer 
Jack M. Scanlon· •••••••• 19" 62J,500 504,000 . $ 5,000 

Vice CbaiJ:lasn, Asia 199. 450,000 480,000 $213.'09 3,600,000 
Glob&l emssing 

Tbcoou J. casey......... 19" 9::15,000 625,000 1,600,000 
Vice Chairman 199. ::IU.61!i7 533,333 ::1,000,000 

John A. scarpati •••••••• 19" 36,217 2,000,000 1,000,000 lll.lll 

Cldef Administrative 
Officer 

William B. cart.. r ••••••• 19'9 6::1::1,500 3!15, 000 5,000 
President, Global 19!1a 600,000 1,050,000 3,000,000 $ 5,000 
Cra••lng DeVelopment 1'97 $::100,000 750,000 
co. I Chief llCecut:l.ve 
Officer. Global Marine 
Syatees 

* Mr. Annunziata became Chief Executive Officer in February 1999 and Mr. 
Scanlon resigned the position in February 1999. Mr. Scanlon is still one of 
the four most highly compensated officers of Global Crossing other. than the 
CEO. 

(lJ 	The amounts in this column represent annual bonuses, except that Mr. 
Annunziata's amount reflects a $10,000,000 signing bonus and a $1,000,000 
annual bonus; and Mr. Scarpati's amount reflects a $2,000,000 signing 
bonus. 

(2) 	Mr. Winnick received imputed income for the personal use of corporate 
aircraft in. 1999. 

(3) 	 Messrs. Scanlon and carter received matching company contributions on 
their 401(k) plan deferrals. Mr. Scarpati is to receive an $B,OOO,OOO 
bonus upon the completion of 3 years of service, of which 1/36th was 
accrued in 1999. 

Certain compensation Arrangements 

The 1998 Global Crossing Ltd. Stock Incentive Plan (the "1998 Plan")
provides that, unless otherwise provided in the specific award agreement, upon 
a "change in control, It certain awards granted under the 1998 Plan may, in the 
sole discretion of the Compensation Committee, be deemed to vest immediately. 
The award agreements generally provide for accelerated vesting upon a change 
in control. A ·change in control" is defined under the 1998 Plan in_general as 
the occurrence of any of the following: (1) any person or entity, other than 
certain of our affiliates, becomes the "beneficial owner," as defined under 
Rule 13d-3 promUlgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, of 
securities of Global Crossing representing 30\ or more of the combined voting 
power of our then outstanding securities; (2) during any period of 24 months, 
individuals who at the beginning of such period constituted the board of 
directors and any new director (other than any directors who meet certain 

" 	 exceptions spec;l.,fied in the 1998 Plan) whose election was approved in advance 
by a vQte of at least two-thirds of the directors then still in office cease 
for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the l:!0iilrdi ,(3) our 
shareholders approve any transaction pursuant to which Global Crossing is 
merged or conso11dated with any other company, other "than a merger or 
co~olidation which would result in our shareholders immediately prior thereto 
continuing to own more than 65t of the combined voting power of the voting 
securities of the surviving entity outstanding after such transaction; or (4) 
our shareholders approve a plan of complete liquidation of Global~C:ossing or 
an agreement for the sale or disposition by Global Crossing of all or 
substantially all of our assets, other than the liquidation of Global Crossing
into a wholly owned subsidiary. 
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In January 2000, the board of directors authorized Global crossing to enter 
into change in control agreements with our executive officers and certain of 
our other key executives. These agreements provide for certain benefits upon 
actual or constructive termination of employment in the event of a "Change in 
Control" (as defined below). With respect to the executive officers named in 
the SUmmary Compensation Table above, if, within 24 months of the month in 
which a Change in Control occurs, his employment is terminated by us (other 
than for cause or by reason of death or disability), or he terminates 
employment for "good reason" (generally, an unfavorable change in employment 
status, compensation or benefits or a required relocation), he shall be 
entitled to receive (i) a lump sum payment equal to three times the sum of his 
annua~ base salary plus guideline bonus opportunity (reduced by any cash 
severance benefit otherwise paid to the executive under any applicable 
severance plan or other severance arrangement), (ii) a prorated annual target 
bonus for the year in which the Change in Control occurs, (iii) continuation 
of his life and health insurance coverages for three years and (iv) payment of 
any excise taxes due in respect of the foregoing benefits and of any other 
payments made to the executive as a result of the Change in Control. The term 
of each of these agreements will continue through December 31, 2001, after 
which it will be automatically extended for additional one-year terms subject 
to termination by either party on one year's prior notice. There is an 
automatic_24-month extension following any Change in Control. A Change in 
Control generally is deemed to occur if: (1) any person or entity, other than 
certain of our affiliates, becomes the "beneficial owner" of securities of 
Global Crossing representing 20\ or more of the combined voting power of our 
then outstanding securities; (2) during any period of 24 months, individuals 
who at the beginning of such period constituted the board of _directors and any 
new director (other than any directors who meet certain exceptions specified 
in the change in control agreement) whose election was approved in advance by 
a vote of at least two-thirds of the directors then still in office cease for 
any reason to constitute at least a majority of the board; (3] any transaction 
is consummated pursuant to which Global Crossing is merged or consolidated 
with any other company, other than a merger or consolidation which would 
result in our shareholders "immediately prior thereto continuing to own more 
than 65\ of the combined voting power of the voting securities of the 
surviving entity outstanding after such transaction; or (4) Global Crossing is 
completely liquidated or we sell or dispose of all or substantially all of our 
assets, other than the liquidation of Global Crossing into a wholly owned 
subsidiary. 

In December 1999, we entered into an employment agreement with Leo J. 
Bindery, Jr. providing for Mr. Hindery's employment as Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer of our GlobalCenter subsidiary for an initial term of three 
years. The employment agreement provided for a base annual salary of not less 
than $500,000 and a guaranteed bonus of not less than $500,000. Mr. Bindery 
also received stock options to purchase 500,000 shares of Global crossing 
common stock at an exercise price of $45 per share. These stock options vest 
34) on Mr. Hindery's first date of employment and the balance in 22' 
increments on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of such date. 
Pursuant-to the employment agreement, Mr. Bindery is also entitled to receive 
stock options covering 5.5' of the common stock of our GlobalCenter subsidiary 
or of a tracking stock designed to reflect the performance of the GlobalCenter 
business. Such GlobalCenter stock options will have an aggregate exercise 
price of $110 million and will vest 34\ immediately and the balance in 22\ 
increments on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of Mr. 
Bindery's employment start date. In March 2000, Mr. Bindery's compensation 
arrangements were changed to reflect his new responsibilities as CEO of Global 
CroBBing Ltd. At that time, Mr. Hindery's annual base salary was increased to 
$995,000 and he received an additiOnal 2,000,000 Global crossing Ltd. stock 
options at an exercise price of $54.375 per share, such options to vest 
ratably over three years. upon a "change in control" or upon the actual or 
constructive discharge of Mr. Bindery without ·cause" (as defined in Mr. 
Bindery's agree~~nt), all of his optiOns will immediately vest in full, and 
Mr. Bi~dery will be entitled to receive a lump sum payment equal to the sum of 
his annual base salary and bonus through the end of the te~ of_the agreement. 

In February 1999, we entered into an employment agreement with Robert 
Annunziata providing for Mr. Annunziata's employment as C~ef Executive 
Officer of Global Crossing for an initial term of three years. The employment 
agreement provided for a base annual salary of not less than $500,000 and a 
target annual bonus of not less than $500,000. In addition, Mr. Annunziata was 
provided a $10 million signing bonus, subject to partial repayment in certain 
circumstances, as well as a $5 million fully recourse loan facility to be used 
to purchase 
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shares of Global Crossing common stock to the extent Mr. Annunziata used a 

like amount of his own funds for such purpose. Mr. Annunziata did not elect to 

make use of this loan facility. Mr. Annunziata also received stock options to 

purchase 4,000,000 (after giving effect to the March 9, 1999 stock split) 

shares of Global Crossing common stock at a split-adjusted exercise price of 

$l9.81 per share. These stock options were to vest in 25% increments starting 

on February 19, 1999 and on February 22 of each of the first three years of 

Mr. Annunziata's employment. Under the employment agreement, Mr. Annunz iata 

was given the right, for a period of six months following the initial term of 

the agreement, to require the Company to purchase from him any shares of the 

Company's common stock held by him as a result of the exercise of the 

4,000,000 stock options at a purchase price equal to $49.625 per share. 

Pursuant to the employment agreement, Mr. Annunziata also received stock 

options to purchase an aggregate of 500,000 (post-split) shares of Global 

Crossing common stock, at a split-adjusted exercise price of $24.81 per share, 

all of which became vested on Mr. Annunziata's first day of employment. upon 

Mr. Annunziata's resignation as CEO on March 2, 2000, all of Mr. Annunziata's 

then unvested stock options granted under the agreement became immediately 

vested and Mr. Annunziata became entitled to receive a lump sum payment equal 

to two times his then annual base salary and bonus. 


Global Crossing entered into an employment agreement, dated as of April 1, 

1998, with Jack Scanlon, providing for Mr. Scanlon's employment as Global 

Crossing's Chief Executive Officer for an initial term of two years. The 

employment agreement provided for a base annual salary of not less than 

$600,000 and a guaranteed bonus of not less than $400,000. In addition, Mr. 

Scanlon was issued options to purchase a total of 3,600,000 (after adjusting 

for subsequent stock splits) shares of Global Crossing common stock at a 

split-adjusted exercise price of $0.835 per share. These options vest in 25% 

increments on Mr. Scanlon's first day of employment and on each of the first 

three anniversaries of that date. upon a wchange in control w of Global 

Crossing, as defined in the 199B Plan, all of these options will immediately 

vest, and Mr. Scanlon will be entitled to terminate the agreement and receive 

a lump sum payment equal to two times his then annual base salary and bonus. 

Mr. Scanlon will also be entitled to such lump sum payment if he is actually 

or constructively discharged without "cause" (as defined in the agreement). 

Mr. Scanlon voluntarily resigned as Chief Executive Officer of Global Crossing 

in February 1999 to become Vice Chairman of Global Crossing. His employment 

agreement was extended for one additional year at that time but otherwise was 

left substantially unchanged. 


In September 1998, Mr. Thomas Casey was hired by Pacific capital Group as 

its President. At such time, it was also agreed among Pacific Capital Group, 

Global Crossing and Mr. casey that, in addition to Mr. Casey's role as 

President of Pacific Capital Group, Mr. Casey would also serve as Managing 

Director of Global Crossing. In connection with such emp~oyment, Mr. Casey 

received economic rights to 2,000,000 shares of the Global Crossing common 

stock at an effective price of $2.00 per share. Such rights vest in 33% 

increments on the first day of Mr. Casey's employment and on each of the first 

and second anniversaries of the first day of Mr. Casey's employment. In 

connection with Mr. casey's dual employment, Global crossing and Pacific 

Capital Group established an arrangement whereby each entity would be 

responsible for a portion of Mr. Casey's salary and long-term compensation 

based upon the relative amount of time spent by Mr. Casey on matters 

pertaining to such entity. Initially, BO' of Mr. Casey's salary and long-term 

compensation was allocated to Global Crossing and 20' of such amounts was 

allocated to Pacific Capital Group, subject to adjustment and re-allocation on 

an annual basis. On March lB, 1999, in recognition of the time spent by Mr. 

Casey on Global Crossing matters to such date and his expected ongoing 

responsibilities with Global Crossing, the Global Crossing board of directors 

elected to assume Mr. Casey's employment agreement, including the full amount 

of Mr. Casey's salary and long-term compensation, with Mr. Casey serving full 

time in his role with Global Crossing as Managing Director and Vice Chairman 


.. of the board of directors. . 
In D!cember 1999, Global Crossing entered into an employment agreement with 


John A. Scarpati providing for Mr. Scarpati's employment-a~ Chief 

Administrative Officer of Global crossing for an initial term of three years. 

The employment agreement provides for a base salary of not less than $500,000 

ana a target annual bonus of 100' of his ,base annual sala~. In addition, Mr. 

Scarpati was provided a $2 million signing bonus, suhject to partial repayment 

in certain circumstances, as well as the right to an $8 million payment in the 

event he remains employed by Global crossing for three years or is -actually or 

constructively discharged without "cause Q (as defined in the agreement). In 

connection with his employment, Mr. Scarpati received stock options to 

purchase 
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1,000,000 shares of Global Crossing common stock at an exercise price of $53 
per share. These stock options vest in 25% increments on the date Mr. Scarpati 
commenced employment with the Company and on each of the first three 
anniversaries thereof. Upon a "change in control" (as defined in the 199B 
Plan) or upon the actual or constructive discharge of Mr. Scarpati without 
"cause" (as defined in the agreement), these options will immediately vest in 
full, and Mr. Scarpati will be entitled to terminate the agreement and receive 
a lump sum payment equal to the sum of his then annual base salary" and bonus. 

compensation of Outside Directors 

Each director who is not an employee of Global crossing receives cash 
compensation of $2,500 for each meeting of the board of directors attended and 
$1,500 for each attended meeting of a committee of the board of which he or 
she is a member. In addition, each non-employee chairman of a board committee 
also receives an annual retainer of $5,000. During 1999, each non-employee 
di~ector commencing service on tbe board received options to purchase 120,000 
shares of Global Crossing common stock at an exercise price equal to the fair 
market value of Global Crossing common stock on the date of grant. Each such 
option has a term of 10 years, became exercisable immediately with respect to 
the first 30,000 shares, and will become exercisable with respect to the 
remaining 90,000 shares in two equal installments on each of the first and 
second anniversaries of the date of grant, in each case so long as such 
director continues to be a director of Global crossing on such date. 
Commencing in 2000, the board of directors adjusted the level of initial stock 
option grants such that new non-employee directors now receive 40,000 option 
shares (subject to adjustment in the event of a stock split) on the date on 
which. they commence board service. 

Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year 

The table below sets forth information concerning options granted to certain 
executive officers during the last fiscal year. 

Pol:ential a ..aUzohl.. Val.... AI: 

AallOrted. Amm.al Rat.. of Stocle :Price 

IDdi"idual GrlmU Approciill:icm for Option Ter1II 

lIIWaber of! • at TIItill. 

Securities Optic... Mazket Price 

_rlyi ll9 Graated to of c:oa-a 
Options Dploy". ill ExeZ'C'ise or Stock CD BXpiraticm ..... Granted Piacal Year Baae P'rlc:e GraDt Date Date n n 10' 

Guy .imI.!.ck ••••••••••• 

Cbair1lllJ1 

lIObert AmlUAa1ata...... .. 4,000,000 1l.1n 'U.113 $24.112 2/22/09 $19, "'.000 $82,412,534 $178,171,752 

'armer c:b.i~ Executive 500. 000 1.'0" 24.812 24.112 2/22/0' 7,802,0'7 19.771.9&9 

Offic..r 3, 000, 000 1.3n 45.000 45.000 1:1./3/09 84,900.775 215 .155.232 

Jack II. SCUlleD•••••••• 

Vice Cb&irDIU., Aaia 

Global croasing 

'fllo...... J. caaey.••••••• 300,000 0.8n &1.375 n.375 5/U/09 11,57',522 2'.3".713 

'Vice o.airDIU. lOO.OOO 0.8n 25.000 25.000 9/24/09 4.71'.710 1l.95l.0U 

1,000,000 ~.7" 45.000 45.000 1~/3/09 28.300,258 n,718.'11 

Joha A. SCa.:pati••••••• 1,000,000 2.7" ~5l.000 $45.000 12/3/09 $(8.000.0001 $20.300,258 $ &3.718.411 

Chief AdminUtra.l".. 

Officer 

.iili.... Cut..r ••••.•. 

Pr...i~t;, Glcbal 

cro.sing Develop_I: 

Co., Chief Bxe"".1Y.. 
Ofticer. Glabal 

Urin.. Syatema 
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Aggregated option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year-End Option 
Values 

The table below sets forth information concerning exercises of stock options 
C

by certain executive officers duri~g the last fiscal year and the fiscal year_ 
end value of such executive officers' unexercised options. 

Rumber of securities 
Underlying Unexercised Value ot Unexercised 

Options In-The-Money OptiODs(~) 

Shares Acquired Value 
Rame on Bxercise Rea1ized(1) Bxerciaab1e Unexerciaable Exercisable UBexercisab1e 

Gary Winnick .•••••..•••• l,:aOO,OOO 600,000 $58,998,000 $ ~9,499,OOO 
Chairman 

Robert Annunziata ••••••• 81,576 $ :a,~43,340 1,500,000 6,000,000 42,781,000 105,561,000 

Former Chiet EXecutive 
Otficer 

Jack M. Scanlon ••••••••• 345,680 1~,5~5,410 1,334,560 1,800,000 65,613,64~ 88,497,000 
Vice Chairman, Asia 
Global Crossing 

:rIIomas J. Casey•••.••••• 1,006,666 1,926,666 33,699,968 4~,799,968 

Vice Chairman 
John A. Scarpati •••••••• 33},334 666,666 
Chiet Administrative 
Otficer 

William S. Carter••••••• 174,144 4,860,345 1,706,096 1,000,000 83, 880,:aio 49,165,000 

President, Global 
C:osaing Development 
Co., Chiet SXscutive 
ottice Global Marine 

(1) Amounts indicated are based upon the difference between the exercise price 
. and the closing market price on the exercise date. 
(2) 	Amounts indicated are based upon the difference between the exercise price 

and the closing market price per share of, the commOIl stock of $50.00 on 
December 31, 1999. 

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation 

The Compensation Committee of the Global Crossing board of directors 
consists of Messrs. McDonald, Kent and McCorkindale, none of whom had any 
relatiOIlships with Global Crossing requiring disclosure under Securities and 
Exchange Commission rules. However, prior to November· 4, 1999, the 
Compensation Committee consisted of Lodwrick M. Cook, Michael R. Steed and Jay 
R. Levine (an employee of an affiliate of Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce), 
who were involved in certain transactions described in Item 13 below. 
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Comparison of CUmulative Total Returns 

The graph below compares the cumulative total shareholder return on Global 
Crossing common stock for the period from August 14, 1998, the initial date of 
trading of Global Crossing common stock, to December 31, 1999 with the 
cumulative total return of the Standard & Poor's 500 Stock Index and the 
NASDAQ Telecom Index over the same period. The graph assumes $100 invested on 
August 14, 1998 in Global Crossing common stock and $100 invested on such date 
in each of the Standard & Poor's 500 Stock Index and the NASDAQ Telecom Index, 
with dividends reinvested. In the proxy statement provided to shareholders in 
connection with our 1999 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, we used a 
peer group of fiber optic cable providers comprised of Qwest, Level 3 
Communications, Inc., Metromedia Fiber Network, Inc., IXC Communications, Inc. 
and Equant NV (the. "Old Peer Groupft). We have decided to replace the Old Peer 
Group index with the NASDAQ Telecom Index because we believe tbe latter index 
to "be readily accessible to our Shareholders and more representative of the 
industries in which we now compete. In accordance with SEC rules, the graph 
below also illustrates the cumulative total shareholder return of the Old Peer 
Group over the relevant period. 

Stock Performance 
[LINE GRAPH] 

S&P 500 NASDAQ 
GBLX Stock Index Telecom Index Old Peer .Group 

----------­ ------------­ -------------­
08/14/1998 
09/30/1998 
12/31/1998 
03/31/1999 
06/30/1999 
09/30/1999 
12/31/1999 

100 
81.B6 

176.96 
362.75 
334.31 
207.94 
392.16 

100 
95.7 

115.67 
121.04 
129.17 
. 120.7 
139.25 

100 
91.16 
125.6 

155.04 
164.27 
156.67 
254.61 

100 
83.51 

124.49 
179.48 
175.77 
151. 07 
230.11 

At 12/31/99, a $100 initial investment is worth: 
GBLX $392.16 
S&P 500 Stock Index $139.25 
NASDAQ Telecom Index $254.61 
Old Peer Group $230.11 
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BE.t.'lEFICIAL OWNERS .AND MANAGEMENT 

The following table sets forth, as of March 3, 2000, certain information 
regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock by (i) each person or 
entity who is known by us to own beneficially 5% or more of our voting common 
stock, Iii} each of our directors and executive officers and (iii) all of our 
directors and executive officers as a group. To our knowledge, each such 
shareholder has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares 
shown, unless otherwise noted. For purposes of this table, an individual is 
deemed to have sole beneficial ownership of securities owned jointly with such 
individual's spouse. Amounts appearing in the table below include (i) all 
shares of common stock outstanding as of March 3, 2000, (ii) all shares of 
common stock issuable upon the exercise of options within 60 days of March 3, 
2000 and (iii) all shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of 
warrants within 60 days of March 3, 2000. The warrants designated below as 
"New PCG Warrants" and "GCL Warrants" each represent the right to immediately 
purchase shares of GeL common stock at an exercise price of $9.50 per share. 

Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock 

Shares Shares 

N'umber of 
Shares(l) 

Subject to 
New PCG 
Warrants 

Subject 
to GCL 

Warrants 

Shares 
Subject to 
Cptions(2) 

Percentage 
of Class 

Pacific Capital Group, 
Inc.(3) ..•..••••••.••.• 
360 North Crescent 
Drive 

Beverly Hills, 
California 90210 

Canadian Imperial Bank 
of Commerce(4) ••••.•.•• 
161 Bay Street, 8th 
Floor-~BCE Place 

P.P. Box 500 
M5J2S8, Toronto, Canada 

Gary Winnick(5) ••.•••••• 
Lodwrick M. Cook•.•.•••• 
Leo J. Bindery, Jr •••••• 
Thomas J. Casey(6) •.•••. 
Abbott L. Brown(7) •.••.. 
Joseph Clayton....•.•.•• 
Dan J. Cohrs ••..••.•.••• 
John Comparin ••••••••••. 
James C. Gorton ••••••.•• 
David L. Lee(a} ••••••••• 
Barry Porter .•.••••••.•. 
John M. Scanlon••••....• 
John A. Scarpati ••••••.• 
Robert Shah•••.•••••••.• 
William B. Carter ••••••• 
Wallace S. Dawson•••...• 
Edward Mulligan ••••••••• 
Robert Annunziata •....•. 
Jay R. Bloom(9) ••••.•••. 
William E. Conway, 
Jr. (10) ..••••.•••...••• 

" Canning Fok Kin:-)'.ling •••• 
Bric Hippeau••.•••..•.•. 
Dean C. Kehler(9) ••.•••• 
Geoffrey J.W. Kept •.•.•. 
Douglas McCorkindale •••• 
James McDonald .••••••.•• 
Bruce Raben•••.•••••.••• 
Michael R. Steed•••••••• 
All Directors and 

Executive Officers as a 
Group ..••••••..•..•..•. 

85,861,172 6,050,004 2,515,788 o 

75,297,827 o o 240,000 

87,301,383 6,050,004 2,515,788 1,800,000 
3,443,929 950,002 0 36'2,240 

0 0 0 170,000 
630,412 0 0 1,006,66'6' 

10,386,029 1,450,002 367,666 900,000 
542,396 0 0 1,640,000 
10,000 0 0 708,668 

5,000 0 0 0 
15,00G 0 0 709,606 

18,559,028 1,825,002 6'63,456 900,000 
17,063,809 1,825,002 610,266 900,000 

363,748 0 0 2,234,56'0 
900 0 0 333,334 

0 0 0 583,685 
239,520 0 0 1,706,096 
108,958 0 O. 530,400 

6,012 0 0 50,000 
0 0 0 5,438,424 

13,993,966 0 0 128,533 

2,247,640 0 0 75,000 
0 0 0 8,898,889 

35,895 
14,848,648 

0 
0 

0 
- • o. 

42,300 
128,533 

0 0 0 75,000 
38,855 0 0 87,400 

5,351 0 0­ 40,932 
0 0 0 120,000 
0 0 0 120,000 

158,157,917 12,100,012 4,157,176 29,690,266 

11.98% 

9.69% 

12.36% 
* 
* .. 


1.68% 
* .. 

* .. 


2.80% 
2.60%
•.. 

* 
• 
* •
• 

1.8n 

* 
1.13% 

* 
1.92% 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

24.72\ 
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* Percentage of shares beneficially owned does not exceed one percent. 
(1) 	 As of March 3, 2000, 779,714,470 shares of common stock were issued and 


outstanding. 

(2) 	 Represents stock options issued under stock option plans of Global 


crossing. except that Mr. Fok's amount includes 8,888,889 shares of 

common stock issuable upon conversion of the 400,000 shares of 

convertible preferred stock issued to Hutchison Whampoa in connection 

with the formation of the Hutchison Global Crossing joint venture. As 

Managing Director of Hutchison Whampoa, Mr. Fok may be deemed to share 

investment and voting control over these shares. 
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(3) 	 Includes 70,107,766 shares of common stock and common stock warrants 

owned or managed by GiN Unified Holdings, a company formed for the 
benefit of Gary Winnick and members of his family and managed by Pacific 
Capital Group, which thereby shares investment and voting power over 
such shares. Also includes 25,133 shares of common stock owned by Casey
Pacific Holdings LLC for the benefit of Thomas J. Casey and managed by 
Pacific Capital Group, which thereby shares investment and voting power 
over such shares. 

(4) 	 These share amounts, which are effective as of March 9, 2000, include 
11,453,529 shares held by certain affiliates of Canadian Imperial Bank 
of Commerce in such a manner that CIBC shares investment power over such 
shares. The indicated options have been assigned to CIBC by CIBC 
employees who previously served 'on the GCL board of directors. 

(5) 	 Includes (al all shares of common stock beneficially owned by Pacific 
Capital Group, a company controlled by Mr. Winnick, and (b) 1,440,211 
shares held by The Winnick Family Foundation, a non-profit organization 
over whose portfolio securities Mr. Winnick shares investment and voting 
power. 

(6) 	 Includes 605,279 shares of common stock owned by Casey Global Holdings 

LLC and 25,133 shares of common stock owned by Casey Pacific Holdings 

LLC, which companies are managed by GC~ and Pacific Capital Group, 

respectively, in such a manner that Mr. Casey shares investment and 

voting power over such shares. 


(7) 	 Includes (a) 75,350 shares of common stock held by the Ridgestone 

Foundation, a non-profit organization of which Mr~ Brown is trustee and 

(b) 150,000 shares of common stock held by' the Abbott and ~inda Brown 
Family Foundation, a non·profit organization of which Mr. Brown is 
trustee. 

(8) 	 Includes (a) all 9,900,822 shares of cOmmon stock and 513,156 shares of 
common stock issuable upon the exercise of warrants owned by San Pasqual 
Corp., a corporation of which Mr. Lee and his family are the sale 
shareholders and over whose portfolio securities Mr. Lee shares 
investment and voting power and (b) all 3,988,242 shares of common' stock 
and 150,300 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of 
warrants owned by the David and Ellen ~ee Family Trust, of which Mr. Lee 
is a trustee and in such capacity shares investment and voting power 
over such shares. 

(9) 	 Includes (a) 11,453,529 shares held by certain affiliates of Canadian 
Imperial Bank of Commerce in such a manner that Messrs. Bloom and Kehler 
have shared investment and voting power over such shares and (b) 218,434 
shares held by Caravelle Investment Fund, L~C, for whose inve5tment 
advisor Messrs. Bloom and Kehler serve as managing directors. 

(10) 	 Includes 2,239,640 shares of common stock beneficially owned by the 

carlyle Group, of which Mr. Conway is managing director and in such 

capacity shares voting and investment control over such shares. 


ITEM 	 13. CERTAm RELATIONSHIPS AND RE~TED TRANSACTIONS 

During 1999, we entered into the transactions described below with certain 

of our directors, executive officers and affiliates. 


Transactions with Pacific Capital Group and its Affiliates 

Prior to 1999, Global Crossing entered into certain transactions with 

affiliates of Pacific Capital Group (-PCG"), including the acquisition of 

development rights to certain of the Company's fiber optic cable systems. PCG 

is controlled by Gary Winnick, Chairman of the Board of the Company, and some 

other officers and directors of Global Crossing either currently are or at one 

time were affiliated with PCG, inc~uding Messrs. Cook, Casey, Lee, Porter and 

Brown. During 1999, Global Crossing subleased from PCG two suites in an office 

building in Beverly Hills, California for payments aggregating approximately, 

$287,000 over the year. In October 1999, Global Crossing consolidated its 

Beverly Hills offices into approximately 87,000 square feet of office space at 


.. 	 ics present' headguarters building at <360 North Crescent Drive. Global Crossing 
leases.this space from North Crescent Realty V, LLC, which is managed by and 
affiliated with PCG, for an<aggregate monthly cost-of approximately $400,000. 
North Crescent R!!alty v, LLC paid apprOXimately $7.5 .million to improve the 
360 North Crescent property to meet Global Crossing's specifications and was 
reimbursed approximately $3.2 million of, this amount by G].Qbal Crossing. 
Global Crossing engaged an independent real estate consultant to review the 
terms of Global Crossing's occupancy of the 360 North Crescent building, which 
terms were found by the consultant to be consistent with market terms and the 
product of an arm's length negotiation. Global Crossing 
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subleases approximately 12,000 square feet of the building to PCG for an 
aggregate monthly cost of approximately $53,000. 

PCG has fractional ownership interests in respect of four aircraft used by
Global Crossing during 1999. Global Crossing reimburses PCG for peG's cost of 
maintaining these ownership interests such that PCG realizes no profit from 
the relationship. During 1999, PCGbilled Global Crossing approximately $2 
million in aggregate under this arrangement. 

In March 2000, Global Crossing intends to enter into an approximately ten 
year lease of an aircraft that is currently owned by WINCO Aviation, a company 
controlled by Gary Winnick (through PCG) and Lodwrick Cook. It is anticipated
that a commercial equipment financing company will purchase the aircraft from 
WINce Aviation and then lease the aircraft to Global Crossing on standard 
commercial terms. The purchase price of the aircraft will be approximately 
$12.5 million, which is the amount WINce Aviation paid for the aircraft, 
before transactions costs, when WINce Aviation first acquired the aircraft in 
August 1999. As supported by two independent appraisals obtained by Global 
Crossing, the fair market value of the aircraft is in excess of the proposed 
purchase price. 

Relationship to Crescent Wireless Ltd. 

In January 2000, Crescent Wireless Ltd. (IICrescent Wireless") was formed for 
the purpose of participating in the spectrum auctions being held in the united 
Kingdom to provide "third generation" wireless telecommunications services. 
Crescent :t4ireless is controlled by Gary Winnick, David Lee and Barry Porter, 
each a director and executive officer of the_Company. In connection with the 
performance by Crescent Wireless of its business operations, the Company has 
made available to Crescent Wireless on a consultancy basis certain of the 
Company's personnel. In consideration for these services, the shareholders of 
Crescent Wireless have granted to the Company an option to purchase any or all 
of the equity ownership of Crescent Wireless owned by those shareholders. 

Relationship with NextWave ~elecom Inc. 

In December 1999, we entered into an agreement with NextWave Telecom Inc. 
pursuant to which we agreed to make a minority investment in NextWave through 
the purchase of its convertible preferred stock, subject to certain conditions 
relating to the status of NextWave's PCS licenses. NextWave's goal is to 
deploy a state-of-the-art wireless telecommunications network specifically 
designed to provide next-generation wireless services. We also entered into a 
Strategic Services Agreement pursuant to which we are to be the preferred 
provider of backhaul, long distance backbone, web-hosting, and other 
communications services to NextWave. PCG and CIBC both also committed to 
purchase shares of NextWave's convertible preferred stock, subject to 
essentially the same conditions relating to the status of NextWave's PCS 
licenses. As of March 3, 2000, the conditions relating to NextWave'S PCS 
licenses have not been satisfied, and none of Global crossing, PCG or CIBC has 
consummated an equity investment in NextWave. 

Transactions with Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and its affiliates 

During 1399, Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and its affiliates ("CIBC"l 
entered into certain financing transactions with Global Crossing. In 
particular, CIBC: (l) acted as an arranger for the $600 million ten-day demand 
note issued by Global Marine Systems in JUly, (2) acted as an arranger for the 
$3 billion senior secured credit facility entered into by Global Crossing 
Holdings Ltd. in July, (3) was an initial purchaser of the $2 billion 
aggregate principal amount of unsecured senior notes issued by Global Crossing 
Holdings in November, and (4) was an initial purchaser of Global Crossing
Ltd.'s $650 million aggregate liquidation preference 7\ cumulative convertible 
preferred stock issued in December •. During 1399, Global Crossing paid CIBC 

" 	 approximately $5.. 6 million in fees in connection with these transactions. CIBC 
has a substantial beneficial ownership interest in Global Crossing, and 
Messrs. Bloom, Kehler and Raben, directors of Global Crossing, are employees
of an affiliate pf CIBC. 
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Relationship to Ziff-Davis Inc. and Affiliates 

Eric Hippeau, a director of Global Crossing, is. the chairman and chief 

executive officer of Ziff-Davis Inc., a majority of the common stock of which 

is beneficially owned by Softbank Corp. Softbank is a party to the Asia Global 

Crossing joint venture established to provide advanced network-based 

telecommunications services to businesses and consumers throughout Asia. 

Global Crossing, which is responsible for the management and operation of the 

network, contributed to the venture its 57.7St share of the Pacific crossing 

cable system and its development rights in East Asia Crossing. Softbank and 

Microsoft each contributed $175 million in cash to Asia Global Crossing and 

also committed to make a total of at least $200 million in Global Crossing 

Network capacity purchases over a three-year period, expected to be utilized 

primarily on the Pacific Crossing system and East Asia .Crossing. Softbank and 

Microsoft also agreed to use Asia Global Crossing's network in the region.

Global Crossing currently owns 93t of Asia Global Crossing, with Softbank and 

Microsoft each owning 3.5t. When the fair market value of Asia Global Crossing 

is determined to exceed $5 billion, the ownership interest of Softbank and 

Microsoft will increase to a maximum of 19t each at a valuation of $7.5 

billion and above; Mr. Hippeau is Softbank's representative on the Asia Global 

Crossing board of directors. In addition, Ziff-Davis is one of the largest 

web-hosting customers of our GlobalCenter subsidiary. 


Relationship to Hutchison Whampoa Limited 

canning Fok Kin-ning, managing director of Hutchison Wbampoa Limited 

("Hutchison-), was recently appointed a director of Global Crossing. In 

November 1999, Hutchison and Global Crossing~entered into an agreement to form 

a SO/50 joint venl;:ure to pursue fixed-line telecommunications and Internet 

opportunities in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, China. The joint 

venture, the formation of which was completed in January 2000, combines 

Hutchison's existing territory-wide, building-to-building fixed-line fiber 

optic telecommunications network and certain Internet-related assets in Hong 

Kong with Global Crossing's international fiber optic broadband cable capacity 

and web hosting, Internet applications and data services. For its sot share, 

Global Crossing provided to Hutchison $400 million in Global Crossing 

convertible preferred stock. Additionally, Global Crossing committed to 

contribute to the joint venture international telecommunications capacity 

rights on its global fiber optic network and data center related capabilities 

which together are valued at $350 million, as well as $50 million in cash. 


Agreements with Global Crossing Stockholders 

In August 1998, peG, GKW Unified Holdings (an affiliate of Gary Winnick and 

PCG), affiliates of CIBC, Global Crossing and some of our other shareholders, 

including some of our officers and directors and their affiliates, entered 

into a Stockholders Agreement and a Registration Rights Agreement. under the 

Stockholders Agreement, Global Crossing has been granted a right of first 

refusal on specified private transfers by these shareholders during the first 

two years after the consummation of our initial public offering on August 

14,l998. In addition, subject to the exceptions in the Stockholders Agreement, 

some of these shareholders have rights, which are referred to as tag-along 

rights, permitting these shareholders to participate, on the same terms and 

conditions, in some transfers of shares by any other of these shareholders as 

follows: (l) PCG, GKW Unified Holdings and CIBC and their affiliates and 

permitted transferees have the right to participate in any transaction 

initiated by any of them to transfer 5% or more of our outstanding securities; 

and (2) PCG, GKW unified Holdings, CIBC and their affiliates and permitted 

transferees have the right to participate in any transaction initiated by any 

of them to transfer any of our securities if that transaction would result in 

a change of control of Global Crossing. under the Registration Rights . 

Agreement, our shareholders who are parties to that agreement and a number of 

their transferees have demand and piggyback registration rights and will 


.. 	 receive indemnif.ication and, in somec:ircumstances, reimbursement for expenses 
from us in connection with an applicable registration. 

Principal shar~holders of Global crossing represen~ing at that time over a 

majority of the voting power of our common stock entered into a Voting

Agreement with Frontier Corporation in March 1999 in conn&etion with the 

Frontier merger. These Global crossing shareholders reaffirmed their voting

obligations under the Voting 
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Agreement in connection with subsequent amendments made to the merger 
agreement during 1999. Pursuant to the Second Reaffirmation of Voting 
Agreement and Share Transfer Restriction Agreement dated September 2, 1999, 
the Global Crossing shareholders that are parties to the Voting Agreement also 
agreed, from September 2, 1999 until March 28, 2000, not to transfer record or 
beneficial ownership of any shares of Global Crossing common stock held by 
such shareholders. other than transfers to charities. transfers made with the 
consent of the Company and other limited exceptions, and to work in good faith 
toward implementing a program with the purpose that, if the Global Crossing 
shareholders that are parties to the Voting Agreement wish to sell or transfer 
their shares after March 28, 2000, these sales or transfers would be completed 
in a manner that would provide for an orderly trading market for the shares of 
Global Crossing common stock. 

Also on September 2, 1999, fourteen of our executive officers and three 
executive officers of Frontier entered into a Share Transfer Restriction 
Agreement with Global 'Crossing. under this agreement, the Global Crossing 
executive officers agreed not to sell or transfer shares of our common stock. 
and the Frontier executive officers agreed not to sell or transfer shares of 
Frontier common stock and the shares of Global Crossing common stock they 
would receive in exchange for their Frontier common stock in the merger, until 
March 28, 2000, subject in each case to substantially the same exceptions as 
are applicable to the Second Reaffirmation of Voting Agreemen~ and Share 
Transfer Restriction Agreement described in the immediately preceding 
paragraph. 

Loan to Executive Officer 

In May 1998, Dan J. Cohrs, an executive officer of the Company, received an 
interest-free relocation loan in the aggregate principal amount of $250,000. 
This loan is repayable in full on May 18. 2001. 
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PART IV 

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENTs SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 10-K 
(a) List of documents filed as part of this report: 

1. Financial Statements-Included in Part II of this Form 10-K: 

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 

31, 1999 and 1998 and period from March 19, 1997 (Date of 

Inception) to December 31, 1997. 


Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended 
December 31, 1999 and 1998 and period from March 19, 1997 (Date of 
Inception) to December 31, 1997. . 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 

31, 1999 and 1998 and period from March 19, 1997 (Date of 

Inception) to December 31, 1997. 


Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 
December 31, 1999 and 1998 and period from March 19, 1997 (Date of 
Inception) to December 31, 1997. 

Notes to 	Consolidated Financial Statements 

2. Financial Statement Schedules--Included in Part II of this Form 10-K: 

Schedule 	II--Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

3. Exhibit Index: 
Exhibit 

Number Exhibit 

2.1 	 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 16, 1999 (the 
RFrontier Merger Agreement"), among the Registrant, Frontier 
Corporation and GCF Acquisition Corp. (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 2 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on 
March 19, 1999 (the "March 19, 1999 8-K"I). 

2.2 	 Consent and Amendment No. 1 to the Frontier Merger Agreement, dated as 
of May 16, 1999, among the Registrant, GCF Acquisition Corp. and 
Frontier Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 to the 
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 18, 1999 (the 
"May 18, 19998-KO)). 

2.3 	 Amendment No. 2 to the Frontier Merger Agreement, dated as of 

September 2, 1999, among the Registrant, GCF Acquisition Corp. and 


. Frontier Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 to the 

Registrant's CUrrent Report on Form 8-K filed on September 3, 1999 
(the "September 3, 1999 8-KO)). 

2.4 	 Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 26, 1999, between Cable 
& Wireless plc and the Registrant (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant's CUrrent Report on Form 8-K filed on 
July 16, 1999 (the "July 16, 19998-K")). 

2 . 5 	 Amendment to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 25, 
1999, between Cable & Wireless plc and the Registrant (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the July 16, 1999 8-K). 

2.6 	 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 16, 1999, between the 

Registrant and U S West, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 

to the. Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 21, 1999 

(the NMay 21, 1999 8-KR)). 

2.7 	 Letter ~reement, dated as of May 16, 1999, .between the Registrant and 
U S West, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99 to the May 21, 
1999 8-K). 

2.8 	 Termination Agreement, dated as of July 18, 1999, between the 

Registrant and U S West, Inc. (incorporated by reference -t·6· Exhibit 

10.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 20, 
1999 (the "July 20, 1999 8-K")). 
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Exhibit 
Number Exhibit 

2.9 	 Sale Agreement, made on October 10, 1999, between Controls and 
Communications Limited, The Racal Corporation, Racal Electronics Plc 
and the Registrant . (incorporated by 'reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the 
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 21, 1999 (the 
"October 21, 1999 a-K"». 

2.10 	 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 22, 2000, among the 
Registrant, Georgia Merger Sub Corporation, IPC Communications, Inc., 
IPC Information Systems, Inc., Idaho Merger Sub Corporation and IXnet, 
Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant's 
current Report on Form a-K filed on March 2, 2000 (the "March 2, 2000 
8-K"». 

3.1 	 Memorandum of Association of the Registrant (incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S­
llA filed on July 2, 199B (the "July 2, 1998 S-l/A"». 

3.2 	 Certificate of Incorporation of Change of Name of the Registrant dated 
April 30, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the ' 
Registrant "s Registration Statement on Form S-l/A filed on July 23, 
1998 (the "July 23, 1998 S-l/A"». 

3 • 3 	 Memorandum of Increase of Share capital of the Registrant dated July 
9, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the July 23, 1998 
S-l/A) • . 

3.4 	 Memorandum of Increase of Share capital of the Registrant dated 
September 27, 1999 (incorporated by reference' to Exhibit 3.1 to the 
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 15, 1999 
(the "November 15, 1999 10-Q"». 

3.5 	 Bye-laws of the Registrant as in effect on October 14, 1999 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the November 15, 1999 10­

Q) • 
3.6 	 Certificate of Designations of 6 3/8% cumulative Convertible Preferred 

Stock of the Registrant dated November 5, 1999 (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the November 15, 199910-Q). 

3.7 	 Memorandum of Association of Global crossing Holdings Ltd. 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Global Crossing Holdings 
Ltd.'s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-61457». 

3.8 	 Bye-laws of Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. (incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 3.2 to Global crOSSing Holdings Ltd.'s Registration 
Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-61457». 

3.9 	 Certificate of Designations of 7t CUmulative Convertible Preferred 
Stock of the Registrant, dated December lS, 1999 (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. 's 
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-61457». 

3.10 	 Certificate of Designations of 6 3/8t Cumulative Convertible Preferred 
Stock, Series :e of the Registrant, dated January 12, 2000 (filed 
herewith) . 

4.1 	 Certificate of DeSignations of 10 1/2% Senior Exchangeable Preferred 
Stock Due 2008 of Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. dated December 1, 1998 
(incorporated by reference to Schedule A to Exhibit 3.2 to the Global 
Crossing Holdings Ltd. Registration Statement on Form 5-4 filed on 
December 22, 1998). ' 

4.2 	 Indenture, dated as of May 18, 1998, between Global Crossing Holdings 
Ltd. and United States Trust Company of New York, as Trustee 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit ,4.2 to the Global Crossing 
Holdings Ltd. Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on Becember 22, 
199B). 

4.3 	 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of JUne 25, 1999, between Global 
CrOSsing Holdings Ltd. and United States Trust Company of New York, to 
the Indenture dated as of May 18, 1998 (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 4.4 to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-4 " 
filed on JUly 12, 1999). 

4.4 	 Credit Agreement, dated ~s of July 2, 1999, among the Registrant, 
Global..Crossing Holdings Ltd., the Lenders party thereto and The Chase 
Manhattan Bank as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant's Registrati~'Statement on Form S-4/A 
filed on August 5, 1999). 
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Exhibit 

Number Exhibit 

4.5 	 Indenture, dated as ·of November 19, 1999, among the Registrant., 
Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. and united States Trust Company of New 
York (i ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Global crossing 
Holdings Ltd. Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on January 11, 
2000 (File No. 333-94449)). 

Except as hereinabove provided, there is no instrument with respect to long­
term debt of the Registrant and its consolidated subsidiaries under which the 
total authorized amount exceeds 10 percent of the total consolidated assets of 
the Registrant. The Registrant agrees to furnish to the SEC upon its request a 
copy of any instrument relating to long-term debt. 

10.1 	 Project Development and Construction Contract, dated as of March 18, 

1997, among AT&T SUbmarine Systems, me. and Atlantic Crossing Ltd. 

(formerly Global Telesystems Ltd.) (incorporated by reference to 

Exhibit 10.2 to the July 23, 1998 S-l/A). 


10.2 	 Project Development and Construction Contract, dated as of April 21, 

1998, among Tyco Submarine Systems, Ltd. and Pacific Crossing Ltd. 

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the July 23, 1998 S­
1/A) • 

10.3 	 Proj ect Development and Construction Contract, dated as of June 2, 

1998, among Alcatel Submarine Networks and Mid-Atlantic Crossing Ltd. 

(incorporated by reference to .Exhibit 10.4 to the July 23, 1998 S­

l/A) • 


10.4 	 Project Development and Construction Contract, dated as of July 21, 

1998, among Tyco Submarine Systems, -Ltd. and Pan American Crossing 

Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.S to the Registrant's 

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 16, 1998). 


10.5 	 Project Development and Construction Contract, dated as of July 30, 

1999, among Alcatel Submarine Networks and South American Crossing 

Ltd. (incorporated. by reference to Exhibit 10.S to the Global Crossing 

Holdings Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on January 11, 2000 

(File No. 333-94449)) (portions have been omitted pursuant to a 
request for confidential treatment). 

10.6 	 Lease made as of October 1, 1999 between North Crescent Realty V, LLC 

and Global Crossing Development Company (incorporated by reference to 

Exhibit 10.1 to the November 1S, 1999 10-Q).


10.7 	 Form of Stockholders Agreement dated as of August 12, 1998 among the 
. Registrant and the investors named therein (incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 9.1 to the July 23, 1998 S-l/A) ~ 

10.8 	 Form of Registration Rights Agreement dated as of August 12, 1998 

among the Registrant and the investors named therein (incorporated by 

reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the July 23, 1998 S-l/A) • 


10.9 	 Voting Agreement, dated as of March 16, 1999, among certain 

shareholders of the Registrant parties thereto, Frontier Corporation 

and, for certain purposes only, the Registrant (incorporated by 

reference to EXhibit 10.2 to the March 19, 19998-K). 


10.10 	 Second Reaffirmation of Voting Agreement and Share Transfer 

Restriction Agreement, dated as of September 2, 1999 (incorporated by 

reference to Annex S-B to the joint proxy statement/prospectus 

supplement included in the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form 

S-4 filed on September 8, 1999 (the "September 8, 1999 S-4ft). 


10.11 	 Share Transfer Restriction Agreement, dated as of Septembe~ 2, 1999, 

among certain shareholders of Global Crossing Ltd., certain 

shareholders of Frontier Corporation and Global Crossing Ltd. 

(incorporated by reference to .Annex S-C to the joint proxy 

statement/prospectus supplement included in the September 8, 1999 S­
4) . 


10.12 	 Tender Offer and Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 16, 1999, between 

the Registrant and U S WEST, Inc. (incorporated by reference to 

Exhibit. (e) (2) to U S WEST, Inc. 's Schedule 14D-~ filed on May 21. 

1999). 
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Exhibit 
Number Exhibit 

10.13 	 Standstill Agreement dated as of May 16, 1999 between U S WEST, Inc. 
and the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit (c) (4) to U S 
WEST, Inc.'s Schedule 140-1 filed on May 21, 1999).

10.14 	 Voting Agreement dated as of May 16, 1999 between U S WEST, Inc. and 

the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit (c) (3) to U S 

WEST, Inc.'s Schedule 14D~1 filed on May 21, 1999). 


10.15 	 Tender and Voting Agreement dated as of May 16, 1999 amongU S WEST, 
Inc., the Registrant and the shareholders party thereto (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit (c) (5) to U S WEST, Inc.'s Schedule 140-1 
filed on May 21, 1999). 

10.16 	 Agreement dated as of May 16, 1999 among the Registrant and the 

shareholders party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 

(c) (6) to U S WEST, Inc.'s Schedule 140-1 filed on May 21, 1999). 

10.17 	 Transfer Agreement dated as of May 16, 1999 among the Registrant and 
the shareholders party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
(c) (B) to U S WEST, Inc.'s Schedule'140-1 filed on May 21, 1999). 

10.18 	 Amendment No. 1 dated as of July IB, 1999 to Tender Offer and Purchase 
Agreement dated as of May 16 1999 between the Registrant and U S WEST, 
Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the July 20, 1999 
a-K) • 

10.19 	 Agreement, dated as of July IS, 1999, between Qwest Communications 
International Inc. and the Registrant (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.3 to the July 20, 1999 B-K). 

10.20 	 Agreement, dated as of July 18, 1999, between Global Crossing Holdings 
Ltd. and Qwest Communications International Inc. (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the July 20, 1999 B-K). 

10.21 	 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of November 5, 1999 among the 
Registrant and the initial purchasers of the Registrant's 6-3/8\
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock named therein (incorporated by 
reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed 
on January 18, 2000 relating to such securities) • , 

10.22 	 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of November 5, 1999 among the 
Registrant and the initial purchasers of the Registrant's 7' 
CUmulative Convertible Preferred Stock named therein (incorporated by 
reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed 
on January 18, 2000 relating to such securities) . 

10.23 	 1998 Global Crossing Ltd. Stock Incentive Plan as amended and restated 
effective December 7, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 
to the Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. Registration Statement on Form S­
4 filed on January 11, 2000 (File No. 333-94449).

10.24 	 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement as in effect on September 
30, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the November 
15, 1999 10-Q). 

10.25 	 Frontier Corporation Supplemental Retirement Savings Plan as amended 
and restated effective January 1, 1995 (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.13 to Frontier Corporation's Annual Report on Form,10-K 
filed March 28, 1997).: 

10.26 	 Amendment No.1, effective March 16, 1999, to Frontier Corporation 
Supplemental Retirement Savings Plan (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.2 to Frontier Corporation'S Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q 
filed August 3, 1999). 

10.27 	 Amendment No.2, dated September 21, 1999, to Frontier Corporation 
Supplemental Retirement Savings Plan (incorporated by refe~ence to 
Exhibit 10.5 to the November 15, 199910-Q). 

10.2B 	 Employment Agreement dated as of February 19, 1999 between the 
Registrant and Robert Ann~iata (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.8 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May

10, 1999). 
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10.29 	 Executive Contract dated March 25, 1996 between Robert L. Barrett and 

~rontier Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to 

Frontier Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10~Q filed May 14, 

1996). 


10.30 	 Amendment dated May 1, 1999 to Executive Contract between Robert L. 
Barrett and Frontier corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.7 to 	the November 15, 1999 10-Q). 

10.31 	 Executive Contract dated January 1, 1998 between Joseph P. Clayton and 
Frontier Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to 
Frontier Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 26, 
1998) • 

10.32 	 Amen~ent dated,May 1, 1999 to Executive Contract between Joseph P. 
Clayton and Frontier corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.9 to 	the November 15, 1999 10-0). 

10.33. 	 Employment Agreement dated as of December 5, 1999 between the 

Registrant and Leo J. Hindery, Jr. (filed herewith). 


10.34 	 Form of Change in Control Agreement between the Registrant and 

Executive Officers of the Registrant approved by the Board of 

Directors in January 2000 (filed herewith) . 


10.35 	 Subscription and Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated November 15; 1999. 
among Hutchison Whampoa Limited, Hutchison Telecommunications Limited. 
the Registrant and HCL Holdings Limited (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.33 to the Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. Registration 
Statement on Form S-4 filed on January 11, 2000 (File No. 333-94449)}. 

10.36 	 Employment Agreement dated as of December 3, 1999 between the 

Registrant and John A. Scarpati (filed herewith) • 


12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (filed herewith) . 
21.1 SUbsidiaries of the Registrant (filed herewith) . 
23.1 Consent of Arthur Andersen (filed herewith). 
27.1 Financial Data Schedule (filed herewith) . 

(b) Reports on Form 8-X. 

During the quarter ended December 31, 1999, the following reports on Form 8­
K were filed by the Registrant: 

1. 	Current Report on Form 8-X dated October 11, 1999 (date of earliest 

event reported), filed on October 12. 1999, for the purpose of 

reporting, under Item 5, the execution of an agreement to acquire 

Racal Telecom. 


2. 	current Report on Form 8-X dated October 11, 1999 (date of earliest 

event reported), filed on October 21, 1999, ~or the purpose of 

filing, under Item 2, the agreement governing the acquisition of 

Racal Telecom. 


3. 	current Report on Form'8-X dated October 29, 1999 (date of earliest 

event reported), filed on December 8, 1999, for the purpose of 

reporting, under Item 5, recent issuances by Global Crossing Ltd. of 

unregistered securities. 


4. 	current Report on Form 8-K dated November 24, 1999 (date of earliest 

event reported), filed on December 3, 1999, for the purpose of 

reporting, under Item 2, the acquisition of Racal Telecom. 


(c) See 	Item 14(a) (3) above. 

(d) See 	Item 14(a) (2) above. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ~UBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 


To Global Crossing Ltd.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Global 
Crossing Ltd. (a Bermuda company) and subsidiaries as of December 31. 1999 and 
1998. and the related consolidated statements of operations. shareholders' 
equity. cash flows and comprehensive income for the years ended December 31. 
1999 and 1998 and for the period March 19. 1997 ,(Date of Inception) to 
December 31, 1997. These financial statements and schedule are the' 
responsibility of the Company's management. OUr responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United'States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining. on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates'made .by management. as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion. the financial statements referred to ~ove present fairly, 
in all material respects, the financial position of Global Crossing Ltd., and 
subsidiaries as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 
arid for the period March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 1997, in 
conformity with accounting ,prinCiples generally accepted in the United States. 

As explained in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
effective January 1, 1999. the Company changed its method of accounting for 
start-up costs. 

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole. The schedule listed in the Index to 
Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedule is presented for purposes of 
complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission'S rules and regulations 
and is not part of the basic financial statements. This schedule has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic 
financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly states in all material 
respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to 
the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

lsi Arthur Andersen 

Arthur Andersen 

Hamilton. Bermuda 
February 23, 2000 

1"-2 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(In thousands, except share and per share infonnation) 


December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998 


ASSETS: 
Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents •..••.•••.•..••.. 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents ..•••• 
Accounts receivable, net ....•............. 
Other assets and prepaid costs .•.•.•.•••.• 

Total current assets ...•••.•••.•.•.•..••.• 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents ...•.• 
Accounts receivable ...••••••....••........ 
Capacity available for sale .••.••••••.•••• 
Property and equipment, net ..•...••••.•••• 
Goodwill and intangibles, net •••.•.••.••.• 
Investment in and advances to/from 
affiliates, n~t ••...•••••••.••••••••..•.. 

Other assets •.•.••..•.••••••.••••••••••••• 

Total assets ••.•••••••...••••••••••••.••.• 

LIABILITIES: 
Current liabilities: 
Accrued construction costs .•.•••..••...... 
Accounts payable •.•.•••••.•••••.•.•••••.•• 
Accrued cost of access •••.•••.•••••.•..... 
Accrued liabilities ..•.••.•..••.•••.••••.. 
Accrued interest and preferred dividends •. 
Deferred revenue •••••.•••..••..•.••....... 
Income taxes payable ...••.•••..•..•.•..... 
CUr~nt portion of long term debt ••.•••.•. 
Other current liabilities .••..••..•.•••.•. 

Total current liabilities .•••.•.•••...•.•. 
Long-term debt ..••• '..•••••.••.••.......... 
Deferred revenue••...•.•••.....• , .•••••••. 
Deferred credits and other•••..•...••.•.•. 

Total liabilities •...•••.•.••...•..••..... 

MINORITY INTEREST••...•••..••...••..••..... 

MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE AND CUMULATIVE 
CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK: 
10 1/2% Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred 
Stock, 5,000,000 shares issued and 
outstanding as of December 31, 1999 and 
1998, $100 liquidation preference per 
share •.....•••••.•..••..••.•...•.•••..... 

6 3/8% CUmulative Convertible Preferred 
Stock, 10,000,000 and 0 shares issued and 
outstanding as of December 31, 1999 and 
1998, respectively, $100 liquidation 
preference per share ••.•.••....•.••••..•• 

7% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, 
2,600,000 and 0 shares issued and 
outstanding as of December 31, 1999 and 
1998, $250 liquidation preference per 
·share ••.• '•.•• _.' .......................... . 


SHAREHOLDERS I EQUITY: 
Common stock, 3.,000,000,000 shares 
authorized, par value $.01, 799,137,142 
and 432,776,246 shares issued as of 
December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

Treasury stock, 22,033,758 shares .•••••••• 
Additional paid-in capital and other 

shareholders' equity .••.•••••.••••.•.•••. 
Accumulated deficit ••.••••••••.•••..••.••. 

$ 1,633,499 
93,294 

966,973 
252,767 

2,946,533 
138,118 

52,052 

6,026,053 
9,557,422 

323,960 
661,442 

$19,705,580 
:.••••••==-== 

$ 275,361 
509,866 
154,285 
280,629 

66,745 
127,367 
140,034 

5,496 
292,810 

1,852,593 
5,018,544 

383,287 
796,606 

---- ..... ----­
8,051,030 

-----_ ... _--­
351,338 

485,947 

969,000 

629,.750 

7,992 
(209,415) 

9,578,927 
(158,989) 

9,218,515 

$ 806,593 
77,190 

. 71,195 
21,637 

976,615 
367,600 
43,315 

574,849 
433,707 

177,334 
65,757 

$2,639,177 
=-========u:a 

$ 129,081 
2,016 

29,972 
14,428 
44,197 
15,604 

6,393 
14,572 

256,265 
1,066,093 

25,325 
34,174 

1,381,857-_ ... _-----­

483,000 

4,328 
(209,415) 

1,067,470 
(88,063) 

774,320 
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Total liabilities and shareholders' 
equity .................................. . $19,705,580 

============ 

Date Filed: 3/1712000 

$2,639,177 

See accompanying notes. 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
(In thousands, except share and per share information) 

Period from 
March 19, 1997 

Year Ended Year Ended (Date of Inception) 
December 31, 1999 December ~1, 1998 to December 31, 1997 

REVENUE ••••••••••••••••• $ 1,664,824 $ 419,866 $ 

EXPENSES: 
Cost of sales •••••••••• 
Operations, 
administration and 

850,483 178,492 

maintenance •••••••.••• 
Sales and marketing .•.• 
Network development •..• 
General and 
administrative .•••.•.. 

Stock related~xpense •. 
Depreciation and 

amortization .••.•••..• 
Goodwill and 

133,202 
149,119 
26,153 

210,107 
51,306 

124,294 

18,056 
26,194 
10,962 

26,303 
39,374 

541 

1,366 
78 

1,618 

39 

intangibles 
amortization••..•..•.. 

Termination of advisory 
services agreement ..•. 

127,621 

139,669 

1,672,285 439,591 3,101 

OPERATING LOSS .••.•...•. 
EQUITY IN INCOME (LOSS) 

OF AFFILIATES .•••••..•• 
-MINORITY INTEREST•••••.• 
0'l'lmR INCOME (EXPENSE): 
Interest income ••••.••. 
Interest expense .•••••• 
Other income, net •••••. 

(7,461) 

15,708 
(1,338) 

67,407 
(139,077) 
180,765 

(19,725) 

(2,508) 

29,986 
(42,880) 

(3,101) 

2,941 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
PROVISION FOR INCOME 
TAXES, EXTRAORDINARY 
ITEM AND cmroLATIVE 
EFFECT OF CHANGE IN 
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE••. 
Provision for income 
taxes ••.••••••.••..... 

116,004 

(126,539) 

135 ,127) 

(33,067) 

(160) 

LOSS BEFORE 
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM AND 
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF 
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING 
PRINCIPLE .••••••.•.••.. 
Extraordinary loss on 
retirement of debt •..• 

(10,535) 

(45,681) 

(68,194) 

(19,709) 

(160) 

LOSS BEFORE CUMULATIVE 
EFFECT OF ~E IN 
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE ••• 
CUmulative effect of 

change in accounting 
principle, net. of 
income tax benefit of 
$1,400 •••••••••••••••• 

(56,216) 

(14,710) 

(87,903) (160) 

NET LOSS ••••••••••••••.• 
Preferred stock 
dividends ••••••••••..• 

Redemption of preferred 
stock•..•.•••••••.•... 

(70,926) 

(66,642) 

(8~,903) 

(12,681) 

(34,140) 

(160) 

(12,690) 

LOSS APPLICABLE TO 
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COMMON SHAREHOLDERS. • • • $ (137;568) 

a=-==aa=aa;a 

NET LOSS PER COMMON 
SHARE: 
Loss applicable to 

common shareholders 
before extraordinary 
item and cumulative 
effect of change in 
accounting principle, 
basic and diluted.•... $ (0.15) 

Extraordinary item, 
basic and diluted .•••• (0.09) 

Cumulative effect of 
change in accounting 
principle, 
basic and diluted ...•• (0.03) 

Net loss applicable to 
common shareholders, 
basic and diluted.•..• $ (0.27) 

Shares used in 
computing basic and 
diluted loss per 
share ....•••..•••..••. 502,400,851 __=__=__=::11_ 

Date Filed: 311712000 
$ (134,724) $ (12,850) 

$ (0.32) 

(0.06) 

$ (0.04) 

$ (0.38) $ (0.04) 
=========== 

358,735,340 

--------==­
325,773,934 

See accompanying notes. 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(In thousands, except share and per share information) 


18........,., of C01IIIIIOft stock 
for cash in March l!I97 

(Date of .Inception) • 
net of $l.2S4 issuance 
_ta................. 

Preferred. stock 
dividends ............. 

Net 10Ba for the 
period..••...••••..•..• 

Balance,Oecl!llllber 31, 

1997 ................... 

Issuance of common 
stock for cash••••.••• 

caah reimbursement to 
certain shareholders •• 

llnearned c~atiOl1 •• 
Amcrtbation Of 

c""'Penaation expenBe •. 
lICO Warrants ........... 
Issuance of common 
stock in exchange for 
termination Of 
adviaory services 
agre"""",t ............. 

Prefened stock 
divid.ends ............. 

PreadUIII on redemption 
of preferred stock•••• 

CQIIIIDOll stock 
transactions with 
certain shareholders •• 

IsBUanee of cammon 
stock in connection 
with initial public 
offering. net of 
$30,916 issuance 
co.ts ................. 

ISSWll1ce Of COOIIIOn 
stock from exercise Of 
stock cptiona •.•.•••••• 

Net loss............... 


Balance. December 31. 

1998 ••••••••••••••••••• 

Iaauanee of ccmmon 
stock from exercise Of 
.tock optiona .......... 

Income tax benefit frqa 
ex.rcin Of stock 
option................ 

l1ne.med c:ompenaation,. 
Amcrtillt.tion of 

d!mpensation expense •• 
Is.uanc:e of CCIIIIIOn 

stock in exc:bange for 
non-compete rights and 

licenses.............. 
canCellation of shar". 

issued in connection 
with terminated merger 
with us West .......... 

Other Shareholders' 

Common Stock Treasury Stock Equity 


Additional Total 
Paid-in Accumulated Shareholders' 

Shares lImcunt Shares lImcunt Capital!a) other Deficit Equity-_.................- ------_....~-.----- -""'----_ ..-- -_._--_ ....- ------------­

115,773,!ll4 $3,258 83,713 $ $ $ 86,971 

(12,690) (12,690) 

(160) (160) 
..... _............ - ..... .............. ---- _............. ­---------- --------- --------_ .. 
32S, 773.934 3.258 71.0l3 (1Il0) 74,121 

1,575.000 16 2,772 ::1.788 

(7.047l (7.047l 

93.758 (93,758l 

37.111 37,111 

;44.406,340 l44 275,054 275.298 

14,:310,526 142 134.858 135.000 

(12.68l) (12.6811 

(34.140) (34,1401 

21,733.758 117 l2, 033.758 (l09.415) 209,198 

44,420.000 444 390.UO 391,074 

656.688 7 69:1 699 

(87.903) (87,903) 
.. ___ eo _____........ __ ..-.... _- _... __ .............. _............... ­---------- --..----. 

432. "6.:145 4,328 22,033,758 (209.415) 1.124.117 (56,647) (88,063) 774.320 

10.058.073 101 111.363 111,364 

9.368- 9.368 

5~.O66 (55.066) 

-51.306 51.306 

2.239.632 2:1 1.9,978 lO.OOO 

(:1.231.076 ) (22) (103.362) (103,384) 
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Preferred stock 
dividends ..••.•.•••.•• (66,642) (66,6~2) 

Shares issued in 
connection with 
Frontier acquieition•• 355,263,135 3,553 8,503,974 8,507,527 

Share. issued for 
retirement of debt.... l,03l,132 10 5,290 5,100 

Foreign currency 
tran81ar.ion . 
adjustment ........... . (~O,ne) (20,698) 

unrealized gain on 
securities ........... . 980 980 

Her. 108B .............. . (70,926) (70,926) 

Balance, DecRlber 31, 

U99 ................... 799,137,14:2 $7,992 22,033,758 $(209,415) U,6S!l,052 $(80,125) $(l58,989) $9,;0I18.5l5 

(a) 	 Additional Paid-in-Capital has been charged retroactively for the par 
value of the shares issued as a result of the 2-for-1 stock split effected 
in the form of a stock dividend effective on March 9, 1999. 

See accompanying notes. 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SuBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(In thousands) 

Year Ended Year Ended 

December 3~, ~999 December 3~, 1998 


CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net loss .•••.••..•...•• 
Adjustments to 

reconcile net loss to 

$ {70, 926} $ (87,903). 

net cash provided by 
operating activities: 

Extraordinary loss on 
~etirement of senior 
notes ........••••.•.•• 45,681 19,709 

Cumulative effect of 
change in accounting 
principle •.•••..•...•• 

Non-cash portion of US 
West termination 

14,710 

agreement ..•••••••••.. 
Stock related expenses. 
Termination of advisory 

(103,384) 
51,306 39,374 

services agreement .... 
Equity in (income) loss 
of af filiates ••......• (~5,708) 

135,000 

2,508 
Depreciation and 
amortization..•....•.. 251,915 541 

Provision for doubtful 
accounts .......•..•..• 37,157 4,233 

Deferred income. taxes .• 35,274 9,654 
Capacity available for 
sale excluding cash 
expenditures for 
investing activities .. 

Other .•.••••.•••....... 7,726 
123,329 

Changes in operating 
assets and 
liabilities ..••••.•••. 252,333 (37,718) 

Net cash provided by 
operating activities. 506,084 208,727 

CASH FLOWS USED IN 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash paid for 
construction in 
progress and capacity 
available for sale ••.. 

Acquisitions, net of 
cash acquired•.•..••.• 

Proceeds from sale of 

(1,577,044) 

(2,456,811) 

(413,996) 

unconsolidated 
subsidiary•••••.•..... 

Purchases of property 
"and equipment•.•••.•... 

Investments in and 

379,086 

(193, a71) 

advances to 
affiliates ... '.' .••.••. (161,337) (lEi,701) 

Net cash used in 
inves~ing activities. (4,009,977) (430,697) 

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Proceeds from issuance 
of common stock, net.. 111,364 392,298 

Proceeds from issuance 
of preferred stock, 

Period From 

March 19, 1997 


(Date of Inception) 

to December 3~, 1997 


$ (~60) 

39 

(21,200) 

26,442 

5,12~ 

(428,743) 

(428,743) 

73,736 
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net, ...•.. ,·,.......... 1,598,750 483,000 92,470 
Proceeds from issuance 
of senior notes....... 2,000,000 796,495 150,000 

Proceeds from long-term 
debt. . .. . .. .. . .. .. . .. . 3,544,083 290,556 162,325 

Repayment of long-term 
debt. . . . • . • . . . . . . . . . . . (3 , 351, 732) (176,890) 

Retirement of 1997 
issued senior notes ... (159,750) 

Redemption of 1997 
issued preferred 
stock•••.....•••..••.. (134,372) 

Finance costs incurred. (141,027) (37,665) (28,lB1) 
Cash reimbursement to 
certain shareholders .. (7,047) 

Minority interest 
investment in 
subsidiary. • • • . . • . • . . . 350,000 

Preferred dividends.... (52,429) 
Decrease (increase) in 
restricted cash and 
cash equivalents...... 271,790 (419,515) (25,275) 

Net cash provided by 
financing activities. 4,330,799 1,027,110 425,075 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS ••••••• B26,906 805,140 1,453 

CASH AND CASH 
EQUrvALENTS, beginning 
of period....•....•.•.. B06,593 1,453 

CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS, end of 
period..•••••..•.•.•••. $1,633,499 

=.;;;:-=-••••• 
$ 806,593 $ 1,453 

:11::l1li======= 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS--(Continued) 


SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
ON NON-CASH FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES: 
Common stock issued to 
holders of preferred 
stock .•••••••••..••.•• 

Common stock issued 
upon conversion of 
debt ..............•.•. 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
ON NON-CASH INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES: 
Costs incurred for 
construction in 
progress and capacity 
available for sale .••. 

Increase in accrued 
construction costs ..•. 

Increase in accrued 
interest •..••......•.. 

Amortization of 
deferred finance 
costs ....•..•......... 

(Increase) decrease in 
obligations under 
capital leases ..•..... 

PCG Warrants ....••..... 

Cash paid for 
construct ion in 
progress and capacity 
available for sale....• 

Non-cash purchases of 
property and 
equipment ..•.....••.•. 

Transfer of capacity 
available for sale to 
property and 
equipment •.•••••.•.••. 

Common stock issued for 
non-compete rights •••• 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE· 
OF CASH FLOW 
INFORMATION: 
Changes in operating 
assets and 
liabilities: 

Accounts receivable .••. 
Other current assets .•. 
Other Long-Term Assets. 
Deferred revenue ••.•.•. 
Accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities .. . 
Income taxes payable .. . 
Obligations under 

inland services 
agreement ......•...... 

Deferred credits and 

(In thousands) 

Year Ended Year Ended 
December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998 

$ $_.a_a____...••...... 

$ 5,300 $ 
•••••••••::1. 

$ 1,704,258 $ 607,865 

(ll9,405) (77,077) 

(8,412) 

(7,809) (7,883) 

ll,660 
(ll2,157) 

$ 1,577,044 $ 413,996 
••••••••a •• ---=-=-=== 

$ 38,300 $ 
_ •••••=:;:I:IJ.=as_••••_. 

$ 574,849 $_._._._-_.­ ._.====== 

$ 20,000 $ 
a .......::.
=.::11::..==a••= 

$ (296,4671 $ (ll8., 743) 
(47,915) (46,662) 
(98,029) 
331,475 64,197 

258,739 30,332 
73,650 15,604 

(21,994) 17,554 

Period From 
March 19, 1997 

(Date of Inception) 
to December 31, 1997 

$ 13,325 
'-.::='===== 

$ 

$497,319 

(52,414) 

(1,6411 

(2,223} 

, 
(12,2981 

$428,743 
=;;u:;=::;;=== 

$ 
._;;u;r==::::;: 

-$ 
==---=== 

$ 
=======­

$ 
(1,032) 

5,325 

1,249 

20,900 
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other. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 52,874 

$ 252,333 $ (37,718) $ 26,442 

Detail of acquisitions: 
Assets acquired ....... . $11,120,676 $ $ 
Liabilities assumed ... . (2,613,149) 

Common stock issued.... $ 8,507,527 $ $ 

Net cash paid for 
acquisitions ......... . $ 2,456,811 $ $ 

Cash acquired in 
acquisitions ......... . 123,855 

Cash paid for 
acquisition, including 
transaction fees ..... . $ 2,580,666 $ $ 

Investments in 
Affiliat'es: 

Cost of investments in 
affiliates ..•......... $(161,337) $(179,842) $ 

PCG Warrants •.......... 163,141 
a==-:====:=::;===== 
$ (161,337) $ (16,701) $ 

Cash paid for interest 
and income taxes: 

Interest paid and 
capitalized.......... . $ 219,289 $ 39,424 $ 8,136 

Interest paid (net of 
capitalized interest). $ 141,230 $ 33,854 $ 

=.=====-===== 
Cash paid for taxes .... $ 14,589 $ 7,809 $ 

See accompanying notes. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
(In thousands) 

Period from 
March 19, 1997 

Year Ended Year Ended (Date of Inception) 
December 31, 1999 December 31, 1996 to December 31, 1997 

Net loss .••.••.••..•..' .• 
Foreign currency 
translation 

$(70,926) $(B7,903) $(160) 

adjustment .•.......... 
Unrealized gain on 
securities .....•...... 

(20,696) 

960 

Comprehensive loss •.••.. $(90,644) $(B7,903) $(160) 

See accompanying notes. 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. BACKGROUND AND ORGANIZATION 

Global Crossing Ltd. (a Bermuda company, together with its consolidated 
subsidiaries, "GCL" or the "Company"} is building and offering services over 
the world's first independent global fiber optic network, consisting of 
101,000 announced route miles and serving five contin~nts, 27 countries and 
more than 200 major cities. upon completion of our currently announced 
systems, our network and our telecommunications and Internet product offerings 
will be available in markets constituting over 60t of the world's 
international communications traffic. 

The Company's strategy is to be the premier provider of global broadband 
Internet Protocol ("IP") and data services for both wholesale and retail 
customers. The Company is building a state-of-the-art fiber optic network that 
management believes to be of unprecedented global scope and scale to serve as 
the backbone for this strategy. Management believes that the Company's network 
will enable it to be the low cost service provider in most of its addressable 
markets. 

Asia Global Crossing, a joint venture with Softbank Corp. and Microsoft 
Corporation intends to become the first truly pan-Asian carrier to offer 
worldwide bandwidth and data communications. The Asia Global Crossing joint 
venture was established on November 24, 1999. 

GlobalCenter, a wholly-owned subsidiary of-GCL, will expand its product set 
to become a single-source e-commerce service solution that will provide web­
centric businesses with the high availability, flexibility and scalability 
necessary to compete in the rapidly expanding digital economy. 

Global Crossing Ltd. serves as a holding company for its subsidiaries' 
operations, including Global Marine Systems (acquired July 2, 1999), Frontier 
Corporation (acquired September 2B, 1999), and Racal Telecom (acquired 
November 24, 1999). 

In February 1999, the Company's Board of Directors declared a 2-for-1 split 
of the Company's common stock in the form of a stock dividend which was 
effective on March 9, 1999. All share information presented in these 
consolidated financial statements gives retroactive effect to the 100-for-l 
stock split in January 199B, 1.S-for-l stock dividend in August 199B and 2­
for-1 stock dividend on March 9. 1999. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The 
significant accounting policies are summarized as follows: 

a) Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of GCL and its 
wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompanYetransactions have been 
eliminated. 

As described in Note 3, the Company completed the acquisitions of Global 
Marine Systems, Frontier and Racal Telecom during 1999. These acqUisitions 
have had a major impact on the comparability of the Company's financial 
statements. To assist the reader of these financial statements and related 
notes, the Company has disclosed certain financial information in Note 3 
including the pro forma impact of these acquisitions. 

b) Use of Estimates 

The preparati~n of financial statements in conform~ty with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets an~liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual amounts and results could differ from thOs~ 
estimates. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued) 

The Company's operations and ability to grow may be affected by numerous 
factors, including changes in customer requirements, new laws and governmental 
regulations and policies, technological advances, entry of new competitors and 
changes in the willingness of financial institutions and other lenders to 
finance acquisitions and operations. The Company cannot predict which, if any, 
of these or other factors might have a significant impact on the 
telecommunications industry in the future, nor can it predict what impact, if 
any, the occurrence of these or other events might have on the Company's
operations. 

c) Development Stage Company 

The Company was in its development stage until May 1998 when the United 
States to United Kingdom segment of the AC-1 system was placed into service, 
and the Company began generating significant amounts of revenue. 

d) Revenue Recognition 

Services 

Revenue recognized as services, including sales of capacity under operating 
type leases, are provided, net of an estimate for uncollectible accounts. 
Payments received from customers before the relevant criteria for revenue 
recognition are satisfied are included in deferred revenue in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets. 

Sales-Type Leases 

Revenue from Capacity Purchase Agreements ("CPAsn) that meet the criteria of 
sales-type lease accounting are recognized in the period that the rights and 
obligations of ownership transfer to the purchaser, which occurs when (i) the 
purchaser obtains the right to use the capacity, which can only be suspended 
if the purchaser fails to pay the full purchase price or fulfill its 
contractual obligations, (ii) the purchaser is obligated to pay Operations, 
Administration and Maintenance ("OA&:M") costs and (iii) the segment of a 
system related to the capacity purchased is available for service. Certain 
customers who have entered into CPAs for capacity have paid deposits toward 
the purchase price which have been included as deferred revenue in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

Prior to July 1, 1-999, substantially all CPAs were treated as sales-type 
leases as described in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, 
"Accounting for Leases" ("SFAS 13"). On JUly 1, 1999, the Company adopted
Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 43, RReal Estate 
Sales, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 66" ("FIN 43"), which requires 
prospective transactions to meet the criteria set forth in Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 66, "Accounting for Sales of Real Estate" 
(nSFAS 66") to qualify for sales-type lease accounting. Since sales of 
terrestrial capacity did not meet the new criteria, the terrestrial portion of 
CPAs executed subsequent to June 30, 1999 were recognized over the terms of 
the contracts, as services. 

Percentage-of-Completion 

Revenues and estimated profits under long-term contracts for undersea 
telecommunication installation by Global Marine Systems are recognized under 
the percentage-of-completion method of accounting. 

e) Cost of Sales 

Servic:es 

Costs of the network relating to capacity contracts accounted for as 
operating leases are treated as fixed assets and, accordingly, are depreciated, 
over the estimated useful life of the capacity. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued)


Sales-Type Leases 


Prior to October 1, 1999, the effective date of the Frontier merger, cost of 
sales for subsea circuits was calculated based on the ratio of capacity 
revenue recognized in the period to total expected capacity revenue over the 
life of the network system, multiplied by the total remaining costs of 
constructing the network system. This calculation of cost of sales matches 
costs with the value of each sale relative'to total expected revenue. Until 
the entire system was completed, for purposes of calculating cost of sales, 
the total system costs incurred included an estimate of remaining ~osts to be 
.incurred to complete the entire system plus the cost of system upgrades that 
management had the intent and ability to complete, provided the need for such 
upgrades was supported by a third party consultant's independent revenue 
forecast. 

Beginning October 1, 1999, the Company initiated service contract accounting 
and therefore began depreciating all of its systems; however, certain 
contracts still qualified for sales-type lease accounting. For these 
transactions, the Company's policy provided for recording cost of sales in the 
period in which the related revenue was recognized, in addition to the 
depreciation charge described below (see Property and Equipment and 
Construction in Progress). Under service contract accounting, the amoUnt 
charged to cost of sales relating to subsea capacity was calculated by 
determining the estimated net book value of the specific subsea capacity at 
the time of the sale. The estimated book value includes expected costs of 
capacity the Company has the intent and ability to add through upgrades of 
that system, provided the need for such upgrades is supported by a third-party 
consultant's independent revenue forecast. 

f) Commissions and Advisory Services Fees . 

The ComPany's policy is to record sales commissions and advisory fee 
expenses and related payables upon the recognition of revenue so as to 
appropriately match these costs with the related revenue. Under the Advisory 
Services Agreement (NASA"), which was terminated by December 31, 1998, the 
Company paid PCG Telecom Services LLC ("PCG Telecom") and its affiliates 2% of 
revenue for advisory services performed. Under the Sales Agency Agreement, the 
Company paid Tyco Submarine Systems Ltd. ("TSSL") a commission based on a 
percentage of revenue from the sale of capacity on certain of the Company's 
systems. 

g) Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents (Current 

and Long Term) 


The Company considers cash in banks and short term highly liquid investments 
with an original maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase to 
be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash 
equivalents are stated at cost which approximates fair value. 

h) Property and Equipment and Construction in Progress 

Property and equipment, which includes capitalized leases, are stated at 
cost, net of depreciation and amortization. Major enhancements are 
capitalized, while expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed when 
incurred. Costs incurred prior to a segment·s completion are reflected as· 
construction in progress in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and 
recorded as property and equipment at the date each segment of the applicable 
system becomes operational. 

Construction in progress includes direct expenditures for construction of 
network systems and is stated at cost. Capitalized costs include costs 
incurred under the construction contract; advisory, consulting and legal fees; 
interest; and amortized finance costs incurred during the construction phase. 
Once it is probable that a cable system will be constructed, costs directly 
identifiable wit~ the cable system under development .are capitalized. Costs 
relating to the evaluation of new projects incurred prior to the date the 
development of the network system becomes probable are expensed as incurred. 

In connection with the construction of the Global Crossing network, the 
Company has entered into various agreements to sell or exchange d~r~' fiber, 
ducts, rights of ways, and certain capacity. These non-monetary exchanges are 
recorded at the cost of the asset transferred or, if applicable, the fair 
value of the asset received. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued} 

Interest incurred, which includes the amortization of deferred finance fees 
and issuance discount ("interest cost U ), are capitalized to construction in 
progress. Total interest cost incurred and interest capitalized to 
construction in progress during the periods presented were: 

For the period 
March 31, 1997 

Year Ended Year Ended (Date of Inception) 
December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998 to December 31, 1997 

(In thousands) 

Interest cost incurred.• $217,136 $92,813 $9,777 
==:a=r_. 

Interest cost 

capitalized to 

construction in 

progress .•...•...••..•. $ 78,059 $49,933 $9,777 


Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the'estimated useful 
lives of the assets, with the exception of leasehold improvements and assets 
acquired through capital leases, which are depreciated over the lesser of the 
estimated useful lives or the term of the lease. Estimated useful lives are as 
follows: 

Buildings .••••••••••••••••••••••.•..••••••.••.............•.•.. 10-40 years 
Leasehold improvements ••••.•.•.••....•.•.••.•....•...•....•.... 2-25 years 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment •..••.•..•.•.•................ 2-30 years 
Transmission equipment ••..•...•••......•...••....•..........•.. 3-25 years 

Beginning October 1, 1999, the Company commenced service contract 
accounting. Carrying amounts related to completed subsea systems were 
reclassified from capacity available for sale to depreciable assets, and are 
being depreciated over their remaining economic useful lives. 

When property or equipment is retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and 
accumulated depreciation are relieved from the accounts, and resulting gains 
or losses are reflected in the determination of current net income. 

The Company reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for 
impairment whenever events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value 
of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows 
expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. In cases where 
undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the carrying value, an 
impairment loss would be recognized equal to an amount by which the carrying 
value exceeds the fair value of the assets. 

il Goodwill and Intangibles 

Costs in excess of net assets of acquired businesses are amortized on the 
straight-line method over 3 to 25 years. In cases where undiscounted expected 
future cash flows are less than the carrying value, the impairment loss would 
be included in the.determination of current net income. Subsequent to 
acquisitions, the Company continually evaluates whether later events and , 
circumstances have occurred which indicate that the remaining estimated useful 
life of in~angible assets may warrant revision or that the remaining balance 
of such assets ,may not be recoverable. When factors indicate that intangible 
asset~should be evaluated for possible impairment, the Company uses an 
estimate of the undiscounted operating income over the' remaining life of the 
intangible asse~s in measuring whether the intangible assets are recoverable. 

ji Deferred Finance Costs 

Costs incurred to obtain financing through the issuance of senior notes and 
long-term debt have been reflected as an asset included in other asSets in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Costs incurred to obtain financing 
through the issuance of preferred stock have been reflected as a reduction in 
the carrying value 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued) 
of the issued preferred stock. The financing costs relating to the debt are 
amortized over the lesser of the term of the related debt agreements or the 
expected payment date of the debt obligation. In 1998, certain preferred stock 
was redeemed at which time the remaining balance of unamortized discount and 
offering costs was charged ag~inst additional paid-in capital. In 1999 and 
1998, certain long-term debt was extinguished, at which time the remaining 
balance of unamortized discount and offering costs was written off and 
included in extraordinary loss on retirement of debt. 

During the construction period, the amortized portion of deferred financing 
costs relating to the senior notes and the long-term debt are included in 
construction in progress as a component of interest capitalized or recorded as 
interest expense in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS) No. 34, "Capitalization of Interest Cost", The amortized 
portion of the deferred financing costs relating to the preferred stock is 
included as a component of preferred stock dividends. 

k) Investments 

Investments in which the Company does not have significant influence or in 
which the Company holds an ownership interest of less than 20t are recorded 
using the cost method of accounting. The equity method of accounting is 
applied for investments in affiliates, if the Company owns an aggregate of 20t 
to sot of the affiliate and if the Company exercises significant influence 
over the affiliate. The equity method is also applied for entities in which 
the Company's ownership is in excess of sot but over which the Company is 
unable to exercise effective control. If the Company holds more than 50% of 
the ownership and is able to exercise effective control, the owned entity's 
financial statements and the appropriate deductions for minority interest are 
included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

1) Financial Instruments 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments" to reduce its exposure to 
adverse fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. 
The Company has established policies and procedures for risk assessment and 
the approval, reporting and monitoring of derivative financial instrument 
activities. The Company does not enter into financial instruments for trading 
or speculative purposes. Accordingly, they are presented on the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheet at their carrying values, which approximates their 
fair values. Fair values are based on market quotes, current interest rates or 
management estimates, as appropriate. 

The Company has entered into forward currency contracts, hedging the 
exchange risk on committed foreign currency transactions. Gains and losses on 
these contracts are recognized at the time the underlying transaction is 
completed. 

As discussed in Note 15, the Company has entered into an interest rate swap 
agreement to hedge its variable interest-rate exposure on debt. Hedge 
accounting was applied in respect of these instruments; accordinglYr the net 
cash amounts to be paid or received on the agreement are accrued and 
recognized as an adjustment to interest expense on the related debt. 

ml Income Taxes 

The Company recognizes current and deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities based upon all events that have been recognized in the 
consolidated fi~ancial statements as measured by the enacted tax laws. 

n) Effect of Foreign Currencies 

For those subsidiaries using the U.S. Dollar as their functional currency, 
transaction loss is recorded in the accompanying consolida€ed statements of 
operations. The Company's foreign transaction loss was $26.9 million 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued) 
for the year ended December 31, 1999. The effect of foreign currency 
transactions in all periods prior to the year ended December 31, 1999 were 
immaterial. 

For those subsidiaries not using the U.S. Dollar as their functional 
currency, assets and 1iabi11ties are translated at exchange rates in effect at 
the balance sheet date and income and expense accounts are translated at 
average exchange rates during the period. Resulting translation adjustments 
are recorded directly to a separate component of shareholders' equity. For the 
year ended December 31, 1999, the Company incurred a foreign currency 
translation loss of $20.7 million. For all periods prior to December 31, 1999, 
the translation adjustments were immaterial. 

0) Stock Option Plan 

The Company accounts for stock option grants in accordance with Accounting 
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" 
("APB 25"), and, accordingly, recognizes compensation expense for stock option 
grants to the extent that the estimated fair value of the stock exceeds the 
exercise price of the option at the measurement date. The compensation expense
is charged against operations ratably over the vesting period of the options. 

pI Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Company has some concentration of credit risk among its customer base. 
The Company performs ongoing credit eva1uatiens of its larger customer's 
financial condition. As of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, five 
customers represented 14% and 29% of the Company's receivables and revenue, 
respectively. 

qJ Change in Accounting Policy 

The Company adopted Statement of Position 98-5, "Reporting on the Costs of 
Start-up Activities· ("SOP 98-5") in the first quarter of 1999. Accordingly, a 
one-time charge of $15 million (net of tax benefit), representing start-up 
costs incurred and capitalized during previous periods, was charged against 
net income. 

r) Pending Accounting Standards 

In June 1999, the FABB issued SFAS No. 137, "Accounting for Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities--Deferral of the Effective Date of SFAS No. 
133", which deferred SFAS No. 133's effective date to fiscal quarters 
beginning after June 15, 2000. This statement standardizes the accounting for 
derivatives and hedging activities and requires that all derivatives be 
recognized in the statement of financial position as either assets or 
liabilities at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that do 
not meet the hedge accounting criteria are to be reported in earnings. The 
impact of the adoption of .this standard has not been quantified. 

s) Reclassifications 

Certain prior y~ar amounts have been reclassified in the consolidated 
financial statements to conform to current year presentation. 

3. MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS 

The following mergers and aoquisitions occurred during 1999 and have been 
accounted for in the aocompanying consolidated financial statements under the 
purchase method of accounting for business combinations. The purchase price 
was allocated based on the estimated fair value of acquired assets and 
liabilities at the date of acquisition. 
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Global Marine Systems Acquisition 

On July 2, 1999, the Company acquired the Global Marine business of Cable & 
Wireless PIc for approximately $90B million, consisting of a combination of 
cash and assumed indebtedness. This resulted in an excess of purchase price 
over net assets acquired of $693 million, which was allocated to goodwill and 
other intangible assets and are being amortized on the straight-line method 
over 3-25 years. Global Marine Systems provides services, including 
maintenance under a number of long-term contracts, to cables built by carriers 
and is the world's largest undersea cable installation and maintenance 
company. The Company initially financed the acquisition with committed bank 
financing in the amount of $600 million and the remainder with cash on hand. 

Frontier Corporation Merger 

On September 2B, 1999, the Company completed its merger with Frontier 
corporation, resulting in Frontier becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Company. 

Frontier shareholders received 2.05 shares of the Company's common stock for 
each outstanding share of common stock of Frontier Corporation, for a total of 
355 million shares of Global Crossing common stock, including outstanding and 
unexercised stock options. The purchase price of $10.3 billion reflects a 
Global Crossing stock price of $22 15/16 per share, the average closing price 
of Global Crossing common stock from September 1, 1999 through September 3, 
1999, and includes long term debt and Frontier stock options assumed by Global 
Crossing. For accounting purposes, the merger with the Company is deemed to 
have occurred as of the close of business on September 30, 1999. The excess of 
purchase price over net assets acquired of $7.7 billion was allocated to 
goodwill and other intangible assets; goodwill and intangible assets are being 
amortized on the straight-line method over 6-25 years 

Racal Telecom Acquisition 

On November 24, 1999, the Company acquired Racal Telecom for approximately 
$1.6 billion in cash. The Company entered into a (Pounds) 675 million 
(approximately $1,091 million as of December 31, 1999) credit facility to 
finance the acquisition. The excess of purchase price over net assets acquired 
of $1.6 billion was allocated to goodwill and is being amortized on the 
straight~line method over 6-25 years. Racal Telecom owns one of the most 
extensive fiber telecommunications networks in the United Kingdom. For 
accounting purposes, the acquisition is deemed to have occurred as of the 
close of business on November 30, 1999. 

Asia Global Crossing 

On November 24, 1999, the Asia Global Crossing joint venture was 
established. In exchange for a majority interest, the Company contributed to 
the joint venture its development rights in East Asia Crossing (nEAC") and its 
5Bt interest in Pacific Crossing ("PC-l"). Softbank Corp. and Microsoft 
Corporation each contributed $175 million in cash to Asia Global Crossing. In 
addition, Softbank and Microsoft committed to make a total of at le.st $200 
million in capacity purchases on our network over a three-year period, 
expected to be utilized primarily on PC-l and EAC. Softbank and Microsoft have 
also agreed to use Asia Global Crossing's network in 'the region, subject to 
specified conditions. Minority interest of $351 million was recorded in 1999 
in connection with this joint venture. 

~utchison Global Crossing . . 
. . . . .. ~ . 

On N9vember 15, 1999, the Company entered into an agreement with Hutchison 
Whampoa Limited ("Hutchison") to form a joint venture -ca.,lled Hutchison Global 
Crossing, whichpegan operations on January 12, 2000, The joint venture is 
owned in equal parts by the Company and Hutchison. In exchange for its 50 
percent interest, the Company will contribute certain ass~s and services to 
the joint venture and, in January 2000, issued to Hutchison $400 million 
aggregate liquidation preference of its 6 3/Bt cumulative convertible 
preferred stock, series B, convertible into its common stock. . 
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The initial purchase price allocations for the 1999 business combinations 

are based on current estimates. The Company will make final purchase price 
allocations based upon final values for certain assets and liabilities. As a 
result, the final purchase price allocation may differ from the presented 
estimate. 

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information 
of Global Crossing, Global Marine Systems, Frontier, Racal Telecom and the 
Hutchison Global Crossing joint venture demonstrates the results of operations 
had the merger and acquisitions related transactions been completed at the 
beginning of the periods presented. 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(unaudited) 

(In thousands, except 


share and per share data) 


Revenue ......................................... $ 4,139,897 $ 3,643,521 


Net loss before extraordinary items and 
cumulative effect of change in accounting 
principles. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. $ (462,544) $ (474,882) 

Net loss ........................................ $ (522,935) $ (496,346) 

=~~=======~= ========~=== 

Loss applicable to common shareholders before 
extraordinary items and cumulative effect of 
change in accounting principles ................ $ (554,715) $ (513,063) 

Loss applicable to common shareholders .......... $ (614,986) $ (568,487) 


Loss per common share: 
Loss applicable to common shareholders 
Basic and diluted.....................'........ $ (0.80) $ (0.80) 

Loss applicable to common shareholders before 
extraordinary items and cumulative effect of 
change in accounting principles ' 
Baeic and diluted.......•...•........•.•...... $ (0.72) $ (0.72) 


=========~== ============ 
Shares used in computing loss per share 

Basic and diluted............................. 767,355,151 708,518,640 
============ ============ 

4. RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CUrrent and long term restricted cash and cash equivalents include the 
following: 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In-thousands) 

Funds restricted for PC-1 construction.•.................. $138,118 $231,790 

Funds restricted under the AC-1,Credit Facility .......... . 89,000 

Funds restricted for MAC construction .................... . 65,000 

Funds restricted for dividends payments to parent company. 76,202 -­
Funding for future interest on senior notes .............. . 38,000 

Other ... ,.................................................. . 17,092 21,000 


$231,412 $444,790 
-~====== =~====== 

Under the Open Market Plan, dividend payments to the parent company are 
temporarily prohibited until Frontier Telephone of Rochester, Inc. ("FTR") 
receives clearance from the New York state Public Service Commiss!onthat 
service requirements are being met. Cash restricted for dividend payments by 
FTR, as of December 31, 1999, was approximately $76.2 million. 
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5. 	ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

CUrrent and long term accounts receivable are comprised of: 
December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands) 

Accounts receivable .................................... $1,114,135 $118,743 

Allowance for doubtful accounts.................. ...... (95,110) (4,233) 


Accounts receivable, net ............................... $1,019,025 $114,510 


6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consist of the following: 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands) 

Land..................................... ~ ............ . $ 14,886 $ 
Buildings ............................................. . 184,827 
Leasehold improvements ................................ . 29,096 774 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ..................... . 771,585 5,306 
Transmission equipment ..................... .'. ; ........ . 2,544,903 

3,545,297 6,080 
Accumulated depreciation ....................•.......... (124,874) (580) 

3,420,423 5,500 
Construction in progress ......................•........ 2,605,630 428,207 

Total property and equipment, net ..................... . $6,026,053 $433,707 

Depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 1999 
was approximately $124 million. Depreciation expense for December 31, 1998 and 
for the period ended March 19, 1997 (date of inception) to December 31, 1997 
was insignificant. 

7. 	GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES 

The Company acquired three companies in 1999 as described in Note 3. All 
companies acquired have been accounted for as purchases with the excess of the 
purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired 
recorded as goodwill. 

Goodwill and intangibles are as follows: 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands) 

Goodwill and intangibles............................... $9,685,043 $ 

Accumulated amortization ............................-..-... (127,621) 


Goodwill and intangibles, net.......................... $9,557,422 $ 


F-17 

Copyright 2000 EDGAR Online, IlIe, (ver /,0112.003) 	 Page 90 



'-' ~ 

GLOBAL CROSSING LTD -IO-K -Annual Report Date Filed: 311712000 
GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 


NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued) 


8. INVESTMENT IN AND ADVANCES TO/FROM AFFILIATES 

Investment in Pacific Crossing Ltd. ("PCL") 

In April 1998, the Company entered into a joint venture to construct the'pC­
1 cable system which is owned and operated by PCL. The Company has an economic 
interest in PCL represented by a 50% direct voting interest and, through one 
of the joint venture partners, oWns a further 8% economic non-voting interest. 

Investment in Global Access Ltd. 

In December 1998, the Company entered into a joint venture, Global Access 
Ltd., to construct and operate GAL, a terrestrial cable system connecting 
Tokyo, Osaka and Nagoya with PC-1. The Company has a 49% interest in Global 
Access Ltd. 

The Company's investments in PCL and GAL are accounted for as interest in 
affiliates under the equity method because the Company is not able to exercise 
effective control over their operations. 

The Company's investment in affiliates consists of the following: 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands) 

Investment in Pacific Crossing Ltd........................ $266,068 $160,639 

Investment in Global Access Ltd........................... 22,693 16, -695 

Other investments and advances to/from affiliates......... 35,199 


Investment in and advances to/from affiliates .....•....... $323,960 $177,334 


9. TAXES 

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, 
"Accounting for Income Taxes" ("SFAS 109"). The provision for income taxes is 
comprised of the following: 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In ehousands) 

Current. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. $144,906 $23,413 
Deferred. . . . . .. . . ... .•... . . ... . .... . . .. .. . . .. . ... . . . .. . .. . (18,367) 9,654 

Total income tax expense. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. $126.539 $33,067 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effecc of temporary-differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and amounts used for income tax purposes. 

Bermuda does not impose a statutory income tax and consequently the 
provision for income taxes recorded relates to income earned by certain 
subsidiaries of the Company which are located in jurisdictions whIch impose 
income taxes. 
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The following is a summary of the significant items giving rise to 

components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities: 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities 

(In thousands) (In thousands) 

Bad debt reserve .•.•.•........•.• $ 11,199 $ $ $ 

Research and development costs .•. (41,018) 

Depreciation••.........•.••...... (380,893) (4,042) 

Basis adjustment to purchased 


companies•.••....•...•......•... (9,282) 

Employee benefits obligation.••.• (32,918) 

Net operating loss (NOL) 


carryforwards ••..•.........••... 58,865 

Deferred and stock related 
 _.compensation .•....•............. 11,066 504 

Other ....•••••........••..•••.... 35,156 (15,235) (6,116) 


116,286 (479,346) 504 (10,158) 
Valuation allowance ....•........• (54,780) 

-------- --------- ----_ .. _- -------­
$ 61,506 $(479,346) $ 504 $(10,158) 

.:a:alZ::I=~::I= ::1::1::1==:1::::=...-_._. :1::1.===-== 

The Company established a valuation allowance of $54,780 as of December 31, 
1999. The valuation allowance is related to deferred tax assets due to the 
uncertainty of realizing the full benefit of the NOL carryforwards. In 
evaluating the amount of valuation allowance needed, the Company considers the 
acquired companies' prior operating results and future plans and expectations. 
The utilization period of the NOL carryforwards and the turnaround period of 
other temporary differences are also considered. The Company's NOLs begin to 
expire in 2004. 

10. LONG-TERM DEBT 

Outstanding debt consists of the following: 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands) 

9 1/2% Senior Notes due 2009 .•.•...•••.........•.•••. $1,100,000 $ 
9 lIn Senior Notes due 2006 ........................ . 900,000 
9 5/8t Senior Notes due 2008 ......•.................. 800,000 800,000 
Senior Secured Revolving Credit. Facil i ty•••.•..... '.•. 648,597 
Racal Telecom Term Loan A••••••••....••••.••••....... 646,130 
Medium-Term Notes, 7.51\--9.3', due 2000 to 2004 .... . 219,000 
7 1/4' Senior Notes due 2004 ....................... .. 300,000 
6t Dealer Remarketable Securities (DRS) due 2013 ••••• 200,000 
AC-1 Credit Facility•••••......•....••......••...•..•• 266,799 
Other ••.••......••.••...••.•..•.•.•.•.••.....•...•.•. 242,028 9,192 

- --~----~--~ ---------­
Total debt .. '.' .....••..••.....••..... '.' ...••.•... ',' .. 5,055,755 1,075,991 
Less: discount on long-term debt, net ...•..•......... (31,715) (3,505) 

-Less: current portion of long-term debt ...... ; ..•.... (5,496) (6,393) 

Long-term debt .•.......••......••..•.•.•.........••.• $5,018,544 $1,066,093 
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Maturities of long-term debt are as follows (in thousands) : 

Year Ending December 31, 

2000 ......•.......•..................•.•...................••• $ 5,496 

2001 ....•......•............•................................. 121,411 

2002 ...•.......•............•..•.•.•.••..•....•.•.........••.• 43,618 

2003 .•.••..........••••..•••......•.........••..••............ 38,336 

2004 .......••.•.•....••.........•.••••.•.••••.....•....•..•••• 1,167,256 

Thereafter ............•.........•.••.•........................ 3,679,638 


Total ..•,••••••.•...••••.•••.••...•.•• '.••.•..••.•..•...•....... $5,055,755 


Senior Notes 

On November 12, 1999, Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. ( "GCHn), a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of GCL, issued two series of senior unsecured notes ("NeW Senior 
Notes"). The 9 1/9% senior notes are due November 15, 2006 with a face value 
of $900 million and the 9 1/2% senior notes are due November 15, 2009 with a 
face value of $1.1 billion. The New Senior Notes are guaranteed by GCL. 
Interest will be paid on the notes on May 15 and November 15 of each year, 
beginning on May 15, 2000. 

an May 19, 1999, GCH also issued 9 5/8% senior notes due May 15, 2008, with 
a face value of $800 million ("9 5/8t Senior Notes"). The 9 5/8% Senior Notes 
are guaranteed by GCL. Interest will be paid on the notes on May 15 and 
November 15 of each year. 

The 12t senior notes issued by Global Telesystems Holdings Ltd. ("GTH"), now 
known as Atlantic crOSsing Holdings Ltd., with a face value of $150 million, 
due March 31, 2004 ("Old Senior Notes"), were repurchased in May 1999 with the 
proceeds from the issuance of the 9 5/8% Senior Notes. The Company recognized 
an extraordinary loss of approximately $20 million on repurchase comprised of 
a premium of approximately $10 million and a write-off of approximately $10 
million, of unamortized deferred financing costs during 1998. 

Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility 

On July 2, 1999, the Company, through GCH, entered into a $3 billion senior 
secured corporate credit facility ("Corporate Credit Facility") with several 
lenders. The proceeds from the Corporate Credit Facility were used to repay 
existing indebtedness and fund capital expenditures. The Corporate Credit 
Facility consisted of two term loans and a revolving credit facility, which 
matures on July 2, 2004. The term loans were paid in full during fiscal year 
1999. Unused credit under the revolving credit facility is approximately $350 
million as of December 31, 1999. Interest is payable at LIBOR plus 2.25 
percent (9.44 percent at December 31, 1999). 

During 1999, the Company recognized an extraordinary loss resulting from the 
payoff of existing debt in connection with the issuance of the Corporate 
Credit Facility, comprised of a write-off of $15 million of unamortized 
deferred finanCing costs. 

On November 12, 1999, the proceeds from the issuance of the New Senior Notes 
were used to pay down the fixed term portion of the Corporate Credit Facility, 
resulting in a write-off of $31 million of unamortized deferred financing
cdsts. ' 

AC-1 Credit Facility 

During 1997, the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary; Atlantic Crossing Ltd. 
(IIACL"), entered into a $492 million aggregate senior seclH'ed non-recourse 
loan facility (the "AC-1 Credit Facility") with a group of banks led by CISC 
and Deutsche Bank AG, for the construction and financing costs of AC-1. The 
AC-1 Credit Facility was paid in full in July 1999. 
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MAC Credit Facility 

During November 1998, the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, Mid-Atlantic 
Crossing Ltd. ("MACL"), entered into a $260 million aggregate senior secured 
non-recourse loan facility (the "MAC Credit Facility"). As of December 31, 
1998, the outstanding balance was $9 million. The MAC Credit Facility was paid 
in full in July 1999. 

6t 	Dealer Remarketable Securities 

The 6t DRS were issued by Frontier Corporation and were outstanding at the 
date of acquisition. The 6t DRS are due on October 15, 2013. Interest will be 
paid on April 15 and October 15 each year. These notes may be put back to the 
Company in October 2003, depending on the interest rate environment at that 
time. 

7 1/4t Senior Notes 

The 7 1/4% Senior Notes were issued by Frontier Corporation and were 
outstanding at the date of acquisition. The 7 1/4% Senior Notes are due May 
14, 2004. Interest will be paid on May 15 and November 15 each year. 

In December 1997, the Company entered into an interest rate hedge agreement 
that effectively converts $200 million of the Company's 7.25% fixed-rate notes 
due May 2004 into a floating rate based on the US dollar London Interbank 
Offered Rate ("LIBOR") index rate plus 1.26%. The agreement expires in May 
2004. Interest expense and the related cash flows under the agreement are 
accounted for on an accrual basis. The Company periodically enters into such 
agreements to balance its floating rate and fixed rate obligations to insulate 
against interest rate risk and minimize interest expense. 

Racal Telecom Term Loan A 

On November 24, 1999, the Company entered into a GBP 675 million 
(approximately $1,091 million as of December 31, 1999) credit facility to 
finance the acquisition of Racal Telecom. The facility consists of two term 
loans due November 24, 2007. Interest is payable at LIBOR plus 2.5 percent 
(8.44 percent at December 31, 1999) • 

. Medium Term Notes 

The Medium Term Notes were issued by Frontier Corporation and were 
outstanding at the date of acquisition. The Company intends to refinance the 
notes due in fiscal 2000 with proceeds from the other available debt 
facilities. 

Certain of the debt facilities mentioned above contain various financial and 
non financial restrictive covenants and limitations, including, among other 
things, the satisfaction of tests of "consolidated cash flow", as defined. 
Additionally, certain ILEC assets are pledged as security. 

11. 	OBLIGATIONS UNDER INLAND SERVICES AGREEMENT, CAPITAL LEASES AND-OPERATING 
LEASES 

The Company has capitalized the m1n1mum lease payment of property and 
equipment under leases that qualify as capital leases. 

F-21 

Copyright 2000 EDGAR Online, fllc. (ver 1.01/2.003) 	 Page 94 



'-" "-" 
GLOBAL CROSSING LTD -J(J..K -Annual Report Date Filed: 311712000 

GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued) 

At December 31, 1999, future minimum payments under these capital leases are 
as follows (in thousands) and are included in Deferred credits and other in 
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet: 

Year Ending December 31, 
2000 ......................................•.•...........•......... $ 53,235 
2001 •...•........,...........•........•.....•..•...•..... : ........ . 43,279 
2002 ....••...........•....•..•..•........••.•...............•...•. 3B,390 
2003 .•..•...........................••....•.•..............•...... 36,4B6 
2004 .....•.....................•.....••...•.....•.•.•...•..••..•.. 53,195 
Thereafter .....................••••..•......•..................... 436,580 

Total minimum lease payments ••.••••••.•••.•.•.•••......••.......•• 661,165' 
Less: Amount representing,maintenance payments •..•••..•.•••••.•... (133,240) 
Less: Amount representing interest ..•..•.••••••................... (272,358) 

Present value of minimum lease payments ....••••..•.•..••. ,..••••... $ 255,567 

The Company has commitments under various non-cancelable operating leases. 
Estimated future minimum lease payments on operating leases are approximately 
as follows (in thousands): 

Year Ending December 31, 

2000 •• ,•.•••.•.•.••.•................•.•..•.•••••. '.....••...•..•... $ 131,569 

2001 •...•.•.•.....................•....•.•.••..••................. 79,932 

2002 •.....••....•.............•....••.......•.................•... 77,646 

2003 .••.•...••.••...........•..•....•.......•..•.....•.....•...... 70,67B 

2004 ........•..................••..••.••....••.••................. 65,90B 

'l'hereafter .......•.....................•...••.........•....•...... 347,924 


'l'otal. . . . • . . . . . . • • . . . . . . . . . . . . • • . . . • . . . • . . . • . . . • . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. $ 773,657 

Rental expense for the years December 31, 1999 and 1998 and period from 
March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 1997 is $74,249, $754 and 
none, respectively (in thousands). 

12. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND OTHER 

As of December 31, 1999, ACL was committed under contracts with Tyco 
Submarine Systems Ltd. ("TSSL") for AC-l upgrades totaling approximately $59 
million and is committed under the OA&M contract with TSSL to quarterly 
paymerits, over the next eight years, totaling approximately $247 million which 
will be borne by the Company's customers or by the Company to the extent there 
is unsold capacity. 

ACL,was committed to paying TSSL commissions ranging from 3% to 7% on 
revenue received until 2002, subject to certain reductions. 'l'he Company also 
had a commission sharing agreement with TSSL whereby GCL had primary 
responsibility for the marketing and sale of capacity of AC-l and PC-1 and 
shared a percentage of commissions payable to TSSL as consideration for 
assuming primary responsibility for the sales effort and marketing of the 
Company's projects. The Sales Agency Agreement with TSSL will terminate in 
March 2002 with an option by the Company to extend it until March 2005. The 
Company provide~ TSSL with a notice of termination with respect to these 
agreem~nts effective February 22, 2000. 

As of December 31, 1999, the Company was committed under' the contracts to 
construct its Mfd-Atlantic Crossing, Pan American Crossing, South American 
Crossing, Pan European Crossing and East,Asia Crossing sy~ems for future 
construction costs totaling approximately $2 billion. 
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In addition, as of December 31, 1999, the Company was committed to make 
future equity contributions to PCL in the amount of $240 million. 

The Company and a number of its subsidiaries in the normal course of 
business are party to a number of judicial, regulatory and administrative 
proceedings. The Company's management does not believe that any material 
liability will be imposed as a result of any of these matters. 

13. PREFERRED STOCK 

CUmulative Convertible Preferred Stock 

In September 1999, GCL authorized 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock on 
terms and conditions to be established from time to time at the discretion of 
the Board of Directors. 

In December 1999, GCL issued 2,600,000 shares of 7% cumulative convertible 
preferred stock at a liquidation preference of $250.00 per share for net 
proceeds of $630 million. Each share of preferred stock is convertible into 
4.6948 shares of common stock based on a conversion price of $53.25. Dividends 
on the preferred stock are cumulative from the date of issue and will be 
payable on February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1 of each year, beginning 
on February 1, 2000, at the annual rate of 7%. Dividends accrued as of 
December 31, 1999 were $1.9 million. 

In November 1999, GCL issued 10,000,000 shares of 6 3/8t cumulative 
convertible preferred stock at a liquidation preference of $100.00 per share 
for net proceeds of approximately $969 million. Each share of preferred stock 
is convertible into 2.2222 shares of common stock, based on a conversion price 
of $45.00. Dividends on the preferred stock are cumulative from the date of 
issue and will be payable on February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1 of 
each year, beginning on February 1, 2000, at the annual rate of 6 3/8t. 
Dividends accrued as of December 31, 1999 were $9.7 million. 

The convertible preferred stock ranks junior to each other class of capital 
stock other than common stock of GCL with respect to 'dividend rights, rights 
of redemption or rights on liquidation and on a parity with any future 
preferred stock of GCL. The convertible preferred stock is junior in right of 
payment of all indebtedness of GCL and its subsidiaries. The preferred stock 
is non-voting unless the accumulation of unpaid dividends on the outstanding 
preferred stock is an amount equal to six quarterly dividend payments. The 
preferred stock can be redeemed, at the Company's option, starting in 2004 at 
specified premiums declining to par in 2009. Holders of preferred stock have 
the right to require the Company to repurchase shares of the preferred stock 
at par following the occurrence of certain change of control transactions. 

10 1/2% Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Stock 

In December 1998, GCH authorized the issuance of 7,500,000 shares of 
preferred stock ("GCH Preferred Stock-) at a liquidation preference of $100.00 
per share plus accumulated and unpaid dividends. In December 1998, S,OOO,OOO 
shares of GCK Preferred Stock were issued for $500 million in cash. The 
Company reserved for future issuances up to 2,500,000 shares to pay dividends. 
Dividends accrued as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 were $4 million. 
unamortized issuance costs were $14.1 million and $17 million as of December 
31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. • 

The holders of the GCH Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative, 
semi-annual compounding dividends at an annual rate of 10 1/2' of the $100 
liquidation preference per share. At the C~y's option, accrued dividends 
may be paid in cash or paid by issuing additional preferred stock (i.e. pay­
in-kind) until ~une 1, 2002, at which time they must ,be paid in cash. As of 
December 31, 1999, all dividends had been paid in cash. 
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Dividends are payable semi-annually in arrears on each June 1 and December 1. 
The preferred stock ranks senior to all common stock of GCH with respect to 
dividend rights, rights of redemption or rights on liquidation and on a parity 
with any future preferred stock of GCH. The preferred stock is junior in right 
of payment of all indebtedness of GCH and its subsidiaries. The preferred 
stock is non-voting unless the acoumulation of unpaid dividends (or if, 
beginning on June 1, 2002, such dividends are not paid in cash) on the 
outstanding preferred stock is an amount equal to three semi-annual dividend 
payments. 

The preferred stock has a mandatory redemption on December 1, 2008 at a 
price in cash equal to the then effective liquidation preference thereof, plus 
all accumulated and unpaid dividends thereon to the date of redemption. The 
preferred stock can be redeemed, in whole or in part, at the Company's option 
at redemption prices starting at 105.25t of the liquidation preference in 
2003, declining to 103.5% in 2004, 101.75t in 2005 and lOOt thereafter. 

The certificate of designation governing the preferred stock imposes certain 
limitations on the ability of the Company to, among other things, (i) incur 
additional indebtedness and (ii) pay certain dividends and make certain other 
restricted payments and investments, which limitations are in part based upon 
satisfaction of tests of "consolidated cash flow," as defined. 

14t Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred St,ock 

In March 1997, GTH authorized and issued SGO,OOO shares of preferred stock 
("GTH Preferred Stock") at a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share. 

In June 1998, proceeds from the issuance of the 9 5/8t Senior Notes were 
used to redeem this preferred stock. The redemption resulted in a $34 million 
charge against additional paid-in capital comprised of a $16 million 
redemption premium and $18 million of unamortized discount and issuance cost 
on the preferred stock on the date of the redemption. The redemption premium 
and write-off of unamortized discount and issuance costs on the preferred 
stock were treated as a deduction to arrive at the net loss applicable to 
common shareholders in the consolidated statement of operations. 

Preferred stock dividends included the following: 

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands) 

Preferred stock dividends .•••..•••.........•.•..••.•..•.•• $63,742 $l1,7l2 
Amortization of discount on preferred stock ..•..•...•..... 618 
Amortization of preferred stock issuance costs ...•........ 2,900 351 

...... ----- ------­
$66,642 $12,681 
••:ca.:::: ======= 
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14. NET LOSS PER SHARE 

Losses per share are calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 128, "Earnings 
Per Share." Share and per share data presented reflects all stock dividends 
and stock splits. 

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and the denominators of 
the basic and diluted loss per share: 
For the period 

December 31, March 31, 1997 
(Date of Inception) 

1999 1998 to December 31, 1997 

(In thousands, except share and per share data) 
Loss before 

extraordinary item and. 
cumulative effect of 
change in accounting 
principle ........•.•... $ (10,535) $ (68,194) $ (16'0 ) 

Preferred stock 
dividends ............. . (66,642) (12,681) (12,690) 

Redemption of preferred 
stock ..•..•...•.•....•. (34,140) 

Loss applicable to 
common sharaholders 
before extraordinary 
item and cumulative 
effect of change in 
accounting principle ..• $ (77,177) $ (115,015) $ (12,850) 

Weighted average share 
outstanding: 
Basic and diluted..... 502,400,851 

~====••••==z=== 
358,735,340 

=.=========••~= 
325,773.934 

=============-:l1li 
Loss applicable to 

common shareholders 
before extraordinary 

items and cumulative 
effect of change in 
accounting principle 

Basic and diluted....• $ (0.15) $ (0.32) $ (0.04) 

Dilutive options and warrants did not have an effect on the computation of 
diluted loss per share in 1999 and 1998 since they were anti-dilutive. The 
impact of dilutive options and warrants increases the weighted average shares 
outstanding to 552,466,665 shares as of December 31, 1999. 

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash 
equivalents, accounts receivable, accrued construction costs, accouats payable 
and accrued liabilities, accrued interest, obligations under inland services 
agreements and capital leases and long term debt approximate their fair value. 
The fair value of the senior notes (the New Senior Notes and 9 slat Senior 
Notes), mandatorily redeemable preferred stock, cumulative convertible 
preferred stock and the interest rate swap are based on market quotes and the 
fair values are as follows: 

December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998 
-------~-~-~----~--------- ------~---------~---------
Carrying Amount Fair Value ~arryin9 Amount Fair Value 

(In thousands I (In thousands I 
Senior notes ....-....••... $3,135,000 $3,090,294 $796,495 $834,000 
Mandatorily redeemable 
preferred stock.•.....•• 485,947 498,750 483,000 480,000 

CUmulative convertible 
preferred stock••..•.... 1,598.750 1,975,300 

Interest rate swap ..•.... $ $ 6,602 $ $ 26 
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16. STOCK OPTION PLAN 

GCL maintains a stock option plan under which options to acquire shares may 
be granted to directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company. 
The Company accounts for this plan under APB Opinion No. 25, under which 
compensation cost is recognized only to the extent that the market price of 
the stock exceeds the exercise price. Terms and conditions of the Company's 
options, including exercise price and the period in which options are 
exercisable, generally are at the discretion of the Compensation,Committee of 
the Board of Directors; however, no options are exercisable more than ten 
years after date of grant. 

Prior to its merger with the Company, Frontier maintained stock option plans 
for its directors, executives and certain employees. The exercise price for 
options under all Frontier plans was the fair market value of the stock on the 
date of the grant. The stock options expire ten years from the date of the 
grant and vest over a period from one to three years. The Frontier plans 
provided for discretionary grants of stock options which were subject to the 
passage of time and continued employment restrictions. 

In connection with the Frontier merger, the Company exchanged all of the 
outstanding Frontier stock options for 25.3 million Global Crossing stock 
options which vested immediately at the date of the merger. As of December 3i, 
1999, 17.7 million stock options under the Frontier plans remained vested and 
outstanding ',' 

Additional information regarding options granted and outstanding for the 
years ended December 31, 1998 and 1999 are summarized below: 

Weighted 
Options Number of Average 

Available Options Exercise 
For Grant OUtstanding Price 

Balance as of December 3l, 1997 ...•.•••••. 
Authorized..••••...•.•••.....•..•...•••• 33,215,730 
Granted••.•...........•..........•...•.• (30,76'2,46'6') 30,762,46'6 $ 2.85 
Exercised•.•...•..••••...••.••..••.•.•.. (656,688) 1.06 
Cancelled••....•.••.••.....••...•....... 3,253,000 (3,253,OOO) 1.11 

Balance as of December 3l, 1998 •.•.•...••• 5,706,264 26,852,778 3.11 
Authorized....••.••..... , ••.•..•.•.•..•• 82,010,Ol4 
Granted.............•....••..........•.• (65,019,955) 65,019,955 24.20 
Exercised•.•..........•.•••............• (10,058,073) 11.07 
Cancelled•••..........••.....' ..•.......• 3,:1,75,154 (3,l75,l54) 22.17 

Balance as of December 31, 1999 ..••••.••.• 25,871,477 78,6'39,506 $18.76 
.a___=__=== •••••c:=.=_ ca=====::J 
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The following tables summarize information concerning outstanding and 
exercisable options: 

December 31. 1999 

Options OUtstanding Options Exercisable 

Range o~ 
EXercise Prices 

Weighted Average 
NUmber 

Outstanding 

Weighted Average 
Remaining Contractual 

Life (in years) 

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price NUmber 

per Share Exercisable 

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price 

per Shan 

$ 0.35 to $ 1.43 14.153,480 7.79 $ 0.83 7,871,980 $ 0.83 
2.00 to 9.00 7,157,036 8.18 3.14 3,635,345 3.29 

9.30 to 13.80 12,539,297 7.71 11.61 10,207,026 11.60 
13.96 to 19.52 11.961,988 8.54 17.15 8,961,988 16.26 
20.60 to 23.44 19,975,778 9.65 ::15.82 1,175,228 24.48 

$33.00 to $61.38 12,851.927 9.73 44.68 1,741,334 46.15 
__ ~ ____________________________ ~ _____ __________ w ___ • _ _____ ~~~ ••• ________________ 

Total 78,639,506 8.73 $18.76 33,592,901 $11.66 
•••••••••••••••• __ • ___a •••••••••••••••__••••••••••_ ....."._................._w,•••• 


December 31, 1998 

Options Outstanding Options ExercissQle 

Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average weighted Average 
Range of NUmber Remaining Contractual Exercise Price NUmber Exercise Price 

Exercise Prices Outstanding Life lin years) per share Exercisable per share 
.. -------- .. _........ 
 ---------------- ----------------- .... .--------------~ .~-.---.--- --.----------~--

$0.35 to $0.83 15,717,280 9.2 $ 0.83 4,8C13.833 $ 0.83 
2.00 to 3.33 6,844,598 9.5 3.3.3 1,625,000 3.33 
9.50 to 13.26 4,290,900 9.7 11.44 302.834 11.34 

................ _-----­ ---------------- ------------~-------- ---------------- ----------- ---------------­
Total 26,852,778 9.3 $ 3.11 6,731,667 $ 1.91 

During the years ended December 31, 1999' and 1998, the Company recorded in 
additional paid-in capital $55 million and $94 million, respectively, of 
unearned compensation, relating to awards under the stock incentive plan plus 
th~ grant of certain economic rights and options to purchase common stock. 
During 1999 and 1998 the Company recognized expense of $51 million and $39 
million, respectively, of stock related compensation relating to the stock 
incentive plan and the vested economic rights to purchase common stock. The 
remaining $60 million of unearned compensation will be recognized as follows: 
$36 million in 2000, $20 million in 2001 and $4 million in Z002. 

The Company entered into an employment arrangement with a key executive, and 
granted him economic rights to purchase two million shares of common stock at 
$2.00 per sPare. One-third of these economic rights vested immediately and the 
balance vests ov.er two years. The Company recorded the excess of the fair 
market_value of these options and rights over the purchase price as unearned 
stock compensation in the amount of $15 million durin~th~year. ended December 
31, 1998. The unearned compensation is being recognized as expense over the 
vesting period of the economic right. 
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As permitted by SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" 
("SPAS 123"), the Company accounted for employee stock options under APB 25 
and is recognizing compensation expense over the vesting period to the extent 
that the fair value of the stock on the date the options were granted exceeded 
the exercise price. Had compensation cost for the company's stock-based 
compensation plans been determined consistent with the SFAS 123 fair value 
approach, the impact on the Company's loss applicable to common shareholders 
and loss per share would be as follows: 

Period from 
March 19, 1997 

Year Ended Year Ended (Date of Inception) 
December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998 to December 31, 1997' 

(In thousands, except per share information) 

Net loss applicable to 
common shareholders: 
As reported••...•.•.•• $(137,568) $ (134,724) $ (12, 850) 
Pro forma .•••.•••.•.•• $(236,184) $(141,585) $(12,850) 

Basic and diluted net 
loss per share: 
As reported••..•.••.•. $ (0.27) $ (0.38) $ (0.04) 
Pro forma ...•.•...•... $ (0 .47) $ (0.39) $ (0.04) 

under SFAS 123, the fair value of each option is estimated on the date of 
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model assuming the following 
weighted average assumptions used for the year ended December 31, 1999; zero 
dividend yield, expected volatility of 40.00, weighted average risk free rate 
of return of 6.56% and expected life of 4 years. Por the year ended December 
31, 1998; zero dividend yield, expected volatility of 0% to 42%, weighted 
average risk free rate of return of 5.45% and expected life of 4 years. 

17. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

401(k) Plan 

Beginning in 1998, the Company offered its qualified employees the 
opportunity to participate in a defined contribution retirement plan 
qualifying under the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue 
Code. Each eligible employee may contribute on a tax-deferred basis a portion 
of their annual earnings not to exceed certain limits. The Company matches 
one-half of individual employee contributions up to a maximum level not to 
exceed 7.5% of the employee's compensation. The Company's contributions to the 
plan vest immediately. Expenses recorded by the Company relating to its 401(k) 
plan were approximately $0.5 million and $0.2 million for the years ended 
December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

The Company also sponsors a number of defined contribution plans for 
Frontier employees. The most significant plan covers non-bargaining employees, 
who can elect to make contributions through payroll deduction. The Company 
provides a contribution of .5 percent of gross compensation in common stock 
for every employee eligible to participate in the plan. The common stock used 
for matching contributions is purchased on the open market by the plan's 
trustee. The Company also provides one hundred percent matching contributions 
in ita common stock up to three percent ofgrosa compensation, and may, at the 
discretion of the Management Benefit Committee, provide additional matching 
contributions based upon Frontier's financial results.-Th~ total cost 
recognized for all defined contribution plans was $2.6 million from the date 
of the merger through December 31, 1999. 

Pension Plan 

As a result of the merger with Frontier, the Company has nonconfributory 
plans which have been frozen, providing for service pensions and certain death 
benefits, for substantially all Frontier employees. The assets and 
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liabilities related to these plans were recorded at fair market value at the 
date of the merger. In 1995 and 1996, these defined benefit plans were frozen. 
On an annual basis, contributions are remitted to the trustees to ensure 
proper funding of the plans. 

The majority of the Company's pension plans have plan assets that exceed 
accumulated benefit obligations. There are certain plans, however, with 
accumulated benefit obligations which exceed plan assets. The following table 
summarizes the funded status of the Company's pension plans and the related 
amounts that are included in "Other assets" in the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
of the Company as of December 31, 1999 (in thousands): 

CHANGE IN BENEFIT OBLIGATION 
Benefit obligation at September 30, 1999 .•.•......••••••.••...•• $451,600 
Service cost ......••.••....••......•••••.•...................•.. 14 
Interest cost .......••.••..............••.•....•.•......•••..... 8,397 
Actuarial gain .•..•..•..•....•..........•.••••..........••••..•. (11,025) 
Benefits paid.......••.....•......•........••••.........•...••.. (9,151) 

Benefit obligation at December 31, 1999 .•.•••.•...•.••...•...... $439,835 

CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS 
Fair value of plan assets at September 30, 1999 ...••.•...•...••. $621,100 
Actual return on plan assets ...••....•..•.••.••..••..•......•.•. 86,516 
Employer contribution ...•.........•...........••........•.••.... 550 
Benefits paid .•••....•...•.....••••••.....•.••••..•...•......... (9,151) 

Fair value of plan assets at December 31, 1999 ...•.•....•....... $699,015

._=:::1==== 

Funded status.... • . . • . . . . . . . • . • • . . . . . . . . . • • • • • . . . . . . . . . . • • • . . . .• $259,180 
Unrecognized net gain........................................... (83,192) 

Prepaid benefit cost, net ..•.•..•••••••....•••••.•........•.•..• $175,988 


The net periodic pension cost consists of the following for the three month 
period ended December 31, 1999 (in thousands) : 

Service cost...................................................... $ 14 

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation...•..•.............. 8,397 

Return on plan assets •••••......••..•••••..•........•.••........•. (14,349) 


Net periodic pension benefit .........••...••••.••... ; .......•••••. $ (5,938) 

m •••==== 

The following rates and assumptions were used to calculate the projected 
benefit obligation as of December 31, 1999: 

Weighted average discount rate ..•......••..•.••..•.....•...••.••.• 9.00% 
Rate of salary increase ......•....•.....•....••............••... ;. 5.00% 
Expected return on plan assets ..•.•.••.......•...•..........•••.•.• 9.50% 

The Company's policy is to make contributions for pension benefits based on 
actuarial computations which reflect the long-term nature of the pension plan. 
However, under SPAS No. 87, "Employers' Accounting for Pensions," the 
development of the projected benefit obligation essentially is computed for 
financial reporting purposes and may differ from the actuarial determination 
for funding due to varying assumptions and methods' of computation. 
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Postretirement Benefit Other Than Pensions 

The Company provides postretirement health care and life insurance benefits, 
which have been frozen, to most of its employees. Plan assets consist 
principally of life insurance policies and money market instruments. In 1996, 
Frontier amended its healthcare benefits plan to cap the cost absorbed by the 
Company for healthcare and life insurance for its bargaining employees who 
retire after December 31, 1996. The assets and liabilities related to these 
plans Were recorded at fair market value at the date of the merger. 

The following table summarizes the funded status of the plan (in thousands)
and the related amounts included in "Deferred credits and other" in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet of the Company as of December 31,., 1999 (in 
thousands) : 

CHANGE IN BENEFIT OBLIGATION 
Benefit obligation at September 30, 1999 ....................•.. $ 114,305 
Service cost ....••..••••.................•............••.....•. 135 
Interest cost •.•.••..•...•.••••.•.•••....•...•..•.....•..•••••. 2,134 
Actuarial gain •••.•.••...•..••.....••.•..•.•.•........•..••.••. (2,970) 
Benefits paid ...•.•.•.•...•.•.•.•..••...•••. : ...•.••..•.•...••. (2,016) 

Benefit obligation at December 31, 1999 ..•••••••••••••••..•.••. $ 111,588 

CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS 
Fair value of plan assets at September 30, 1999 ...••......•..•• $ 2,989 
Actual return on plan assets .•...•...•.•...............•.••..•. 180 
Employer contribution.•......•...••.••.....••.•.....••..•...... 1,902 
Benefits paid•......•... " ........•..•..•................•••...• (2,016) 

Fair value of plan assets at December 31, 1999 ...•••..........• $ 3,055 


Funded status .....••..•......•....•.•..•.•...•..•.............. $(108,533) 

Unrecognized net loss .............•••..••••..•..••..•....••.•.• (2,133) 


Accrued benefit cost, net ....................................... $(110,666) 


The components of the estimated postretirement benefit cost are as follows 
for the three month period ended December 31, 1999 (in thousands) : 

Service cost ..•....•................•.....•.•.....'. . . . . . . . . . . . . .. $ 135 

Interest cost on projected benefit, obligation ......... ~ .•.•..••.. 2;134 

Expected return on plan assets ......••..•.......•..........•.••.• (67) 


Net periodic pension cost (benefit).............................. $ 2,202 


The following rates and assumptions were used to calculate the projected 
benefit obligation as of December 31, 1999: 

Weighted average discount rjite .•..••••••.....•..........•••...••. 8.00% 
Rate of salary increase •.••.•...•.•......•.•.........•.••.••..... 5.00% 
Expected return on plan assets .......•.....•...............•.•••. 9.50% 
Assumed rate of increase in cost of covered health care benefits. 6.17% 

Increases in health care costs were assumed to decline consistently to a 
rate of 5.0t by 2006 and remain at that level thereaft~r: !f the health care 
cost trend ratea were increased by one percentage point, the accumulated 
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postretirement benefit health care obligation as of December 31, 1999 would 
increase by $8.2 million while the sum of the service and interest cost 
components of the net postretirement benefit health care costs for 1999 would 
increase by $191,000. If the health care cost trend rates were decreased by 
one percentage point, the accumulated postretirement benefit health care 
obligations as of December 31, 1999 would decrease by $7.3 million while the 
sum of the service interest cost components of the net postretirement benefit 
health care cost for 1999 would decrease by $168,000. 

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Transactions with Global Access Ltd. and Pacific Crossing Ltd. 

During 1999, Global Crossing entered into certain transactions with GAL and 
PCL to purchase $101.4 million, of terrestrial and subsea capacity. 

Transactions with Pacific Capital Group and its Affiliates 

Prior to 1999, Global Crossing entered into certain transactions with 
affiliates of Pacific Capital Group ("PCG"), including the acquisition of 
development rights to certain of the Company's fiher optic cable systems. PCG 
is controlled by certain officers and directors of Global Crossing who either 
currently are or at one time were affiliated with PCG. During 1999, Global 
Crossing subleased from PCG two suites of offices in Beverly Hills for 
payments aggregating approximately $287,000 over the year. In October 1999, 
Global Crossing entered into a lease with North Crescent Realty V, LLC, which 
is managed by and affiliated with PCG, for an aggregate monthly cost of 
approximately $400,000. North Cresent Realty, LLC paid approximately $7.5 
million to improve the property to meet Global Crossing's specifications and 
was reimbursed approximately $3.2 million of this amount by Global Crossing. 
Global Crossing engaged an independent real estate consultant to review,the 
terms of Global Crossing's occupancy of the building. which terms were found 
by the consultant to be consistent with market terms and conditions and the 
product of an arm's length negotiation. Global Crossing subleases 
approximately 12,000 square feet of the building to PCG for an aggregate 
monthly cost of approximately $53,000. 

PCG has fractional ownership interests in aircrafts used by Global Crossing
during 1999. Global Crossing reimburses PCG for PCG's cost of maintaining 
these ownership interests such that PCG realizes no profit from the 
relationship. During 1999. PCG billed Global Crossing approximately $2 million 
in aggregate under this arrangement. 

In 1997, the Company paid $7 million in fees to PCG and certain of its key 
executives, who are shareholders of GCL, and another shareholder for services 
provided in respect of obtaining the AC-1 Credit Facility, Old Senior Notes 
and the GTHPreferred Stock financing. Of the fees paid, $5 million was 
allocated to the AC-1 Credit Facility and Old Senior Notes and recorded as 
deferred finance costs, $1 million was allocated to the GCH Preferred Stock 
and recorded as a ,reduction in the carrying value of the preferred stock and 
$1 million was recorded as common stock issuance costs. 

Transactions with Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and its affiliates 

During 1999, Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and its affiliates ("CIBC") 
entered into certain financing transactions with Global Crossing. In 
particular, CIBC: {11 acted as an arranger for the $600 million ten-day demand 
note issued by Global Marine Systems in July, (2) acted as an arranger for the 
$3 billion senior secured credit facility entered into by GCH in July, (3j was 
an initial purchaser of the $2 billion aggregate principal amount of unsecured 
senior notes iss,ued by GCH in November, and (4) was an initial purchaser of 
GCL's $650 million aggregate liquidation preference 7% cumulative convertible 
preferred stock issued in December. During 1999, Globai Crossing paid CIBC 
approximately $~.6 million in fees in connection with these transactions. CIBC 
has a substantial beneficial ownership interest in Global Crossing, and 
ce:t:tain directors of Global Crossing are employees of an a£filiate of CIBC. 
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In 199B, CIBC was one of the initial purchasers of the New Senior Notes and 
GCH Preferred Stock, a member of the PC-1 and MAC credit facility syndicates. 
and was also one of the underwriters of the Company's initial public offering 
(IIIPO"). CIBC was paid $19 million in fees and credit facility interest during 
the year ended December 31, 199B. In 1997, GCL paid CIBC approximately $25 
million in fees related to the financing obtained under the Old Senior Notes, 
the AC-1 Credit Facility, and the issuance of the GTH Preferred Stock. Of the 
fees incurred, approximately $6 million related to underwriting and commitment 
fees pertaining to the issuance of the GTH Preferred· Stock and was recorded as 
a reduction in the carrying value of the GTH Preferred Stock, approximately $9 
million related to underwriting, commitment and advisory fees in connection 
with the issuance of the Old Senior Notes and approximately $lO million 
related to fees associated with obtaining the AC-l Credit Facility which was 
recorded as deferred finance costs. 

Relationship to Ziff-Davia Inc. and Affiliates 

A director of Global Crossing is the chairman and chief executive officer of 
Ziff-Davis Inc., a majority of the common stock of which is beneficially owned 
by Softbank Corp. Softbank is a party to the Asia Global Crossing joint 
venture established to provide advanced network-based telecommunications 
services to businesses and consumers throughout Asia. Global Crossing, which 
is responsible for the management and operation of the network, contributed to 
the venture its 57.75% share of the Pacific Crossing system and its 
development rights in East Asia Crossing. Softbank and Microsoft each 
contributed $175 million in cash to Asia Global Crossing and also committed to 
make a total of at least $200 million in Global Crossing Network capacity 
purchases over a three-year period, expected to be utilized primarily on the 
Pacific Crossing system and East Asia Crossing. Softbank and Microsoft also 
agreed to use Asia Global Crossing's network in the region. Global Crossing 
currently owns 93% of Asia Global Crossing, with Softbank and Microsoft each 
owning 3.5%. When the fair market value of Asia Global Crossing is determined 
to exceed $5 billion, the ownership interest of Softbank and Microsoft will 
increase to a maximum of 19% each at a valuation of $7.5 billion and above. 
The Global Crossing director is Softbank's representative on the Asia Global 
Crossing board of directors. In addition, Ziff-Davis is one of the largest 
web-hosting customers of our GlobalCenter subsidiary. 

Relationship to Hutchison Whampoa Limited 

The managing director of Hutchison was recently appointed a director of 
Global Crossing. In November 1999, Hutchison and Global Crossing entered into 
an agreement to form a SO/SO joint venture to pursue fixed-line 
telecommunications and Internet opportunities in the Hong Kong Special 
Administrative Region, China. The joint venture, the formation of which was 
completed in January 2000, combines Hutchison's existing territory-wide, 
building-to-building fixed-line fiber optic telecommunications network and 
certain Internet-related assets in Hong KOng with Global Crossing's . 
international fiber optic broadband cable capacity and web hosting, Internet 
applications and data services. For its 50% share, Global Crossing provided to 
Hutchison $400 million in Global Crossing 6 3/S% cumulative convertible 
preferred stock. Additionally, Global Crossing committed to contrib~te to the 
joint venture international telecommunications capacity rights on its global 
fiber optic network and data center related capabilities which together are 
valued at $350 million, as well as' $50 million in cash. 

Agreements with Global Crossing Stockholders 

In August 1998. PCG, GKW unified Holdings (an affiliate of PCG), affiliates 
of CIBC, Global,~rossing and some other Global Crossing shareholders, 
including some officers and directors and their affiliates, entered into a 
Stockholders Agreement and a Registration Rights Agreement_ under the 
Stockholders Agre~ment, Global Crossing has been graqted a right of first 
refusal on specified private transfers by these shareholders during the first 
two years after the consummation of the IPO on August 14, -i99B. In addition, 
subject to the exceptions in the Stockholders Agreement, some of these 
shareholders have rights, which are referred to as tag-along rights, 
permitting these shareholders to participate, on the same terms and'­
conditions, in some transfers of shares by 
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any other of these shareholders as follows: (1) PCG, GKW Unified Holdings and 
CIBC and their affiliates and permitted transferees have the right to 
participate in any transaction initiated by any of them to transfer 5% or more 
of our outstanding securities; and (2) PCG, GKN Unified Holdings, CIBC and 
their affiliates and permitted transferees have the right to participate in 
any transaction initiated by any of them to transfer any Global Crossing 
securities if that transaction would result in a change of control of Global 
Crossing. Under the Registration Rights Agreement, Global Crossing
shareholders who are parties to that agreement and a number of their 
transferees have demand and piggyback registration rights and will receive 
indemnification and, in some circumstances, reimbursement for expenses from 
the Company in connection with an applicable registration. 

Principal shareholders of Global Crossing, representing at that time over a 
majority of the voting power of the Company's common stock, entered into a 
Voting Agreement with Frontier corporation in March 1999 in connection with 
the Frontier merger. These Global Crossing shareholders reaffirmed their 
voting obligations under the Voting Agreement in connection with subsequent 
amendments made to the merger agreement during 1999. Pursuant to'the Second 
Reaffirmation of Voting Agreement and Share Transfer Restriction Agreement 
dated September 2, 1999, the Global Crossing shareholders that are parties to 
the Voting Agreement also agreed, from September 2, 1999 until March 26, 2000, 
not to transfer record or beneficial ownership of any shares of Global 
Crossing common stock held by such shareholders, other than transfers to 
charities, transfers made with the consent of the Company and other limited 
exceptions, and to work in good faith toward-implementing a program with the 
purpose that, if the Global Crossing shareholders that are parties to the 
Voting Agreement wish to sell or transfer their shares after March 26, 2000, 
these sales or transfers would be completed in a manner that would provide for 
an orderly trading market for the shares of Global Crossing common stock. 

Also on September 2, 1999, fourteen of the Company's executive officers and 
three executive officers of Frontier entered into a Share Transfer Restriction 
Agreement with Global Crossing. under this agreement, the Global Crossing 
executive officers agreed not to sell or transfer shares of the Company's 
common stock, and the Frontier executive officers agreed not to sell or 
transfer shares of Frontier common stock and the shares of Global Crossing 
common stock they would receive in exchange for their Frontier common stock in 
the merger, until March 26, 2000, subject in each case to substantially the 
same exceptions as are applicable to the Second Reaffirmation of Voting 
Agreement and Share Transfer Restriction Agreement described in the 
immediately preceding paragraph. 

Advisory Services Agreement ("ASA") 

ACL entered into the ASA with·PCG Telecom, an affiliate of PCG which is a 
shareholder of GeL. Under the ASA, PCG Telecom p;rovided. ACL with advice in 
respect of the development and maintenance of AC-1, development and 
implementation of marketing and pricing strategies and the preparation of 
business plans and budgets. As compensation for its advisory services, PCG 
Telecom received a 2% fee on the gross revenue of the Company over a 25 year 
term, subject to certain restrictions, with the first such payment to occur at 
the AC-l RFS date. Advances on fees payable under the ASA were being paid to 
PCG Telecom at a rate of It on signed CPAs until the ASA was terminated, as 
described below. Fees paid under the ASA to PCG Telecom were shared amongst 
Union Labor Life Insurance Company, (!JOLLICO"), PCG, CIBC, and certain 
directors and officers of the Company, all of whom are shareholders of GeL. 
Effective June 1998, GeL acquired the rights under the ASA on behalf of the 
Company for common stock and contributed such rights to the Company as the ASA 
was terminated. This transaction was recorded in the consolidated financial 
statements as an. increase in additional paid-in capital of $135 million and a 
charge_against operations in the amount of $138 million. The $138 million is 
comprised of a $l35 million settlement of the fee~ that would have been 
payable and the ~ancellation of $3 million owed to tbe Company under a related 
advance agreement. The $135 million amount was calculated by applying the 2% 
advisory services fee to projected future revenue and disaeunting the amount 
relating to AC-1 revenue by 12% and the amount relating to all other system's 
revenue by 1St. The result of this calculation was $l56 million, which amount 
was subsequently reduced to $l35 million. Both the discount rates~and the 
ultimate 
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valuation were determined as a result of a negotiation process including a non 
management director of the Company and the various persons entitled to fees 
under the ASA. The Company obtained a fairness opinion from an independent 
financial advisor in connection with this transaction. In addition, the 
Company incurred approximately $2 million of advisory fees prior to 
termination of the contract, for a total expense of $140 million for the year 
ended December 31, 1998. 

PCG Warrants 

PCG Warrants, issued in 1998 by the Company's predecessor, Global Crossing 
Ltd., LDL ("Old GeL") became exercisable upon the completion of the IPO. The 
PCG Warrants gave each holder the option to convert each share under warrant 
into a fraction of a Class B of Old GCL share based upon the ratio of the 
current per share valuation at the time of conversion less the per share 
exercise price of the warrant divided by the current per share,valuation at 
the time of conversion multiplied by the 36,906,372 shares available under the 
PCG Warrants, together with a new warrant ("New PCG Warrants") to purchase the 
remaining fraction of such Class B share at an exercise price equal to the 
then current per share valuation. Prior to the IPO, the holders of the PCG 
Warrants exercised their warrants to acquire Class B of Old GCL shares by way 
of the cashless conversion and the New PCG Warrants were issued with an 
exercise price based on the per share valuation at the conversion date, the 
obligation on which were assumed by GCL. 

The Company accounted for the cashless conversion of the PCG Warrants, which 
occurred as of June 1998, using the current estimated per share valuation at 
the expected conversion date, multiplied by the number of Class B shares of 
Old GCL estimated to be converted in exchange for the PCG Warrants. The 
resulting value under this calculation is approximately $213 million, which 
was allocated to the new systems in exchange for the PCG Warrants. In 
connection with the formation of PCL, the Company agreed to make available to 
PCL the consideration received by the Company in connection with the grant of 
the PCG Warrants, in addition to the $231 million cash investment made by the 
Company. Therefore, the Company recorded an increase in its investment in PCL 
in the amount of approximately $127 million and an increase in construction in 
progress for PAC and MAC in the amounts of approximately $50 million and $36 
million, respectively, with a corresponding increase of $213 million in 
additional paid-in capital. The $213 million was allocated on a pro rata basis 
to the three projects according to the estimated cost of each system. The 
Company's accounting for the PCG Warrants is pursuant to Emerging Issues Task 
Force 96-18, "Accounting for Equity Instruments with variable Terms that are 
Issued for Consideration other than Employee Services under FASB Statement No. 
123" ("EITF 96-18"). 'Under EITF 96-18, the fair value of equity instruments 
issued for consideration other than employee services should be measured using 
the stock price or other measurement assumptions as of the date at which a 
firm commitment for performance level has been reached. The Company has 
recorded the estimated'value of the PCG Warrants as of June 1998, since the 
IPO was probable at that date. The $213 million value attributed to the PCG 
Warrants as of June 1998 was adjusted to the actual value of $275 million on 
the date of the IPO based upon the $9.50 price per share of the IPO. 

The Company gave accounting recognition for the New PCG Warrants on the date 
these warrants were issued, which was the date of the IPO. The Company valued 
each of the New PCG Warrants at $3.48 based on an independent valuation based 
on the IPO price of $9.50 per share. The New PCG Warrants had a total value of 
approximately $43 million. The Company recorded the actual value of the New 
PCG Warrants in a manner similar to that described above whereby the total 
value was allocated to the investment in PC-1, MAC and PAC based on their 
relative total contract costs. 

Other_transactions 

In 1998, GCL ~urchased all common shares owned by Telecommunications 
Development Corporation ("TDC") in the Company in exchange for 300,000 fewer 
newly issued shares of common stock based upon the 
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per share value at the repurchase date. The transaction benefited GCL since 
300,000 fewer shares were outstanding after the repurchase without any cost to 
GCL. This transaction was accounted for as the acquisition of treasury stock 
and was recorded as $209 million, the fair value of the consideration given. 
Certain officers and directors of the Company held direct or indirect equity 
ownership positions in TOC, resulting in these officers and directors having a 
majority of the outstanding common stock of TOC. Following this transaction, 
TDC distributed all of its shares of common stock and GCL warrants to the 
holders of its common stock and was then liquidated. 

19. SEGMENT REPORTING 

The Company is a worldwide provider of Internet and lOng distance 
telecommunications facilities and related services supplying its customers 
with global "point to point" connectivity and, through its Global Marine 
Systems subsidiary, providing cable installation and maintenance services. The 
Company's reportable segments include telecommunications services, 
installation and maintenance services, and incumbent local exchange carrier 
services. There are other corporate related charges not attributable to a 
specific segment. While the Company's chief decision maker monitors the 
revenue streams of the various products and geographic locations, operations 
are managed and financial performance evaluated based on the delivery of 
multiple, integrated services to customers over a single network. As a result, 
there are many shared expenses generated by the various revenue streams and 
~agement believes that any allocation of the expenses incurred to multiple 
revenue streams would be impractical and arbitrary. 
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The information below summarizes certain financial data of the Company by 

segment (in thousands) : 

Telecommunication 

Services 

Revenue .........•...... 

Operating expenses ..... 


Operating income 
(loss) ............... . 

Cash paid for capital
expenditures ...•...•.. 

Total assets .......... . 


Installation and 
Maintenance Services 
Revenue: 

Maintenance ........••• 
Installation....•••... 

Total revenue ...•...... 
Operating expenses ..... 

Operating loss•.•...... 

Cash paid for capital
expenditures ......... . 

Total assets .........•. 


Incumbent Local Exchange 
Carrier Services 
Revenue ...••.•..••..... 
Operating expenses •..•. 

Operating income ..•..•. 

Cash paid for capital
expenditures ......... . 

Total assets ....•...... 

Corporate and Other 
Revenue .....•••.•...... 
Operating expenses ..... 

Operating loss ...•....• 

Cash paid for capital
expenditures•.••...... 

Total assets .•.••...... 

Consolidated 
Consolidated revenue ... 
Consolidated operating 

expense ...•........... 

Consolidated operating
(loss) ......•..•...... 

Consolidated cash paid
for capital
expenditure's .........• 

Consolidated total 
assets ..... ~ .......•.• 

Year Ended Year Ended 

December 3~, ~999 December 3~, ~998 


'1,318,248 4~9,866 
~,37a,S34 299,922 

$ (S2,286) $ 119,944 

$ 1,552,019 $ 413,996 
===••••••• 

$16,813,242 $2,639,177_a._.•_._== :o==_=====-= 

67,981 

92,674 


160,6S5 
~62,209 

$ (1,554) $ 

$ 	 170,585 $ 
=====•••••• ==-==-====:1::& 
$ 1,519,166 $ 

=========== 

$ 	 185,921 $ 

131,942 


$ 53,979 $ 

$ 4a,31~ $ 
========-.=-= a==nlS••••==_ 
$ 1,373,172 $ 
._••••=-Q.=­

$ $ 
7,600 139,669 

$ (7,600) $ (139,669) 
====:::a==uc;;=_. ::::1======*==. 

$ 	 $-----..--_. _=====-===::1 
$ 	 $

•••======::a 

$ 1,664,824 $ 419,866 

1,672,285 439,S9~ 

$ (7,461) $ (19,725) 
=••==._::1=== 

$ 1;770,ns $ 4~3,996 
==-=-=-=••::1::1 

$19,705,580 $2,63.9.,177=._---..... ====-.;:1=== 

Period from 

March ~9, ~997 


(Date of Inception) 

to December 31, 1997 


3,la~ 

$ (3,10~) 

$428,743
••••:a=== 
$572,197 

$ 


$ 

.::a.=::=-::_ 
$ 
::s ........ 

$ 

$ 
===_=::a::a=== 

==.=====­

$ 


$ 

=.:a===== 
$ 

$ 

~ 

3,101 

$ (3,101) 

$428,743 

$572,197
••=._=== 
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1999 	 1998 

Long-Lived Long-Lived 
Revenue Assets Revenue (1) Assets(2) 

(In 	thousands) 

North America 
United States...... • • • • . . • . . . .. $ 997,025 $3,029,828 $193,142 $ 76,055 
Other .........•...•••...•....•. 64,040 26,515 64,558 

1,061,065 3,056,343 257,700 76,055 
Europe 

The Netherlands •...•........... 89,600 92,251 46,770 82,433' 
Germany ....•..••..•...••.....•. 145,289 204,564 36,047 30,021 
England•.••••........•....•.... 106,815 722,462 34,777 49,081 
Other .•...••••...............•• 244,351 302,645 44,572 

586,055 1,321,922 162,166 161,535 
International waters •.........•.• 1,339,614 770,966 
Other ...••.......••••.••....•.••• 17,704 308,174 

Consolidated.•••.......•..•...••. $1,664,824 $6,026,053 $419,866 $1,008,556 

- •••••Q=~~ _._._-==== ..._._== •••_==.=== 

(1) 	 During 1998, there was one customer located in the united States that 

accounted for 16% of consolidated revenue, another customer located in 

Canada that accounted for 16% of consolidated revenue, and one customer 

located in the Netherlands that accounted for 11% of consolidated revenue. 

There were no individual customers in 1999 that accounted for more than 

10% of consolidated revenue. 


(2) 	 Long-lived assets include capacity available for sale and construction in 

progress as of December 31, 1999 and 1998. 


20. 	QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

The Company's unaudited quarterly results are as follows: 

1999 Quarter Ended 
-----------------------------------~--------March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 

(In 	thousands, except per share data) 

Revenue ..•••••••.•••....•••.••.•. $176,319 $188,459 $234,582 $1,065,464 
Operating income (loss) ......... . 41,067 39,764 13,226 (101,518) 
Income (loss) before 
extraordinary item and 

cumulative effect of change in 

accounting principle ..•.•....••. 12,802 9,978 135,854 (169,169) 


Net income (loss) ••••.........••• (1,908) 9,978 120,989 (199,985) 
Net income (loss) applicable to 

common shareholders ..••.•.•..... (14,952) (4,219) 106,918 '(225,315) 
Income (loss) per common share 
before extraord,inary item and 
cumul~tive effect of change in 
accounting principle, basic ••••• (0.00) (0.01) 0.30 ( .25) 

Net income (loss) per common 
share, basic .• : .•...••.••...•.•• (0.04) (0.01) 0.26 ( .29) 

Income (loss) per common share 
before extraordinary item and 
cumulative effect of change in 
accounting principle, diluted .•. (0.00) (0.01) 0.27 ( .25) 

Net income (loss) per common 
share, diluted••...•...•.......• $ (0.04) $ (0. 01) $ 0.24 $ (.29) 
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Significant 1999 interim events: 

on December 15, 1999, the Company issued 2,600,000 shares of 7' cumulative 
convertible preferred stock at a liquidation preference of $250.00 for net 
proceeds of $630 million. 

On November 24, 1999, the Company acquired Racal Telecom, a group of wholly 
owned subsidiaries of Racal Electronics pIc, for approximately $1.6 billion in 
cash. 

on November 12, 1999, GCH issued two series of senior unsecured notes. The 9 
1/8% senior notes are due November 15, 2006 with a face value of $900 million, 
for net proceeds of $887 million and the 9 1/2' senior notes are due 
November 15, 2009 with a face value of $1,100 million, for net proceeds of 
$1,084 million. 

On November 5, 1999, the Company issued 10,000,000 shares of 6 3/8\ 
cumulative convertible preferred stock at a liquidation preference of $100.00 
for net proceeds of approximately $969 million. 

On September 28, 1999, the Company consummated its merger with Frontier 
Corporation in a transaction valued at $10.3 billion. 

on July 2, 1999, the Company completed its acquisition of the Global Marine 
Systems division of Cable & Wireless PIc for approximately $908 million in 
cash and assumed liabilities. 

During the third quarter, the Company recognized $210 million, net of merger 
related expenses, of other income in connection with the termination of the US 
WEST merger agreement. 

1998 Quarter Ended 
-------_._----------------------------------­
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 
----- ... _- --------- ------------ ----------­

(In thousands, except per share data)' 

Revenue ....•.••..............•.... $ $ 100,244 $116,494 $203,128 
Operating income (loss) .••....•.•• (3,794) (123,649) 31,994 75,724 
Income (loss) before extraordinary 

loss .••••.......•.•.........•..•. (3,722) (135,725) 15,229 56,024 
Net income 
Net income 

(loss) ..•...••....•.•.. 
(loss) applicable to 

(3,722) (155,434) 15,229 56,024 

common shareholders ......•••...•. 
Income (loss) per common share 
before'extraordinary item, basic. 

Net income (loss) per common 
share, basic .••....••••••.•...••. 

Income (loss) per common share 
before extraordinary item, 
diluted....•.....•••......••••••• 

Net income (loss) per common 
share, diluted••.•.•••.•.•.•••.•. 

(B,129) 

(0.02) 

(0.02) 

(0.02) 

$ (0.02) 

(193,473) 

(0.52) 

(0.58) 

(0.52) 

$ (0.58 ) 

15,229 

0.04 

0.04 

0.04 ­

$ 0.04 

51,649 

$ 

0.13 

0.13 

0.12 

0.12 

Significant 199B interim events: 

In December 1998, 5,000,000 shares of GCH 10 1/2% Preferred Stock were 
i~sued for proceeds of $4B3 million. 

Duriug August 1998, the Company completed an IPO for which the Company
received net proceeds of approximately $391 million. 

In May 199B, the first segment of AC-l, the United 'States to United Kingdom 
ronte, was completed and commenced operations. 

During the second quarter, the Company acquired the rights from those 
entitled to fees payable under the advisory services agreement in~ .. ­
consideration for the issuance of common stock having an aggregate value of 
$135 million and the cancellation of approximately $3 million owed to the 
Company tinder a related advance 

F-3B 

Copyright 2000 EDGAR Online. [ne, (ver 1.0112.003) Page 111 



........."
'-" 
GLOBAL CROSSlNG LTD - JO-K -Allllual Report Date Filed: 311712000 

GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continuedl 

agreement. As a result of this transaction, the Company recorded a non­

recurring charge in the approximate amount of $138 million during the second 

quarter. In addition, the Company recognized as an expense approximately $2 

million of advisory fees incurred prior to termination of the contract. 


On May 18, 1998, the Company issued 9 5/8. senior notes due May 15, 2008, 

with a face value of $800 million. 


21. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Share cancellation 

As part of the Company's break-up fee received from US West, Inc. ("US 
West"), the Company received 2,231,076 shares of its common stock from US West 
which were cancelled by the Company. Por the year ended December 31, 1999, 
other income, net was composed primarily of a $210 million termination fee 
paid by US West in connection with the termination of its merger agreement 
with the Company, net of related expenses. 

Old GCL Common Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital 

During March 1997, Old GCL, formerly GT Parent Holdings LOC, was 
incorporated as an exempted limited duration company in the Cayman Islands. In 
March 1998, GCL, a Bermuda company, was formed as a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
Old GCL. At that time, Old GCL contributed its investment in Global 
Telesystems Holdings Ltd. ("GTH") to GCL. During April 1998, GCL formed a 

wholly-owned subsidiary, Global Crossing Holdings Ltd. ("GeH"), a Bermuda 


. company, and contributed its investment in GTH to GCH upon its formation. 


In January 1998, Old GCL effected a 100-for-l stock split of each of its 
Class A, B, C and 0 common stock and undesignated stock and amended the par 
value of each share of common stock from $.0001 per share to $.000001 per 
share. Prior to GCL's IPO in August 1998, GCL declared a stock dividend to Old 
GCL resulting in Old GCL holding 1.5 shares of common stock of GCL for each 
share of common stock of Old GCL outstanding. Pursuant to the terms of the 
Articles of Association of Old GCL and prior to the Company's IPO, each holder 
of Class D shares of Old GCL converted such shares into a fraction of a Class 
E share of Old GCL based upon a valuation at the time of such conversion, 
together with a warrant to purchase the remaining fraction of such Class E 
share at an exercise price based upon such market valuation. In addition, each 
holder of Class E shares of Old GCL had such Class E shares converted into 
Class B shares of Old GCL. Accordingly, each holder of Class D and Class E 
shares ultimately received Class B shares, with the warrants to purchase Class 
E shares received by former Class D shareholders then cancelled in exchange 
for warrants ("New GCL Warrants") to purchase shares of Common Stock of GCL at 
an exercise price equal to the IPO price of $9.50 per share. 

Subsequent to the above transaction and prior to the Company's IPO, each 
shareholder of Old GCL (other than CIBC) exchanged their interests in Old GCL 
for shares of common stock of GCL held by Old GCL at a rate of 1.5 shares of 
common stock of GCL for each share of common stock of Old GCL ("Old-GCL 
Exchange"). CIBC did not participate in the above mentioned transaction and 
continued to maintain its ownership of GCL through Old GeL, which became a 
wholly owned subsidiary of CIBC. 

Because Old GCL, GCL and GCH were entities under common control, the 
transfers by Old GCL to GeL and GCL to GCH and the Old GeL Exchange were 
accounted for similar to a pooling of interests. The consolidated financial 
statements presented have been retroactively restated to reflect these 
transactions as if they had occurred as of March 19, 1997 (Date of Inception). 

F-39 

Copyright 2000 EDGAR Online. fllc. (ver 1.0112.003) Page 112 



'-'" '-" 
GLOBAL CROSSING LTD -IO-K -An1lual Report Date Filed: 311712000 

GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued) 

Information with respect to Old GCL common stock and additional paid-in 
capital prior to the Old GCLExchange is as follows: 

Common Stock: 

Authorized: 

1,000,000,000 Class A common stock of $.00000067 par value 

1,000,000,000 Class B common stock of $.00000067 par value 

1,000,000,000 Class C common stock of $.00000067 par value 

3,000,000,000 Class D common stock of $.00000067 par value 

1,000,000,000 Class E common stock of $.00000067 par value 

43,000,000,000 undesignated common stock of $.00000067 par value 

Class A shares, Class B shares and Class C shares all had voting rights. On 
March 25, 1997, Old GeL issued 22,500,000 Class A shares, 101,250,000 Class B 
shares, 101,250,000 Class C shares for $.33 per share, resulting in aggregate
proceeds of $75 million. In addition to the 22,500,000 Class A shares issued 
to the preference shareholders for cash in connection with the issuance of the 
preference shares, a total of 39,705,900 Class A shares were distributed to 
the initial preference shareholder representing 15% of the aggregate number of 
Class A, B and C shares outstanding. In addition, warrants to acquire a 
maximum of 92,8BO shares of common stock of Old GCL were issued into escrow 
for the benefit of the holders of preferred stock. Effective January 21, 199B, 
Old GCL authorized 1,000,000,000 new Class E non-voting shares. 

Certain of. the Class B shareholders were issued a total of 66,176,400 Class 
D shares on March 25, 1997. Of the $34 million of proceeds received from the 
issuance of Class B shares, $3 million was allocated to the Class D shares 
representing the estimated fair value of the Class D shares based on an 
independent valuation. Class D shares were non-voting shares which carried 
special preference rights on the cash distributions made by Old GCL. Class D 
shareholders were to receive 10% of cash distributions to common shareholders 
once the internal rate of return to Class C shareholders exceeded 10%, and 
then increasing to 20% of cash distributions to common shareholders once the 
internal rate of return to Class C shareholders exceeded 30%. Effective 
January 1998, Class D share rights were amended such that Class D shareholders 
received the option to convert each Class D share into one Class E share upon 
payment to Old GCL of $.74 per share or to a fraction of a Class E share based 
upon a valuation at the time of such conversion, together with a warrant to 
purchase the remaining fraction of such Class E share at an exercise price 
based upon such market valuation. By granting to holders of the Class D shares 
an option to convert such shares into Class E shares, the Company obtained 
effective assurance that it could effect a change to a corporate structure in 
the event of a major equity event, such as a merger or other business 
combination or in the event of an IPO by GCL, of its common stock, since the 
holders of the Class D shares would need to exercise their options in order to 
participate directly in benefits of a merger or acquisition of the Company or 
in order to obtain the benefits of any trading market for the common stock of 
the Company; no trading market was expected to develop for the Class D shares. 
The grant of the options to Class D shareholders represents an equity 
transaction since the Company granted these shareholders amended share rights 
in the form of options with new warrants. Since the Company had an accumulated 
d~ficit, the charge was made against additional paid in capital, which had no 
impact on the consolidated financial· statements. The Company accounted for the 
new warrants as an equity transaction on the date the warrants were issued, 
which was the IPO date of August 13, 1998. 

In 1998, the Company issued, at a price of $0.33 per share, 900,000 Class B 
shares and 675,000 Class E shares. Since the estimated farr value of shares 
exceeded the issue price, the Company increased stock related expense and 
shareholders' equity by $2 million in 1998. 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 


NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Continued} 


22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

IXnet and IPC Acquisitions 

on February 22, 2000, the Company announced a definitive agreement to 
acquire IXnet, Inc., a leading provider of specialized IP-based network 
services to the global financial services community, and its parent company, . 
IPC Communications, Inc., in exchange for shares of common stock of Global 
Crossing valued at approximately $3.8 billion. Under the terms of the 
definitive merger agreement, 1.184 Global Crossing shares will be exchanged 
for each IXnet share not owned by IPC and 5.417 Global Crossing shares will be 
exchanged for each share of IPC. The acquisition is expected to be completed 
in the second quarter of 2000 and is subject to regulatory approval and 
customary closing conditions. 

GlobalCenter Japan 

On January 26, 2000, the Company's Asia Global Crossing joint venture 
announced an agreement to create GlobalCenter Japan, a joint venture with 
Japan's Internet Research Institute, Inc. (IIIRI"). GlobalCenter Japan will 
design, develop and construct a media distribution center in Japan providing 
connectivity worldwide through the Global Crossing Network. The joint venture 
will, also develop and provide complex ~b hosting services, e-commerce support 
and applications hosting solutions. Asia Global Crossing will own 89 percent 
of GlobalCenter Japan, with IRI owning the remaining 11 percent. 

Hutchison Global Crossing Joint Venture 

On January 12, 2000, the Company established a joint venture, called 
Hutchison Global Crossing, with Hutchison to pursue fixed-line . 
telecommunications and Internet opportunities in Hong Kong. For its 50% share, 
Hutchison contributed to the joint venture its building-to-building fixed-line 
telecommunications network in Hong Kong and a number of Internet-related 
asseta. In addition, Hutchison has agreed that any fixed-line 
telecommunications activities it pursues in China will be carried out by the 
joint venture. For its 50% share, the Company provided to Hutchison $400 
million in Global Crossing convertible preferred stock (convertible into 
shares of Global Crossing common stock at a rate of $45 per share) and 
committed to contribute to the joint venture international telecommunications 
capacity rights on our network and global media distribution center 
capabilities which together are valued at $350 million, as well as $50 million 
in cash. The Company intends to integrate its interest in Hutchison Global 
Crossing into Asia Global Crossing. 
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GLOBAL CROSSING LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

SCHEDULE II 

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 
(in thousands I 

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E 

Additions 

Balance at Charged to Charged Balance at 
Dec 3l, costs and to other Dec 3l, 

Description 199B expenses accounts Deductions 1999 

Reserve for uncollectible 
accounts ................ . $4,233 $37,l57 $88,055 $(34,335) $95,llO 

Deferred tax valuation 
allowance ............... . $ $ $54,780 $ $54,780 
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or-1S(d} of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed 
on its behalf on March 16, 2000 by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Global crossing Ltd. 

/sl Dan J. Cohrs 
By: 

Dan J. Cohrs 
Chief Financial Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this 
report has been signed below on March 16, 2000 by the following persons on 
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated. 

Signatures Title 

/s/ Gary Winnick Chairman of the Board and Director 

Gary Winnick 

/s/ Lodwrick M. Cook Co-Chairman of the Board and Director 

Lodwrick M. Cook 

/s/ Leo J. Hindery, Jr. Chief Executive Officer and Director; 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, 

Leo J. Hindery, Jr. GlobalCenter Inc. 

/s/ Thomas J. Casey Vice Chairman of the Board and Director 

Thomas J. Casey 

/s/ David L. Lee 

David L. Lee 

President, 
Director 

Chief Operating Officer and 

/s/ Joseph P. Clayton 

Joseph P. Clayton 

Director; 
America 

President, Global Crossing North 

lsI Jack M. Scanlon 

Jack M. Scanlon 

Director; Vice Chairman of the Board, 
Global Crossing 

Asia 

lsI Abbott L. Brown Senior Vice President and Director 

Abbott L. Brown 

/5/ Barry Porter Senior Vice President and Director 

Barry Porter 

8-1 

Copyright 2000 EDGAR Olliine. Illc. (ver 1.0112.003) Page 116 



'-' "-'" 
GLOBAL CROSSING LTD -lO-K -Annual Report Date Filed: 311712000 

Signatures ......... Title 


lsI Dan J. Cohrs Senior Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer (principal accounting officer) 

Dan J. Cohrs 

lsI Robert Annunziata Director 


Robert Annunziata 


lsI Jay R. Bloom Director 


Jay R. Bloom 


lsI William E. Conway Director 


William E. Conway 


lsI Eric Hippeau Director 


Eric Hippeau 


lsI Dean C. Kehler Director 


Dean C. Kehler 


lsI Geoffrey J.W. Kent Director 


Geoffrey J.W. Kent 


Director 


Canning Fok Kin-ning 

lsI Douglas H. McCorkindale Director 

Douglas H. McCorkindale 


Is/ James F. McDonald Director 


James F. McDonald 


Is/ Bruce Raben Director 


Bruce Raben 


/sl Michael R. Steed Director 


Michael R. Steed 
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EX-3.10 

2 


CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS 


EXHIBIT 3.10 

EXECUTION COPY 
Schedule to the Bye-Laws 

of Global Crossing Ltd. 

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS 

OF 

SERIES B 6 3/8' CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK 

The terms of the authorized Series B 6 3/8' Convertible Preferred 
Stock (the "Preferred Stock") of Global crossing Ltd., a company incorporated 
under the laws of Bermuda (the "Company"), shall be as set forth below in this 
Schedule to the Bye-Laws of the Company (this ·Schedule"). 

(a) Designation. (i) There are hereby authorized 400,000 shares 

of Preferred Stock as designated by the Board of Directors of the Company. Each 
share of Preferred Stock will have a liquidation preference of $1,000 (the 
"Liquidation Preference") . 

(ii) All shares of Preferred Stock redeemed, purchased, 
exchanged, converted or otherwise acquired by the Company shall be retired and 
canceled and, upon the taking of any action required by applicable law, shall be 
restored to the status of authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock of 
the Company, without designation as to series, and may thereafter be reissued. 

(b) CUrrency. All shares of Preferred Stock shall be denominated 

in United States currency, and all payments and distributions thereon or with 
resp~ct thereto shall be made in United States currency. All references herein 
to "$" or "dollars" refer to United St,ates currency. 

(c) Ranking. The Preferred Stock shall, with respect to dividend 

rights and rights upon liquidation, winding up or dissolution, rank junior to 
(i) each other class or series of capital ,stock of the Company, other than (A) 
the Common Stock of the Company and any other class or series of capital stock 
of the Company which by its terms ranks junior to the preferred Stock, as to 
which the Preferred Stock shall rank prior and (B) the Company's 6 3/8' 
CUmulative Convertible Preferred Stock and any other class or series of capital 
stock of the Company which by its terms ranks on a parity with the Preferred 
Stock, in each case as to which the Preferred Stock shall rank on a parity or 
(ii) other equity interests in the Company, in each case, including, without 
limitation, warrants, rights, calls or options exercisable for or convertible 
into such capital stock or equity interests, except as provided in the last 
sentence of this paragraph (c). All equity securities of the Company to which 
the Preferred Stock ranks prior (whether with respect to dividends or upon 
liquidation, winding up, dissolution or otherwise), including the Common Stock 
of the Company, are collectively referred to herein as the "Junior Stock'~. All 
e~ity securities of the Company to which the Preferred Stock ranks on a parity 
(whether with respect to dividends or upon' liquidation, 

winding up, dissolution or otherwise) are collectively referred to herein as the 
"Parity Stock". All equity securities of the Company to which the Preferred 
St~ck ranks junior (whether with respect to dividends or upon liquidation, 
winding up, dissolution or otherwise) are collectively referred to herein as the 
"Senior Stock". The respective definitions of Junior Stock, parity Stock and 
Senior Stock shall also include any warrants, rights, calls or opft6ns 
exercisable for or convertible into any Junior Stock, Parity Stock or Senior 
Stock, as the case may be. 

(d) Dividends. (i) The holders of shares of Preferred Stock 
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shall be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors 
of the Company out of funds legally available therefor, dividends on the shares 
of Preferred Stock, cumulative from the first date of issuance of any such 
shares (the "Initial Issuance Date"), at a rate per annum of 6 3/8% of the 
Liquidation Preference per share. payable in cash. Dividends on the shares of 
Preferred Stock shall be payable quarterly in equal amounts (subject to 
paragraph (d) (v) hereunder with respect to shorter periods, including the first 
such period with respect to newly issued shares of Preferred Stock) in arrears 
on the first day of each February, May, August and November of each year, or if 
any such date is not a Business Day, on the next succeeding Business Day (each 
such date, a "Dividend Payment Date", and each such quarterly period, a 
"Dividend Period"), in preference to and in priority over dividends on any
Junior Stock. Such dividends shall be paid to the holders of record of the 
shares of Preferred Stock as they appear on the applicable Record Date. As used 
herein, the term "Record Date" means, with respect to the dividends payable on 
the first of February, May, August and November, the fifteenth day of the 
immediately preceding January, April, July and October, respectively, or such 
other record date, not more than 60 days and not less than 10 days preceding the 
applicable Dividend Payment Date, as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors of 
the Company. Dividends on the shares of Preferred Stock shall be fully 
cumulative and shall accrue (whether or not declared and whether or not there 
are funds of the Company legally available for the payment of dividends) from 
the Issuance Date (or the last Dividend Payment Date for which dividends were 
paid, as the case may be) based on a 360-day year comprised of twelve 30-day 
months. Accrued and unpaid dividends for any past Dividend Period and dividends 
in connection with any optional redemption may be declared and paid at any time, 
without reference to any Dividend Payment Date, to holders of record on such 
date, not more than 45 days prior to the payment thereof, as may be fixed by the 
Board of Directors of the Company. 

(ii) No dividend shall be declared or paid or set apart for 
payment or other distribution declared or made, whether in cash, obligations or 
shares of capital stock of the COmpany or other property, directly or 
indirectly, upon any shares of Junior Stock or Parity Stock, nor shall any 
shares of Junior Stock or Parity Stock be redeemed, repurchased or otherwise 
acquired for consideration by the Company through a sinking fund or otherwise, 
unless all accrued and unpaid dividends through the most recent Dividend Payment 
Date (whether or not such dividends have been declared and whether or not there 
are funds of the Company legally available for the payment of dividends) on the 
shares of Preferred Stock and any Parity Stock have been or contemporaneously 
are declared and paid in full; provided, however, that, notwithstanding any 

provisions in this subparagraph (ii) to the contrary, the Company shall be 
entitled to (a) declare and pay dividends on shares of Junior Stock payable 
solely in shares of Junior Stock and on shares of Parity Stock payable 

3 

solely in shares of Parity Stock or Junior Stock (other than pursuant to 
paragraph (d) (vi) of the Certificate of Designations for the Company's 6 3/8% 
cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock), or in each case by an increase in the 
liquidation preference of the Junior Stock or Parity Stock and (b) redeem, 
repurchase or otherwise acquire Junior Stock or Parity Stock in exchange for. 
consideration conSisting of Parity Stock or Junior Stock, in the case of parity 
Stock, or of Junior Stock, in the case of Junior Stock. When dividends are not 
paid in full, as aforesaid, upon the shares of Preferred Stock, all dividends 
declared on the Preferred Stock and any other Parity Stock shall be declared and 
paid either (A) pro rata so that the amount of dividends so declared on the 
shares of Preferred Stock and each such other class or series of Parity Stock 
shall in all cases bear to each other the same ratio as accrued dividends on the 
shares of Preferred Stock and such class or series of Parity Stock bear to each 
ot:"her or (B) on. another basis that :\.s ..at least as favorable to the holders of 
the Prtferred Stock entitled to receive such dividends. 

(iii) Any dividend payment made on thE! Preferred Stock shall 
first be credited against the dividends accrued with respect to the earliest 
Dividend Period for which dividends have.not been paid. 

(iv) All dividends paid with respect to shares of Preferred 
Stock pursuant to this paragraph (d) shall be paid pro rata to the holders 
entitled thereto. 

(v) Dividends (or cash amounts equal to accrued and unpaid 
dividends) payable on the Preferred Stock for any period shorter than three 
months shall be computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed (in a 
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30-day month) since the applicable Dividend payment Date or from the Issuance 
Date with respect to newly issued shares, as applicable, and based on a 360-day 
year of twelve 30-day months. No interest shall accrue or be payable in respect
of unpaid dividends. 

(e) Liquidation Preference. (i) Upon any voluntary or 

involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company or a reduction 
or decrease in the Company's capital stock resulting in a distribution of assets 
to the holders of any class or series of the Company's capital stock, each 
holder of shares of Preferred Stock shall be entitled to payment out of the 
assets of the Company available for distribution of an amount equal to the then 
effective Liquidation Preference per share of Preferred Stock held by such 
holder, plus all accumulated and unpaid dividends therein to the date of such 
liquidation, dissolution, winding up or reduction or decrease in capital stock, 
before any distribution is made on any Junior Stock, including, without 
limitation, Common Stock of the Company. After payment in full of the then 
effective Liquidation Preference and all accumulated and unpai~ dividends to 
which holders of shares of Preferred Stock are entitled, such holders shall not" 
be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of assets of the 
Company. If, upon any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or 
winding up of the Company or a reduction or decrease in the Company's capital 
stock, the amounts payable with respect to shares of Preferred Stock and all 
other Parity Stock are not paid in full, the holders of shares of Preferred 
Stock and the holders of the Parity Stock shall share equally and ratably in any 
distribution of assets 
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of the Company in proportion to the full liquidation preference and all 
accumulated and unpaid dividends to which each such holder is entitled. 

(ii) Neither the voluntary sale, conveyance" exchange or 
transfer (for cash, shares of stock, securities or other consideration) of all 
or substantially all of the property or assets of the Company nor the 
consolidation, merger or amalgamation of the Company with or into any 
corporation or the consolidation, merger or amalgamation of any corporation with 
or into the Company shall be deemed to be a voluntary or involuntary 
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company or a reduction or decrease 
in the capital stock of the Company. 

(iii) No funds are required to be set aside to protect the 
Liquidation Preference of the shares of Preferred Stock, although such 
Liquidation Preference will be substantially in excess of the par value of the 
shares of the Preferred Stock. 

(f) Redemption. Shares of Preferred Stock shall be redeemable 

by the Company as provided below. 

(i) Optional Redemption After the Initial Redemption Date. The 

shares of Preferred Stock shall not be redeemable prior to January 12, 2005 (the 
"Initial Redemption Date"). After the Initial Redemption Date, the shares of 
Preferred Stock shall be subject to redemption at any time at the option of the 
Company, in whole or in part, at a price (the "Redemption Price"), payable in 
cash, equal to the percentage set forth below of the Liquidation Preference per 
share for redemption during the 12-month periods beginning on the Initial 
Redemption Date or the annual anniversaries thereof indicated below, plus in 
each case an amount equal to accrued and unpaid dividends thereon (whether or 
not declared and whether or not there are funds of the Company legally available 
for the payment of dividends) to the date fixed for redemption. 

Period Redemption Price 
---- -"- - - _...... _..... - ..--­

2005 •••.•.•.••...........•..•...•.• 103.1875% 


2006 .•••...•.••.••..........•.•.•.• 102.5500% 


2007 .•.....•.••......•......••••..• 101.9125% 

2008 .•.•..•..•.••••...••...•••••..• 101.2750% 

2009 ............. " ........•.•....• 100.6375% 
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JOSEPH P. CLAYTON 

President ofNorth America 


Global Crossing Ltd. 


Joseph P. Clayton is President of North America for Global Crossing Ltd., a Bermuda-based 
company listed on both the S&P 500 and the NASDAQ 100. In this role, Clayton has direct 
responsibility over the company's North American Operations. In addition, Clayton helps craft 
the strategic vision for the corporation by identifying meaningful business partnerships, alliances 
and potential acquisitions. Clayton reports directly to the CEO of Global Crossing. 

On September 28, 1999, Global Crossing Ltd. merged with Frontier Corporation to create the 
world's preeminent global IP-services company. The combined companies are positioned to 
provide customers with integrated global Internet, data, long distance, local telephone and 
conferencing services. 

Prior to assuming his new role at Global Crossing, Clayton was the President and Chief Executive 
Officer of Frontier Communications, a leading provider of integrated communications services 
nationwide. After assuming leadership in June 1997, Frontier's stock price appreciated over 200 
percent. He simultaneously grew the company's market cap from $3 billion to $10 billion. 
Clayton drove the strategic vision of Frontier while working as a hands-on leader of Frontier's 
executive management team. 

Before joining Frontier, Clayton served as executive vice president ofmarketing 
and sales for the Americas and Asia for Thomson Consumer Electronics, the largest electronics 
company in the United States. A seasoned leader in the consumer electronics industry, he has 
more than 24 years of marketing and sales experience. During his tenure, Clayton was 
responsible for product development, marketing, advertising, sales and distribution of Thomson's 
RCA, ProScan and GE brands ofconsumer electronics products. 

His experience in the consumer electronics industry included numerous management positions for 
RCA, GE and Thomson, most notably senior vice president of the television division, vice 
president of video product management, and general manager ofnational accounts. 

Clayton earned an M.B.A. in marketing and management from Indiana University in 
Bloomington, Ind., and is a magna cum laude graduate with a B.A. in business administration and 
economics from Bellarmine College in Louisville, Kentucky. He currently serves on Global 
Crossing's board of directors, as well as the boards of Global Crossing's GlobalCenter and Asia 
Global Crossing divisions. He is a director of the good guys a publicly traded West Coast 
consumer electronics retail operation, and is a member of the Chase Manhattan Bank's 
Northeastern board. Clayton serves on the Dean's Advisory Board for Indiana University School 
of Business, as a trustee of Bellarmine College, and as a trustee of Rochester Institute of 
Technology. Clayton formerly acted as chairman of the Consumer Electronics Group for the 
Electronics Industries Association. 
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ROBERT L. BARRETT 

Executive Vice President and ChiefTechnical Officer 
Global Crossing North America 

Guiding the product development, engineering, information systems and the overall technical 

vision of the firm, Robert Barrett is the executive vice president and Chief Technical Officer for 

Global Crossing North America. In this position, Barrett guides the company's product 

development, information systems and network infrastructure. In addition, he directs the 

development of a companywide full service platform, combining network, customer service and 

billing on one integrated system. 


Barrett joined the company in 1996 as president ofFrontier Network Systems and Services, with 

responsibility for all network operations, information technology and engineering. 


A 35-year technology veteran, Barrett was previously executive vice president and Chief 

Technology Officer at Columbus, Ohio-based Banc One Corporation, one of the 10 largest bank 

holding companies in the U.S. His career at Banc One also included serving as president ofBanc 

One Services Corporation, the technology subsidiary comprised of information systems, bank 

operations and conversions, client services, administrative services, financial card services and 

advanced technology. 


Before joining Banc One, Barrett was senior vice president of Allnet Communication Services. 

In this position, he was in charge of operations, billing, customer service, sales support, 

engineering and technology and was instrumental in the development of the Allnet billing 

platform, recognized as one of the most flexible in the telecommunications industry and currently 

utilized by Frontier. Prior to joining Allnet, Barrett was Chairman and CEO for the information 

technologies and telecommunications subsidiaries of Clark Equipment Company. 


Barrett earned a bachelor's degree in finance, physics and psychology from Michigan State 

University in East Lansing, Mich. 
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HAROLD M. WINFIELD 

ChiefFinancial Officer 
Global Crossing North America 

Hank Winfield was appointed chief financial officer for Global Crossing North America in 
September 1999 when Global Crossing Ltd. completed its merger with Frontier Corporation. In 
this position, he is responsible for revenue management, internal reporting, credit and collections, 
accounting operations and financial planning and analysis. 

Winfield joined Frontier in January 1999 as vice president and corporate controller, where he 
managed the accounting operations, all internal and external reporting, credit and collections, and 
financial accountability for the company's activities. 

Before coming to Frontier, Winfield was with First Data Corporation, where he served as senior 
vice president and ChiefFinancial Officer of TeleCheck Services, Inc. In addition to his duties as 
a member of the company's Executive Committee, he was responsible for all fmancial aspects of 
accounting, planning and analysis, and acquisitions. He also held positions of vice president of 
finance and director ofplanning and analysis. 

Previously, Winfield was a member of Coopers & Lybrand for more than eight years, holding 
numerous management positions in audit and mergers and acquisitions. 

Winfield earned a BBA in business and accounting from Southern Methodist University and is a 
certified public accountant. 




